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The introduction includes, among other things, a word from the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, selected financial data, condensed information about the Company’s strategy and material
events and data in the reporting period presented using special graphic/visual tools, for the
convenience of investors. The introduction chapter does not provide a full description of the
Company’s activity; it should be read in conjunction with all other parts of the periodic report.
The introduction chapter may include forward-looking information, as defined in the Securities
Law, 1968, including forecasts, assessments, estimates and other information concerning future
events and matters. Any forward-looking information included in the introduction chapter is
based on assessments and assumptions made by the Company's management as of the report’s
publication date. Although the Company believes that these assessments and assumptions are
reasonable, they are also inherently uncertain since they are pertinent to the risks associated
with the Company’s activity (including the risk factors listed in Part A of the periodic report),
including factors which are not under the Company’s control, each of which or a combination
thereof may adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, and in any event also the
materialization of these assessments and forecasts.

2

GROUP

Core activity
Discount format

Urban format

Growth engines
דיל אקסטרא
דיל
שלי
שופרסל אקספרס

Anchors

שופרסל און ליין
שופרסל נדל"ן
שופרסל עסקים

Additional activities

הבחירה המושלמת לעובדים
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BE THE LEADING
RETAIL CHAIN AND
THE FIRST-CHOICE
OF EVERY ISRAELI
HOUSEHOLD

MANAGEMENT DRIVEN
BY VISION AND VALUES

Excellent, professional service

Innovation

Shufersal strives to provide its customers with
service of the highest standards from best-in-class
professionals trained to deliver uncompromising
levels of results in their areas of expertise.

Shufersal is committed to be a market leader in
terms of the quality and variety of its products
as well as the shopping experience it provides to
its customers. By constantly innovating, Shufersal
works to meet its customers’ ever-changing needs.

Quality

Proud to be Israeli

Shufersal is committed to the quality of the
services and products it offers. Shufersal places
great importance on creating a positive shopping
experience for its customers in order to ensure that
they are satisfied and meet their expectations as a
basis for a long-term relationship.

Shufersal is proud to be an Israeli company.
Shufersal enhances the value of equality in the
community by offering equal opportunity both to
employees and customers. The Company is happy
to serve the community and mobilize its resources
in order to serve the citizens of Israel.

Fairness

Commitment to our employees

Shufersal is committed to treat its customers,
suppliers and employees in a fair, moral,
transparent and reliable manner with the
aim of maintaining an open dialogue and longlasting relationships.

Shufersal is committed to treat its employees
fairly and responsibly, maintain their dignity
and uphold their rights. Shufersal believes in
the personal and professional development of its
employees and acts to promote such development.
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A WORD FROM THE CHAIRMAN
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Social distancing, travel restrictions and people’s
reluctance to come into contact with strangers - and to
avoid such contact to the extent possible - led to a dramatic
surge in demand for our online services. The fact that
over the past few years we have laid out the logistical,
technological, operational and human infrastructures of
our online activities enabled us to successfully address
the shift in consumer needs, which was reflected in a huge
growth in this activity.

Yaki Vadmani
Chairman of the Board

Itzik Abercohen
CEO

We are pleased to present the fourth
quarter and full year 2020 financial
statements. During the year, in which
Shufersal achieved record results, the
strategic processes we led over the
past few years have come to fruition.
In view of the outbreak of the global coronavirus pandemic
at the beginning of 2020 and its impact on Israel at the
end of the first quarter, we made preparations to meet
the huge demand for groceries and other basic consumer
goods, both in our brick and mortar stores and online.
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We therefore decided to open up our online services to as
many customers as possible, out of a sense of responsibility
and a desire to enable as many of them to benefit from
our services. We were willing to do so even at the price
of a certain adverse effect on service levels for limited
periods of time. We pride ourselves in being a responsible
entity, which is capable of undertaking such a challenging
task and meeting the pressing needs of the Israeli public.
Alongside this activity, during the reporting year we
continued to grow and improve across all of our other
areas of activity. The Be chain continues to progress in
accordance with its work plans, and during the last quarter,
it reached - as planned - an operating break-even point,
as part on its launch process, and is on path to become a
leading and popular Israeli drugstore chain. We continue
to develop our financial services, while promoting the
group’s credit card and loans to customers; recently, we
even launched a strategic collaboration with Discount
Bank for the establishment of a company that will provide
innovative digital banking services and products, based
on the PayBox platform. Our B2B sales also continued to

develop and grow, delivering on price and convenience to
our range of business customers. The group’s real estate
activity continued to develop and improve; during the
past year, it unlocked significant value for the group, while
maintaining its safety real estate buffers.
We continue our work to improve our services and
customer experience both in the chain’s stores and online.
Currently we continue to build our automated picking
and distribution centers, which will be among the best
in class worldwide; once operational, those centers will
enable Shufersal to further improve its online services and
customer experience. The first center, located in the Sharon
area, is expected to start operating during the second
quarter of 2021, and will signal a revolution in this area. At
the same time, we continue to develop our service function,
while improving the quality of service and making every
possible effort to maintain high satisfaction levels among
our customers. For that purpose, we recruited hundreds
of new service representatives during the past year, and
implemented a series of steps aimed at maintaining the
customer experience, and bringing our customers to
choose Shufersal time and time again.
Our private label - which has become one of the most
beloved and popular brands in Israel - continues to grow
and expand, while offering customers alternative highquality products at the best possible prices. During the
reporting year, we launched new products in various
categories under our private label. We continue our work to
expand our product offering and improve product quality,
while outsourcing Israeli products to the extent possible.

In these difficult times, we place emphasis on social
outreach, carrying out a variety of direct and indirect
activities to benefit the public and the communities
in which we operate. We continue to work intensively
with the LaTet NGO. We continue our adoption of an IDF
brigade and support its soldiers both during their routine
activity and in times of emergency; this activity is carried
out alongside the support we give to charities and various
organizations as part of fundraising and donation schemes
throughout the year.
Following a very challenging year, we wish to thank our
dedicated employees, who are the backbone of our
success and our industry leadership. Our employees
came to work every single day, even during lockdown
when schools and kindergartens were shut, while taking
the risk of being exposed to coronavirus; they did so with
a desire to serve our customers and enable Shufersal to
function continually and at full capacity.

Yaki Vadmani
Chairman of the Board

Itzik Abercohen
CEO
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2020
IN A GLANCE
Shufersal Group

15.2 NIS B
Income

(Increase of 14% compared to previous year)

13.4%

Growth in Same store sales

approx.

6.4 NIS B

Current market value
(February 2021)

approx.

16.7

Thousands of employees

2.2 NIS B
Equity
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1,514 NIS M
EBITDA

536 K sq.m.

Commercial space

AA-

Credit Rating

above

2 Millions

Costumers club Members

approx.

312 NIS Million

Bond raising

(net issue, extension to Series G)

Retail

2020
Real Estate

12

approx.

2.6 NIS B

Fair value of assets

New stores in 2020

approx.

301

NOI

158 NIS M

Stores nation wide

Finance

27.9 K NIS

641 Thousands

Sales per sq.m.

19.9%
Online Share

New credit card holders

Be

86

Stores nation wide
(include bela store)

25.8%

Private Label share

6

New stores in 2020
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SHUFERSAL
BY THE NUMBERS
Consolidated profit and loss (Millions NIS)
Q4/2020

Q4/2019

Change %

2020

2019

Change %

Revenue

3,871

3,339

15,233

13,360

Gross profit

1,047

898

16%
17%

4,043

3,609

14%
12%

% Gross profit

27.0%

26.9%

0.1%

26.5%

27.0%

-0.5%

Operating profit (Before other income and expenses)

202

116

718

521

4.7%

3.9%

38%
0.8%

% Operating profit (Before other income and expenses) 5.2%

3.5%

74%
1.7%

Operating profit (After other income and expenses)

216

153

41%

745

557

34%

% Operating profit (After other income and expenses)

5.6%

4.6%

1.0%

4.9%

4.2%

0.7%

Net profit

120

117

3%

387

268

44%

% Net profit

3.1%

3.5%

-0.4%

2.5%

2.0%

0.5%

EBITDA

411

322

28%

1,514

1,266

20%

EBITDA %

10.6%

9.6%

1.0%

9.9%

9.5%

0.4%

Q4/2020

Q4/2019

Change %

2020

2019

Change %

Revenue

3,871

3,339

13,360

1,044

898

16%
16%

15,233

Gross profit

4,037

3,605

14%
12%

% Gross profit

27.0%

26.9%

0.1%

26.5%

27.0%

-0.5%

Operating profit (Before other income and expenses)

188

99

653

454

4.3%

3.4%

44%
0.9%

Excluding IFRS16 effect

% Operating profit (Before other income and expenses) 4.9%

3.0%

90%
1.9%

Operating profit (After other income and expenses)

202

136

49%

680

490

39%

% Operating profit (After other income and expenses)

5.2%

4.1%

1.1%

4.5%

3.7%

0.8%

Net profit

129

121

7%

418

297

41%

% Net profit

3.3%

3.6%

-0.3%

2.7%

2.2%

0.5%

EBITDA

301

208

45%

1,081

844

28%

EBITDA %

7.8%

6.2%

1.6%

7.1%

6.3%

0.8%

Shufersal stock vs. leading market indices (% change)
300%
250%
200%
150%

Shufersal
TA Real Estate
TA Finance
TA125 IDX
TA35 IDX

100%
50%

-50%

2015

Share price as of 28.2.2021 is 27.0
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2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

28.2.21

0%

EBITDA (Millions NIS)

sales, commercial space
& income
Sales per sq.m.* (NIS K)

1,514
1,266

Debt* (Billions NIS)

23.9

24.2

24.7

24.8

Gross Debt
3.0 2.9

27.9

707

786

507

502

510

2.6

2.5

2.5

2.2

2.2

Commercial space* (K sq.m.)

770

Net Debt**

2.1

2.0
1.7

503

487

Income** (B NIS)
14.4

* Including IFRS 16 effect, of approx. 422 M NIS
** Including IFRS 16 effect, of approx. 433 M NIS

Consolidated Operating
Profit (Millions NIS)

* Shufersal stores
** Retail segment

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2020

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

2019

12.6

2018

12.2

2016

2016 2017 2018 2019* 2020**

11.8

2017

11.8

* Liabilities to banking corporations, debentures,
including interest payable
** Excluding cash and cash equivalents, short term
deposits and marketable securities

Segments*
(Millions NIS)

718

463

453

2020 2019

419

521

2020 2019
2016 2017 2018 2019* 2020**
* Including IFRS 16 effect, of approx. 67 M NIS
** Including IFRS 16 effect, of approx. 65 M NIS

Retail

Real
Estate

Be

Total**

Revenue

14,371

182

815

15,233

Revenue

12,603

182

708

13,360

Change

1,768

-

107

1,873

544

151

-19

718

397

150

-70

521

147

1

51

197

Operating profit
(Before other income and expenses)
Operating profit
(Before other income and expenses)
Change

* The segments are presented without the effect of IFRS16
** Including adjustments to the consolidated financial statements as described in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements
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GROWTH
STRATEGY

Online
Private
Label

Be

Finance

Customer service
and experience

Real
Estate

Freshness

Shufersal
B2B
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ONLINE AND DIGITAL

50% ANNUAL INCREASE IN SALES
Shufersal is proud to be the leading Israeli
online retailer in 2020, in particular in the

Online sales (B NIS)
3.0

field of food retail.

Online sales

Online services have seen a surge in demand due to the global
pandemic, which was sustained throughout the entire year.
Shufersal’s intensive investment in online platforms in recent
years, which was carried out in accordance with a strategic
plan, resulted a 50% annual increase in online sales. The
increase stemmed from a significant growth in the number of
customers who subscribed to Shufersal online - a customer
base that will drive growth in future years as well.
Over the course of the year, Shufersal continued building and
enhancing its online and digital platforms in order to further
boost its leading position in this area in a professional and
focused manner. Alongside handling increased demand,
Shufersal continued to develop advanced capabilities in
a range of areas, including:
• Taking a holistic perspective of its relationship with
customers across all contact points
• Personalized digital marketing focused on
customers’ needs
• Intensive customer-relations activities - customer
retention, attrition prevention and recruitment of
new customers
• Improving customers’ surfing experience as well as
the conversion rate on the website and app.
• Setting up dedicated online commercial activity
• Introducing digital product management practices to
the Shufersal Online website and app.
Shufersal invests in innovation, business development,
upgrading and expanding the logistic capabilities of its
online activity - both in picking points, and in the Company’s
stores and warehouses; it also invests in the technical

Sales share

11.5%

8.8%

2016

1.7

1.4

1.1

2017

2.0

13.6%

2018

19.9%
15.0%

2019

2020

* Retail only

development of its online platforms and a use of advanced
technologies in its delivery service and customer services.
During the course of the past year, the Company upgraded its
Shufersal Online app, through which customers can shop in
an easy and convenient manner while benefiting from offers
tailored to their needs. The app was launched at the end of the
year, and will be promoted during 2021. This will be carried
out along with ongoing improvements of all aspects of the
app in order to make it even more convenient and easy to use.
In 2020, Shufersal continued its project of building automated
storage and picking warehouses in Kadima and Modi’in with
the aim of improving its services, meet increasing demand,
expanding its product offering and improving product
availability and quality. The automated storage and picking
warehouses will be based on technologies developed by
Knapp, a global leader in the field of all-in-one intralogistics
solutions and automated warehouse systems. Preparations
for the launch of the first warehouse in Kadima are in
advanced stages, and the warehouse will begin serving
customers during the second quarter of 2021.
During the course of the year, Shufersal continued
developing its online data and marketing expertise,
while creating complex analytical models enabling highlyadvanced customization of e-commerce promotional
activities by leveraging its digital assets.
In the coming year, Shufersal is expected to expand its value
proposition for customers of its online platforms - from a
dedicated diverse online food offering, through significant
expansion of its range of pharma products (in collaboration
with its Be chain) to entering into new non-food categories.
This is aimed at increasing customers’ loyalty to Shufersal
Online and creating a one-stop-shop value proposition
with an easy and user friendly experience.
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THE PRIVATE LABEL

QUALITY AT A FAIR PRICE
Shufersal’s private label is a prominent

growth driver and a success story, both

Private label sales (B NIS)

for the Company and for its customers.

3.9

In recent years, Shufersal’s private label altered Shufersal
consumers behavior as the Company launched thousands
of high-quality products that reduced the cost of living in
Israel. Across all food categories, customers welcomed
the introduction of private label products, showing that
it is possible to generate competition even in categories
dominated by superbrands.
In 2020 Shufersal’s private label reached another landmark,
with sales reaching 25.8% of its turnover. During the
year, Shufersal expanded its range of more than 5,700
private label products. New products included: cream
cheese and soft cheese, aluminum coffee pods, a special
salads range and a spicy salads range, family-size ice
cream packages, a cleaning and disinfectants range, milk
substitute beverages, freshly-baked gluten-free breads,
a meat substitutes range, and more. In the forthcoming
year, Shufersal will continue to invest in upgrading and
expanding its private label so as to enable its customers
to enjoy high-quality products at fair prices.

Private label sales

3.3

Sales share

3.0
2.7

2.4

24.0%

25.2%

25.8%

22.0%
19.5%

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

* Retail only
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Be
MERGER COMPLETE & REACHING BREAK-EVEN POINT
Shufersal’s drugstore chain was
launched at the end of 2018. Be offers
an innovative shopping experience
adapted to the current needs of Israeli
customers. The differentiated shopping
experience is reflected in the product
offering available in the stores and in
advanced technological solutions. In
2020 - for the first time in the history of
the chain - Be reached operating breakeven point in the 4th quarter.
Be aims to offer affordable prices for well-known and
much beloved drugstore, baby, cosmetics and beauty
products alongside the trendiest brands in Israel and
abroad. Some carefully selected brands are offered
exclusively by Be. Be also launched a successful private
label range, which Shufersal started selling in its stores
in 2020.
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Be currently has 86 stores and intends to open 8-10 stores
per year in the coming years. In addition, Shufersal’s 14
existing pharmacies are run under the Be brand and
managed by Be. In 2020, a first-of-its-kind Be cross-buy
opened in a Shufersal deal store. In the coming years,
additional cross-buys are planned to open.
The Be section in the Shufersal Online website has
doubled its activity during the recent year, and is set to
continue growing rapidly in the future, including in the
field of medicine deliveries.
Since it acquired Be, Shufersal works to generate
maximum synergy between the chains, with Shefersal’s
headquarters functions providing maximum support to
Be. A statutory merger was carried out at the end of 2019.
The merger was completed in the first half of 2020 with the
aim of boosting the synergy between the Be brand and
Shufersal’s headquarters, logistics and stores functions.
Running Shufersal and Be’s activities within a single
corporation substantially contributes to the activity of
the Be brand and to the chain’s growth as an attractive
leading drugstore chain in the Israeli market.

און ליין

SHUFERSAL REAL ESTATE

נדל"ן

CONTRIBUTING TO THE VALUE AND STRENGTH OF THE GROUP
Shufersal Real Estate Group manages income-

producing real estate, including Shufersal stores,
along with offices and commercial properties
leased to third parties. The Group develops
assets and assesses the purchase of other
commercial real estate assets.

The digging and paneling stage of the joint project of
Shufersal Real Estate and Gav Yam was completed in 2020,
as was the approval of a detailed urban building plan to build
office and commercial spaces at the area of 40 thousand m2
in the Raanana industrial park and a deposit approval was
given for the "City Gate" program in Kfar Saba, As part of this,
building rights will be added that will allow the addition of
5 floors to an integrated commercial building (a total of 26
floors) along with the construction of another tower that
combines commerce, offices and residences with a height
of more than 30 floors. The Group started renting out offices
and commercial space at an area of 11 thousand m2 in Kiryat
Motzkin (65% occupancy rate), continued developing its
real estate assets and renting out its unoccupied spaces.
Shufersal Real Estate contributes towards increasing
Shufersal’s profits, value and financial robustness.

Architectural imaging: kfar saba

Architectural imaging: Cordani Kiryat Motzkin

Architectural imaging: Zarhin Raanana
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עסקים

FINANCE

THE BIGGEST NON-BANKING CUSTOMER CLUB
In the past year, the Company continued
to develop its new credit card customer
loyalty program, after formulating a

dedicated and tailored value proposition
to its Shufersal and Be customers.

The cooperation with Israel Credit Cards (CAL) provides
customers with better benefits than previously available while
providing added value to the Company. Customers’ uptake
of the Shufersal credit card issued in collaboration with CAL
continued to be high in 2020. The Company exceeded all
forecasts set in its work plan in connection with this area of
activity. Shufersal’s customer loyalty program is one of the
largest in Israel; it has approximately two million members,
of whom more than 640K are cardholders as well.

supermarket” where innovative banking products and
services will be offered to customers by a range of suppliers
and FinTech companies. Israeli consumers using this
innovative platform will benefit greatly from a one-stopshop, which will offer a combination of retail benefits, an
electronic wallet and other banking products and services
that can be used for day-to-day financial transactions. Both
companies are the best-in-class in their respective areas of
activity. Working together, they will be able to offer the most
innovative, easy to use and best quality product that will
cater for all day-to-day financial needs of Israeli consumers.
Shufersal focuses continuously on innovation and business
development, to create the best value proposition for its
customers, with banking services now also on offer.

In January 2021, Israel Discount Bank and Shufersal entered
into a first-of-its-kind strategic collaboration agreement
(the deal has not yet been completed) in which the parties
partnered to set up a groundbreaking financial venture. The
joint venture will be operated using the PayBox platform,
offering an advanced digital wallet, including a “financial

SHUFERSAL B2B

CONTINUING TO EXPAND
During 2020, the Company continued developing

its Shufersal B2B activity, which coordinates
Shufersal’s activity with business customers and includes
direct sales to businesses, companies and NGOs via the
Shufersal Online website, the Company’s stores, sales to
retailers via a dedicated website as well as Cash & Carry shops.
The Company operates two Cash & Carry shops based on
a popular format that has been widely used worldwide
for many years. These shops serve as “supermarkets for
businesses”, offering small retailers and small fast food and
hospitality businesses a comprehensive range of products
at competitive prices.
As part of expanding the activity of Shufersal B2B, the
Company acquired Amiga Conserves Ltd. This company sells,
markets and distributes food products to the institutional
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market: coffee shops, restaurants, caterers, nursing homes,
et. The acquisition shall be used as a platform to expand
Shufersal’s activity in the institutional market.
The Company intends to continue developing Shufersal
B2B activity by recruiting new customers, expanding the
activity with existing customers and opening additional
Cash & Carry shops.

CUSTOMERS AND SERVICE

CHALLENGES DURING THE CORONAVIRUS CRISIS
As a leader in its field, Shufersal is
constantly striving to improve its

customer services and relationship
with its customers, with the

understanding that its strength
and success depend, first and

foremost, on customer experience
and loyalty. Shufersal has focused
on customer service as a point

of strength and differentiation.
It invests heavily in improving

customer experience through a

range of activities and channels
to drive customers to choose

Shufersal time and time again.

In 2020, Shufersal invested mainly in addressing the
service challenge posed by the coronavirus crisis. This
was done through Shufersal’s range of communication
channels, while promoting the activities of its customer
service function through three service centers operating
simultaneously to promote the Company’s service concept.
At the height of a pandemic, which required us to rapidly
adapt our work practices with numerous employees
having to work remotely, Shufersal recruited 300 new
service representatives. The onboarding and training of
these colleagues were completed at a rapid pace despite
coronavirus-related constraints; the recruitment of those
colleagues contributed greatly to our ability to meet targets
and the increased demand.
Based on the perception that customer service depend
on the service provided to employees, Shufersal works
to promote an intra-organizational service culture. For
that purpose, it held internal service surveys for the third
consecutive year. In addition, the Company continues to
implement a Customer Relationship Management (CRM)
system as well as processes for measuring and monitoring
customer experience.
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Description of The Corporation’s Business
1.

Legend
For convenience, in this Chapter below the following abbreviations shall have the
meaning listed beside them:
The “Corporation”, the “Company”, or “Shufersal” – Shufersal Ltd.
The “Group” or the “Shufersal Group” – Shufersal and its consolidated corporations.
“Shufersal Real Estate” – Shufersal Real Estate Ltd., a fully-owned subsidiary of the
Company.
“Shufersal Real Estate Group” – Shufersal Real Estate and its consolidated and
investee companies.
“Be” – The Be branch chain, formerly Be Drugstores Ltd., a fully-owned subsidiary of
the Company, which was merged with and into Shufersal in a statutory merger on July
1, 2020.
The “Stock Exchange” – the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange Ltd.
The “Securities Law” – the Securities Law, 5728-1968
The “Economic Competition Law” – the Economic Competition Law, 5748-1988.
Retail – food and consumer goods retail.
The “Commissioner”– the Israeli Competition Commissioner.
The “Board of Directors’ Report” – the report of the Company’s Board of Directors
on the state of the Company’s affairs as of December 31, 2020, included in Part B of
the Periodic Report.
The “Financial Statements” – the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of
December 31, 2020, included in Part C of the Periodic Report.
The “Report” – Part A (Description of The Corporation’s Business) of the Periodic
Report.
The “Periodic Report” – the periodic report for the year 2020 and all its parts as stated
in the table of contents.
“Part D” – the Corporation’s Additional Details Report, included in Part D of the
Periodic Report.
The “2019 Periodic Report” – the Company’s periodic report for the year 2019,
published on March 19, 2020 (Reference No. 2020-01-023530).
“Report Date” – the date of publishing the Periodic Report or a date close to it, as
applicable.
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2.

General
The information presented below and the Company’s estimates are based, inter alia and
as applicable, on publications of the Central Bureau of Statistics (the “CBS”), StoreNext
data, Bank of Israel data, economic publications, and public information provided by a
number of Israeli retailers and food manufacturers regarding their operations.
The description of the Corporation’s business set forth in this part is made, inter alia,
while noting the position of the Israel Securities Authority on abridging statements, as
published, and updated thereby.

3.

The Corporation’s Operations and Description of its Business Development
3.1

General
Shufersal was incorporated in Israel in 1957. The Company’s shares have been
traded on the Stock Exchange since 1980, and since August 2017 have been
included in the TA-35 Index.
Since June 21, 2018, the Company has been a company with no controlling
shareholder. On July 26, 2020, Discount Investment Corporation (formerly the
Company’s controlling shareholder (“DIC”) completed the sale of the
Company’s shares that it held as of that date (approximately 26%), and as of
December 31, 2020, and as of the Report Date, all Company shares are held by
the public and institutional entities.
In 2020 and as of the Report Date, the Company has been active in three areas
of activity: The retail sector, the real estate sector, and Be.
The Group owns Israel’s leading and largest supermarket chain in terms of sales
volume. The Group is primarily engaged in retail marketing of food and
consumer goods. In 2020, the Company continued to realize its business
strategy, and to develop and establish its growth engines. The Group manages
and develops its business with the objective of offering a wide variety of highquality products, services, and brands, at competitive prices, emphasizing
innovation and service, in branches and online, in accordance with the needs of
the chain’s customers.
The Group’s revenues in 2020 totaled ILS 15,233 million (compared to ILS
13,360 million in 2019), reflecting an increase compared to 2019 mostly
deriving from an increase in retail activity. The increase in retail activity derived
mostly from the impacts of the spreading of Coronavirus. In 2020 there has been
a 13.4% increase in the sales in the group’s identical stores compared to 2019.

-4As of December 31, 20201, the Group operates 387 branches, which include 301
Shufersal branches and 862 Be branches3 (compared to 378 branches, which
include 295 Shufersal branches and 83 Be branches as of December 31,2019),
with a total branch area of approximately 536,000 sqm, which include
approximately 503,000 sqm of Shufersal branches and approximately 33,000
sqm of Be branches (compared to a total branch area of approximately 541,000
sqm, which include approximately 510,000 sqm of Shufersal branches and
approximately 31,000 sqm of Be branches as of December 31, 2019), and 8
manual shipping centers4 with a total area of approximately 27,000 sqm
(compared to 6 manual shipping centers as of December 31, 2019); the Group
has approximately 16,700 employees compared to approximately 15,800
employees as of December 31, 2019)5.
The Group’s strategy is based on its strengths, including: its status as Israel’s
leading retail chain; nationwide distribution both in city centers and outside of
them; ability to independently supply goods to the Company’s branches using
the Company’s logistics centers; an advanced online and digital infrastructure;
development and introduction of its home brand; human capital and
organizational capital; ownership of real estate properties; financial resilience ;
a customers’ club that includes the Company’s credit card club; expansion and
development of pharma, cosmetics, and perfumes in the Be chain, and expansion
and development of the “Shufersal Business” activity.
3.2

Main Developments During and Shortly After the Report Period
• For a review of 2020 by the Company’s management, see Section 1.1.2 of
the Board of Directors’ Report.
• For details about the appointment of new directors and a new Company
chairman of the board, further to the sale of DIC’s holdings to the Company,
see Section 3.1 to the Board of Directors’ Report.
• For the impacts of the “Coronavirus Crisis” on the Company, see Section
1.1.4 of the Board of Directors’ Report.
• As of the Report Date, the Company has been rated (AA-) Stable, and the
Company’s bonds have been rated (AA), according to the rating ratification
granted by Maalot in September 2020. For details regarding ratification of

1

2
3

4
5

During 2020, 12 branches were opened, 3 branches were closed, and 3 additional branches were converted
into shipping centers (one of which was closed throughout the year)
During 2020, 6 Be branches were opened and 3 branches were closed
The number of branches of the Be chain includes one branch of Bela Online Ltd. (“Bela”), in which the
Company holds 51% of the share capital. As of December 31, 2020, 5 branches were temporarily closed due
to the effects of the lockdown following the Coronavirus Crisis, and as of the Report Date, all of Be’s
branches are open.
Designated warehouses for the supply of products by way of the e Company’s website.
For more information about the Group’s human capital, see Section 16 of the Report.

-5the Company’s rating and the rating of the Company’s bonds, see the
Company’s Immediate Report dated September 24, 2020 (Reference No.
2020-01-095815).
On January 16, 2020, validity of judgement was given to the separation and
settlement agreement (in the framework of a mediation proceeding) between
the Company and Max IT Finances Ltd. (formerly Leumi Card Ltd. – “Leumi
Card” or “Max IT Finances”), whereby the partnership relationship
between such parties ended, so that all of Leumi Card’s holdings in the
“Shufersal Finances” partnership and in the general partner were transferred
to the Company. For additional details see Note 15 of the Financial
Statements.
• On April 5, 2020, the Company issued (private placement) by way of an
expansion, ILS 300 million par value of its current bonds series G. The net
issue proceeds (less issue costs of approximately ILS 1 million) amounted to
a total of approximately ILS 312 million. Such issue was performed
according to an annual effective interest of approximately 2.97%.
• On July 1, 2020, a merger procedure was completed of Be Drugstores Ltd.
(Be) with and into the Company, in the framework of which all of the above
company’s activity, assets and obligations were transferred to the Company,
and the above company was dissolved on that date, without liquidation. For
additional details see Section 10.1 of the Report.
• On October 27, 2020, the Company engaged in an agreement for the
establishment of a new company that would purchase the activity of Amiga
Conserves (A.S. 1996) Ltd. in the field of sales and distribution of food and
cleaning products to the institutional market. On February 1, 2021, the
transaction was completed. For additional details, see Section 8.11 of the
Report.
• On January 19, 2021, the Company, engaged with Israel Discount Bank Ltd.,
in a cooperation agreement for the establishment of a digital wallet for the
customers of all banks. For additional details, see Sections 11.1.3 and 12.1.2
to the Report.
• On February 4, 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors, after obtaining
approval of the Remuneration Committee, authorized the allocation of
413,753 options for Company shares, and 28,279 PSU to the Chairperson of
the Company’s Board of Directors, and the allocation of 250,000 options for
shares of the Company, and 22,454 RSU to the Company’s deputy CEO and
director of the new trade and marketing division, who shall start his tenure in
April 2021. For further information, see the Company’s Immediate Report
dated February 4, 2021 (Reference No. 2021-01-014979).
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Description of The Company’s Areas of Activity
3.2.1

The Retail Area
As of the Report Date, the Company has two categories of nationally
distributed branches in the “retail area” – the “discount branches
category” and the “neighborhood branches category”. The two
foregoing categories include four main formats, that mostly aimed at
marketing purposes and for the positioning the specific branch vis-àvis the relevant target audience, as follows:
The Discount Branches Category
•

The “Shufersal Deal” format – A discount branch format that
offers low prices year-round. Branches in this format sell a wide
variety of products, including non-food products, in medium and
large branches. As of December 31, 2020, there are 107 branches
in this format.

•

The “Yesh” format – This is a format of small and medium
discount branches that offers low prices year-round and markets
to the general population and is adjusted to the needs of different
populations, by adjusting the product selection to the customer
base, observing strict Kosher laws (“kashrut mehuderet”), and
offering a simple shopping experience. This format has two subformats:
(1)

“Yesh Hesed”. A sub-format catering to customer needs in
the Ultra-Orthodox sector, in order to preserve the
Company’s market share in this sector.

(2)

“Yesh BaShchuna”. A sub-format mostly operating in city
centers and catering to the entire population, providing a
simple shopping experience, based on low prices.
As of December 31, 2020, the Company had 27 branches
under the “Yesh” format (including 17 branches operating
under the “Yesh Hesed” sub-format). The Company also
operates, through a franchisee, two branches in Jerusalem
that also cater to the Ultra-Orthodox sector, offering food
products in a variety of strict Kosher options.

•

“Shufersal Online” – The Company’s discount activity also
includes nationwide product marketing, especially through its
website and designated mobile app. In 2020, the Company
continued to exhibit growth in sales through Shufersal Online. In
2020, the Company’s sales through Shufersal Online totaled in
approximately NIS 3 billion (compared to approximately NIS 2
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billion in 2019) constituting a 50% growth and accounted for
approximately 19.9% of the total sales in the retail area,
(compared to approximately 15% in 2019). Sales via Shufersal
Online address the expanding need among the customer base to
shop online, save time, and maximize comfort, and accordingly,
they address changes in consumption habits, trends, and
technological changes that affect the modern lifestyle and
contribute to higher sales and increased loyalty. Shufersal
Online’s activity maintains the high level of service provided to
the Company’s customers, including by improving the Shufersal
Online channel for the benefit of the Company’s customers
through technological upgrades, expanding the selection of
products (such as over the counter medicine) and content. This
service addresses developing needs and changing consumption
habits of the Company’s customers and the technological
developments that influence lifestyle; therefore, , the Company
continues to place an emphasis on developing this channel and
the quality of service provided to the Company’s customers who
use it. The Company is continuously working to improve the
service and be a leader in the relevant technology, also by way of
collaborations with leading technology companies in the field of
shipping and customer service, and it has a system for monitoring
the quality of service and measuring the service level and
customer experience also in the online area. In 2020 the Company
continued to develop the Company’s digital platform, mainly the
“Shufersal Online” system, and it continued to operate multiple
online manual shipping centers to distribute and deliver the
products ordered by customers on Shufersal Online, in the
framework of improving the activity of Shufersal Online’s
distribution system. The rate of use of the online channel was
accelerated due to the Coronavirus Crisis. On this subject, and on
the Company’s plans regarding online shipping automated
logistical centers that shall cater to the Company’s Shufersal
Online activity, see Section 8.15 of the Report.
The Neighborhood Branches Category:
•

The “Shufersal Sheli” format – A format of neighborhood
branches that offer a variety of products that match the target
audience, with small to medium branch areas, offering a solution
to consumers in terms of convenience, availability, freshness,
service, and personal attention. Branches are located in
neighborhoods and city centers. As of December 31, 2020, there
are 81 branches in this format.
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The “Shufersal Express” format – A format of very small
branches in neighborhoods and city centers, operated by
franchisees. The product selection in this format is based on the
branch size, and these branches usually have longer business
hours than the standard business hours of the Company’s
branches. As of December 31, 2020, there are 77 branches in this
format.

•

Activity in the neighborhood branches category also includes
“Shufersal Green” stores. The Company operates 5 “Shufersal
Green” stores, as of December 31, 2020, and 84 health food
departments in branches across the country, under the same brand
(mostly in the Shufersal Deal stores).
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See bellow additional information about the discount branches and
category and neighborhood branches category as of December 31,
2020 and in 2020, as applicable:
Retail area
(in
thousands
of sqm)*

Average
store
area
(sqm)*

Sales per
sqm* (ILS
thousands)

Gross profit
(in
percentages)

Administrative
operating profit
(in percentages)
****

Rate of the
Company’s
retail
revenue

400

2,899

28,095

23%

2.4%

81%

103

635

27,075

33%

5.3%

19%

The discount
branches
category**
The
neighborhood
branches
category***

*
The branch area is calculated as the gross area, including the sale areas and other
operational areas.
**

Including Shufersal Online sales (see above), that are mostly made through a portion of
the discount branch category. In this context, it is noted that the gross profitability of the
online operations is lower than the discount branches category’s gross profitability(
excluding the Online), mostly because of the operational expenses of the online operations,
that are included in the gross profit components (for example, the cost of picking and
shipping). However, online activity improves the operational profitability of the discount
branches, because it increases sales of these branches per sqm, without changing the fixed
cost structure.

*** Including the Shufersal Green stores (see above).
**** The Company-owned branches also include the actual charges the real estate sector has
imposed on the retail sector.

In 2020, compared to 2019, there was an increase in sales in “identical
stores”6 at a rate of approximately 14.4% in the discount branches
category, and at a rate of approximately 9.3% in the neighborhood
branches category.7
The variance in sales per sqm and in the operating profit rates, and in
some formats also in gross profit rates, between Company branches,
derives mostly from the location of the branch, customer base, the
complex it is located in, the variety of products sold at the branch,
competition in the area, and the cost of operating the particular branch,
and not only the format of said branch. The operating costs in the
neighborhood branches category (the rent and municipal tax and the
branch service level) are usually higher than the operating costs of
branches in the discount branches category.
The Company intends to continue developing all of its formats
according to the business plan described in Section 12 of the Report,
6
7

Branches that have been active in corresponding periods in the two comparable years.
The Company considers sales figures through shipping centers part of the sales in identical stores, and when
calculating the sales per sqm and the shipping areas, as stated above, as part of calculating the sales per sqm,
including the comparable figures.
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while noting, among inter alia, competition in the area of activity (for
competition in the retail area see Section 8.17 of the Report) and the
provisions of the Food Law.
Further to the foregoing , the retail area also includes: (a)
Manufacturing baked and frozen baked goods, through Gidron
Industries Ltd. (“Gidron”), a fully-owned subsidiary of the Company
that mostly sells to the Company’s branches; (b) the “Shufersal
Business” activity for direct sales to small businesses through the
Shufersal Online website and Company branches, direct sales through
the Company’s logistics centers, activity vis-à-vis the institutional
market,8 and direct sales to grocery stores and food business owners
through designated shops (cash and carry); and (c) a Customers’ club,
also including the credit card club offering unique benefits (on top of
the benefits granted to members of the Company’s Customers’ Club),
and providing off-bank credit facilities through the credit card
company.
For further information about the retail area, see Section 8 of the
Report and Note 32 of the Financial Statements.
3.2.2

The Real Estate Area
In addition to its retail activity, the Group owns real estate properties.
The Company’s real estate activity includes developing and adding
value to real estate properties as an additional independent business
area (such as leasing retail areas and offices to third parties), and it
includes activities meant to synergize with and empower the
Company’s primary activity in the retail area, including value-adding
and developing existing businesses, purchasing land for establishing
and operating regional and local branches, as well as value-adding and
establishing surrounding retail areas to increase activity volumes at the
complex. In this area the Company operates through the Shufersal Real
Estate Group, which leases, both directly and indirectly (through
investee companies) various types of real estate, including branches
(leased to the Company itself), retail centers, and other assets. The
Group’s revenues in the real estate area derive from rental fees from
leasing properties, and from management fees paid to it for
management and other services.
As of December 31, 2020, the Group has real estate properties
attributed to the real estate area, with a total scope of approximately
197,000 sqm, of which approximately 134,000 sqm are leased to the

8

In this context see Section 8.11 to the Report regarding the acquisition of Amiga’s activity in the area of sales
and distribution of food and cleaning products to the institutional market.

-11Company’s branches by the Shufersal Real Estate Group. The
foregoing does not include: (a) The Group’s relative share in Lev
HaMiftratz Ltd. (“Lev HaMiftratz”), in investee held by the Group at
a rate of approximately 37%; and (b) properties under construction
with a scope of approximately 40,000 sqm.
The real estate area covers all of the Shufersal Group’s real estate
activity, namely – the real estate properties it leases out to third parties
(considered income producing properties or properties to be developed
into income producing properties_) that are classified as investment
properties in the Financial Statements, and the real estate properties
that are leased to the Company (mostly branches) that are classified as
fixed assets in the Financial Statements (with respect to properties it
owns) or as rights of use assets (for properties it leases from the Israel
Land Authority) (while in the financial statements of Shufersal Real
Estate they are classified as investment real estate).9
For further information about the real estate area, see Section 9 of the
Report and Notes 10, 11, and 32 of the Financial Statements.
3.2.3

The Be Area
On July 1, 2020, a merger procedure was completed of Be Drugstore
Ltd. (Be) with and into the Company, in the framework of which all of
the above company’s activity, assets and obligations were transferred
to the Company, and the above company was dissolved on that date.,
with no liquidation.
In 2020 the Company continued the deployment and increase of the
customer base of the Be chain, including Be’s new brand,
strengthening the private brand, expanding the chain and operational
synergies, including developing a digital platform.
Be operates in the drugstore area through 86 branches as of
December 31, 2020,10 where mostly cosmetics, convenience and
toiletry products, medication, and food supplements are sold. The total
sales per sqm in Be branches in 2020 was approximately ILS 24
thousand.
For further information, see Section 10.1 of the Report.

The retail area, the real estate area, and the Be area constitute the reportable
operating sectors in the Financial Statements.

9
10

It is noted that the real estate area does not include the Company’s logistic centers.
See Footnotes 2 and 3 above.
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Holding Structure Diagram
The diagram below describes the holding structure for the Company’s material subsidiaries as of the Report Date:

Shufersal Ltd.*

*

100%

100%

100%

75%

Gidron
Industries
Ltd.

Shufersal
Real Estate
Ltd.**

Shufersal
Finances LP

Shufersal
Amiga
Ltd.***

In addition, the Company holds additional subsidiaries as follows: Katif Ltd. (100%); Arbaat HaMinim Ltd. (100%); Shufersal Travel Ltd. (53%); Bela
Online Ltd. (51%).

** Shufersal Real Estate Ltd. holds the following companies, directly and/or indirectly: Hyperkol Ltd. (100%), Shufersal Bielsol Investments Ltd. (100%),
Shufersal Properties Company Ltd. (100%), Hanetz Importers and Exporters Ltd. (100%), Orvani Investment Company Ltd. (100%) and Lev HaMifratz
Ltd. (37%).
*** After the date of the report on financial position, the Company completed the acquisition of the activity of Amiga Conserves (A.S. 1996) Ltd. in the area
of sales and distribution of food and cleaning products to the institutional market as set forth in Section 8.11 of the Report, and as of the Report Date holds
75% of Shufersal Amiga Ltd.
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4.

Investments in the Corporation’s Capital and Transactions in the Corporation’s
Shares
Except as stated below, to the best of Shufersal’s knowledge, during the years 2019,
2020 and 2021 (until the Report Date), no investments were made in the share capital
of the Corporation (other than the exercise of options by Officers)11, and no material
transactions in Shufersal shares were made by interested parties off of the Stock
Exchange:12
Date

Interested party

2020

Clal Insurance
Enterprises
Holdings Limited
DIC*
Altshuler Shaham
Ltd.
Phoenix Holdings
Ltd.13

Total consideration
(ILS)

Price per ordinary
share of the
Company (ILS)

Action

Number of
shares

Purchase

7,106,383

167,000,000

23.50

Sale

61,958,825

1,456,032,391

23.50

Purchase

18,050,000

424,175,000

23.50

Purchase

6,382,979

150,000,006

23.50

* Upon performance of the sale in July 2020, DIC completed the sale of the Company shares it held.
For additional details see Section 3.1 above.

5.

Dividends Distribution
5.1

For details about dividends distributed by the Company in 2019 and 2020;
dividends declared by the Company (but not yet distributed) after the date of the
report on financial position; and the balance of the Company’s distributable
profits, see Section 1.1.3 of the Board of Directors’ Report.

5.2

External Limitations on the Corporation’s Ability to Distribute Dividends
The provisions of the Deeds of Trust for the Company’s bonds Series D, E, F,
and G, and the provisions of the credit facilities agreements the Company has
engaged under with four banking corporations (a separate agreement with each),
include restrictions on distribution of dividends. For details, see Note 17 of the
Financial Statements and Section 5 of the Board of Directors’ Report.

11

12

13

According to the allocation dated May 28, 2019, of warrants and restricted, performance-based, nonnegotiable share units to the (former) Chairperson of the Board of Directors, the Company CEO and 7
additional officers in the Company, and due to the vesting of the first portion of such restricted shares, on
May 31, 2020, 77,560 restricted share units were automatically exercised into 77,560 ordinary shares of the
Company, for no financial consideration whatsoever, except with respect to the (former) Chairperson who
paid 30 Agorot per share (the minimum price) according to the provisions of the TASE regulations. For
additional details regarding the allocation, see the Company’s (amended) Immediate Report dated July 1,
2019 (reference number: 2019-01-056400) and Note 22 to the financial statements.
Also, it is noted that Clal Holdings Insurance Businesses Ltd. (an interested party in the Company) bought
and sold shares of the Company in immaterial volumes during 2019.
In this context it should be noted that on July 23, 2020, Excellence Investments Ltd. purchased 127,368
Company shares and began to be an interest party in the Company (also) as a result of such purchase. For
additional details see the Immediate Report dated July 26, 2020 (reference number: 2020-01-072808).
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6.

Financial Information on the Corporation’s Areas of Activity
6.1

For financial information on the Company’s areas of activity, see Note 32 of the
Financial Statements.

6.2

The Company’s financial data, divided into areas of activity (in ILS million):
2020

Retail

Real
estate

Be

From external
From other areas of
activity
Total
Total
Costs not considered
attribute revenues of other areas
d costs
of activity
(In ILS
Costs considered
million)
revenues of other areas
of activity
Total
Fixed costs attributed to
the area of activity
Variable
costs
attributed to the area of
activity
Profit from ordinary activities
attributed to the parent company’s
owner (in ILS million)
Share in the profit from ordinary
activity attributed to noncontrolling
interests (in ILS million)
Total profit from ordinary
activities (in ILS million)
Total assets attributed to the area
of activity (in ILS million)
Total liabilities attributed to the
area of activity (in ILS million)

14,371
-

51
131

811
4

Adjustme
nts to
consolida
ted***
)135(

14,371
13,692

182
31

815
834

(135)
-

15,233
14,557

-

-

)177(

)42(

13,827
1,742

31
22

834
149

)177(

12,085

9

685

544

151

)19(

42

718

-

-

-

-

-

544

151

)19(

42

718

8,170

2,689

659

1,507

13,025

6,453

763

677

2,897

10,790

Be
Retail

Real
estate

12,603

51

706

Adjustme
nts to
consolida
ted***
--

--

131

2

(133)

--

12,603

182

708

(133)

13,360

12,073

32

778

--

12,883

133

--

--

(177)

(44)

12,206

32

778

(177)

12,839

1,550

25

218

Revenue
(In ILS
million)

2019
Revenue
(In ILS
million)
Total
attribute
d costs
(In ILS
million)

From external
From other areas of
activity
Total
Costs not considered
revenues of other areas
of activity
Costs considered
revenues of other areas
of activity
Total
Fixed costs attributed to
the area of activity

Consolidat
ed
15,233
-

135
14,515
-

Consolidat
ed
13,360
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Variable
costs
attributed to the area of
activity
Profit from ordinary activities
attributed to the parent company’s
owner (in ILS million)
Share in the profit from ordinary
activity attributed to noncontrolling
interests (in ILS million)
Total profit from ordinary
activities (in ILS million)
Total assets attributed to the area
of activity (in ILS million)
Total liabilities attributed to the
area of activity (in ILS million)

10,656

7

560

398

150

(70)

44

522

(1)

--

--

--

(1)

397

150

(70)

44

521

7,730

2,657*

594

973

11,954

6,022

907

627

2,484

10,040

Be
2018

Retail **

Real
Estate

From external
From other areas of
activity
Total
Total
Costs not considered
attribute revenues of other areas
d costs
of activity
(In ILS
Costs considered
million)
revenues of other areas
of activity
Total
Fixed costs attributed to
the area of activity
Variable
costs
attributed to the area of
activity
Profit from the ordinary activities
attributed to the parent company’s
owner (in ILS million)
Share in profit from ordinary
activity attributed to noncontrolling
interests (in ILS million)
Total assets attributed to the area
of activity (in ILS million)
Total liabilities attributed to the
area of activity (in ILS million)

12,246

49

552

Adjustme
nts to
consolida
ted
--

-

128

-

(128)

-

12,246

177

552

(128)

12,847

11,758

33

581

--

12,372

128

--

--

(106)

22

11,886

33

581

(106)

12,394

1,486

24

151

10,400

9

430

360

144

(29)

(22)

453

--

--

--

--

--

7,030

2,520*

482

(2,327)

7,705

5,596

956

418

(1,221)

5,749

Revenue
(In ILS
million)

Consolidat
ed
12,847

*

Total assets attributed to the real estate area of activity also include the branches leased out to the Company.

**

Comparison figures for the retail area in 2018 were reclassified to reflect the results of data on managing the credit
card customer club.

*** Including adjustments to IFRS16, as described in Section 6.3 of the Report.

6.3

Nature of Adjustments to Consolidated and Distribution of Shared Costs
There are overlapping costs between the Company’s areas of activity.
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Adjustment to consolidated of data on revenue, costs, assets, and liabilities
mostly include neutralizing revenue from branches leased to the Company by
Shufersal Real Estate, depreciation expenses of Group-owned branches, and the
bonds and loans used for real estate activities. in addition, adjustments to
consolidated include the impacts of IFRS16 on the leases that are not regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker for measuring the results of the
sectors since management is in the opinion that the activity results without the
impacts of the Standard is the most relevant metric for assessing the results of
the sectors. For further information, see Note 32 of the Financial Statements.
6.4

Explanation of Developments
For an explanation of developments in the above financial data, see Section 1 of
the Board of Directors’ Report.

7.

The General Environment and the Impact of External Factors on the Group
In addition to trends and developments in the food sector in which the Group operates,
there are macroeconomic factors that influence the Company’s operations, as described
in the subsections of this Section 7.
7.1

The Coronavirus Outbreak
For details about changes to the general environment in which the Company
acted in 2020 and until the Report Date due to the Coronavirus spread and the
effects on the Company’ activity, business and results, see Section 1.1.4 to the
Board of Directors’ Report.

7.2

General
Company operations are influenced by various macroeconomic factors,
including the market growth rate and the state of the local economy, inflation
(see Section 7.8 of the Report), growth in the food market, private consumption
per capita (including the disposable income per capita), minimum wage
increase, and so forth. Company operations might also be affected by global
factors that affect the Israeli economy.
According to Bank of Israel data and macroeconomic sources, 2020 was
characterized by shaky economic activity as a result of the Coronavirus spread,
and inter alia considerable harm to economic activity, with an unprecedented
unemployment rate and a contraction in output (according to the data of the
Central Bureau of Statistics, a contraction rate of approximately 2.4% in 2020,
which reflects a reduction compared to the growth rate in 2019 which stood at
approximately 3.5%).
According to StoreNext data, in 2020, the slowdown trend that has characterized
the retail market in recent years changed, and the retail market resumed
exhibiting growth in real activity and a minor increase in food prices.
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According to forecasts by macroeconomic entities, in 2021 in a fast-vaccination
scenario, growth is expected to reach a level of approximately 6.3%.14 And in a
slow-vaccination scenario growth is expected to reach a level of approximately
3.5%.
Accordingly, it is difficult to estimate the total extent of the direct and indirect
short-, medium-, and long-term economic impact of the situation on the
Company, its asset value, results, the state of its business, equity, and its ability
to realize its assets.
The Company’s management is continuously monitoring developments, scope
of morbidity, vaccination rates and lockdown policies, and the potential impact
of the economic condition in the markets on the Company’s business.
7.3

Cost of Living in Israel
Cost of living in Israel affects the political and economic discourse and
economic activity in the Israeli economy, including food retail and consumer
products, which manifests, among other things, in a consumer preference toward
low prices.
Cost of living in Israel might negatively affects the Company’s business results,
owing to the strong consumer pressure to lower the cost of the products it sells
and the increasing competition from the expanding low-cost networks.

7.4

The Concentration Law
The Law to Promote Competition and Reduce Concentration, 5774-2013 (in this
section, the “Concentration Law”, or the “Law”) has three main chapters: (a)
Limiting control of companies through a pyramid holding structure; (b)
Weighing market-wide concentration considerations and weighing sector
competition considerations when allocating rights (as the term is defined in the
Law); and (c) The separation of significant real corporations and significant
financial entities (as defined in the Law).
With respect to the chapter on weighing market-wide concentration
considerations and weighing sectorial competition consideration when
allocating rights (as the term is defined in the Law), in general, the provisions of
the Law require regulators who are authorized to allocate rights in certain public
assets (including in sectors such as media, energy, transportation, natural
resources, etc.) (“Regulator”) to consider the promotion of competition in the
sector and minimize concentration when allocating rights in such assets to
private entities, and especially to concentrated entities (including prior to
extending or renewing a right that has been allocated as aforementioned). The
Regulator must also consider promoting sectorial competition in the allocation

14

See the Bank of Israel forecast for 2020.
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of a right (including licenses, authorizations, concessions, or permits) in other
sectors as well, if the number of players in the sector where the right is to be
allocated is limited due to the nature of the right, its economic value, or the law
that applies to it.
In another chapter, the Law sets forth provisions regarding separation between
significant real corporations and significant financial entities, including a
provision whereby a significant real corporation or the party controlling it may
not control a significant financial entity or hold means of control in such entity
above certain rates.
The Committee for Reducing Concentration publishes lists of concentrated
corporations, significant real corporations, and significant financial entities
pursuant to the Law. The Company (including companies it controls) are listed
as significant real corporations, and accordingly it is also listed among
concentrated entities.

7.5

The Law to Promote Competition in The Food Industry, 5774-2014
On March 27, 2014, the Promotion of Competition in The Food Industry Law,
5774-2014 (the “Food Law”) was published in the Official Gazette.
The Food Law is comprised of three sets of provisions: [A] Provisions regulating
the operations of vendors and retailers, including Large Retailers (defined as
each of the following: (1) a retailer with at least three stores and aggregate sales
of its stores exceeding approximately ILS 250 million per annum (index-linked)
and (2) a retailer that holds an online store with a total annual sales volume in
Israel from the online store, and if it also holds non-online stores, one or more,
then together with the revenues therefrom, exceeds approximately ILS 250
million per annum (index-linked)) (“Large Retailer”)15 and the operations of
large vendors (defined as vendors with sales volume to retailers or through
retailers in Israel exceeding approximately ILS 300 million (index-linked) per
annum, or a vendor that is a monopolist with respect to a specific product for
which it was declared a monopoly); [B] Provisions regarding geographic
competition between retailers; and [C] Provisions regulating price transparency.
Provisions Governing the Activity of Vendors and Retailers
On January 15, 2015, the provisions governing vendor and retailer activity
entered into effect., These provisions set forth, inter alia: [1] Prohibit vendors
from interfering with the retail price charge by retailers for the products of other

15

In May 2020, the Competition Authority published an up-to-date list of Major Retailers in 2019 (which was
amended and updated in November 2020), as defined under the the Food Law defines Major Retailers, and
the Company is mentioned in this list. In March 2021 the Competition Authority published an updated list
for 2021, and the Ccompany is included in thislist as well. .

-19vendors or their terms of said sale, in any way;16 [2] Prohibit retailers from
interfering vis-à-vis the vendor regarding the consumer price charged by other
retailers for a product or the terms of said sale; [3] Prohibit large vendors from
shelving products or interfering with the arrangement of products in the stores
of Large Retailers. On December 26, 2016, the Commissioner, by virtue of her
authority set forth in the Food Law, published the Rules for Promoting
Competition in the Food Industry (Exemption for Actions and Arrangements
regarding product Arrangement in Stores of a Large Retailer) (Temporary
Order), 5777-2017 (the “Shelving Instruction”), which entered into effect on
April 2, 2017, and shall be in effect for six years,17 exempting large vendors
from the prohibition to engage, set, recommend, or interfere with the
arrangement of products in the stores of Large Retailers, and exempt Large
Retailers from the prohibition to be party to such arrangement, provided the
products are shelved according to the rules set forth in the Shelving Instruction
and provided the Large Retailer regularly verifies compliance with the rules. The
Shelving Instruction also relate to price marking in the framework of shelving
products as well as to managing orders and restocking products. It is noted that
the shelving arrangements between Shufersal and its vendors were made before
the Food Law and the rules published by the Commissioner came into effect, in
accordance with the Economic Competition Law, as the Company completed
transitioned to independent shelving in most product categories; [4] Prohibit
large vendors from interfering in any way with the consumer price charged by
retailers for their products, with the allotment of a particular rate of sales area to
that vendor’s products, with buying products supplied by the vendor at a specific
rate out of the total purchases by the retailer of the product and substitute
products; and with buying or selling products that another vendor supplies to the
retailer, including quantities and purchase targets, the sale area allotted to them
in the store, and any other commercial term. It shall further be noted that on
January 1, 2018, the Commissioner, by virtue of her authority under the Food
Law, published rules to amend the rules published on December 31, 2014,
exempting some arrangements between large vendors and retailers with respect
to the consumer price, from the prohibition on large vendors to interfere with
the price, including in the framework of promotions for discounting the
consumer price or offering price benefits on additional, different, or differently
packaged product; [5] Provisions on prohibited pricing and prohibited binding
by Large Retailers, as follows: (a) Large Retailers and large vendors are
prohibited from making arrangement resulting in prohibited pricing (as a rule,
this means a prohibition on setting the price of a basket of products whereby any
product in this basket is priced lower than its marginal cost, or pricing products
16

17

“Product” is defined as food and any other product the store sales, excluding electronics, textile, office
equipment, houseware, books, and newspapers.
On March 1, 2020, an amendment to the rules that extended the validity to six years (instead of three years)
was published in the Official Gazette.
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or baskets of products to force buyers to buy the entire offered basket or to buy
products at minimum quantities. This, by setting the price for a smaller number
of units or of a smaller basket at an equal or higher price); (b) A prohibition on
large vendors to stipulate the sale of its product to retailers upon buying another
product by the same large vendor; (c) A prohibition on vendors to make
payments (in cash or in kind) to Large Retailers, except the special cases
stipulated in the Law. The Food Law clarifies that such prohibition does not
prevent lowering the price of a product unit; [6] It was also set forth that the
Commissioner may instruct Large Retailers that are selling products of large
vendors with respect to measures they must take with respect to such product or
substitutes of such product, in order to prevent harm to competition or to increase
competition.18
The Food Law applies to the relationship between Shufersal as a product vendor
and the retailers that buy these products, because in the “Shufersal Business”
area, it also sells products to retailers.
Provisions on Geographic Competition Between Retailers
The set of instructions on geographic competition between retailers (that
entered into effect immediately upon the publishing of the Food Law was in the
Official Gazette) sets forth arrangements to promote and ensure competition in
the retail food market on the regional level, including: Large Retailers (for this
set of provisions, a “Large Retailer” is as defined above, or a retailer with at least
one large store with sales volume exceeding ILS 100 million), whose rate of
sales volume from its large stores in the competition group19 of such store
(including from the same store) compared to the total sales volume of all large
stores in the competition group (including the same store) (the “Calculated
Rate”) exceeds 30%, wishing to open another large store in the demand area
relevant to such store, must seek the Commissioner’s approval to do so. The
Commissioner shall not approve opening such store unless it finds that there is
no reasonable concern that opening it shall cause harm to competition. If the
Commissioner finds that this retailer’s Calculated Rate in the demand area
exceeds 50%, it shall not approve opening another large store in the relevant
18

19

According to Section 11 of the Food Law, if the Commissioner believes that as result of the conduct of a
Large Retailer with respect to the home brand products that it sells give rise to concern of significant harm
to competition or to the public, it may instruct the Large Retailer on measures it must take to prevent such
harm.
On November 25, 2014, the Commissioner published the methodology report for implementing the chapter
on geographic competition between retailers of the Food Law. In this report, the Commissioner defined,
pursuant to authorities conferred to it in the Law, the competition group for large stores of Large Retailers.
According to the definition set forth, the competition group shall include the stores of Large Retailer when
there is an over overlap between the population in their demand areas and the population in the demand
area of the inspected store at a rate exceeding 20%; the Commissioner also defined in the report the
“demand area” for a large store of a Large Retailer, according to the estimated time it takes to travel to it
according to the store size and population density around the store, based on the statistical area the inspected
store is in and on the statistical areas surrounding it.
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demand area of such store, unless it finds that there is near certainty whereby
opening the store shall not cause harm to competition;20
Also, a temporary order (the “Temporary Order”) was set forth for six years
from the date of publishing the Law in the Official Gazette, authorizing the
Competition Tribunal pursuant to the application of the Commissioner, and if it
believes it to be necessary in order to increase regional competition in the food
retail area, to compel a Large Retailer whose Calculated Rate in a particular
demand area exceeds 50%, and has more than three large stores in the same
demand area, to cease retail activity in a large store (one or more) in the same
demand area, transfer the rights of the retailer in one or more large store in the
same demand area to another person, sell the retailors’ rights in one or more
large store in the same demand area, or any other action as the Tribunal deems
appropriate under the circumstances. As of the Report Date, the Temporary
Order expired; It is noted that the Company was not required to close any of its
branches under the Temporary Order.
It has also been set forth that a Large Retailer who receives the Commissioner’s
notice whereby its Calculated Rate in a particular demand area exceeds 30%
may not enter into an arrangement intended to or resulting in preventing other
retailers from entering a contract for making a transaction in real estate or with
respect to real estate, including buying, selling, leasing or renting real estate, or
establishing a large store or any competing activity in the food industry in the
demand area of the store to which said competition group pertains, nor shall it
extend such arrangement.
In this context it is noted that in September 2020, the Company received an
updated notice from the Competition Authority regarding the Company’s
demand areas of its large stores (the “Notice of Demand Areas”). The Notice
of Demand Areas lists 105 large stores with a Calculated Rate (as defined above)
exceeding 30%, but lower than 50%, and 34 large stores with a Calculated Rate
exceeding 50%. Maps of the demand areas of such stores were attached to the
notice.
The provisions of this Chapter could have an adverse impact on the Company in
developing large new branches.
Provisions on Price Transparency
The provisions on price transparency set forth arrangements for increasing
product price transparency by compelling Large Retailers (for this purpose, a
“Large Retailer” as defined above, provided that if holds non-online stores their
average sales areas exceeds 120 sqm) to publish various data on the prices of
products it sells in its stores to the public, in a computer readable file, as defined
20

These provisions do not apply to opening stores on real estate for which a contract was executed prior to
March 4, 2014.
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in the Computers Law, 5755-1995, online, at no cost to the consumer, in such
manner to be set forth in regulations, whereby it is possible to compare prices
with other retailers. The publication shall include a list of the products sold at
the store, their prices, including prices for different consumer demographics, and
all special sales, including promotions and discounts, their terms and expiration
dates.
The Company publishes the prices of the products (as defined in the Food Law)
that it sells on its website.
Provisions on Parallel Application of the Food Law and the Economic
Competition Law
In December 2015, the Commissioner published a Public Statement regarding
parallel application of the Economic Competition Law and the Food Law. the
Statement lists, inter alia, instances with respect thereto only the provisions of
the Food Law shall apply and no further regulation shall be required pursuant to
the Competition Law. For additional details see Note 30(b) to the Financial
Statements.
According to an agreed order dated November 19, 2018, of the antitrust tribunal,
which approved agreement between the Company and the Director General of
the Israel Competition Authority, the Company terminated all exclusive land
arrangements in connection with a limited number of new branches and for a
limited period, and under terms that were determined. In other words, there is
no material effect on the Company’s activity and its operational results.
The Be Chain
It is noted that the provisions of the Food Law that regulate retail activity in food
stores, including the provisions regarding geographic competition between food
stores, do not apply to the Be branches, since Be branches do not fall under
definition of “store” in the Food Law. That being said, the price transparency
provisions do apply to the Be stores, since the Price transparency Chapter of the
Food Law defines “store” more broadly, to also include the Be branches. As for
the set of provisions regulating vendor and retailer activity, and according to
legal advice the Company received, some of the provisions do not apply to Be
and some of them could apply.
As of December 31, 2020, implementation of the Food Law did not have a
material impact on the Company’s business.
7.6

Competition
For details regarding competition in the retail food market in Israel, including
its impact on the Company and the Company’s manner of coping, see Section
8.17 of the Report. For details concerning competition in Be, see Section 10.13
of the Report.
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7.7

Changes in the Prices of Raw Materials and Products and Exchange Rate
Fluctuations
The prices of products sold by the Company at its branches are mostly affected
by product price increased by the vendors. Product price fluctuation could affect
the Company’s business results. Similarly, a significant decrease in the
exchange rate of Israeli currency compared to other currencies might cause a
further increase in prices of imported products or in the price of products with a
material import component, thus affecting the Company’s business results. In
the Company’s estimate the exposure to exchange rate risks is not material. See
also Section 2.3.2 of the Board of Directors’ Report.

7.8

Inflation Rate Fluctuations
The Group holds assets and manages its business in Israel. Consequently, most
Group assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses are denominated in shekels.
Fluctuating inflation rates in Israel could impact the Group’s financial results;
because most of the Group’s revenues are not index-linked, while some of its
expenses are index-linked, and therefore influenced by changes in inflation
rates, including loans procured, the Company’s bonds, expenses for rental fees
and municipal tax. In 2020, inflation dropped by 0.7%, following a 0.6%
increase in 2019. See also Section 2.3.1 of the Board of Directors’ Report.

7.9

Statutory Changes to Employee Wage Costs
As of the Report Date, the minimum wage is ILS 5,300 per month following to
the coming into effect of the Minimum Wage (Minimum Wage Increase –
Temporary Order) Law, 5775-2015, and the Amendment to the Minimum Wage
Law, 5747-1987 (jointly: the “Amendment”). As of April 1, 2016, the minimum
wage shall be no less than 47.5% of the average wage in the market as of April
in each relevant year. The Amendment shall be in effect until the statutory
minimum wage set forth in the Minimum Wage Law exceeds the minimum
wage under the Amendment. Furthermore, the expansion order on shortening
the workweek in the market under the Collective Agreements Law, 5717-1957,
executed on March 15, 2018, set forth that as of April 1, 2018, the workweek in
the market shall be shortened to 42 hours per week (rather than 43), without a
reduction to employee wages.
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8.

The Retail Area
8.1

General Information about the Retail Area
Retail is the Company’s main area of activity and its “core business”.

8.2

Structure of the Area of Activity and Changes Thereto
In 2020, national marketing chains, in addition to the Company, operated in the
food retail area in Israel, especially in the discount market, such as Rami Levi
Shivuk HaShikma, Yeinot Bitan, Victory Supermarket Chain, Yochananof,
Machsanei HaShuk, Hazi Hinam, Osher Ad, and so on (the “Other Marketing
Chains”). The Company and the Other Marketing Chains shall be referred to
below in this Section 8 as the “Marketing Chains”; in addition, there are
specialty stores; convenience stores located in cities and gas stations that usually
operate 24/7; grocery stores; as well as open and closed markets.

8.3

For details regarding restrictions, legislation, standards, and special constraints
that apply to the area of activity, see Sections 7.5 and 8.24 of the Report.

8.4

Changes to the Scope of Activity in the Area
The Company estimates that the scope of the retail food market in Israel in 2020
was approximately ILS 77 to 80 billion (a significant increase of approximately
9% compared to 2019, on the backdrop of increasing demand for food products
during the Coronavirus period).21

8.5

Developments in the Markets of the Area of Activity or Changes in the
Characteristics of its Customers
To the best of the Company’s knowledge, the Other Marketing Chains are
continuing to expand their retail spaces, and have even intensified their products’
marketing activity on dedicated channels for shopping via the internet and
mobile phone, including by developing and expanding the online activity of the
Other Marketing Chains and the entry of new players in the online area, and by
opening new formats. Also, in recent years, new marketing chains started
operating in the food retail area, and there has also been an increase in the
number and scope of activity of various specialty stores. There is an increasing
trend of specialized rapid delivery services in areas with high demand. In 2020,
Marketing Chains continued to enter and increase their activity in city centers.
According to the Company’s estimates, these trends affected the Company in
2020, and are likely to continue to affect it in 2021.

21

Among others, Company estimates rely on CBS data regarding household consumption as of 2017,
combined with the Company’s estimates for 2018-2020, and the data appearing in economic publications.
It is clarified that the above figures include VAT.
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See also Section 7 of the Report regarding the impact of the state of the Israeli
economy and the provisions of the Food Law, respectively, on the Israeli retail
food market.
The Company monitors developments in the retail sector and adjusts its
operations accordingly, as required. This includes implementing the Company’s
business plan, such as adjusting the Company’s retail areas as well as adjusting
prices, strengthening and promoting the home brand as a less expensive, equal
value alternative to brand name products, supporting the Shufersal and Yesh
customers’ clubs and credit cards by offering benefits to members, increasing
the Company’s operations under the “Shufersal Business” area, strategic focus
on customer relations, expanding the variety of products by Be and non-food
products, and improved customer experience, a higher service level, and
upgrading the Company’s capabilities on the Shufersal Online platform and
other digital platforms.
8.6

Critical Success Factors in the Area of Activity and Changes Thereto
It is possible to point to a number of critical success factors in the food retail
activity that affect competitive standing in this area: (a) The price concept – fair
shelf prices over time; (b) Attractive store locations, nationwide: neighborhood
stores in city centers, and regional stores outside city centers; (c) The ability to
offer a wide selection of high-quality and easily available products, based on the
consumers’ needs, at competitive prices, while generating added value for the
consumer; (d) The ability to provide high-quality service through all channels
of communication with the customer, while creating a unique shopping
experience, in particular by making home deliveries through Shufersal Online;
(e) The ability to develop, market, and strengthen leading, high-quality home
brand products (see Section 8.11 and Section 8.21.3 of the Report for details on
the Group’s home brand); (f) Independent distribution to Company branches that
enables optimizing processes along the supply chain and in branches, in addition
to providing flexibility and independence in distributing Group products (see
Section 8.15 of the Report); (g) The ability to buy from many diverse vendors at
attractive commercial terms; (h) The ability to maintain customer loyalty
through the Company’s customers’ club, including the “Shufersal” and “Yesh”
credit cards (for details about the customers’ club and the credit card club the
Group manages see Section 8.14 of the Report); (i) Financial resilience; (j)
Innovation expressed, inter alia, by upgrading the shopping experience, selfcheckout, self-scanning of products, independent payment at Company branches
and digital platforms (sales via technological means that enable tailored service
to individual customers through the internet and the smartphone app); (k) quality
and professional human capital an experienced administrative backbone with
experience in cross-organizational processes while creating organizational
connectivity of the Company’s employees.
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8.7

Changes to the Vendor and Raw Materials System
For details regarding changes to the vendor and raw materials system, see
Section 8.21.1 of the Report.

8.8

Main Entry and Exit Barriers in the Area of Activity, and Changes Thereto
It does not require special resources to open a single food retail store. That being
said, transitioning from operating one or a few local stores to operating a
nationwide chain requires further investment in terms of infrastructure and highquality personnel.
The limited size of the Israeli food market and competition in the retail area,
could also be considered entry barriers in this area. Such competition may
intensify due to the possible entry of international retail chains in the non-food
area, and due to the development of new models in the field of shipments, and
it may cause a products price erosion.
The Company’s long-term lease agreements, investments in Company branches,
and the effect of new local and international competitors entering stores in the
vicinity of the Company could be considered exit barriers to in the retail area.

8.9

Substitutes to Products in the Area of Activity and Changes Thereto
Food chains sell thousands of products, and most of them have substitutes. Some
products sold at Marketing Chains are characterized by high customer brand
loyalty,22 thus limiting the substitutability of such products. If the Company
stopped selling one of these products because of a long-term break in their
supply, the results of the Group’s activity could suffer due to customer loyalty
to specific brands, depending on the duration of said break in supply, if any. It
is noted that some of these products are marketed by vendors that were declared
monopolies with respect to said products, therefore they have a limited ability
to stop supplying their products. Considering the foregoing, it is almost certain
that if these products are no longer supplied to the Group for reasons unrelated
to the Group, such would be within a break in marketing the products to all
retailers. In such case, the effect on the entire retail market shall be uniform.

8.10

For information about the structure of competition in the area of activity and
changes thereto, see Section 8.17 of the Report.

8.11

Products and Services
General

22

Products like Coca-Cola, Huggies, Materna, Milky, Taster’s Choice, Emek cheese, and other leading brand
names.
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The Company sells a very wide range of products at its branches, including
products manufactured by various suppliers for the Group and bearing the
Company’s home brand names.
The Company’s branches sell a variety of products: all food products, including
meat, poultry, and fish; fruit and vegetables; organic products; toiletry ,
cosmetics, and drugstore products; clothing and textile products; leisure
products; electrical appliances and communication devices; houseware, and
computers. In particular, the Group places emphasis on a wide and diverse range
of products at its branches, fresh service departments, such as bakeries, butcher
shops, and delis. These departments sell many products, some of which are
baked and sliced on site, such as bread and baked goods, meats, and cheeses.
The Company holds all equity and voting rights in Gidron that manufactures and
supplies baked goods and various types of ready-made foods. Gidron sells
mostly to the Company. Approximately 2% of the Company’s sales in 2020 are
attributed to Gidron’s products.
The Company operates 14 pharmacies, 23 located within Shufersal Deal
branches, which sell prescription and over the counter medicine. For this
purpose, the Company has entered into contracts with the different HMOs,
whereby it fulfills the prescriptions issued by the HMOs at its pharmacies. In
2020, sales in the aforesaid pharmacies were immaterial to the Company.
The rate of non-food product sales (houseware, appliances, textile, leisure,
computers, and clothing) out of the Company’s total sales was approximately
5% in 2020 (similar to the sales rate in 2019). The gross profitability of nonfood products is higher than the Company’s general gross profitability rates.
The Home Brand
The Company offers unique and broad solutions to its customers by way of its
home brand, in the food area through the “Shufersal” brand, in the healthcare
area through the “Shufersal Green” brand, Baby World, the “Shufersal Baby”
brand, the strict Kosher area through the “Yesh” brand, electronics under the
“Pilot” brand, home decor under the “Gala Home” brand, and so forth (jointly the “Home Brand”). The Company is works to further develop the Home
Brand. Under the Home Brand, the Company offers its consumers products
manufactured by different vendors for the Company, bearing the names of the
Home Brand. These products offer consumers a carefully selected high-quality
product, having passed the quality tests and controls of the Company’s Quality
Assurance Department at a price that is normally more attractive to customers
than brand name products in the same category.

23

Such pharmacies have since 2020 been administered through Be. These pharmacies are in addition to the
pharmacies belonging to Be’s area of activity. See Section 10 of the Report.
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As of December 31, 2020, the Company sells approximately 5,700 products
under the Home Brand in different categories, including food, cleaning supplies,
baby care, toiletry and non-food. In 2020, the Company continued working to
support the Home Brand as part of its strategy and business model, and expanded
the type and quantity of products sold under the Home Brand, in particular, by
introducing new products in other leading categories (cooled goods, beverages,
sweets, fresh meat, and so forth) leading to an increase in sales of the Company’s
Home Brand in 2020 (approximately 25.8% of all sales in Shufersal branches,
compared to approximately 25.2% of the total sales in Shufersal branches in
2019). Generally, the average gross profit on Home Brand products in specific
categories is higher than the average gross profit on non-Home Brand products
in the same category (which has equivalent non-Home Brand products). The
Company believes that the Home Brand products contribute to reinforcing price
conception (high-quality products at lower prices than similar products sold in
the same category), developing consumer loyalty, differentiating itself from its
competitors, increasing awareness to the Company’s brands, exhibiting
innovation in the market and improving profit rates in the category. The
Company continues to act according to the business plan and expand the variety
of Home Brand products, in order to offer its customers a high-quality, profitable
alternative for their shopping basket while at the same time, introducing
innovation into the retail market, aiming to maximize the foregoing advantages.
The Company maintains a system of consumer relations for its Home Brand,
including addressing customer inquiries about various subjects related to the
Home Brand, and it has quality assurance employees that constantly improve
and inspect the quality of the products, thus maintaining high product quality,
protecting public health, and enhancing public enjoyment of these products.
“Shufersal Business”
In 2020, the Company continued developing the Shufersal Business activity that
includes direct sales to businesses, companies, institutional entities and
associations through the Shufersal Online website and Company branches,
direct sales to grocery stores and minimarts through the Shufersal Business
website and through Company’s logistics centers. The Company also operates
unique cash and carry stores. This format serves as a “supermarket for business
owners” that caters to small retailers and to small fast-food and hospitality
businesses. As of the Report Date there are two stores in this format, and the
Company is planning to open an additional store in this format later on.
The Company intends to continue developing the “Shufersal Business” activity
by enlisting new customers, and expanding the activity with current customers.
According to an agreement dated October 27, 2020 (the transaction under which
was completed on February 1, 2021), the Company established a new company
with the CEO (the “CEO”) of Amiga Conserves (A.S. 1996) Ltd. (“Amiga”),

-29which purchased Amiga’s activity and assets in the area of sales and distribution
of food and cleaning products to the institutional market. The new company is
75% held by the Company and 25% by the CEO. Under the agreement, the
parties provided the new company with shareholders loans in scope of
approximately ILS 23.5 million, according to their holding rates in the Company
and which were used for purchasing Amigar’s activity as foregoing. For
additional details see the Immediate Reports dated October 27, 2020, December
10, 2020, and February 1, 2021 (reference numbers: 2020-01-116613, 2020-01126517, and 2020-01-013042, respectively).
8.12

Revenue and Product Profitability Segmentation
Below are details regarding the segmentation of the Group’s sales deriving from
primary categories of products in the retail area:24
Product
category*
Dry
food**
Beverages
Meat and
frozen
Dairy
Fruits and
vegetables
Drugstore

*

Gross sales in ILS
millions (excluding
welcome gift and
VAT)
2020
2019
2018

Rate of the
Company’s total sales
(gross) in the retail
area
2020
2019
2018

2020

2019

2018

3,636

3,221

3,108

24%

25%

25%

22%

23%

23%

914
2,124

808
1,851

773

6%

6%

6%

17%

18%

17%

1,787

14%

14%

14%

23%

22%

23%

1,971
2,211

1,732

1,661

13%

13%

25%

24%

24%

1,955

1,918

13%
15%

15%

15%

24%

26%

25%

1,695

1,488

1,440

11%

11%

11%

23%

23%

21%

Gross profitability rates

In 2020, there were several immaterial internal changes to classifying products
categories.

** The dry food products category consists of 17 categories, each of them accounts for
less than 5% of the retail revenue.

8.13

Customers
The Group sells its products to customers on a nationwide basis and does not
depend on a single customer or on a small number of customers.

8.14

Marketing and Advertising
Prices and Sales

24

It is noted that the revenue line as appearing in the Financial Statements, and with respect to activity of the
franchisees also includes fees received from franchisees. Activity of franchisees does not include the cost
of sale, which increases the gross profitability rate. Due to the increase in franchisee activity mostly in the
categories of meat and frozen goods and fruits and vegetable since 2018, and in light of the foregoing, the
gross profitability rate is presented from 2018 compared to the gross sales (turnover) after discounts (as
opposed to revenue). The Company’s management believes such presentation constitute a more adequate
presentation of gross profitability rates from the product categories.
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The products sold by the Group are priced, inter alia, according to a pricelist
that is based on the purchase price and market terms. The Group is bound by the
prices stated in the promotional leaflets it occasionally publishes. Sometimes the
Group offers local promotions, for limited periods, to promote sales in some of
the Group’s branches ;, this in an attempt to address local competition.
According to the Food Law and the regulations promogulated thereunder, the
Company regularly publishes on its website the prices of the products (as
defined in the Food Law) sold by it.
Customers’ Club
The Group operates its customers’ club under the “Shufersal” brand (jointly –
the “Customers’ Club”). The Group’s customers who are members of the
Customers’ Club enjoy various types of exclusive benefits and discounts and
synergy between the Group’s various formats, including the Be chain,
personally tailored to each customer’s product basket, by directly offering
benefits and sales to club members through the mail, email, text messages, the
designated app, and so forth. The Company considers its Customers’ Club a way
to increase customer loyalty and address unique customer needs, and therefore
makes an effort to characterize customers and their needs. As of the Report Date,
the Company’s Customers’ Club consists of more than 2 million households (a
“household”, meaning, a household that is registered as a club member and that
has made at least one purchase in the last 12 months.) The Company also offers
its credit cards to members of the Customers’ Club, through its branches across
the country.
Most of the Company’s sales in 2020 were to individual customers, most of
whom are Customers’ Club members.
The scope of the Company’s sales to Customers’ Club members (including
credit card holders) out of its total sales in 2020 was approximately 82%.
Credit Cards
In accordance with its strategy, the Company offers “Shufersal” and “Yesh”
credit cards to the general public (subject to complying with threshold
conditions), which grant membership to the Company’s Customers’ Club,
exclusive benefits (on top of the benefits available to the Company’s Customers’
Club members), and off-bank credit facilities provided by the credit card
company.
Since January 18, 2018, the Company has been issuing credit cards to its
customers through Israel Credit Cards Ltd., (“CAL”), pursuant to the MOU
executed between the Company and CAL on November 2, 2017, as updated
from time to time (the “CAL Agreement”). For information about the CAL
Agreement, see note 30(a) of the Financial Statements. Until January 18, 2018,
the credit card company that issued credit cards to the Company’s customers
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between the parties dated July 19, 2006, for issuing and operating credit cards
to the Company’s customers (the “Leumi Card Agreement”). The credit card
issuing and operation activity by Leumi Card to the Company’s customers was
performed through the limited partnership Shufersal Finances. For information
on Shufersal Finances, see Section 10.16.3 of Part A (Description of the
Corporation’s Business) of the Periodic Report for the year 2018. The CAL
credit card activity is performed through the Company, not by Shufersal
Finances.
On August 28, 2017, the Company notified Leumi Card that it does not wish to
renew the Leumi Card Agreement, and accordingly, it was terminated on
January 18, 2018 (it only applies to the remaining valid cards issued thereunder).
For details regarding the Leumi Card Agreement, see Section 10.16.2 of Part A
(Description of the Corporation’s Business) of the Periodic Report for the year
2018, and Note 15 of the Financial Statements.25
As of December 31, 2020, the number of valid CAL Credit Cards26 in the
possession of customers was approximately 641,000 Cal Credit Cards.27 The
Company continues its endeavor to recruit and increase the number of CAL
Credit Card holders.
Approximately 22% of the total Company sales in 2020 were made using
Company credit cards (CAL or Leumi Card). CAL Credit Card holders account
for approximately 33% of the Company’s Customers’ Club members. The
Company’s revenue from its credit cards derives from commissions, credit
spreads, membership fees, and card fees.28 To the best of the Company’s
knowledge, according to the published reports of the credit card companies, as
25

26

27

28

Further to the Company’s reports regarding legal proceedings between the Company and Leumi Card (see
the Company’s Immediate Report dated April 25, 2018 (Reference No. 2018-01-033204); Note 15 of the
Company’s Periodic Report for 2018, and Note 15 of the Financial Statements), on December 31, 2019,
the Company entered into a separation and settlement agreement (in the framework of mediation
proceedings), among others with Max IT (the “Settlement Agreement”). According to the Settlement
Agreement, it was set forth, inter alia, that once it comes into effect the partnership between the Company
and Max IT shall terminate and all of Leumi Card’s holdings in the partnership and in its general partner
shall transfer to the Company, and all claims brought by Max IT against the Company, Shufersal Finances,
and its general partner shall be dismissed, and each party shall be obligated to waive its claims against the
other parties (except for some specific exceptions, as set forth in the agreement). On January 16, 2020,
validity of judgement was granted to such settlement agreement, and the Company holds all of the rights in
the partnership. For more information, see Note 15 of the Financial Statements.
According to the reporting method practiced by credit card companies in Israel, that includes, inter alia ,
reporting the number of valid credit cards in customers’ possession. A valid credit card is a credit card that
has been issued and activated, that has not been canceled by the last day of the reporting period.
Also, as of December 31, 2020, there are approximately 46,000 Leumi Card credit card holders. It is noted
that some CAL cardholders also hold a Leumi Card credit card.
In this context it is noted, that further to the notice of the Supervisor of Banks of January 2018, starting on
January 1, 2019, the interchange commission on all debit cards (as defined in the Debit Card Law, 57461986) shall be reduced by approximately 30%, from 0.7% to 0.5%, in three steps. Such a reduction might
affect the Group’s income from card transactions.
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of the end of Q4 2020, the share of the Company’s credit cards in the off-bank
credit cards market was approximately 15%.
To the best of the Company’s knowledge, many companies and organizations in
Israel offer off-bank credit cards to customers, similar to the credit cards offered
by the Company. According to published reports by credit card companies, as of
the end of 2020, approximately 34% of the active credit cards in Israel are offbank credit cards. Also, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, food marketing
chains that compete against the Company in the food retail area also offer offbank credit cards to customers that provide benefits to customers who pay with
those credit cards at marketing chain branches and with bodies with whom such
marketing chains collaborate with respect to the credit cards.
Vouchers
Among other things, the Company promotes sales by selling vouchers to
consumer on various platforms. Most voucher sales are usually made before the
Jewish high holidays and Passover. Sales of the Company deriving from
exercising vouchers at Company branches accounted for approximately 5% of
the total sales in Company branches in 2020. It is noted that the Company
recognizes income in its Financial Statements when the vouchers are exercised
de facto.
Promotions and Advertising
The Group advertises its activity in accordance with its annual advertising plan
and according to developments in the market. In 2020, the scope of the retail
sector’ advertising and promotion was approximately ILS 132 million, while
most of the decrease compared to the previous year (approximately ILS 145
million in 2019) is attributed to a reduction in the activity of Shufersal Travel
and reducing the signing bonus, in connection with recruiting CAL Credit
Cards). The Group mostly advertises its marketing activities through brochures
distributed to its customers, at the branches, online (the Group operates multiple
interactive websites that offer content on various subjects, such as Foodilicious,
Shufersal Baby, Shufersal Blog, an Angus area, the Company’s accounts on the
various social media, and so forth), on the Shufersal app, via email, mobile text
messages, direct mail, the press, television, the radio, and via public relations.
The Group has extensive marketing activity in the online sector, which promotes
the various content on the Shufersal Online website, such as food with its various
products, non-food products, pharm and cosmetics in cooperation with the Be
chain, and health and nature in cooperation with the Green brand.
Additionally, the Group also develops and promotes specialization in the online
marketing and data sectors, while constructing complex analytic models which
enable individual-oriented sales promotion by way of e-commerce, at the highest
levels, and while leveraging the Group’s digital assets.
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8.15

Distribution
As of December 31, 2020, the Group operated 3 main storage and distribution
centers with a total area of approximately 85,000 sqm, including the Group’s
distribution center in Shoham and the distribution center located in Rishon
Lezion, which are owned by the Company, the distribution center in Modiin, as
well as two distribution centers operated by an external company-with a total
area of approximately 20,000 sqm, and a container freight station that is used on
an as-needed basis (the “Distribution Centers”). The Distribution Centers
allow the Group to store and distribute goods from major logistics centers in key
locations. As of December 31, 2020, approximately 64% of the products
supplied to Company branches, except for the Be branches,29 were distributed
through these Distribution Centers. The remaining products the Company sells
at its branches are distributed to branches directly from their suppliers, according
to orders made directly by the branches, and through an outside entity that
distributes some products to the Company’s branches and customers. As the
Group distributes some of its products to its branches independently, the Group
charges a distribution fee from vendors in return for supplying their products
according to the nature of the logistics services provided to each vendor, which
is expressed as a discount on the distributed product unit price, for products the
Company distributes. The Distribution Centers coordinate most of the
Company’s distribution activities, and accordingly the Company is taking action
to open additional distribution centers and to optimize its distribution complexes
and its supply chain and branches, while increasing product availability and
improving branch service.
The Shufersal Online distribution system is mostly operated by external
shipping contractors, and a Company call center is for the most part responsible
for control. As of the Report Date, most of the Shufersal Online activity is
performed by the branches. Also, as of the Report Date, the Company has 8
manual shipping centers and approximately 35 designated departments in
combined branches for the Shufersal Online distribution array.30 In 2019, the
Company made changes to the online shipping array , including through an
enhanced operating model that relies on the gradual introduction of new and
monitored shipping vehicles , with the ability of refrigerated transportation, and
it intends to expand the use of the refrigerated transportation vehicles in 2020.
In 2018 a fully-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an agreement
with Amot Investments Ltd. (“Amot”), whereby the subsidiary shall acquire
25% of Amot’s leasing rights in the vacant land in the Modiin industrial zone,
while the parties shall build a logistics center on it (as a joint transaction)

29

30

The distribution activity to the Be branches started in 2018, as set forth in Section 10.12 of the Report, and
as of December 31, 2020, approximately 30% of all merchandise provided to the Be branches, were
distributed through the foregoing distribution centers.
Which are also used for distribution by Be.
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(envelope level, excluding automation systems) in a scope of approximately
40,000 sqm, and an office building of approximately 6,000 sqm (jointly in this
Section – the “Project”), while the parties’ shares of the Project shall be 25% to
the subsidiary and 75% to Amot, divided between them in nonspecific parts. The
Company shall lease the logistics center from the joint transaction, under a longterm lease, and it shall be used as an automated shipping center for the
Company’s online operations, as aforesaid. Further to the above, in 2018, the
Company entered into an agreement with KNAPP that shall supply and establish
the automation activity for the new automatic shipping center in Modiin, as well
as for a warehouse in Kadima (with a built area of approximately 8,000 sqm)
that shall also serve as an automated shipping center for the online activity.

The total investment for establishing the automated shipping centers in Modiin
and Kadima, as set forth above, are estimated at approximately ILS 650 million
(not including credit cost capitalization), while most of such amount is attributed
to paying for the automation equipment and its establishment, spread over
approximately 4 years.31
As of the Report Date, the installation activity of the automation equipment in
Kadima ended, and in the Company’s estimate, the commencement of the
commercial activity in the shipping center in Kadima is expected to commence
during the Second Quarter of 2021. In Modiin the shell construction work ended
and the installation work of the automation equipment commenced, and in the
Company’s estimate they are expected to end towards the end of 2022.
With respect to the center located in Kadima, the Company in 2019 engaged in
an agreement with KNAPP, in the framework of which it was established that
the parties would act to jointly hire employees who would be Company
employees, with the purpose of training and instructing them in the operation
and maintenance of the automation center in Kadima, while addressing the
Company’s operational needs and later also their mobility between such centers.
The period of such agreement is 4 years, during which, generally, the parties do
not have the right to terminate the engagement.
In addition, the Company engaged in related agreements with KNAPP for
purpose of providing service, maintenance, and treatment of malfunctions in the
automation activity to be provided after the activation phase of the center in
Kadima, for periods of between 4 and 7 years.
The purpose is for an independent maintenance system to be established in the
Company at the end of such process, to the extent possible in connection with
the automation activity both in Kadima and in Modiin, and in a manner that
31

As of the Report Date, the Company recorded investments for this project of ILS 330 million (not including
credit cost capitalization).
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would reduce the dependency on KNAPP. As of the Report Date, the Company
estimates that it is dependent on KNAPP for establishing the centers and
operating them up to the completion of training the employees who shall be
Company employees, as foregoing. The consideration to KNAPP for the
foregoing training, maintenance and operation services are is amounts that are
not material to the Company.
It is noted that the Company’s estimates regarding the commencement date
of the commercial activity and the conclusion of the installation work of the
automation equipment in such shipping centers, are forward-looking
information, as defined in the Securities Law, which is based on executed
construction and maintenance contracts in the Company’s possession, the
construction’s rate of progress up to this point, and on the Company’s
estimates. These estimates may not materialize in full or in part, or
materialize in a different manner, including materially different, than
predicted, as a result of the effect of the Coronavirus Crisis or events that
are not under the Company’s control, the market situation, and as a result
of the risk factors characterizing the Company, as set forth in Section 18 of
the Report.
8.16

Dependence on Distribution Channels
The Group is a retailer that markets the products it buys through a nationwide
network of branches it operates. As stated in Section 8.15 of the Report, the
Group distribute approximately 64% of the products it sells through the
Distribution Centers.32 Should the Group be unable to use the Distribution
Centers it uses, for any reason whatsoever, the Company estimates it shall be
able to make preparations for direct distribution of most of the products to all its
branches in reasonable time, according to the vendors’ ability to supply products
directly to branches. In light of the Company’s insurance coverage, it estimates
this could have an immaterial effect on its results.

8.17

Competition
The Company is Israel’s largest food retail chain. The Company estimates that
the Group’s market share in 2020 constitutes approximately 20% of the total
retail food market in Israel, similar to its market share in 2019.33
Competition in the Israeli retail food market has been fierce for several years,
especially following the development of the Other Marketing Chains, which are
increasing their retail spaces and their market shares, as well as an increase in
the number of specialty stores and their scope of activity. As of the Report Date,
the Company is competing against the Other Marketing Chains and specialty
stores such as greengrocers, butcher shops, delis and bakeries, convenience

32
33

Except for the Be branches. See Footnote 29 above.
See Footnote 21 above.

-36-

stores in cities and gas stations, neighborhood grocery stores, open and closed
markets, other retailers, and new service models specializing in shipping in
short-term period in high-demand areas. Competition in the retail food market
in 2020 was mostly affected by the continued competition against the Other
Marketing Chains, emphasizing regional competition areas, and it is likely to
continue also in 2021. Similarly, in 2020 marketing chains in the discount
market redoubled their efforts to enter into city centers and open stores there.
The Other Marketing Chains shall continue to compete against the Company
both in city centers and outside them, and the competition will mostly revolve
around prices.
Information about continued competition is forward-looking information,
as defined in the Securities Law. Such information relies on Company
estimates, in addition to the public information provided by several Israeli
retailers regarding their individual actions. Competition in practice could
be materially different from the foregoing forecast, as a result of various
factors, primarily entrance or non-entrance of new competitors, including
the entrance of international retail chains to Israel, the scope and expansion
of the activity of competitors, and the impact of the risk factors described
in Section 18 of the Report.
The Group is coping with competition in the retail area and changes thereto in
different ways. The Group is implementing the business model described in
Section 12 of the Report, which allows it to offer value to customers including
by way of attractive prices and promotions, continued development of the
Company’s online activity, a customer-focused strategy and high quality
service, a broad, rich, high-quality variety of products available at the branches,
including the Home Brand, and the shopping experience at Company branches.
The Group also carries out marketing, advertising, and promotion activities, and
it also operates its Customers’ Club and credit card customers club. The
Company is also acting to differentiate and brand the Group, in all areas of
activity.
Company actions for coping with competition are implemented with emphasis
on customer experience and the relationship with the customer, strengthening
the image of the Home Brand price and quality on the national level, as well as
coping with regional competition, based on a regional analysis of competition
in food retail and noting, inter alia, opening and closing of competing branches.
The positive factors that affect or that might affect the Group’s competitive
position include: the Group’s financial resilience; its market share; the logistics
centers that provide flexibility and independence in distributing Group products
to the branches; national deployment that provides flexibility as the Group
handles national and local competition; wide national coverage of Shufersal
Online (compared to the relatively lower coverage offered by the Company’s
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card) that is based on a database and allows addressing different needs of the
customers; the Company’s position in the discount store area; the diverse
formats that cater to a large part of the population; expanding and selling the
Home Brand product line (including launching new categories); innovation
through the Shufersal app, email, mobile phone messages, self-checkout,
independent product scanning; high-quality service and responsiveness to
customers’ needs on all channels of communication with customers, and so
forth.
Negative factors that have or might have an adverse impact on the Company’s
competitive position include: the competition against chains that work on
Saturdays or that market non-Kosher products; marketing chain mergers; the
penetration of discount marketing chains into city centers (for example, Yeinot
Bitan, following the acquisition of Mega, and the Rami Levi chain following the
acquisition of control in Cofix); the entrance of new competitors into food retail,
including specialty stores; the Group’s ability to acquire different operations or
open new branches in some areas, that might require the Commissioner’s
approval; overly strict enforcement by the authorities that might target major
chains in particular, including in the areas of consumer protection, business
licensing, and health; as well as various statutory restrictions that apply to the
Company’s operations, and various provisions pertaining to activity restrictions
following the Coronavirus Crisis.
8.18

Seasonality
The retail sector in Israel is affected by fluctuation in sales and in quarterly
profits, first and foremost because of the Jewish high holidays and Passover
shopping peaks, that fall in different quarters in different years, resulting in
increased consumption,. Below is the Company’s revenue distribution in the
retail sector according to quarters in 2019 and 2020:
2020

8.19
34

2019

Total revenue
(in ILS
thousands)

% of total
revenue in
2020

Total revenue
(in ILS
thousands)

% of total
revenue in
2019

Q1

3,520

25%

2,974

23%

Q2

3,485

24%

3,241

26%

Q3

3,713

26%

3,241

26%

Q4

3,653

25%

3,147

25%

Land and Facilities34

Excluding the Be area. See Section 10.14 of the Report.
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As of December 31, 2020, the Group owns the title or perpetual leases on 66
branches covering approximately 121,000 sqm (compared to approximately 67
branches, covering an area of approximately 124,000 sqm as of December 31,
2019) including one branch the Company owns directly, and 65 branches that
are attributed to the Shufersal Real Estate Group and leased to the Company.
It is noted that the branches attributed to the Shufersal Real Estate Group are
classified as investment real estate in the financial statement of the Shufersal
Real Estate Group companies, and as fixed assets or rights of use assets in the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.
The Group owns the title or perpetual lease of areas used for storage, offices and
logistics centers. For information, see also Section 8.15 of the Report.
When the Group leases areas from the Israel Land Authority it engages in lease
agreements with the Israel Land Authority, usually for 49 years, with an option
to extend by 49 additional years. Most of these perpetual lease contracts with
the Israel Land Authority are capitalized and do not require an annual fee.
Also, as of December 31, 2020, the Company is leasing areas from third parties
throughout the country, some in shopping centers, some in shopping malls, and
some in other locations, covering approximately 383,000 sqm (compared to
approximately 389,000 sqm on December 31, 2019), on which the remaining
235 branches are located (compared to 229 branches on December 31, 2019).
The lease agreements for the branches are made for different periods, and
usually the Company has options to extend the lease. The Company usually aims
to enter into long-term leases, while maintaining flexibility throughout the term
of the lease. According to the lease agreements, the Company must pay rent that
is usually linked to the Consumer Price Index (the “Base Rent”). In some of the
lease agreements, the Company can choose to pay rent derived from the sales
turnover of the branch that operates in the leasehold. According to such
arrangement, if rent derived from the sales turnover exceeds the Base Rent, the
Company must pay the difference. There are also a few lease agreements
whereby the Company is required to pay rent only as a percentage of the sales
turnover. The total rent paid as a percentage of the sales turnover or paid as an
addition to rent up to a percentage of the sales volume was of an immaterial
amount in 2020.
See below details about the Group properties that service the retail activity, as
of December 31, 2020:35

35

Assuming the Company exercises the options to extend the leases.
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Type of right in the property
(Remaining time)

2020
Area
Number of
(In thousands
properties
of sqm)

Active branches
Ownership

Long-term lease from the Israel
Land Authority
Total properties owned/leased
from the Israel Land Authority
Lease (16 to 24 years)
Lease (11 to 15 years)
Lease (6 to 10 years)
Lease (less than five years)
C&C – Lease (between 16 and
24 years)
Total leased properties
Total
Branches in development – lease
Lease
Branches in development – ownership
Ownership
Distribution centers and offices
Ownership
Lease

47

33

74

33

121

66

159
78
77
60
8

93
54
52
34
2

382
503

235
301

27

25

0

0

Comments

These properties include one branch
that the Company owns directly, and
the other properties are leased to the
Company by the Shufersal Real Estate
Group.36
The Shufersal Real Estate Group leases
these properties out to the Company
See above comments

63
22

3
5
Shipping centers
8
3
19
5
48
2

Ownership
Lease
In development
Warehouses and bakeries
Lease/Ownership
5
2
Lease (over five years)
24
5
Land that is owned or leased from the Israel Land Authority
(building rights)
Building rights – owned/leased
170
16
properties

Properties Shufersal Real Estate
owns or leases

For further information about the branches the Company leases from the
Shufersal Real Estate Group, and updating the lease agreements therefor, see
Section 9.1 of the Report.
The scope of the Company’s investment in current and new branches (including
shipping centers) in 2020 totaled approximately ILS 208 million.
For further information about the Group’s fixed assets, see Note 10 of the
Financial Statements.

36

These properties do not include one more property (not a branch) at an immaterial volumes that the Group
owns.
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8.20

Intangible Assets
The Group has rights in many trademarks that are registered to the Company,
most importantly the Shufersal trademark. Other trademarks are also registered
to the Company in connection with its Home Brand and its various formats.
For information about intangible assets and deferred costs, see Note 12 of the
Financial Statements.

8.21

Raw Materials and Vendors
8.21.1

Changes to the Network of Vendors and Raw Materials
The variety of food products has increased, including due to increase
in importing products. Also, the restrictions imposed by the Food Law
with respect to the relationships of the Company with its vendors
affects the form of engagement between the Company and its vendors
(see Section 8.21.3 of the Report).

8.21.2

Rate of Purchases from Main Vendors
The Group buys products, for purpose of selling them at its branches
from different vendors, including manufacturers, importers, and
distributors.
In 2020, the rate of the Company’s purchases from Tnuva Central
Cooperative for Marketing Agricultural Produce in Israel Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (“Tnuva”), from Strauss Group Ltd. (“Strauss Group”),
from Neto Group (“Neto”), and from Osem Food Industries Ltd. and
its subsidiaries (“Osem”) accounted for approximately 8.7%, 7.4%,
6.1%, and 6.8%, respectively, from the Group’s total purchases
(compared to approximately 9.1%, 7.6%, 5.7%, and 6.7%,
respectively, in 2019).
The rate of purchases from the Group’s ten largest vendors, including
Tnuva, the Strauss Group, Neto, and Osem, accounted for
approximately 46% of the Group’s purchases in 2020 (compared to
approximately 46% of the Group’s purchases in 2019).

8.21.3

Forms of Engagement with Vendors
The Group purchases the products it sells through its trade department.
The trade department decides the mix of products to be marketed by
the chain’s branches, and it negotiates with vendors on product
purchase prices, promotions, and payment terms. The Group enters
into agreements and/or correspondences with its vendors, usually for
one year (some engagements are made for more than a year). The
Group has agreements with most of its vendors on regular supply of
products according to the Company’s request based on the demand of
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its customers. The Group has understandings or written agreements
with those vendors regarding the commercial terms relating, among
others, to discounts the Group is entitled to receive from these vendors.
According to the Food Law, all discounts the Group receives from
vendors are part of the purchase price per product unit, except for
discounts given under the product.37 These discounts include inter alia
discounts for advertising, the distribution commission paid by the
vendors to the Group if the Group distributes the products, and the
management and shelving fee (see Section 7.5 of the Report). The
customary work method is that the Group issues orders to vendors for
various products, and they confirm acceptance and performance.
Generally, the Group has no agreements that compel it to buy products.
Relationships with most Group vendors span many years.
The Group engages with several vendors that manufacture a variety of
branded products sold under the Home Brand (the “Home Brand
Agreements”). According to the Home Brand Agreements, the Group
owns the exclusive intellectual property rights in the Home Brand
products, regarding the name of the product and package design. The
Home Brand Agreements set forth the parties’ engagement period,
engagement termination method, and the parties’ rights in case of
termination, and the manufacturer’s liability for the quality of the
products it provides.
The Group occasionally replaces its vendors and/or the products it sells
based on criteria such as quality, compliance with supply dates, price,
sales levels, and profitability. Such replacement does not harm the
Group’s activity.
8.21.4

Dependence on Vendors
Generally, the Group avoids becoming dependent on a single vendor,
and works to diversify its vendors, as much as possible.
The Company purchases most of the dairy products from Tnuva, a
leading local dairy producer. With respect to dairy products, if Tnuva
stops supplying dairy products to the Group, for whatever reason, other
vendors shall be able to cover demand only partially, consequently the
Group is dependent on Tnuva for dairy products. It is noted in this
context, that as of the Report Date the Company’s dependence on
Tnuva to supply dairy products has decreased, including as a result of
launching a dairy category under the Company’s Home Brand.

37

Such as product discounts in sales held from time to time.
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In 2020, dairy product purchases from Tnuva accounted for
approximately 6.2% of the Group’s total purchases (compared to 6.6%
in 2019).38
The Group has an engagement with Tnuva for regular supply of
products. This engagement does not include any undertaking to buy
particular quantities. The commercial terms include, inter alia, fixed
discounts regardless of purchase targets.
Except as stated in this section above, the Company does not depend
on a specific vendor, because all the products Group supplied by the
Group’s vendors can be substituted at similar terms. Sometimes, the
termination of engagements with a particular vendor could cause
temporary harm, due to consumer loyalty to a particular brand such
vendor supplies, although the Company offers substitutes to such
brand. That being said, according to the Group’s estimates, and based
on its past experience, no significant and ongoing damage is expected
to the Group’s revenues and/or profitability due to replacement of
vendors, even if they are among the Group’s primary vendors.
8.22

Working Capital
Summary of the Corporation’s Working Capital Composition
The Group’s working capital mostly includes inventory, customer credit, and
vendor credit, as follows:
Inventory: Timing of purchases for inventory and the quantities purchased by
the Group are made according to products, based on its experience, and relative
to the pace and volume of sales at the Group’s branches, considering holidays
and the exercise of attractive purchase offers. In 2020, the Group held inventory
of products, for sale at the chain’s branches, for an average period of
approximately 26 days (compared to approximately 29 days in 2019). The
Financial Statements present the inventory at cost or at net exercise value,
according to the lower. The Group has agreements opposite some of its vendors
that prevent it from returning expired products or products not purchased by the
consumer public. Also, Home Brand products, products the imported by the
Group, products purchased in the framework of a designated transaction, and
additional products the Group purchases from a limited number of vendors, are
nonrefundable. The total net expense recorded in the Financial Statements, for
all products that were defective, expired and/or not purchased by consumers and
could not be returned to the vendors, was immaterial with respect to the
purchases. Also, for some vendors, the Company reserves the right to return

38

This data amends the data of 6.8% stated in the 2019 periodic report. The change derives from an item
categorization update.
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products to the vendor. In these instances, the vendor credits the Group for the
product purchase amount.
Vendor and customer credit: The Group receives credit from its vendors (trade
and others), according to agreements with different vendors, for varying terms,
according to the type of engagement, mostly for an average period of net + 40
days in 2020 (compared to net + 37 days in 2019).
Most Group sales are made to individual customers, and against credit cards,
cash, checks, and vouchers. Customer credit terms are according to the market
standard, based on the payment method and the purchase amount. Most sales are
made using cash or credit cards. Generally, and according to the Group’s
experience (including as of the Report Date), the Company’s bad and doubtful
debts are in immaterial amounts.

8.23

Environmental Risks and Management Thereof
8.23.1

Environmental risks that have or might have a material impact on the
corporation
Except as stated below, Company branches, factories, and logistics
centers generally have no environmental risks, such as dangerous
emissions or use of hazardous materials, as defined in the Hazardous
Materials Law, 5753-1993. As of the Report Date, no hazardous
materials are used at any product manufacturing stage at the Gidron
manufacturing plants.
Nonetheless, the Group must comply with the environmental
protection requirements, including in the framework of regulating
building permits and business licenses for its branches, in accordance
with the provisions of the Ministry of Environmental Protection, the
Ministry of Health, and the sanitation departments of local authorities,
and according to legislation and bylaws, such as the Public Health
Ordinance on the effect on drinking water systems; the Water Law,
5719-1959, and its regulations, the Water and Sewage Corporations
Law, 5771-2001, and the Water and Sewage Corporations Rules
(Industrial Wastewater Pumped into the Sewage System), 5774-2014,
with respect to the quality of wastewater that is discharged into the
sewage; the Municipalities Ordinance and the Business Licensing
Law, 5728-1968, and the regulations and decrees thereunder; the
Beverage Containers Deposit Law, 5759-1999,39 the Recyclable Waste

39

Recently, such obligation to deposit in this law was also applied to large beverage container as such are
defined, starting from December 1, 2021 (according to the Beverage Containers Deposit (Postponement of
the Application Date of the Law on Large Beverage Containers) Injunction, 5781-2020). In this regard two
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Collection and Removal Law, 5753-1993, the Regulation of Packages
Treatment Law, 5771-2011 (the “Packages Law”), and the Law for
Minimizing Use of Disposable Shopping Bags, 5776-2016. The
Group’s activity is also affected by municipal bylaws regarding branch
sanitation.
Each new Group branch is equipped in advance with all necessary
facilities in order to comply with environmental protection
requirements. Also, when upgrading branches the systems are adjusted
according to the requirements of the Ministry of Health and the
Ministry of Environmental Protection.
The Company holds a poison permit as required for the operation of
the ammonia cooling system as foregoing, including provisions
pertaining to separation distances of stationary risk factors, while
complying with all its terms, and with a valid business license for such
logistics complex. It is noted that the Company’s logistics center in
Shoham requires it to keep a certain quantity of ammonia in connection
with operating certain cooling systems for cooling the systems at that
center. In order to mitigate the exposure and risks of keeping and using
the ammonia in these systems, the Company has installed safety and
security measures in those systems and around the logistics center, and
has obtained the approval of the Ministry of Environmental Protection
for such systems and for the logistics center complex. For additional
details regarding the risks arising from holding ammonia as foregoing,
see Section 18.18 to the Report.

8.23.2

The Corporation’s Environmental Risk Management Policy
The Company’s Director of Quality and Business Licensing is
responsible for the Company’s environmental responsibility (in
cooperation with and assistance from various entities in the Company,
such as the corporate media advisor, the technical department, and the
supply chain), who supervises the Company’s progress in this area and
reports to the VP of Operations and Supply Chain, from time to time,
as necessary. Also, according to the decision made by the Company’s
management, the Company maintains management and reporting
processes in the field of corporate responsibility on several key issues,
including environmental protection. The process includes an analysis
of the areas of activity in the Company, gap analysis compared to

petitions were filed to the High Court of Justice that have yet to be adjudicated, while in one of them the
Company is among the petitioners. In the Company’s estimate, the preparation towards expanding such law,
shall require the Company to make primary investments in scope of approximately ILS 20-25 million per
annum and annual net expenses of an immaterial scope.
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leading companies in the world, constructing work plans as well as
preparing and publishing the corporate responsibility report according
to an international standard in such field. The Company is rated by
Maala and in recent years has been rated Platinum Plus (the highest
rating).
The Company takes different measures to protect the environment,
increase awareness amongst its employees and customers, and to
minimize its negative environmental impact. This includes waste
management – increasing cardboard and paper collection at Company
branches for recycling by an external company; waste management –
some branches collect shrink wrap and separate compostable waste at
the source, in places where the authority grants services in this regard;
waste management – electronic waste collection according to the
Environmental Treatment of Electric and Electronic Equipment and
Batteries Law, 5772-2012; replacing and upgrading lighting and air
conditioning system components with and into energy efficient
components; minimizing chemical pollution from agricultural
produce: in order to improve the quality and freshness of the
agricultural produce sold at its branches and to minimize use of
pesticides for purpose of compliance with regulatory requirements, the
Group initiated the “More Control, Less Pesticides” project, intended
to control the growing, collection, and storage of agricultural produce
supplied to the Group by various farmers, promoting the transition
from nylon packages to reusable “green bags”, and reducing the use of
plastic bags; collecting beverage containers and transferring them to
recycling, according to the Beverage Container Deposit Law, 57591999; gradually replacing the gas found in the cooling systems of the
branches, from freon to an eco-friendly gas; measuring the carbon
footprint of all Company operations as the basis for working on all
aspects related to increasing efficiency and reducing environmental
impact; appointing a taskforce for the entire chain to formulate an
operational strategy for implementing the required professional
solutions in light of the Water and Sewage (Industrial Wastewater
Pumped Into the Sewage System) Rules, 5774-2014, including:
monitoring processes and finding solutions to obtain the appropriate
quality of wastewater according to such rules, forming environmental
procedures for the chain, internal enforcement and training for relevant
employees; as well as clearing expired medicine from the pharmacies
in some branches, by an external Company and according to the
standards.
Furthermore, pursuant to the Packages Law, the Company joined other
companies that formed a corporation, formally recognized by the
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Ministry of Environmental Protection, for handling packaging under
the name TAMIR, and the Company has a representative on the Board
of Directors of this corporation.
8.24

Restrictions and Regulation on the Corporation’s Activity
8.24.1

General
The Company’s retail operations are subject to various laws, primarily
consumer protection laws, laws relating to restrictive trade
practices/competition (see Note 30(b) of the Financial Statements),
including the Food Law and its regulations (see Section 7.5 of the
Report), and labor laws. Material laws that affect the Company’s
activity (on top of the Food Law and the Competition Law) include,
inter alia, the Liability for Defective Products Law, 5740-1980, the
Consumer Protection Law, 5741-1981, and its regulations (concerning,
inter alia, the prohibition on misleading consumers, provisions
regarding product marketing and price display, and provisions
regarding cancelling transactions), the Communications Law (Bezeq
and Broadcast), 5742-1982 regarding the Company’s direct mailing
efforts, the Equal Opportunity for People With Disabilities Law, 57581998, the Protection of Public Health (Food) Law, 5776-2015, the
Control of Prices for Goods and Services Law, 5756-1996 (as of
December 31, 2020, approximately 5.4% of the Company’s sales are
sourced from products that are subject to such supervision), and
various labor laws including – the Employment by Manpower
Contractors Law, 5756-1996 (as of December 31, 2020, the Company
has 1,200 employees that have been placed by manpower contractors),
including the expansion order regarding contractor employees in the
cleaning industry in the private sector, the Minimum Wage Law, 57471987 (most Group employees are paid the minimum wage, in this
context, see Section 7.9 of the Report) and the Law for Increasing
Enforcement of Labor Laws, 5772-2011 (aimed, among other things,
to increase efficiency and enforcement of labor laws). The Company
is also subject to the Protection of Privacy Law, 5741-1981,40 because
of its Customers’ Club activity, and because of the credit card holders.
Also, the Company is subject to the Pharmacists Ordinance [New
Version], 5741-1981 (the “Pharmacists Ordinance”), and to the
guidelines and instructions of the Ministry of Health in connection
with the pharmacies the Company operates in its branches and in the
Be area of activity.

40

It is noted for making the picture complete, that regulation regarding the issue and operation of credit cards
and providing consumer credit does not apply to the Company.
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On January 1, 2020, the Protection of Public Health (Food)
Regulations (Nutrition Indication), 5778-2017 (the “Indication
Regulations”) entered into effect; these are meant to clearly inform
consumers regarding the nutritional value of prepackaged food,
including using symbols that indicate that the product is high in
sodium, sugar, or saturated fats, thus allowing consumers to make
informed food choices and promote their health. Most regulations
apply to prepackaged food manufacturers or importers. The Indication
Regulations impose duties also on food marketers. The Indication
Regulations are likely to impact the production activities the Group is
involved in, the import activities and its activity as a food marker. As
of the Report Date, the Company estimates that the Indication
Regulations shall not materially affect the Company’s financial results.
Each Group branch is required to obtain a business license according
to the Business Licensing Law, 5728-1968. As of the Report Date, the
Company has 6 branches that are subject to legal proceedings
concerning their business license, against the Group and its managers.
It is noted that the activity of such branches is operating as usual, and
the Company is acting for obtaining or renewing a business license
therefor. In addition, the Company is constantly and during the
ordinary course of business acting for arranging business license for
all its branches. In the Company’s estimate, the foregoing does not
materially affect the Company’s activity.
The Group’s production activities, especially Gidron’s activity and the
Group’s Home Brand, require it to comply with various standards that
apply to production activities. The Group makes sure all products
manufactured for it comply with all legal and regulatory requirements.
The Group must also meet various quality assurance requirements on
the various products it sells at its branches.
It is further noted, that generally, liability for a product under law
applies to the manufacturer and/or the importer. It might be imposed
on the marketer if it is impossible to identify the manufacturer and/or
importer. As a service to customers, the Group provides a
comprehensive solution to customers for handling cases where defects
are found in the quality of the products it sells at its branches.
To the best of the Company’s knowledge, it is generally in compliance
with the various material legal and regulatory requirements that apply
to it.
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9.

The Real Estate Area
9.1

General Information About the Area of Activity
The Company’s real estate activity is concentrated within Shufersal Real Estate
Group. This area of activity includes the real estate properties of Shufersal Real
Estate Group that are leased out to the Company (branches) (such properties are
classified as investment real estate in the financial statements of Shufersal Real
Estate, and in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as fixed
assets or as right of use assets with respect to properties leased from the Israel
Land Authority), and real estate properties of Shufersal Real Estate Group it
leases out to third parties (classified both in the financial statements of Shufersal
Real Estate Group and in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements as
investment real estate). The assets of the real estate area of activity do not
include the Company’s logistical centers in Shoham and in Rishon Lezion
(including its adjacent branch).
The description below does not include Lev HaMifratz, an investee of the
Company, which is described separately under the “investments” item in Section
9.7 of the Report.
See below a description of the real estate properties attributed to the Shufersal
Real Estate Group, as of December 31, 2020:

Real estate
properties
leased by
Shufersal Real
Estate Group
to the
Company
(mostly
branches)*
Properties
under
construction
(properties to
be leased to
externals) ****
Real estate
properties
leasable to
externals
Total
*

Number
of
properties

Total area
(sqm
thousands)

Fair value
(ILS
million)

Annual rent
and annual
management
fee (ILS
thousands)
in 2020**

72

134

1,779*****

130,993

121,177

6.8%

1

40

102

-

-

-

22

63

690

50,907

36,644

5.3%

95

237

2,571

181,900

157,821

6.1%

NOI (ILS
thousands)***

Average
yield******

As stated above, the fair value presentation regarding these branches is according to
the presentation of these properties in the books of Shufersal Real Estate. In the
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purchase cost and not at fair value.
**

Including revenues for miscellaneous.

***

NOI for income producing properties: all operating income recorded in the
Company’s financial statements for the property, save for revenue deriving from
attributing changes in fair value to the profit and loss statement, and less all operating
expenses recorded in the Company’s financial statements for the property, save for
depreciation expenses (if any).

****

See Section 9.1.14 of the Report regarding engagement of the Company under a
combination agreement with respect to a lot with an area of approximately 8,800 sqm
in Raanana.

*****

The remaining depreciated cost in the Company’s books is approximately ILS 972
million.

******

At the end of 2020, there were a few internal, immaterial changes to the classification
of assets.

In effect since January 1, 2017, the Company and the Shufersal Real Estate
Group entered into addendums to current lease agreements (updating the current
agreements between the parties) whereby the Company shall continue to lease
the properties from the Shufersal Real Estate Group (including 65 branches) for
its use (the “Revised Agreement”). According to the Revised Agreement, the
lease periods for branches were updated whereby the Company is leasing
branches for 8 year periods with two option period for the Company of 8 years
each, and during each option period rent shall increase by 5% compared to the
period preceding the relevant option period. The Revised Agreement also
updates the rental fees and management fees paid by Shufersal to the Shufersal
Real Estate Group. For more information, see Note 32 of the Financial
Statements.
See below details on the projected revenues in the consolidated statements of
Shufersal Real Estate for signed lease agreements with the Company:
Revenue recognition period

2021

2022
2023
2024
2025 and on**
Total

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

Revenue (ILS
thousands)*

31,916
31,916
31,809
31,809
127,236
127,236
127,236
2,425
511,584

Number of
branches for
which the
contract ends

The area subject of
agreements ending

1
70
1
72

1
132
1
134

(sqm thousands)

* The revenue also includes management fees paid by the Company to the Shufersal Real
Estate Group.
** Assuming all options in all agreements are exercised, the revenues due to 2025 onward are
approximately ILS 2,038,765 thousands.
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Details and description of the area of activity in Sections 9.1.1 to 9.6 (inclusive)
of the Report refer to the investment real estate activity that is included in the
real estate area and leased to third parties (i.e. real estate that Shufersal Real
Estate Group does not lease out to the Company for use as branches, as described
above). These real estate properties are classified in the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company and in the financial statements of Shufersal Real
Estate Group as investment real estate. The description below is according to the
Draft Regulations published by the Israel Securities Authority for anchoring
disclosure provisions with respect to investment real estate activities in
regulations from December 2013.
9.1.1

Structure of The Area of Activity and Changes Thereto
The real estate area in which the Group operates through the Shufersal
Real Estate Group, is characterized by companies engaged both in
construction and in development in the commercial income-producing
real estate sector. The commercial income-producing real estate sector
is affected by changes in demand that result, inter alia, from alternative
investments in various financial channels, and by changes in
government policy, such as: the scope of public construction,
investments in infrastructure, the Israel Land Authority’s land
marketing policy, and the pace of project planning and licensing
processes.
Activity in the real estate area is affected by other factors, such as:
growth rates and the scope of activity in the market; the security
situation; economic uncertainty in the market; availability of credit
sources (including terms and price); interest rate policy; regulation;
and restrictions imposed on the banking system by the Bank of Israel
with respect to the scope of credit for construction and on “sole
borrowers” and “groups of borrowers” that also affect activity in this
sector.

9.1.2

Restrictions, Legislation, Standards, Tax Consequences, and Special
Constraints that Apply to the Area of Activity
The Planning and Building Law, 5725-1965, and the regulations
promogulated thereunder, set forth provisions and regulations related
to planning and building processes, plans according to which land
designation is determined, building rights etc., licenses and permits
required in order to exercise building rights and their issuance terms.
Schedule Three to the aforementioned law relates to the applicability
of the land betterment tax and exemptions therefrom, resulting from
exercising building rights. Often, the Company is required to act for
changing the designation of properties it owns or alternatively exercise
building rights according to valid city building plans for which no land
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betterment tax has been paid in the past. Such changes involve, often,
payment of various fees and levies, including land betterment tax in
accordance with the above legislation.
The issue of taxation has an effect on activity related to investment real
estate. Legislation on land taxation, purchase tax and betterment tax
could be relevant to the activity of the Company, in terms of tax
implications of leases for periods exceeding 25 years, and should the
Shufersal Real Estate Group acquire or sell real estate properties, with
respect to the consideration received from selling the property or the
consideration paid in buying it as applicable. Also, changes in the rates
of purchase tax, or betterment tax or alternatively the land betterment
tax or payments to the Israel Land Authority, as may be required, affect
the advisability of investing in income producing properties,
improving, and selling them.
For the sake of caution it is noted that as of the Report Date, and in the
Company’s estimate, the precedential ruling dealing with matters of
charging municipal tax for public areas in retail spaces shall have no
material impact on its business.41
9.1.3

Changes to the Scope of Activity in the Area and its Profitability
A slowdown in the real estate area and in the economy might cause an
increase in risk levels, exposed to by property owners, due to a
decrease in occupancy of leased areas and lower rental fees, and as
result could influence the risk and returns required in real estate
transactions and lead to lower demand. Increasing interest rates in the
market and difficulty in raising investment capital could also lower
demand in the area. The inventory of office space which is
continuously growing in scope could also affect the profitability of
income producing real estate companies in this sector. The retail center
sector is demonstrating stable demand for areas in such centers;
however, indications of an economic slowdown and public discourse
regarding the cost of living in Israel could affect it. The Coronavirus
period left its mark mainly in the shopping mall and hotel sectors, and
in some office towers. On the other hand, logistics and open
commercial spaces demonstrated relative stability.

9.1.4

Critical Success Factors in the Area of Activity and Changes Thereto
The advisability of investing in real estate is measured in terms of
return on investment, meaning the yield (derived from risk-free interest

41

Such ruling was established by the Supreme Court on January 5, 2021, whereby the owner of the
asset/management company have the closest ties to joint areas, and therefore they are the ones that must bear
the municipal tax payment for such areas, and not the tenants.
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and the premium on the risk) on the property (usually rental fees) as a
percent of the investment in it. The cost of raising foreign capital is
very significant when examining the advisability of investing in
income producing properties. Risk is an important component when
examining the advisability of investing in an income producing
property, so are the terms of engagement with various tenants and their
financial robustness. The ongoing costs of maintaining the property, in
addition to the cost of investing in the acquisition, compared to the
income received from the property, constitute an important metric for
examining the advisability of investment.
The location of income producing properties affects their
attractiveness very much. There is more demand for properties in
attractive areas, and it is possible to charge higher rent for them.
9.1.5

Main Barriers to Entry and Exit in the Area of Activity and Changes
Thereto
Investing in real estate properties requires financial resources and
financial robustness, thus entities that do not have such resources shall
have difficulties acting in this area and obtaining financing for
acquiring real estate, especially during domestic and global economic
slowdowns.

9.1.6

Competition in the Area of Activity and Changes Thereto
As stated in Section 9.1.3 above, in 2020 the effect of the Coronavirus
pandemic and the lockdowns is mainly noticeable in the shopping mall
and tourism sectors, and in some office towers. On the other hand, the
logistics industry and open centers demonstrated relative stability. For
information about competition in the area, see Section 9.6 of the
Report.

9.1.7

The Geographical Regions in Which the Company is Active in the
Area of Activity
As of the Report Date, the Shufersal Real Estate Group is active
throughout the country, without preference for particular regions. The
Group has rights in real estate located in the center of the country, its
north and south, in urban areas and other areas. The Company’s
management believes that the Shufersal Real Estate Group considers
the entire State of Israel as a single region of activity in the income
producing real estate sector.

9.1.8

Managing the Real Estate Activity in the Region of Activity
As of the Report Date, the real estate area is managed by Shufersal
Real Estate, while its activity is focused on constructing and operating
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income producing real estate, including the real estate serving the retail
activity of the Company. Normally, Company branches are located as
a part of a complex. In addition, the activity also includes exercising
available building rights, examining possibilities to increase building
rights in existing properties, property value-adding and acquiring more
income producing real estate properties. The properties are managed
directly by the Group or through external management companies.
9.1.9

Types of Properties in the Area of Activity
The properties included in the real estate area of activity mostly include
properties leased to the Company for its retail activity, as stated in
Section 9.1 of the Report, and commercial centers and retail areas.
Most of the properties are located in urban areas, catering to the basic
needs of the surrounding and nearby population. Of all such properties,
Shufersal Real Estate Group has rights of perpetual lease in a complex
that includes high-tech industry and retail areas with a total constructed
area of approximately 34,000 sqm. See also Section 9.1.14 of the
Report regarding the engagement of the Company under a combination
agreement with respect to a lot in Raanana, covering approximately
8,800 sqm.

9.1.10

Mix of Tenants
The Shufersal Real Estate Group prefers to hold centers that have a
Company branch as an anchor, surrounded by other tenants. The
properties held by the Shufersal Real Estate Group are leased out, inter
alia, to drugstore chains, to electric appliance chains, clothing and
fashion chains, restaurant chains, do-it-yourself chains, banks, HMOs,
and offices.

9.1.11

Investment Criteria
The following parameters, among others, underlie the considerations
for establishing new income producing properties or value-adding:
• The necessary investment for constructing/improving the land;
• Current/future returns on the property;
• Location of the current or future Company branch;
• Properties that generate a fixed income or cash flow, with an
emphasis on preferring financially resilience tenants;
• A focus on urban neighborhoods;

-54• Potential for value-adding and fully utilizing current and future
building rights, and the possibility of adding a Company branch (if
none exists).
9.1.12

The Purchase Phase in the Property Lifecycle
The Shufersal Real Estate Group is acting to locate and examine
properties for acquisition mostly to service as Company branches,
additional retail areas in existing structures or lots designated for such,
retail centers or any other type of commercial real estate (office,
logistics, and so forth.).

9.1.13

Property Realization Policy
The Shufersal Real Estate Group examines business opportunities in
order to realize its properties and generate profits.

9.1.14

Material Changes at the Base of the Business Activity in the Area of
Activity in the Past Three Years
On April 26, 2018, Shufersal Real Estate engaged under combination
agreement and collaboration and joint transaction agreement with Gav
Yam Bayside Land Corporation Ltd. (“Gav Yam”).42 According to the
agreement, Shufersal Real Estate shall sell to Gav Yam 69.5% of the
title to an area of approximately 8,800 sqm in Raanana, in return for
Gav Yam’s construction services. Once the project has been
completed, Shufersal Real Estate and Gav Yam shall hold non-specific
rights in the project according to a combined ratio of 30.5% to
Shufersal Real Estate, and 69.5% to Gav Yam. On June 25, 2020, the
detailed city building plan for the project was validated, and thus all
the condition precedents subject of the agreement were fulfilled, and it
took effect. In Q4 2020, the excavation and reinforcement phase of the
project was completed. For further information, see the Company’s
(amended) Immediate Report on assembling the general meeting to
approve such engagement, dated May 27, 2018 (Reference No.: 201801-051457).
Status of Additional Projects
There exists a detailed Urban Construction Plan for the construction of
40,000 square feet of office and commercial areas within the
framework of the Sha’ar HaIr Kfar Saba, and approval was granted for
the depositing of a plan within the framework of which building rights
shall be added to allow for the adding of five (5) floors to the project

42

Until September 2, 2019, Gav Yam was indirectly controlled by DIC (formerly the Company’s controlling
shareholder). To the best of the Company’s knowledge, and based on Gav Yam’s reports, as of the Report
Date, DIC does not control Gav Yam, but it is interested in Gav Yam.
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(the project shall include 26 floors overall) alongside the establishing
of another tower which combines commerce, offices and residential
apartments of more than 30 floors
Additionally, the group has commenced occupying a commercial and
office project in a scope of 11,000 square feet in Kiryat Motzkin ( as
of this date the occupancy rate is 65%); this alongside the further
promotion of the development and betterment projects for the Group’s
other real estate properties and increasing the occupancy of vacant
spaces.
9.1.15

Summary of the Results
A summary of the results of the real estate area of activity for 2020,
2019, and 2018:43
Parameter
Total income from the activity (consolidated)
Revaluation gains or losses (consolidated)
Activity profits (consolidated)
Same property NOI (consolidated)

For the year ended
31.12.2020
31.12.2019 31.12.2018
ILS thousands
51,000
51,000
49,000
13,000
38,000
43,000
45,000
67,000
72,000

Total NOI (consolidated)

9.2

36,644

34,943

29,309

36,644

34,943

32,591

Geographical Areas
As stated, the Company only operates in the State of Israel.44 Below is a table of
economic parameters about Israel in 2020, 2019, and 2018:
For the year ended
31.12.2020

31.12.2019

31.12.2018

Macroeconomic parameters:
Gross domestic product*
Product per capita*
Growth in domestic product*
Growth in product per capita*
Inflation**
Yield on local long-term government
debt***
Long-term government debt rating****
Local currency exchange rate to USD on
last day of the year*
43

44

Approximately
ILS 1,311
billion
142,538
-2.4%
-4.1%
0.7%

148,399
3.5%
1.6%
0.6%

Approximately
ILS 1298
billion
146,427
3.4%
1.4%
0.8%

0.8%

1.5%

2%

A1

A1

A1

ILS 3.2150

ILS 3.4560

ILS 3.7480

Approximately
ILS 1,343

Data in the table does not include data on the branches the Company leases from the Shufersal Real Estate
Group. These branches are classified as fixed assets in the Company’s financial statements. Shufersal Real
Estate holds 100% of the real estate properties it holds therefore the data relating to the Company’s share
and to consolidated are identical.
According to the approach of the Company’s management, the Shufersal Real Estate Group considers the
entire State of Israel a single region of activity in the real estate area.

-56* Source: the Israeli Central Bureau of Statistics website – http://www.cbs.gov.il
** Source: the Bank of Israel website – http://www.bankisrael.gov.il
*** Source: the OECD website – https://data.oecd.org/interest/long-term-interest-

rates.htm
**** Source: The Ministry of Finance website – Government Debt Service Unit (by
the
Moody’s
global
rating
agency)
–
http://www.ag.mof.gov.il/AccountantGeneral/GovDebt

9.3

Segmentation at the Overall Activity Level45
9.3.1

Segmentation of Income Producing Real Estate Areas by Region
and Uses, for 2020 and 2019:
On December 31, 2020
Office
Industry

Consolidated

32,214

-

30,534

62,748

Percent of
the total
property
area
100%

Consolidated

51.3%

-

48.7%

100%

-

Retail

Total

Uses

Retail

Total

Region
Sqm
State of Israel
Percent of the total
property area

On December 31, 2019
Office
Industry

Consolidated

30,609

-

23,288

53,897

Percent of
the total
property
area
100%

Consolidated

57%

-

43%

100%

-

Uses
Region

Sqm
State of Israel
Percent of the total
property area

9.3.2

Segmentation of Income Producing Real Estate Value by
Region and Uses, for 2020 and 2019:46
Uses

On December 31, 2020
Office
Industry

Region

46

Total

Percent of
the total
value of all
properties

ILS thousands

State of Israel

Consolidated

354,256

-

335,779

690,035

100%

Percent of the total
value of the
properties

Consolidated

51.3%

-

48.7%

100%

-

Uses

Office

2019
Industry
Retail
ILS thousands

Total

Percent of
the total

Region
45

Retail

Data in the tables appearing in this Section do not include data on the branches leased by the Company
from the Shufersal Real Estate Group. These branches are classified in the Company’s financial statements
as fixed assets. Shufersal Real Estate holds 100% of the real properties it holds and therefore data is
presented in this section, when relevant, on a consolidated basis only.
Excluding investment real estate under construction or payments to the authorities due to levies and other
payments.
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On December 31, 2020
Office
Industry

Consolidated

319,805

-

266,454

586,259

Percent of
the total
value of all
properties
value of the
properties
100%

Consolidated

55%

-

45%

100%

-

Uses
Region

State of Israel
Percent of the total
value of the
properties

Retail

Total

ILS thousands

NOI47 by Region and Uses for 2020, 2019, and 2018:
On December 31, 2020
Uses

Office

Region
State of Israel
Percent of the entire
NOI on all assets

Industry

Retail

Total

Percent of
the entire
NOI on all
assets

ILS thousands
Consolidated
Consolidated

20,258

-

16,386

36,644

100%

55%

-

45%

100%

-

Total

Percent of
the entire
NOI on all
assets

On December 31, 2019
Uses

Office

Region
State of Israel
Percent of the entire
NOI on all assets

Industry

Retail

ILS thousands
Consolidated
Consolidated

18,790

-

16,153

34,943

100%

54%

-

46%

100%

-

Total

Percent of
the entire
NOI on all
assets

On December 31, 2018
Uses

Office

Region
State of Israel
Percent of the entire
NOI on all assets

Retail

ILS thousands
Consolidated

19,933

-

12,658

32,591

100%

Consolidated

61%

-

39%

100%

-

9.3.3

47

Industry

Revaluation Gains (Losses) by Region and Zoning* for 2020,
2019, and 2018:

NOI of generating properties: All operating income recorded in the financial statements of the Company
for the property, excluding income originating from attribution of changes in fair value to the profit and
loss statement, and less all operating expenses recorded in the financial statements of the Company for the
property, save for excluding depreciation expenses (if any).
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On December 31, 2020
Office
Industry

Consolidated

1,996

-

7,599

9,595

Percent of
the total
revaluation
gains or
losses
100%

Consolidated

21%

-

79%

100%

-

Retail

Total

Uses
Region
State of Israel
Percent of the total
revaluation gains

On December 31, 2019
Office
Industry

Consolidated

19,050

-

10,283

29,333

Percent of
the total
revaluation
gains or
losses
100%

Consolidated

65%

-

35%

100%

-

Retail

Total

Percent of
the total
revaluation
gains or
losses

Region

ILS thousands

On December 31, 2018
Office
Industry

Uses
Region
State of Israel
Percent of the total
revaluation gains or
losses

Total

ILS thousands

Uses

State of Israel
Percent of the total
revaluation gains

Retail

ILS thousands
Consolidated

6,800

-

16,227

23,027

100%

Consolidated

30%

-

70%

100%

-

* Excluding gains or losses from appreciation/depreciation for investment real estate under construction.
9.3.4

Average Monthly Rent Per Square Meter by Region and Uses
in Practice in the Functional Currency:48

Uses

Office

Industry

Region
State of Israel (ILS)

*

Retail

For the year ended
31.12.2020*

31.12.2019**

31.12.2020

31.12.2019

31.12.2020***

31.12.2019****

60

61

-

-

55

61

The minimum and maximum rent per sqm for office us in 2020 were ILS 37 per sqm and ILS 130 per sqm,
respectively.

**

The minimum and maximum rent per sqm for office use in 2019 were ILS 37 per sqm and ILS 132 per sqm,
respectively.
*** The minimum and maximum rent per sqm for commercial use in 2020 were ILS 13 per sqm and ILS 149 per sqm,
respectively.
**** The minimum and maximum rent per sqm for retail use in 2019 were ILS 16 per sqm and ILS 150 per sqm,
respectively.

48

Excluding management fee and miscellaneous.
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9.3.5

Further Segmentations of the Real Estate Activity in the Region
of Israel:49

Uses

Number of income producing properties*
Average occupancy (percent)
Actual average return (by value at the
end of year)**

Office
31.12.2020
5
86%
5.95%

Retail
As of
31.12.2019
31.12.2020
31.12.2019
4
17
16
89%
95%
91%
6.03%

5.67%

6.08%

* Total income producing properties in 2020 and 2019.
** The above returns are skewed downwards because due to vacant areas that are currently not generating
cash flows and the expansion of the leasable areas in one of the Company’s income producing
properties, factors that affect the operating cash flow from such properties. The returns are also net of
liabilities toward authorities.

49

Excluding investment real estate under construction.
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9.3.6
Revenue
recognition
period

2021

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

2022
2023
2024
Year 2025
and onward
Total

Projected Income from Signed Lease Agreements:

Assuming non-exercise of the tenants’ option
periods
Income
The area
Income Number
from
of
subject of
from
fixed
variabl contracts agreement
compone
ending
s ending
e
nts*
(sqm)
compon
(ILS
thousand ents**
(Estima
s)
ted)
(ILS
thousan
ds)
12,423
2,294
6
269
12,229
2,274
9
1,545
11,667
2,227
6
1,308
11,525
2,263
16
3,649
36,916
7,624
51
12,983
30,393
6,856
21
5,584
26,957
6,763
12
1,351

Assuming exercise of the tenants’ option
periods
Income
Number
The area
Income
from
of
subject of
from
fixed
contracts
ending
variable
compon
ending
agreement
compone
ents*
s
nts**
(ILS
(sqm)
thousan (Estimat
ed)
ds)
(ILS
thousan
ds)
12,431
12,405
12,377
12,351
48,976
47,071
45,786

2,295
2,293
2,305
2,304
9,065
8,918
8,787

7
8
6
16
18
2
5

363
1,545
1,308
3,649
2,349
115
584

43,853

6,625

40

30,629

334,390

15,447

101

47,602

185,965

36,927

161

57,319

525,786

51,414

163

57,515

* The above income include the management fee component.
** The Company’s working hypothesis is that there has been no change in the income level in this component
from each tenant in 2020.

It is noted that Company estimates regarding expected
income from the real estate area, are forward-looking
information, as defined in the Securities Law, based on
signed lease agreements held by the Company, and on the
Company’s estimates. It is possible that such estimates could
not materialize, all or part, or materialize in a way that
differs, even materially, from the projections, as result of the
financial resilience of tenants with which the Company has
engaged under lease agreements, the state of the market and
the risk factors that characterize the Company, as set forth
in Section 18 of the Report.
9.3.7
Region

Income Producing Properties under Construction in the State of
Israel (Aggregate)*:
Parameters

Number of properties under construction
at the end of the period
Total areas under construction (planned)
at the end of the period (sqm thousands)

Period
(The year ended)
31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
1

2

1

4.9

7.6

3.7
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Region

Parameters

State of Israel –

(Retail)

State of Israel –

(Offices)

*

Total costs invested in the current period
(consolidated) (ILS thousands)
The amount at which properties are
presented in the reports at the end of the
period (consolidated) (ILS thousands)
Construction budget in the consecutive
period (estimated) (consolidated) (ILS
thousands)
Total estimated remaining construction
budget to complete the establishment
works (consolidated) (estimated the end
of the period) (ILS thousands) *
Rate of the constructed area for which
lease agreements were signed (%)
Projected annual income from a project
to be completed in the consecutive
period, for which contracts were signed
on 50% or more of the area
(consolidated) (estimated) (ILS
thousands)*
Number of properties under construction
at the end of the period
Total areas under construction (planned)
at the end of the period (sqm thousands)
Total cost invested in the current period
(consolidated) (ILS thousands)
The amount at which properties are
presented in the reports at the end of the
period (consolidated) (ILS thousands)
Construction budget in the consecutive
period (estimated) (consolidated) (ILS
thousands)
Total estimated remaining establishment
budget to complete the establishment
works (consolidated) (estimate at the end
of the period) (ILS thousands) *
Rate of the constructed area on which
lease agreements were signed (%)
Projected annual income from projects to
be completed in the consecutive period,
for which contracts were signed for 50%
or more of the area (consolidated)
(estimated) (ILS thousands)*

Period
(The year ended)
31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
6,629

3,919

8,883

12,189

21,039

12,674

-

2,545

6,199

-

2,545

6,199

-

15%

-

-

-

-

1

2

2

35.6

41.3

46.4

35,934

8,094

14,035

89,311

100,121

107,165

-

5,256

9,795

-

5,256

9,795

-

6%

-

-

-

-

Excluding payments to the authorities due to levies and other fees.

The information on the projected annual income from these
projects reflects the Company’s estimates regarding its
completion and the financial resilience of tenants with whom
agreements have been signed. These estimates are forwardlooking information, as defined in the Securities Law, and
they rely on management’s estimates and on the Company’s
accumulated experience and the estimate of the
representative comprehensive annual income expected from
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this project. In practice, the presented data could vary, even
materially, from the above projected data, as a result of
various factors, and in particular, the state of the market,
the financial robustness of the tenants with whom
agreements were signed, and the risk factors characterizing
the Company’s activity, as described in Section 18 of the
Report.
9.3.8

Property Acquisition and Sale (Aggregate) in the State of Israel
During the years 2020, 2019, and 2018, the Company did not
acquire or sell properties. For details regarding the Company’s
engagement under a combination agreement with Gav Yam with
respect to a lot with an area of approximately 8,800 sqm in
Raanana owned by the Company, see Section 9.1.14 of the
Report.

9.4

As of December 31, 2020, and as of the Report Date, the Company does not
have material or very material assets, as defined in the Draft Regulations
published by the Israel Securities Authority for setting forth disclosure
provisions on investment real estate activity in the regulations on December 12,
2013.

9.5

Fair value for the figures set forth in the report on financial position:

Presentation in
the Report
Business
description

Total value of investment real
estate properties for which
construction has ended
(consolidated)
Total investment real estate
properties under construction in
the region (consolidated)
Total land classified as
investment real estate in the
region (consolidated)
Total (consolidated)

Adjustments

Properties included under
“noncurrent assets held for sale”
in the report on financial
position
Adjustments to the value
resulting from creditor and
debtor items
Adjustments deriving from
presenting assets at cost
Undertaking to pay betterment
levies and payments to the Israel
Land Authority

On
(Consolidated) (ILS thousands)
31.12.2020
31.12.2019
577,865
683,995

101,500

-

785,495

134,300

712,165

-

-

-

-

6,040

8,394
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Total adjustments

Presentation in
the report of the
financial
situation

9.6

6,040

8,394

Total, after adjustments

791,535

720,559

The investment real estate item
in the report on financial
position (consolidated)
The investment real estate under
construction item in the report
on financial position
(consolidated)

690,035

586,259

101,500

134,300

Total

791,535

720,559

Competition
9.6.1

Conditions of Competition in the Area of Activity
There are many companies with different volumes of activity in the
real estate market, some of which are engaged in development and
construction and therefore conduct operations at very large volumes.
The Company estimates that its share of the real estate market is
negligible out of the total commercial income producing real estate
market. Most of the income producing properties of Shufersal Real
Estate Group are in areas that are saturated with retail and office space
with substantial supply of such space, thus Shufersal Real Estate Group
is in competition with entities holding such properties.
The Company estimates that rent levels reflect market conditions.

9.6.2

Methods for Handling Competition
In order to lease the properties and address the high level of
competition in the real estate area, the Shufersal Real Estate Group
offers customers a high level of management and attractive terms for
new tenants, such as participating in some of the investment costs for
adjusting the property, and providing tenants a choice to perform
adjustment work in the property without charging them rent during
such period.
Positive factors that affect or could affect the competitive position of
Shufersal Real Estate Group include the following factors: attractive
terms in the properties leased out by the Shufersal Real Estate Group,
operating Company branches that in themselves constitute centers of
attraction in terms of good accessibility and exposure to the client base
and extensive parking areas in most properties leased out by the
Shufersal Real Estate Group.
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The negative factors that affect or could affect the competitive position
of Shufersal Real Estate Group include the following: some of the
properties leased out by the Shufersal Real Estate Group are old
structures without a high finish level and some of the structures leased
out by the Group do not allow functional utilization (large areas that
cannot be divided and/or adjusted to different needs) and their location
in a competitive business environment.
9.7

Investments
9.7.1

Activity Through an Investee Company
9.7.1.1

General
As of the Report Date, the Company holds (indirectly)
approximately 37% of the issued share capital and voting
rights in Lev HaMifratz. Other shareholders in Lev
HaMifratz include, as of the Report Date, Menorah
Mivtahim Group (holds approximately 37%) and Ram
Control Financing, and Investments (2017) Ltd. (holds
approximately 26%). Among the shareholders of Lev
HaMifratz there is a shareholders agreement that includes,
inter alia, provisions regarding the right of first refusal
conferred to shareholders in the event of sale of Lev
HaMifratz shares; a provision whereby shareholders are
prohibited from selling or charging their shares in Lev
HaMifratz, except with the prior written consent of all
other shareholders holding at least 20% of the share capital
of the company; and a provision whereby shareholders
holding 12% of the issued share capital of Lev HaMifratz
are entitled to appoint one director to the company’s board
of directors.
The characteristics of Lev HaMifratz’s real estate activity
are no different than the characteristics of the Company’s
real estate activity (described in detail in this Section 9 of
the Report). The description of the general environment,
the success factors that affect the Company’s activity, and
entry barriers in the real estate area (as described in
Sections 9.1.1, 9.1.4, and 9.1.5 of the Report, respectively)
generally apply to the activity of Lev HaMifratz.
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9.7.1.2

Products and Services
As of the Report Date, Lev HaMifratz holds title to a lot,
with an area of approximately 25,500 sqm, on which the
CineMall shopping center is built, on 55-61 Hahistadrut
Boulevard in Haifa. The shopping center contains a threestory retail structure, parking areas, a gallery, and a
basement. A cinema complex is located adjacent to the
CineMall shopping center on a lot owned by Lev
HaMifratz. The occupancy rate in the CineMall shopping
center, including the cinemas with a total gross constructed
area of approximately 40,000 sqm, as of December 31,
2020 was approximately 96.5%.
As of the date of publishing this Report and following the
Coronavirus Crisis the shopping center has been closed,
pursuant to the orders of competent authorities in Israel,
save for a few exceptions. The shopping center
management, at this stage, shall not collect management
fees for the upcoming months since the shopping center
was closed. Currently it is impossible to predict how long
the shopping center shall be closed and certainly not the
full impact on Lev HaMifratz.
For details on investment balances for Lev HaMifratz, see
Note 5(a) of the Financial Statements.

9.7.1.3

Investments Composition
For details on the composition of investments in Lev
HaMifratz, see Note 5(a) of the Financial Statements.

9.7.1.4

Competition
For information about competition in the area see Section
9.6 of the Report.

9.8

Restrictions and Supervision on the Corporation’s Activity
For details on restrictions and supervision on the Corporation’s activity in the
area of activity see Section 9.1.2 of the Report.

9.9

Objectives and Business Strategy
The Shufersal Real Estate Group is focusing, as of the Report Date, on
developing and adding value to areas that it owns, which are used as generating
real estate or as branches of the Company, in accordance with decisions
regarding to financial advisability, business opportunities, and according to
optimal use of the land.
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The Shufersal Real Estate Group places emphasis on maximizing income from
the existing generating commercial real estate, by engaging under lease
agreements. The Shufersal Real Estate Group continues to invest in its current
income producing properties, in order to improve the attractiveness of its income
producing properties and thus increase revenues from them. In this context, the
Shufersal Real Estate Group is acting to improve occupancy rates in the existing
properties.
The Shufersal Real Estate Group occasionally examines various offers to
acquire or sell properties in the area of commercial real estate as well as
partnerships related thereto. Should advisable business opportunities arise, the
Shufersal Real Estate Group shall consider engaging under transactions for new
ventures, developing additional structures, partnerships, acquiring new
structures, and exercising its existing building rights to the extent possible.
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10.

The Be Area
10.1

General
Be’s field of activity constitutes a reportable segment in the Financial
Statements.
On July 1, 2020, the merger process of Be Drugstores Ltd. (Be) with and into
the Company was completed, in the framework of which all of the above
company’s activity, assets, and obligations were transferred to the Company,
and the above company was dissolved on that date, with no liquidation.
Be operates in the drugstore area through 86 branches,50 as of December 31,
2020, which mostly sell cosmetics, convenience and toiletry products, medicine
and food supplements.
In 2020, the Company continued rebranding Be, establishing concept stores and
upgrading the existing branches, leveraging, and synergizing them with the
Company’s activity, including the Shufersal Online digital platform, and
integrating the activity of the Customers’ Club and the credit card club. In
addition, the Company, as a pilot, opened one pharm complex in a “Shufersal
Deal” store, as part of its intention to promote the opening of pharm complexes
in “Shufersal Deal” complexes.

10.2

Structure of the Area of Activity and Changes Thereto
In 2020, the drugstore product market had activity of drugstore chains similar to
Be, such as SuperPharm, Good Pharm, and retail chains. In addition, chains or
designated stores operated in areas that overlap with the products sold by Be at
its branches, such as duty-free stores, specialty make-up stores, specialty
cosmetics stores, HMO pharmacies, and private pharmacies.

10.3

Restrictions, Legislation, Standards and Constraints that Apply to Be’s Activity
The restrictions, legislation, standards, and constraints that apply to Be’s activity
are essentially similar to those that apply to the Company’s retail activity. For
details about the restrictions, legislation, regulations, and special constraints that
apply to the retail area, see Sections 7.5 and 8.24 of the Report. Be is also subject
to the provisions of the Pharmacist Ordinance and the guidelines and directives
of the Ministry of Health in connection with its pharmacies. It is also noted that
on February 2019, the National Health Insurance (Amendment 63) Law, 57792018, came into effect (including an amendment to the Pharmacists Ordinance)
allowing pharmacies to issue drugs to HMO customers even if they do not have
an arrangement with the specific HMO that insures the customer.

10.4

50

Changes to the Scope of Activity in the Area

See Footnotes 2 and 3 above.
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which Be is active is estimated at ILS 17-20 billion in 2020 (similar to 2019).51
10.5

Developments in the Markets of the Area of Activity or Changes to the
Characteristics of its Customers
To the best of the Company’s knowledge, competition in the drugstore market
in 2020 was characterized by increased competition, opposite SuperPharm and
the retail chains and other competitors, such as discount chains in the drugstore
area and an increased pace of openings branches by them, as well as changes in
the consumption habits of the client base and especially with respect to ordering
make-up products, cosmetics and food supplements online. These trends
affected Be in 2020 and are likely to continue to affect it in 2021.
See also Sections 7.1, 7.2, 7.3, and 7.5 of the Report on the impact of the Israeli
economy and the provisions of the Food Law, respectively, on the Israeli retail
food market, and consequently, on Be.

10.6

Critical Success Factors in the Area of Activity and Changes Thereto
The critical success factors in the area of activity are essentially similar to the
critical success factors in retail as set forth in Section 8.6 of the Report.
Furthermore, the deepening of the synergy with the Company, and in particular
in the online sector, Be’s continued and uninterrupted engagements with Israeli
HMOs, its meeting the pace of deploying Be stores, as well as the opening of Be
Pharm complexes in Shufersal stores, are the critical success factors for Be’s
activity.

10.7

Primary Entry and Exit Barriers in the Area of Activity and Changes to Them
The primary entry and exit barriers in the area of activity are essentially similar
to the barriers in the retail area. In addition, there is a regulatory entry barrier in
the context of a license and the establishment of pharmacies. For details, see
Section 8.8 of the Report.

10.8

Alternatives to Products in the Area of Activity and Changes Thereto
Thousands of products are sold in the drugstore market, and most of them have
various types of substitutes sold in the other drugstore chains and private stores.

10.9

Products and Services
As of the Report Date, Be sells a variety of products at its branches, divided into
three main categories:

51

The Company’s estimates are based on internal Company work conducted by it with the assistance of
external consultants. For the avoidance of doubt, this figure includes VAT.

-69Cosmetics products – selling cosmetics, make-up, and beauty products by a
variety of local and global brands and at different price levels.
Convenience and toiletry products – selling various convenience and consumer
goods, such as hygiene products, haircare products, baby and maternity care
products, cleaning products, and so forth.
Pharmacy and health store products – marketing prescription drugs, OTC drugs,
natural products, vitamins and food supplements, paramedical products
(adhesive bandages) and medical equipment (thermometers, etc.).
Be also sells food and non-food products, at growing volumes.
10.10 Customers
The Group sells its products to customers all over the country and does not
depend on a single customer or on a small number of customers. These
customers include customers of the different HMOs which Be serves. In 2020,
Be’s income from selling drugs to HMO customers accounted for approximately
5.4% of Be’s total sales.
10.11 Marketing and Advertising
The scope of Be’s sales to members of the Company’s Customers’ Club out of
Be’s total sales in 2020 was approximately 61.3%. In 2020, Be’s direct
advertising and sales promotion budget was approximately ILS 12 million. It is
noted the Be constitutes part of the Group’s Customers’ Club and part of the
joint marketing activity with the Group’s other brands, as set forth in Section
8.14 to the Report.
10.12 Distribution
Be receives the products it markets directly at the branches from its vendors, and
since 2018 it also distributes them through the Company’s logistics center, for
all Be branches with respect to some of the products.
10.13 Competition
According to the Company’s estimate, Be’s market share in 2020 was
approximately 4% of the total drugstore market in Israel, compared to
approximately 3.5% market share in 2019.
The Israeli drugstore market has been very competitive for several years, and
this trend has intensified significantly in the past few years, inter alia, following
the launch of the Be chain, increased sales of drugstore products at retail chains,
an increase in retail areas and market share of the SuperPharm chain, and the
entrance of new discounts chains into the drugstore area and low-cost drugstores
they open. There is also an upward trend in online sales of cosmetics and food
supplements from foreign websites. As of the Report Date, the Company
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competes in this area against SuperPharm, low-cost drugstore chains, designated
chains or stores that operate in areas that overlap with the products sold by Be
at its branches, such as duty-free stores, specialty cosmetic stores, specialty
make-up stores, HMO pharmacies, and private pharmacies.
Competition in the drugstore market is likely to continue also in 2021 and even
intensify as result of opening discount chains in the drugstore area and a broader
distribution of their branches as well as sales made online from Israeli and
foreign websites.
Information about the competition in the future is forward-looking
information, as defined in the Securities Law. This information relies on
Company estimates, in addition to the public information several Israeli
retailers have provided with respect to their individual activity.
Competition in practice could be materially different from the above
forecasts, as result of various factors and in particular the entrance or nonentrance of new competitors, the scope and expansion of activity of current
competitors and as result of the impact of risk factors described in Section
10.19 and Section 18 of the Report.
10.14 Fixed Assets and Facilities
As of December 31, 2020, Be leases areas throughout the country from third
parties, in shopping centers, in shopping malls, and otherwise, for operating 86
branches (including one Bella branch) covering approximately 33,000 sqm
(compared to 83 branches as of December 31, 2019, covering approximately
31,000 sqm), and Be is leasing offices from the Group in scope of approximately
800 sqm, for purpose of the activity of the chain’s headquarters. The leases on
the branches are made for long-term periods, while generally, Be has options to
extend the leases. Most lease agreements require the Company to pay fixed rent
usually linked to the Consumer Price Index, and in other agreements rent is
derived from the sales turnover of the branch operating in the leasehold.
As of the Report Date, 7 branches out of the Be branches are managed by
franchisees. As of the Report Date, Be has a business license for most of its
branches and it is working on obtaining business licenses for the other branches
(new branches or branches with business licenses needing to be renewed).
Raw Materials and Vendors
Be buys products, for purpose of selling them at its branches, from different
vendors. Most of Be’s vendors can be replaced by a substitute vendor at similar
terms since Be offers at its branches a wide variety of substitutes to the vendors’
brands. According to the Company’s estimates, Be could have dependency on
Salomon Levine Elstein (SLE) and on Novolog (Pharm Up 1966) Ltd. with
respect to procurement of medicine sold by Be to HMO customers.
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the regular supply of products, per the Company’s needs based on demand of its
customers.
10.15 Working Capital and Inventory
Be’s working capital includes an inventory of products, vendor credit, cash and
cash equivalents, customers, and other debtors and creditors.
10.16 Customer and Vendor Credit
Most of Be’s sales are made to private customers, by debit and credit cards.
Customer credit terms are according to the market standard, based on the
payment method and the purchase amount.
10.17 Material Agreements
Agreement with the HMOs
Be has agreements with Clalit Health Services, Maccabi Healthcare Services,
Leumit HMO and Meuchedet HMO (jointly – the “HMOs”), under which Be
supplies medicine to HMO members. The engagements mostly concern setting
the price of the medicine supplied to HMO members, the commissions Be is
entitled to for each period of sales and inventory arrangements. The HMOs may
terminate these agreements at any time.
10.18 Human Capital
As of December 31, 2020, Be has approximately 1,110 employees (no material
changes as of the Report Date). As of January 1, 2019, upon Be’s employees
joining the Shufersal collective agreement (see Section 16.4.1 of the Report),
some of Be’s employees are engaged under the above collective agreement and
some are employed under personal agreements. In 2020, Be’s payroll costs
totaled approximately ILS 126 million (excluding franchisee branches and
management fees) (compared to payroll costs of the company of approximately
ILS 135 million for 2019).
10.19 Discussion on Risk Factors
Most risk factors that apply to the Group as a whole, as set forth in Section 18
of the Report, are also relevant to and apply to Be’s activity. In addition, it is
noted that termination of Be’s engagement with the HMOs (especially Clalit and
Maccabi) could adversely affect its business results as it is a drugstore chain
which a substantial part of its income derives from selling medicine to HMO
customers.
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10.20 Objectives and Business Strategy
As of the Report Date, the Company intends to continue offering Be customers
an innovative, unique, and up-to-date shopping experience, to increase the
variety of exclusive chain products, and to further develop its private brand.
In addition, the Company intends to open more stores nationwide and at
attractive locations (8-10 branches per year over the coming years), open pharm
complexes within “Shufersal Deal” branches, increase the Company’s online
sales activities, including providing drugs to the customer’s homes (see Section
10.1 of the Report) and generate competition in the drugstore market. In
addition, the Company intends to continue acting towards deepening the
operational synergy and efficiency while pooling resources with the Company’s
other activities, including Shufersal Online’s current online platform, the
pharmacies attributed to the retail activity in the Company, and emphasis on the
activity of the customers’ club and credit card club.
At the beginning of 2021, Be received permission to sell medical cannabis. The
Company intends to develop and deploy points of sale for cannabis in its
branches and to be a central player in the industry.
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Issues that Concern the Group as a Whole:
11.

Material Agreements Outside the Ordinary Course of Business
11.1.1

Collective bargaining agreements
See Section 16.4.1 of the Report.

11.1.2

Credit cards agreement
See Notes 15 and 30(a) of the Financial Statements.

11.1.3

Cooperation agreement for establishing a digital wallet
On January 19, 2021, the Company executed a cooperation agreement
with Israel Discount Bank Ltd. (the “Bank”) for the establishment of
a digital wallet for customers of all banks, based on the “Paybox”
payments platform owned by the Bank. In the framework of the
cooperation, the activity of Paybox would be expanded, so that at the
first stage it would allow using the Paybox wallet as a payment method,
to redeem digital vouchers, to receive various benefits, and more. The
parties agreed to further act to allow additional financial and banking
activity in the framework of Paybox, for customers of all banks. The
cooperation would be in the framework of a new company to be
established, which would be controlled by the Bank, while the Bank
would hold 50.1% of the new company’s issued share capital and of
the voting rights therein, and the Company would hold 49.9% of the
issued share capital and voting rights (the agreement sets forth a few
accepted minority rights for which the Company’s consent would be
required in order to make decisions with respect to them). Also, the
agreement sets forth additional provisions customary in agreement of
this type, such as transferability of shares, separation mechanism, no
competition provisions, etc. The Bank would transfer Paybox’s assets
to the new company in their present form, and the Company would
grant the new company the exclusive right to grant financial benefits
designated for the Company’s customers, Shufersal card holders, and
members of Shufersal’s customer club, through Paybox, and the right
to pair Shufersal’s credit cards with Paybox’s platform, the right to
present and redeem digital vouchers, etc. The agreement is inter alia
stipulated upon obtaining third party approval, including from the
Bank of Israel and the Competition Authority, and to formulate
agreements and updating the Company’s issue and operating
agreement with Israel Credit Cards Ltd. On March 1, 2021 the
Competition Authority’s approval of the transaction was obtained. As
of the Report Date, the additional approvals have yet to be obtained,
and there is no certainty that the transaction shall be completed.
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11.1.4

Agreement with KNAPP
See Section 8.15 to the Report.

12.

Objectives and Business Strategy
12.1.1

The Group’s strategy is based on its strengths, including its status as
Israel’s leading retail chain, nationwide deployment in city centers and
outside of them; the ability to independently supply goods to Company
branches (using the Company’s logistics centers); advanced online and
digital arrays; development and introduction of its Home Brand;
human and organizational capital; ownership of real estate properties;
financial resilience; modern and innovative marketing arrays and the
Customers’ Club that includes the Company’s credit card club.
The Group’s strategy is also based on values of service and
professionalism, quality, fairness, innovation, patriotism, and a
commitment to employees, which helps in differentiating and
distinguishing the Company from its competitors; this in order to
improve customer loyalty and the Company’s competitive position,
while creating synergy between the Group’ various areas of activity.
In 2020 the Company continued accelerating the development of the
Company’s digital platforms, centered around the Shufersal Online
system and the mobile app; expanding and strengthening the Home
Brand, including launching new products in more leading categories
(including chilled food, beverages, cosmetics); establishing concept
stores and upgrading existing branches of the Be chain; recruiting and
increasing the number of CAL Credit Card holders; improving
customer service and the value offer to customer, including promoting
and strengthening digital service channels on various media;
promoting new/ complementary activities to the Company’s existing
areas of activity, including activity in the institutional market and
wholesale activity (“Shufersal Business”); continuing efforts to
increase real estate efficiency including closing and downsizing
branches – in 2020 the Company closed four branches, and two
branches were converted into manual shipping centers with a total area
of approximately 11,000 sqm. At the same time, the Group is moving
forward with the plan to open new branches at relevant sites under the
restrictions of the Food Law.
In 2020 the Company continued examining the optimization of
operational processes in connection with the distribution array of
Shufersal Online, and the Company’s Board of Directors also
approved the establishing of an online center for the north of Gush
Dan, in addition to two automated shipping centers to serve the
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Shufersal Online activity and that were approved in 2019 (see Section
8.15 of the Report). The Group considers handling the product value
chain and implementing modern conceptions of the supply chain as
means to improve efficiency and competitiveness. Within this view,
process examinations are performed throughout all stages of the chain,
from the stage of order planning, receipt of goods, methods of storage
and distribution, inventory and order management, and store
availability management, all to improve the shopping experience and
the quality of customer service leading to the differentiation the
Company and its positioning as a market leader.
12.1.2

The primary points of the Group’s business plan includes continued
development of existing activities and growth engines in the following
areas:
•

Digital and online – Continuing to develop the Company’s online
and digital activities, including promoting the Company’s new
trade platform that shall also feature, in addition to food products,
development of additional areas that interface with the food area,
including Be products, such as drugstore, cosmetics, and pharmacy
products, a variety of non-food household products, all in the
framework of the new virtual shopping mall. Such products shall
include electrical appliances and electronics, home and garden
furniture, children and baby products, and health and natural
products. All of the foregoing shall help realize the Group’s online
vision “anything, from any place and tailored to the individual
customer”. The Company also intends to develop automated
shipping centers for the Shufersal Online activity, as the market
develops in the coming years. The Company aims to reach a point
where online sales account for approximately 25% of the
Company’s total sales in the coming years;

•

Specializing in data – The Company is managing and improving
its data infrastructures to offer customers greater value through
learning their purchasing characteristics and developing various
optimization tools, based on advanced analytics systems;

•

Digital wallet – A joint company to be established by Shufersal and
Israel Discount Bank Ltd. shall offer a variety of services, which
include various payment and digital wallet services, inter alia on
the basis of the services currently provided on the Paybox
application, and other advanced services. Services to be offered by
the joint company shall include for example payments in
businesses through the Paybox application, a payment service for
public transportation, making financial benefits accessible to
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holders, etc. Similarly, through the joint company financial
services for the general public shall be developed and marketed, in
cooperation with other service providers, on the basis of an open
banking infrastructure. Offering financial services, such as loans,
mortgages, credit products, etc., shall allow a sales channel for
financial service providers, including fintech companies. The
financial products to be offered shall be adjusted to the customer’s
profile and shall enable maximum responsiveness to the financial
needs of different types of customers.
It is noted that as stated in Section 11.1.3 to the Report, the
agreement between the Company and Israel Discount Bank Ltd. is
stipulated upon the fulfillment of a few conditions precedent, and
as of the Report Date, there is no certainty that the transaction shall
be completed.
•

The Home Brand – The Company intends to continue developing
the Home Brand and launch products in new leading categories,
including expanding the variety of products in existing categories.
The Company aims to reach a point where Home Brand sales
account for approximately 30% of its total sales in the coming
years;

•

Freshness – As part of the global trend to minimize consumption
of industrial and processed food, and the transition to a fresher and
healthier food consumption, and in order to offer customers a
shopping experience that emphasizes fresh, high-quality products,
the Company continues to act in order to improve the freshness and
quality of its products, while focusing on the fresh produce
departments, fruits and vegetables, deli, butcher shop, and fish. The
Company shall work to develop the area of fresh baked goods while
expanding and improving variety;

•

Retail spaces – Continuing the development of branches in city
centers, in new cities and new neighborhoods, all while examining
the total retail spaces that serve the Group’s activity;

•

Shufersal Business – The Company intends to continue
developing its activity in the “Shufersal Business” area, whether
through “cash and carry” stores and or by expanding the direct sales
activity to small businesses (through Shufersal Online and the
Company’s branches), and direct sales from the Company’s
logistics centers and increasing activity vis-à-vis the institutional
market through Shufersal-Amiga Ltd.;
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Be – In the forthcoming years the Company shall place a special
emphasis on developing and expanding in the drugstore and
pharmacy area, by developing and expanding the Be chain, while
realizing and maximizing synergy with the Group’s retail activity,
both through a nationwide distribution of branches and through the
digital platforms;

•

Income producing real estate – Continuing the development of
the income producing real estate activity by adding value to
properties it owns and examining the possibility of acquiring
additional commercial properties;

•

Customers and service – Continuing to promote and hone the
connection with the customer and continuing to improve and adopt
processes for improving customer service and experience. In order
to intensify the purchase experience and awareness to service, the
Company has taken a long list of measures to integrate customeroriented organizational culture and to integrate a service-oriented
approach and technological infrastructure that helps promote the
service approach and service quality management. The Company
has developed and integrated various technological management
tools to control and monitor the quality of service, track various
service and operational parameters, and provide alternative
solutions accordingly. In addition, the Company is working to
implement a public and media strategy that shall address challenges
and issues stemming from the customer public, while promoting
transparency, reliability, and a uniform service language
Furthermore, the Company continues to invest in developing the
credit card customer club through the Company’s credit cards
issued by CAL, and developing additional interfacing activities.

Information on the Company’s strategy, as set forth above, including the
Company’s estimates regarding the share of online activity and the Home Brand
out of the Company’s total revenues, is forward facing information, as defined in
the Securities Law. Such information relies on the Company’s estimates.
Implementing the Company’s strategy as mentioned (including the share of online
activity and the Home Brand out of the Company’s revenues), could be materially
different than the aforementioned predictions, as a result of various factors
including the state of the economy, the state of the retail market and as result of
the impact of the risk factors described in Section 18 of the Report.

-78-

13.

Financing
13.1

General
The Group’s activity is mostly financed with its equity and bonds listed for trade
on the Stock Exchange.

13.2

Bonds in Circulation
For information about the Company’s bonds, see Note 17 of the Financial
Statements and Section 5 of the Board of Directors Report, regarding designated
disclosure to the Company’s bondholders.

13.3

Charges and Security Interests
The assets of investee companies, at a scope that is immaterial to the Company,
are partly charged in favor of third parties. Except the foregoing, the Group does
not have, as of the Report Date, other charged on its assets.
For further information regarding guarantees and charges, see Notes 30(d) and
31 of the Financial Statements, respectively.
For information on the Company’s undertakings in the framework of the Deeds
of Trust pursuant to which the Company’s bonds Series D, E, F, and G (which
was issued after the date of the report on financial position) were issued, and in
the framework of the Company’s engagement under credit facilities to avoid
creating a floating charge on the Company’s assets, see Note 17 of the Financial
Statements.

13.4

Average interest rate on loans not designated for specific uses in 2020 (ILS
millions):

Issued bonds – index-linked***
Issue bonds – unlinked***
Credit from banking
corporations – unlinked

Short-term
loans/current
maturities (*)

Long-term
liabilities (*)

Average interest
rate (**)

131
104

943
1,739

3.98%
4.34%

-

-

-

(*)
Data in the above table does not include interest payable.
(**) Weighted average of nominal interest.
(***) For details on the effective interest on the bonds in circulation, see the data in the table in
Section 5 of the Board of Directors’ Report.

13.5

The Corporation’s Credit Facilities, Their Terms and Utilized Credit Balance
As of December 31, 2020, the Company has nonbinding credit facilities totaling
approximately ILS 319 million (without material change as of the Report Date).
Such facilities can be changed by the banks at any time. Out of the above credit
facilities, as of December 31, 2020 the Company has utilized approximately ILS
132 million (without material changes as of the Report Date) (including
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guarantees in scope of approximately ILS 70 million provided in the framework
of tender/performance guarantees to various entities, most of which are linked
to the Consumer Price Index). The foregoing credit facilities are mostly used for
the Company’s activity in trading rooms, for guarantees and letters of credit.
As of December 31, 2020, the Company also has binding credit facilities totaling
approximately ILS 800 million from four banking corporations. As of December
and the Report Date, the Company has not utilized these credit facilities. For
details on the binding credit facilities, and the Company’s negotiations for their
renewal, see Note 17(5) of the Financial Statements.
13.6

Financial Covenants and Compliance Thereto
For the Company’s undertakings to comply with financial covenants in the
framework of the Deeds of Trust for Series D, E, F, and G of the Company’s
bonds and in the framework of the binding credit facilities, for compliance with
such financial covenants as of December 31, 2020, and as of the Report Date,
and for details on additional undertakings under such Deeds of Trust and credit
facilities, see Note 17 of the Financial Statements and Section 5 of the Board of
Directors’ Report.

14.

Insurance
The Company has various insurance policies to insure its activity, including, inter alia,
a property and equipment insurance policy, a policy for covering various liabilities
relating to its current activity, product contamination insurance, cyber insurance, and
D&O insurance policies. Generally, the Company engages under these policies in
consultation with the Company’s insurance advisors. According to the Company’s
estimates and based on its insurance advisors, the Company has adequate insurance
coverage.

15.

Taxation
For information on the tax laws that apply to the Company and/or various issues
regarding taxation see Note 28 of the Financial Statements.

16.

Human Capital
16.1

The Group’s Organizational Structure
As of December 31, 2020, the Company employs approximately 16,700
workers, equivalent to a total of approximately 14,500 full-time positions.

16.2

Company Divisions
Below are details on the Group’s organizational structure, and the number of
Group employees and positions in the Group as of December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019:
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Company divisions
Total branch employees including
supporting units**
Supply chain
Subsidiary employees***
Company headquarters****
Total Group employees*
*

Number of
employees
2020
2019

Number of positions
2020

2019

14,929

12,960

12,710

11,275

1,020
381
404
16,734

963
1,563
323
15,809

1,020
381
404
14,515

963
1,260
323
13,821

The increase in the number of employees and positions mostly results from an increase
in Group activity and due to the Coronavirus pandemic.

**

In 2019 approximately 1,115 employees of Be were included in the framework of
subsidiary employees.

***

In 2019 including Be and Gidron, and in 2020 only Gidron.

**** In 2020 the Company’s headquarters also includes Be’s headquarters.

16.3

Payroll Costs
In 2020, the Group’s payroll costs totaled approximately ILS 2,245 million
(excluding franchisee branches and management fees) (compared to payroll
costs of the Group totaling approximately ILS 1,999 million in 2019) and the
average payroll cost in the Group amounted to approximately ILS 12,724 per
month (excluding nonrecurring provisions) for a full-time position. The increase
in the Group’s payroll costs derives from various factors and mainly due to the
Coronavirus pandemic.

16.4

Employment Agreements
16.4.1

Collective Agreements
Approximately thirteen-thousand of the Group’s employees are
employed under special collective agreements.
According to the special collective agreements that apply to the Group,
employees are entitled to various benefits according to the relevant
collective agreement that applies to them, beyond the benefits set forth
in various labor laws, including: holiday leave, special leave, increase
sick leave according to seniority, and social provisions at rates set forth
in the relevant agreement. Similarly, according to the provisions of the
agreement, the parties, the employer, and representative body of
employees, must conduct collective proceeding in order to examine
and settle disagreements that may arise between the parties, including
with respect to termination of employment proceedings. In addition,
according to the aforementioned collective agreements, a condition for
downsizing manpower is mutual consent of management, the
employees’ committee and the Histadrut trade union. Furthermore,
under some of the collective agreements, employees that have
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completed a certain period of employment set forth therein, are entitled
to a bonus at the rate of approximately 6% of the Company’s operating
profit and, since 2018, employees who have completed a certain period
of employment with the Company are entitled to a special bonus. Also,
according to arrangements existing at the Company, certain officers
are entitled to remuneration for meeting objectives according to criteria
set forth in the following parameters: turnover, profitability, expenses,
depreciation, etc. In each of the years 2020 and 2019 payments for
bonuses and regular incentives to eligible employees, as aforesaid,
were made in a total of approximately ILS 80 million and
approximately ILS 62 million, respectively.52
Approximately 280 employees of Gidron are not employed under
special and/or general collective agreements that apply to the
employees of the Company, however they are subject to general
collective agreements to which the Manufacturers Association of Israel
is party.
On March 3, 2020, the Company and the representative body of
employees executed an extension to the collective agreements until
December 31, 2021. Labor relations between the management and the
employees, in the past thirty years, was characterized by industrial rest
without lockouts.
16.4.2

Personal Agreements
The Group has approximately 1,400 employees who are employed
under personal agreements53(executives and people in fiduciary
positions) who are not subject to the provisions of the special collective
agreements that apply to other Group employees.54 The salaries of
employees and other functionaries in the personal agreements are set
according to their position. Furthermore, according to arrangements
existing in the Company certain functionaries are entitled to
remuneration for meeting targets according to criteria such as turnover,
profitability, expenses, and depreciation. In addition, once per year, the
Company’s CEO is entitled, according to its discretion, to grant an
annual bonus to employees under personal agreements, in the
framework of a budget approved by the Board of Directors.

16.4.3
52

53
54

Officers’ Agreements

Such increase mainly derives from an increase in the number of eligible employees (due to the increase in
the online activity and distribution system), and due to the increase in the Company’s sales.
Including a subsidiary.
Approximately 350 deputy branch managers in the Company who are employed under collective bargaining
agreements, are also employed under personal agreements that provide such employees preferential rights
that exceed those set forth in the collective bargaining agreements.
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As of the Report Date, the Company has 12 Senior Officers serving as
members of the Company’s expanded management, who are employed
under personal agreements. Company Officers are entitled to an annual
bonus according to the Company’s remuneration policy (see Article 21
of Part D).
For details regarding the Company’s management, see Article 26A of
part D.
The Company does not have dependency on any of its current officers.
16.5

Exemption, Insurance, and Indemnity Arrangements
For information regarding exemption, insurance, and indemnity arrangements in
the Group, see Article 22 of Part D.

16.6

The Corporation’s Investment in Training
Training is a tool for promoting the business objectives of the Group and thus
the Group is engaged in reenforcing its existing training system and reenforcing
the training infrastructure that allows it to focus on employee training.
The corporation’s activity includes, inter alia, training in the area of safety,
courses for managers and their deputies, professional conferences and
workshops, service workshops, personal development, professional training and
study days, delivered by a designated training department that is in charge of
managing this area in the Group.
Furthermore, branch managers and their deputies have participated in the past
few years in said professional training, which is planned to also continue in
2021, while content is expected to be focused on service, marketing, and sales.
The Company is placing an emphasis on gradual transition to remote training in
the coming years.

16.7

Employee Remuneration Programs
On May 2019, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a remuneration
program for senior employees of the Company (excluding Company Officers)
with a total scope of ILS 40 million and for a period of three years, stipulated
upon objectives.
In February 2019, the Company’s Board of Directors decided to pay a special
nonrecurring bonus to Company employees who have been employee for over
24 months (and which shall be employees of the Company on the date such
bonus is paid) totaling approximately ILS 20 million that was paid in 2019, for
the contribution of said employees to improving the Company’s results and
motivating future cooperation with them.
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and one-time grant to the Company’s employees that have been employed there
for more than 6 months (and who shall be Company employees on the payment
date of such grant) totaling approximately ILS 10 million, which was completed
in 2020, as an expression of the Company’s appreciation of the employees’
efforts and functioning during the Coronavirus Crisis, while bearing heavy
workloads, and their contribution in inter alia maintaining the quality and level
of the service provided to the Company’s customers.
For details regarding capital compensation for Company officers, see Note 22
to the Financial Statements.
17.

55

Legal Proceedings
17.1

On September 29, 2019, sentence was issued (further to the verdict issued on
August 1, 2019) with respect to an indictment filed against the Company, the
Company’s former VP of Operations and the Supply Chain, and four other
managers (not Officers) of the Company (the “Managers”), with respect to
violations of the provisions of the Rest and Labor Hours Law, 5711-1951, for
having employees work overtime beyond what is permitted in the law. In the
framework of the verdict the Managers were acquitted from the violations
attributed to them, while the Company was convicted of the violations attributed
to it. In the framework of the sentence the Company was required to pay a fine
of ILS 252,000. In addition, it was ruled that the Company must undertake not
to commit the offenses subject matter of the indictment for three years, lest it be
subject to the maximum penalty set forth in the law. On March 3, 2020, the
National Labor Court dismissed the appeal brought by the State with respect to
the acquittal of the Company’s former VP of Operations and Supply Chain
(while with respect to the managers of the Company who are not Officers the
State withdrew its appeal regarding their acquittal before the issue was decided);
the Court also dismissed the State’s appeal on the amount of the fine imposed
on the Company. For further information see Note 16(2)(c) of the Financial
Statements.

17.2

On August 26, 2020, the reservations committee made a decision in connection
with an appeal filed by the Company on the requirement of the Israel Land
Authority for payments for (alleged) nonconforming use of a property leased
by the Company in Netanya.55 For additional details, see Note 7(b)(3) of the
Financial Statements.

According to the Company’s estimate of the government appraiser’s assessment, the Company recorded
other revenue of approximately ILS 10 million in Q3 of 2020 as a result of the reduced provision made in
this context.
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17.3

Below is a description of the legal proceedings the Company is party to that
exceeded 10% of the Company’s current assets (consolidated) including
references to the relevant Immediate Reports:

Brief description of the claim
Concluded proceedings
Applicant’s withdrawal from a motion for approval of class
action, asserting that the Company avoided canceling real
estate exclusivity arrangements it was party to, thus
violating the provisions of the Food Law and the Restrictive
Trade Practices Law.
Proceedings that have not yet ended
Motion for approval of class certification against the
Company and against 8 additional respondents for alcohol
sales and non-prevention of alcohol sales to minors through
the respondents’ websites.

Claim amount
(ILS)

Reference to immediate report

300,000,000

19-JAN-2020
10-AUG-2018

2020-01-006421
2018-01-074167

1,046,400,000

12-JAN-2021

2021-01-004816

For information regarding the total provision of the Company for pending claims
as of December 31, 2020, and for further information on pending claims, see
Note 16 of the Financial Statements.

18.

Discussion of Risk Factors
Macro Risks
18.1

The State of the Israeli Economy and the Israeli Retail Food Market
The Group depends on the state of the Israeli economy, that affects, inter alia,
the Israeli retail food market, as consumption depends on personal consumption
per capita. The Group could also depend on international events that have an
impact on the Israeli market.
For information regarding the state of the Israeli economy and the state of the
retail food market, see Section 7 of the Report. For the implications of the
Coronavirus Crisis on the Group, see Section 7.1 of the Report.
The Company’s management is continuously monitoring the developments and
possible implications of economic conditions in the market and the state of the
retail food market on the Company’s business.
Developments and turbulence in the Israeli market as well as an economic
slowdown or recession due to economic crisis, if such occur, could have a
negative impact on the Israeli retail food market, and consequently, also on the
revenues of the Group and its profit margins, inter alia, due to intensified
competition and changes in consumption habits of the Group’s customers.

18.2

Public Opinion on the Cost of Living in Israel
See Section 7.3 of the Report.
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The issue of public opinion on the cost of living in Israel could negatively affect
the Company’s business results, owing to strong consumer pressure applied to
the Company to lower prices of products sold by it and increasing competition
on behalf of discount chains expanding their activity.
18.3

Dependence on the Security and Political Situation in Israel
The Group depends on the Security and political situation in Israel.
The Company and its subsidiaries incorporated under the laws of the State of
Israel, and their offices and activities are based in Israel. Similarly, all of the
Group’s revenues derive from Israel and a large part of the products the Group
sells are grown, manufactured, or processed in Israel. Hence, the Company’s
business results are directly affected by the political, economic, or security
conditions in Israel. A significant deterioration to the security or political
situation in the State of Israel could negatively impact the Company’s business,
financial situation, and the results of its activity.

18.4

Capital and Financial Markets
Fluctuations in the inflation rate, interest rates, exchange rates, and other
conditions in the capital market could cause fluctuations in the Company’s
financial results.
For information regarding the impact of fluctuations in the inflation rate on the
Group, see Section 7.8 of the Report. Also, the Group’s financing income and
expenses are subject to fluctuations due to changes in interest rates on bank
deposits. For details on the Company’s policy on performing hedging
transactions, see Note 23 of the Financial Statements and Section 2 of the Board
of Directors’ Report.
A future increase in inflation rates could significantly increase the Group’s
payroll expenses. An increase in payroll costs in the market, and a significant
increase in inflation in general, could lead to a higher minimum wage according
to the Minimum Wage Law or expansion orders in the market, thus substantially
increasing the Group’s wage expenses. For information on the minimum wage
increase in the market and its impact on the Company, see Section 7.9 of the
Report.
Furthermore, some of the products sold at the Company’s branches are imported
from other countries, whether by the Group or by other importers. Substantial
depreciation of the exchange rate of Israeli currency opposite other currencies
could cause a change in the pricing of such products and in any event could
impact the scope of sales and the Company’s results.
Developments and turbulence as aforesaid could have negative impacts on the
Group’s business results, liquidity, asset value, the state of its business, credit
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rating, its ability to distribute dividends, and its ability to raise financing for its
activity, as required, as well as on the terms of such financing.
18.5

Public health crisis
Global pandemics and epidemics, such as those caused by the Coronavirus
(COVID-19), may adversely affect the global, national, and local economies,
and accordingly the Group’s customers. There is difficulty in predicting the
intensity and duration of the potential negative effect on the economy as a result
of the public health crisis, and it may inter alia affect the consumption habits of
the Group’s customers, and the availability of some products that the Company
provides, their prices, and the frequency of their supply. This pandemic may
impact employee morbidity, and the need to send employees into isolation,
alongside the need to (temporarily) hire additional employees. Nevertheless, the
Coronavirus Crisis led to a considerable increase in the continuous consumption
of and level of demand for food products, and accordingly an increase in the
Company’s sales was noticeable. For details about the effect of the Coronavirus
Crisis and its implications and results on the Group’s activity, see Section 1.1.4
to the Board of Directors’ Report.

Sector-Specific Risks
18.6

Dependence on Vendors
For information regarding the primary vendors of the Group and dependency of
the Company on a vendor, see Sections 8.21.2 and 8.21.4 of the Report,
respectively. There is no certainty that these vendors or other vendors shall not
significantly change their pricing policy or face difficulties in supplying
products to the Group. In such instances the Group’s business, financial position
and results of its activity could be affected.

18.7

Permits and Licenses
Failure to obtain permits, licenses, and real estate related documents for some of
the Company’s branches could result in such branches closing, including
obtaining permission form the Commissioner for opening new branches, as
required, according to the provisions of the Food Law.
Operating the Group’s branches, acquiring new branches and the Group’s
activity in developing real estate, require obtaining permits and licenses from
multiple government agencies (not necessarily related or coordinated amongst
themselves). Some of the Group’s stores need licenses or permits that have not
yet been obtained, or that have expired and need to be renewed. In addition, the
Company leases or holds title to a number of branches, with respect to which
title registration documents are missing at the Land Registration Bureau, mostly
due to registration arrangements or technical issues.
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Should the Group be unable to obtain such permits or licenses, including in case
of failure to obtain them for a number of key branches, simultaneously, it could
be required to close these branches, or take ameliorative measures for these
branches or said land developments.
18.8

Regulation
The results of the Group’s activity could be harmed due to legislation affecting
its activity, especially consumer protection legislation and increased
enforcement thereof by various means, including price control, business
licensing, sanitation, minimum wage (see Section 7.9 of the Report; a higher
minimum wage could affect the Company’s financial results, including its profit
margins), labor and restrictive trade practices/competition laws. For information
about the main regulatory requirements the Company is subject to, see Section
8.24 of the Report. With respect to the Food Law, see Section 7.5 of the Report.
Business licensing legislation, sanitation legislation, and new consumer
protection legislation that grants extensive powers to the Consumer Protection
and Fair Trade Authority; consumer protection legislation and increased
enforcement thereof, imposing more detailed and extensive price controls or
higher minimum wage (as described hereinabove), and higher customs rates on
food imported into Israel, could negatively affect the Company’s business,
financial position and the results of its activity.
Furthermore, stipulations made by the Commissioner regarding rules of conduct
between major marketing chains, which include the Company, and dominant
vendors in the food market area, including by virtue of the provisions of the
Food Law, and with respect to the Company’s merger with Club Market (see
Note 30(b) of the Financial Statements) could negatively impact the Company’s
business, financial position, and the results of its activity.
Following the Strum Law and regulation of the credit market in accordance with
the Control of Financial Services Law, competition in issuing off-bank credit
cards and provision of consumer credit could intensify. See Section 8.14 of the
Report on the reduced interchange commission on debit cards. Such a reduction
could affect the Group’s income from card transactions.

18.9

Competitiveness
Increased competition in the sector could result in lower income, lower profit
margins and loss of market share.
For information on competition in the retail food market, see Section 8.5 and
Section 8.17 of the Report. The Group regularly monitors developments in the
retail sector and adjusts its operations accordingly, if and as required. The Group
is handling competition in the sector, inter alia, by continuing to implement the
business plan as described in Section 12 of the Report. Competitive pressures,
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and its implementation, could harm the Group’s ability to handle and lead price
reductions, and loss of market share in a manner that could adversely affect the
Company’s business, financial situation, and the results of its activity.
18.10 Real Estate
The Company is subject to risks applying to the value of the real estate it owns.
The Group holds whole or partial title to retail centers and office buildings, in
most of which the Company’s branches are the anchor shops. These properties
are subject to the risks involved in ownership of real estate properties, including
deterioration of the local economy, surplus supply and limited demand that
could negatively affect the national or regional real estate market, occupancy
rates, rent, the scope of income, and the asset value in the Company’s Financial
Statements. The Group’s failure to comply with the occupation targets of its
properties, could negatively impact the Company’s real estate business activity.
In addition, a prolonged recession, if such occurs following a slowdown and/or
economic crisis, could cause office, retail, and other spaces to be vacated, and/or
rent from such properties to be reduced.
18.11 Product Liability and Manufacturing Quality
The Group is subject to product liability risks, including for selling medicine,
and for the Home Brand, as well as risks pertaining to the quality of products
manufactured by Gidron.
The Group markets various products, including pharmaceuticals, food products,
and hygienic products, which have a special sensitivity regarding the health of
their users. Numerous statutes and regulations set forth the rights of injured
parties or injured classes who suffer damage as a result of any product that is
assembled, stored, marketed, or sold by the Group. In case damage is caused to
a consumer and/or a class of consumers by products purchased at the Group’s
branches, the Group could be held liable for such damage in a manner that could
negatively affect the Company’s business, financial position, and the results of
its activity. The Group is insured against product liability risks, as aforesaid.
In addition, the Company, through the wholly-owned subsidiary Gidron,
operates 3 manufacturing plants, and is accordingly subject to risks that
generally apply to manufacturers and concern the manufacturing of food
products. A significant manufacturing problem could have an adverse effect on
the Company’s business, financial position, and the results of its activity.
18.12 Recruiting and Retaining Manpower
The Group employs a large number of employees, most of whom are employed
at the Group’s branches and logistics centers. The retail sector along with other
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sectors, are exposed to the difficulty in the Israeli labor market of recruiting and
retaining manpower at minimum wage levels and high rates of manpower
turnover is the plight of many sectors in the Israeli economy. The Group invests
resources in its processes for recruiting manpower, including training employees
when entering their position, rewarding manpower, conducting training and
continuous improvement of manpower recruiting and retention processes. The
Company also invests efforts in optimizing various processes required in the
framework of the Group’s activity. Inability to recruit manpower could result in
higher wage expenses for the Company due to the difficulty of recruiting
employees at current wage levels, and, in some cases, in light of the need to
invest in optimizing processes in the Company and mitigate exposure to inability
to recruit manpower.
18.13 Embezzlement and Fraud
The Group is exposed to risks deriving from Group employees committing
embezzlement and fraud, inter alia considering the nature of the Group’s
activity that includes working with cash, credit cards, inventory, numerous
vendors, information systems, and so forth. The Group is constantly acting to
mitigate these risks using various electronic measures, through segregation of
duties and signatory rights in the Group and incorporating automated tools for
performing various actions in the Group.
Company-Specific Risks
18.14 The Food Law
For information about the Food Law and its effect on the Company, see Section
7.5 of the Report.
The Company estimates that the various provisions of the Food Law are unlikely
to have a material impact on its activity and financial results.
18.15 The Logistics Centers, Group Headquarters and Distribution Channels
A parge part of the products sold by the Group are distributed to the branches
through the logistics centers. Additionally, the Group’s management is located
in the building of the logistics center in Rishon Lezion. Should the Group be
unable to use the logistics centers it currently uses, for any reason whatsoever,
the Group’s ability to distribute its products to the branches could be affected,
and the Company estimates that the Group shall be able to make arrangements
for direct distribution of most products to all of its branches within reasonable
time and according to the ability of vendors to supply products directly to the
branches. In light of the Company’s insurance coverage, it believes that this shall
not have a material effect on its results. For information about the Company’s
distribution system, see Section 8.15 of the Report.
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Furthermore, if the building housing the management of the Group, or its
logistics centers, are physically damaged, this could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s activity and results.
18.16 Collective Agreement
The Company is party to a collective agreement.
Most of the Company’s employees are employed under a collective agreement
and the Company cannot be certain such agreement shall be renewed, from time
to time, without this involving lockouts on the part of the employees. Should a
dispute break out with the employees involving lockouts or harm to the
Company’s activity, it could have a negative impact on the Company’s business,
financial position, and the results of its activity. In addition, renegotiation of
collective agreements could result in additional wage expenses as result of
granting additional financial rights to employees.
18.17 Brand Contamination; Goodwill Damage
The Group has a wide variety of brand-name foods and beverages and Home
Brand products, which have been enjoying a strong reputation for many years.
Damage to such reputation through various publications or otherwise, could
have a negative impact on the Group’s profit margins, regardless whether or not
such publications are true. Furthermore, a defect in a specific product could
damage the reputation of the master-brand under which it is marketed, as well
as to the entire family of products marketed under the same brand. The Group
makes sure to protect its brands and its reputation, including by being extra
careful with respect to the quality of raw materials it uses to manufacture
products, the manufacturing processes, the finished goods, and the advertising
messages.
Similarly, the Company has goodwill associated with its various activities,
including the food retail area and all components thereof. With respect to some
of the Company’s activities the activity is performed through subcontractors or
outsourcing companies. Acts and omissions by the Company’s subcontractors
acting on behalf of the Group could harm the reputation and brand “Shufersal”
or any of the secondary “Shufersal” brands, and impact its business activity, and
subsequently, its financial results.
The Company constantly tracks its public positioning and image, both in the
traditional media and on the social networks. The Company uses monitoring and
tracking services and it receives a weekly report according to various
parameters, which were defined by the Company, for examining the status of its
image, and accordingly various actions are taken with the purpose of addressing
the challenges arising from the above monitoring and measuring work. Thus, the
Company aspires to in real time recognize its image and to the extent possible
reduce the risk involved in public exposure of its goodwill.
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18.18 Ammonia holdings
In the Company’s logistics center in Shoham the Company is required to hold a
certain amount of ammonia in connection with operating certain cooling
systems. The Company is exposed to risks of various types, which arise from
holding ammonia and its use, inter alia a health risk for employees and/or the
public in case of an ammonia leakage event, and criminal, administrative and
civil exposure of the Company and its officers. For purpose of reducing such
exposure and risks, the Company is taking strict safety and security measures, it
constantly performs maintenance actions, and it complies with binding
requirements under law, with respect to such systems and holding ammonia.
Nevertheless, insofar as there shall occur an ammonia leakage event and/or
damage shall be caused and/or it shall transpire that the Company failed to act
according to the legal requirements with respect to holding ammonia and the
safety guidelines, in the Company’s estimate this may adversely affect the
Company and its results.
For additional details regarding the environmental and risks and the Company’s
policy for managing them, see Section 8.23 of the Report.
18.19 Vouchers
The Group is exposed to the risks of issuing vouchers.
The Group issues vouchers and electronic coupons for purchasing goods at its
branches and from other retailers, with whom the Group has engaged for such
purpose. The Group is exposed to the risks of issuing such vouchers, including
with respect to fraud and theft. Although the Group has taken measures to
mitigate these risks, major fraud could have an adverse impact on the
Company’s business, financial position, and the results of its activity. The
Company is also subject to the provisions of the Consumer Protection Law. As
of the Report Date, the Company estimates that its exposure is immaterial.
18.20 Data Processing Systems Computerization and Cyber
The Group uses various information and computer systems. The Group’s central
information systems and their backup are located at the logistics center and in
its vicinity and are used to manage the Group’s computer network. The Group
takes different measures to ensure that the various information and computer
systems function properly and reliably, including using data protection and
backup methods. Nonetheless, should the information and computer systems
crash it could have a negative impact on the Group’s regular activity.
Some of the Group’s information and computer systems are by virtue of licenses
purchased by the Group. Many of the licenses are for an unlimited time;
however, the Group engages with the license holders under agreements for
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service and support for said systems and software for annual periods. The Group
makes sure to engage with reputable and financially sound vendors.
The Group, like any other company, is exposed to the risk of foreign entities
hacking and intruding into its information and computer systems. The Group is
working in accordance with prevailing market standards (such as the Payment
Card Industry Data Security Standard) and even beyond them to mitigate its
exposure to the risk of such hacking and intruding. The Group has an insurance
policy that covers cyber risks. The Group operates automatic testing systems for
performing immunity tests, and in addition thereto periodic testing of all the
Group’s systems is performed by various experts for locating potential failures
and preventing them. The Group uses control experts and other experts for
implementing the conclusions, and it uses market leading products. In critical
areas the Group simultaneously operates a few security layers. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, this cannot guarantee that Group’s databases are completely
invulnerable to penetration and theft of information related to the Group and its
customers. A technical failure in the Group’s systems and/or an attack on the
Group’s computer and information infrastructure, and the Group’s lack of ability
to restore its systems to normal operations within a reasonable time, may harm
the Group’s current activity, harm the Group’s goodwill, expose the Group to
legal proceedings, and harm its business results.
18.21 Food Law
For details about the Food Law and its impact on the Company, see Section 7.5
to the Report.
In the Company’s estimate, the various provisions of the Food Law are not
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s activity and its financial
results.
18.22 Restrictive Trade Practices/Competition
In the past, a large part of the Company’s growth was due to the acquisition of
various retail activities. Future acquisitions of various food retail activities could
require approval of the restrictive trade practices/competition array, and there is
no guarantee such approval shall be granted, or the terms at which it could be
stipulated on.
As of the Report Date, and considering the structure of the retail market in
conjunction with the legal restrictions that apply to the Company, and also
considering the provisions of the Food Law, the Company estimates that there
is a small chance of the Company growing by way of acquiring a material player
in the retail area.
For further information, see Section 7.5 of the Report and Note 30(b) of the
Financial Statements.
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For details on the Group’s business objectives and strategy, see Section 12 of
the Report. The Group is exposed to the risks related to implementing its
strategy.
The Group’s strategy, as approved by the Company’s Board of Directors,
requires substantial resources from the Group including major financial
investments, inter alia, with respect to establishing the automated shipping
centers, investments in the Be chain, and so forth. Failure of the Group to attain
its business objectives and strategy could have a material impact on the Group’s
business results, on its liquidity, asset value, the state of its business, credit
rating, ability to distribute dividends, and on its ability to raise financing for its
activity.
18.24 Retail Space Management
For information about the real estate properties used by the Company for its
activity see Section 8.19 of the Report. The Group is subject to risks that derive
from unwise management of its retail spaces. According to the strategy, the
Group intends to expand its online activity as described in this Report.
Subsequently, as the share of this activity in the Company’s total activity
increases, the Company’s need for physical retail space is constantly examined
and accordingly actions are taken. The Company’s mismanagement of such
retail spaces, and its inability to get out of existing lease contracts, could result
in the Company holding surplus retail spaces that neither generate revenues nor
hold business value, which could become onerous properties and negatively
affect the Company’s business results.
18.25 Termination of the Operating Agreement with the Credit Card Issuer and
Recruiting Credit Card Holders Anew
Generally, termination of the credit card operating agreement opposite the
operating party could impose costs on the Company, and affect the scope of
credit cards activity, including a reduction in the number of credit card holders.
furthermore, terminating the engagement with an entity providing benefits with
respect to its credit cards could affect the number of credit card holders and the
willingness of new customers to hold the credit card.
For information on the credit cards offered by the Company to its customers
together with CAL, in the framework of their collaboration, see Section 8.14 of
the Report and Note 30(a) of the Financial Statements.
18.26 Legal Proceedings
By the nature of the Company’s activity and its high level of deployment in the
population, the Company is exposed, from time to time, to class actions at large
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amounts , against which it is required to defend at substantial costs, even if such
claims are unfounded to begin with.
Furthermore, the Class Action Law, 5766-2006, sets forth a general arrangement
for filing class actions and significantly expands the causes of action for which
it is possible to file a class action, the list of parties entitled to file a class action
and removes various procedural barriers for conducting class actions; therefore,
there is an upward trend in filing claims against companies like the Company,
alongside motions for their approval as class actions for various causes of action.
18.27 Safety at the Workplace
The Group has real estate activity, many branches and logistics centers that are
operated by maintenance personnel employed by the Group and external
contractors. In light thereof it is possible that the Group’s employees and
external contractors could be exposed to personal injury resulting from their
work. The Group emphasizes safety at the workplace in the framework of
working at the Group and in its engagements with external contractors. The
Group has safety procedures according to the provisions of law.

18.28 Below Are the Company’s Estimates on the Risk Factors’ Impact on the
Company:
Type of risk

Macro risks
The state of the Israeli economy and retail
food market
Public opinion on cost of living Israel
Dependence on Israel’s security and
political situation
The capital and financial markets
Public health crisis
Branch risks/branch-specific risks
Dependence on vendors
Permits and licenses
Regulation
Competitiveness
Real estate
Product liability and manufacturing
quality
Recruiting and retaining manpower
Embezzlement and fraud
Company-specific risks
The logistics centers, the Group
headquarters, and the distribution
channels

Impact of the risk factor on the
Company
Low
Medium
High
impact
impact
impact
V
V
V
V
V
V
V
V
V
V
V
V
V
V
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Type of risk

The collective agreement
Brand contamination; reputational
damage
Ammonia holdings
Coupons
Data processing, computerization, and
cyber systems
The Food Law
Restrictive trade practices/competition
Non-realization of the strategy
Retail area management
End of the operation agreement with the
credit card issuer and re-recruiting the
credit card holders
Legal proceedings
Safety at the workplace

Impact of the risk factor on the
Company
Low
Medium
High
impact
impact
impact
V
V

V
V
V
V
V
V
V

V
V
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We hereby submit the Directors' Report of Shufersal Ltd. (hereinafter – "Shufersal" or "the Company") for the
year 2020 (hereinafter – "2020" or "the reporting period")1, in accordance with the Securities Regulations
(Periodic and Immediate Reports), 1970 (hereinafter –"the reporting regulations"). Shufersal together with its
subsidiaries and associate companies are hereinafter called “the Shufersal Group” or “the Group”.

1.

Explanations of the Board to the State of the Company's Affairs

1.1

Principal data regarding the business affairs of the Company

Shufersal is the owner of the largest supermarket chain in Israel. The Group operates 387 branches throughout
Israel, of which 301 are Shufersal branches and 86 are branches of Be2. The Shufersal branches operate in several
formats. The Group’s total commercial space encompasses approximately 536 thousand square meters, of which
approximately 503 thousand square meters are Shufersal branches and approximately 33 thousand square meters
are Be branches, and the Company has 8 hand delivery centers3 encompassing 27 thousand square meters. The
Group employs about 16.7 thousand employees (about 14.5 thousand calculated positions) and has annual
revenues of about NIS 15 billion.
1.1.1

Description of operating segments reported as business segments in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company

The Company operates in three operating segments that are reported as business segments in its financial
statements: the retail segment, the real estate segment and the Be segment. For details regarding the aforesaid
operating segments, see Note 32 to the financial statements.
1.1.2

Management’s discussion of principal results for 2020
The Company’s results for 2020 were affected by several matters:
 The effects of the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak (see Paragraphs 1.1.4 and 1.2 hereunder).
 The Company continued the development of its digital platforms, mainly the “Shufersal Online”
system, which included continuing the construction of automated delivery centers for this distribution
channel. In 2020, the significant growth of retail sales through Shufersal Online continued,
constituting about 19.9% of the total sales of Shufersal's branches (compared with 15% in the same
period last year).
 Continued development and strengthening of the private label including launching products in
existing and new categories. In 2020, the private label accounted for 25.8% of the total sales of
Shufersal's branches (compared with 25.2% in 2019).
 Continued development and growing the customer base of the Be chain, including rebranding,
strengthening the private label, expansion of the chain and operational synergies including
development of the digital platform. See Note 1.B(1) to the financial statements regarding completion
of the merger of Be with and into the Company.
 Continued strengthening and expansion of the new customer loyalty credit card club. As at December
31, 2020, 641 thousand credit cards have been issued compared with 591 thousand credit cards as at
December 31, 2019.

For purposes of this report, “the date of this report” is the date of issuing this report and “the reporting date” is the date of
the statement of financial position, i.e. December 31, 2020, unless stated otherwise or implied otherwise by the context of
the matter.
2
The branches of Be include one branch of Bela Online Ltd., a subsidiary (51%), and 5 branches that are temporarily closed
because of the effect of the lockdown that is due to the coronavirus crisis. See Paragraph 1.1.4 regarding the coronavirus
crisis.
3
Dedicated centers for supplying products through the Company’s website.
4
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1.1.3

Dividend
On April 27, 2020, the Company distributed a dividend in the amount of NIS 80 million. On March 3,
2021, subsequent to the date of the statement of financial position, the Company’s Board of Directors
declared the distribution of a cash dividend in the total amount of NIS 140 million. The said dividend
does not require court approval, and as at the date of this report it has not yet been paid. See Note 34.C to
the financial statements for details.
As at December 31, 2020, the Company’s “profits” for purposes of the profit test pursuant to Section 302
of the Companies Law, 1999 (“the Companies Law”) amounted to about NIS 891 million, where a
dividend distribution by the Company, to the extent the Company’s Board of Directors decides to make
such a distribution, will be in accordance with the Companies Law and subject to the distribution
conditions provided therein, to the restrictions provided in the terms of the bonds that were issued by the
Company and the binding credit facilities (see Section 5 hereunder and Note 17 to the financial
statements) and to all other provisions of law.

1.1.4

Disclosure regarding the coronavirus crisis
In the first quarter of 2020 an epidemic began spreading around the world that was caused by an outbreak
of the coronavirus (COVID-19) ("the coronavirus crisis") and was declared by the World Health
Organization as a pandemic. Accordingly, the relevant government authorities in Israel issue, from time
to time, restrictions that throughout the period specified in them, prohibit or restrict the activity of
businesses, restrict or prohibit the presence of employees at work places, impose restrictions on the
education system, restrictions on people being in closed spaces, travel restrictions and so forth, all
according to the morbidity rate in Israel at the relevant times. Proximate to the date of this report, three
lockdowns have already been imposed in Israel for limited periods and the level of morbidity and
mortality from the pandemic has risen considerably, while on the other hand Israel is first in the world in
the rate of vaccinating the population against the virus.
The Company is defined as an essential enterprise and as an enterprise that provides existential services
for Israel's economy and accordingly continued operating also during the period of restrictions as
aforesaid.
Presented hereunder are the main effects of the coronavirus crisis on the Company's operations in the
reporting period:
In view of the nature of the coronavirus crisis as described above, the food retail industry in Israel
including the Company experienced an increase in demand for food and toiletries, which contributed to
an increase in revenues of the retail segment. On the other hand, part of the Company's employees had to
be in quarantine for various periods of time as a result of the instructions of the Ministry of Health. In
view of the aforesaid, and in accordance with the increase in demand for food as a result of the coronavirus
crisis, the Company had to recruit temporary employees from time to time. The effect of the aforesaid
and other circumstances, such as working nights and increasing shifts to meet demand, led to an increase
in salary and labor expenses. Furthermore, in view of the nature of the coronavirus crisis and the
restrictions on travel and social distancing that were imposed on the population, there was a significant
increase in the Company's sales on its online platform. In order to strengthen the online activity the
Company increased its online activity workforce, increased the number of shifts (an increase that included
night shifts) and converted branches into online delivery centers. The positive effect of the increase in
revenues of the retail segment was significantly higher than the negative effect of the increase in labor
expenses and costs, and therefore the net effect of the pandemic on the operating profit of the retail
segment in the reporting period was immaterial.

5

Board of Directors' Report on the State of the Company's Affairs for the Year Ended December 31, 2020
Shufersal Ltd.

The coronavirus crisis did not have a material effect on the operating results of the Be segment. On the
one hand, there was a decrease in activity at the stores in shopping centers, in Eilat and in hospitals, while
on the other hand there was an increase in the activity of stores located on streets and in the online activity,
including projects of delivering medicines to homes, which together with the implementation of operating
efficiency measures led to an immaterial net effect of the coronavirus crisis on the operating profit of the
Be segment in the reporting period.
In the Company's opinion, based on the data existing at the date of this report, the pandemic's effect on
the results of the retail segment and Be segment, as described above, continued also in the period from
January 1, 2021 to the date of this report.
In general, the effect of the coronavirus crisis on the Company's real estate segment was immaterial.
During the reporting period, the Group chose to grant tenants relaxations of immaterial amounts.
Furthermore, the Lev Hamifratz mall closed down for limited periods during the reporting period, in
accordance with instructions issued from time to time by government authorities. As at the reporting date
the Company has examined the effects on the forecast of contractual cash flows expected from tenants of
the Group's properties and has examined, together with external appraisers, the effects of the aforesaid on
the assumptions that were the basis for determining the fair value of the real estate and has reached the
conclusion that as at the reporting date, the coronavirus crisis does not have a material effect on the fair
value of the investment property as presented in the financial statements.
As at the date of this report, the Company believes that the effects of the coronavirus crisis will not have
a negative effect on the Company's sources of finance or adversely affect its liquidity. Furthermore, as at
the date of this report, the Company does not expect a material delay in the automated warehouses project
(see Paragraph 8.15 of part A to the periodic report) and does expect any change in the Company's strategy
and work plans as these are described in Paragraph 12 of part A to the periodic report.
The coronavirus crisis is taking its toll of the Israeli economy including a high rate of unemployment
which among other things may affect private consumption in Israel, cause a decrease in productivity, an
increase in the national deficit, etc. It can be assumed that the coronavirus will continue to have a negative
effect on growth in Israel. As aforesaid, in the reporting period the net effect of the coronavirus crisis on
the Company's operating results was positive. Nevertheless, the coronavirus crisis may have an adverse
effect in the future on the Group's operations and on its financial results following, inter alia, the
possibility of the economy entering a slowdown and recession and naturally also a decline in private
consumption. As at the date of this report, it is difficult to forecast the full effects of the coronavirus crisis
on the Group, also because of the indirect effects of the crisis on the economy of the world and of Israel
and on growth and naturally also on the Group.
The information regarding the effects of the coronavirus on the Group in the period subsequent to
the reporting date, is forward looking information within its definition in the Securities Law - 1968
("the Securities Law"). This information is based on the Company's assessments and initial data
regarding the results of operations subsequent to the reporting period. The actual effects may be
materially different from those forecasted as aforesaid, due to various reasons of which the main
ones are an additional outbreak of variants of the coronavirus, returning to stricter restrictions,
the intensity of the indirect effects on the Group following a possible damage to growth, the
economy entering a slowdown and so forth.
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1.2

Analysis of the Results of Operations

During the reporting period, as a result of the outbreak of the coronavirus, the sales of the Company have increased
in general and its online sales in particular.
1.2.1

Analysis of the results for 2020 as compared to 2019
Results of operations 2020
Percentage
NIS millions

Revenues
Gross profit
Selling, marketing, administrative
and general expenses
Operating profit before
other income (expenses)
Increase in fair value of investment
property, net
Other expenses, net
Operating profit after
other income (expenses)

Results of operations 2019
Percentage NIS millions

26.5%

15,233
4,043

27.0%

13,360
3,609

21.8%

(3,325)

23.1%

(3,088)

4.7%

718

3.9%

521

13
14
4.9%

745

39
(3)
4.2%

557

Financing expenses, net
Share in profit of equity-accounted
investee
Profit before taxes on income

(232)

(259)

(4)
509

8
306

Taxes on income

(122)

(38)

387

268

Profit for the year

Retail segment revenues amounted to NIS 14,371 million in 2020, compared with NIS 12,603 million in the
previous year, an increase of 14% that is mainly due to the effect of the coronavirus outbreak. Store sales in 2020
increased by 14.7% compared with the previous year. The difference between the increase in the Company's
revenues and the increase in the Company's sales is mainly attributable to the continued increase in the activities
of franchisees.
Same store4 sales increased by 13.4% in 2020 compared with the previous year. The increase is mainly due to the
effect of the coronavirus outbreak. The per square meter sales5 in Company stores were NIS 27,898 in 2020,
compared with NIS 24,819 in the previous year, an increase of 12.4% that is mainly due to the aforesaid.
Real estate segment revenues amounted to NIS 182 million in 2020, the same as in the previous year.
The Be segment’s revenues totaled NIS 815 million in 2020, compared with NIS 708 million in the previous
year, an increase of 15.1% that is mainly due to the opening of new stores and an increase in same-store sales
(including an increase in the online activity). Same-store Be sales4 increased by 13.8% compared with last year
pursuant to the aforesaid. The sales per square meter of Be stores5 amounted to NIS 24,439 in 2020, compared
with NIS 23,331 last year, an increase of 4.8%.
The Group’s revenues amounted to NIS 15,233 million in 2020 compared with NIS 13,360 million in the
previous year, an increase of 14% that is mainly due to the retail segment. The Group's same store sales4 increased
in 2020 by 13.4% compared with the previous year.

Same store sales – gross sales of stores that were active in corresponding periods of the two comparison years.
The areas of the new branches are calculated proportionately from the date the branch was opened. The area of the branch
is the gross area including selling areas and other operating areas. The sales per square meter include the Marketplace sales,
meaning on the expanded shopping site for online selling of non-food products.
7
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Gross profit amounted to NIS 4,043 million in 2020 compared with NIS 3,609 million in the previous year, an
increase of NIS 434 million. The increase in gross profit is mainly due to an increase in the Group's revenues. The
gross margin was 26.5% compared with 27% in the previous year, a decrease of 0.5% that is mainly due to a
reduction in prices and an increase in online sales.
Selling, marketing, administrative and general expenses amounted to NIS 3,325 million in 2020, compared
with NIS 3,088 million in the previous year. The ratio of expenses to revenues was 21.8% compared with 23.1%
in the previous year. The increase in expenses is mainly due to the increase in the Group's activity. The decrease
in the ratio of expenses to revenues is due to the ratio of the increase in expenses to the increase in revenues.
The operating profit before other income (expenses) in the retail segment amounted to NIS 544 million in
2020 and a rate of 3.8% from revenues, compared with NIS 397 million and a rate of 3.2% from revenues in the
previous year, an increase of NIS 147 million, which was driven by the aforesaid.
The operating profit before other income (expenses) in the real estate segment amounted to NIS 151 million
in 2020, compared with NIS 150 million in the previous year.
The operating loss before other income (expenses) of the Be segment amounted to NIS 19 million in 2020,
compared with NIS 70 million in the previous year. The decrease in the loss is due to the increase in revenues and
to the decrease in the ratio of selling, marketing, general and administrative expenses to revenues that is due to,
inter alia, improving operating efficiency and deepening the operating synergy with the Company.
The Group’s operating profit after other income (expenses) amounted to NIS 745 million in 2020 and to a
rate of 4.9% of revenue, compared with NIS 557 million and 4.2% of revenue in the previous year, an increase of
NIS 188 million that is mainly due to the aforesaid and to other income in the amount of NIS 10 million from
reducing a provision relating to an appeal the Company had submitted regarding a demand of the Israel Land
Authority for payments in respect of nonconforming use (allegedly) of property the Company leases in Netanya,
and on the other hand a decrease in the effect of an increase in value of investment property in the amount of
NIS 26 million compared with the corresponding period last year.
The operating profit before depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) amounted to NIS 1,514 million and to
a rate of 9.9% of revenue in 2020, compared with NIS 1,266 million and a rate of 9.5% of revenue in the previous
year. The increase is mainly due to the increase in the operating profit.
Financing expenses net, amounted to NIS 232 million in 2020, compared with NIS 259 million in the previous
year. The decrease of NIS 27 million is mainly due to a decrease in expenses in respect of forward transactions
that hedge foreign currency linked transactions compared with the corresponding period last year and the effect
of changes in the Consumer Price Index on the balances of the Company's linked bonds (the Consumer Price
Index decreased at the rate of 0.6% in the current period compared with an increase of 0.3% in the corresponding
period last year).
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Tax expenses amounted to NIS 122 million in 2020, compared with NIS 38 million in the previous year. The
increase in the tax expenses is mainly due an increase in the profit for the period and to last year recording deferred
tax income for losses of the Be segment.
The net profit amounted to NIS 387 million in 2020, compared with NIS 268 million in the previous year, an
increase that is due to the aforesaid.
The Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to NIS 1.62 in 2020, compared with NIS 1.13
in the previous year.
1.2.2

Analysis of the results for 2019 as compared to 2018
Results of operations 2019
Percentage
NIS millions

Revenues
Gross profit
Selling, marketing, administrative
and general expenses
Operating profit before
other income (expenses)
Increase in fair value of investment
property, net
Other expenses, net
Operating profit after
other income (expenses)

Results of operations 2018
Percentage NIS millions

27.0%

13,360
3,609

26.8%

12,847
3,441

23.1%

(3,088)

23.3%

(2,988)

3.9%

521

3.5%

453

43
)27(

39
(3)
4.2%

557

3.7%

469

(259)

)116(

8
306

6
359

Taxes on income

(38)

)94(

Profit for the year

268

265

Financing expenses, net
Share in profit of equity-accounted
investee
Profit before taxes on income

Retail segment revenues amounted to NIS 12,603 million in 2019, compared with NIS 12,246 million in the
previous year, an increase of 2.9%. Store sales in 2019 increased by 3.5% compared with the previous year.
The difference between the increase in the Company's revenues and the increase in the Company's sales is mainly
attributable to the continued increase in the activities of franchisees and a decrease in the gift granted to new
members that join the credit card club compared with last year.
Same store6 sales increased by 0.2% in 2019 compared with the previous year.
The per square meter sales7 in Company stores were NIS 24,819 in 2019, compared with NIS 24,735 in the
previous year, an increase of 0.3%.
Real estate segment revenues amounted to NIS 182 million in 2019, compared with NIS 177 million in the
previous year, an increase of 2.8% that is due mainly to the occupancy of vacant space.

Same store sales – gross sales of stores that were active in corresponding periods of the two comparison years.
The areas of the new branches are calculated proportionately from the date the branch was opened. The area of the branch
is the gross area including selling areas and other operating areas. The sales per square meter include the Marketplace sales,
meaning on the expanded shopping site for online selling of non-food products.
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The Be segment’s revenues totaled NIS 708 million in 2019, compared with NIS 552 million in the previous
year, an increase of 28.3% that is due to the opening of new stores and an increase in same-store sales. Same-store
Be sales6 increased by 6.1% compared with last year. The sales per square meter of Be stores7 amounted to
NIS 23,331 in 2019, compared with NIS 24,317 last year, a decrease of 4.1%, due mainly to the opening of new
branches and the upgrading of stores.
The Group’s revenues amounted to NIS 13,360 million in 2019 compared with NIS 12,847 million in the
previous year, an increase of 4% that is attributable to the aforesaid. The Group's same store sales 6 increased by
0.5% compared with the previous year.
Gross profit amounted to NIS 3,609 million in 2019 compared with NIS 3,441 million in the previous year, an
increase of NIS 168 million. The gross margin was 27.0% compared with 26.8% in the previous year. The increase
in gross profit is mainly due to an increase in the Group's revenues.
Selling, marketing, administrative and general expenses amounted to NIS 3,088 million in 2019, compared
with NIS 2,988 million in the previous year. The ratio of expenses to revenues was 23.1% compared with 23.3%
in the previous year. The increase in expenses is mainly due to an increase in the number of stores, and on the
other hand a decrease in the costs of launching the ICC credit card and the initial application of IFRS 16.
The operating profit before other expenses in the retail segment amounted to NIS 397 million in 2019 and a
rate of 3.2% from the revenues in the retail segment, compared with NIS 360 million and a rate of 2.9% from the
retail segment revenues in the previous year, an increase of NIS 37 million, which was driven by the aforesaid.
The operating profit before other income in the real estate segment amounted to NIS 150 million in 2019,
compared with NIS 144 million in the previous year, an increase of NIS 6 million which was driven by the
aforesaid.
The operating loss before other expenses of the Be segment amounted to NIS 70 million in 2019, compared
with NIS 29 million in the previous year. The increase in the loss is due to the continued rollout and growing of
the customer base of the Be chain, rebranding, expanding the range of products, opening concept stores, the costs
of closing branches and upgrading the chain's stores.
The Group’s operating profit after other income amounted to NIS 557 million in 2019 and to a rate of 4.2%
of revenue, compared with NIS 469 million and 3.7% of revenue in the previous year, an increase of NIS 88
million that is mainly due to an increase in the operating profit for the period as a result of the initial application
of IFRS 16 this year and recording other expenses in the Be segment last year.
The operating profit before other income (expenses), depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) amounted
to NIS 1,266 million and to a rate of 9.5% of revenue in 2019, compared with NIS 786 million and a rate of 6.1%
of revenue in the previous year. The increase is mainly due to the initial application of IFRS 16 this year.
Financing expenses net, amounted to NIS 259 million in 2019, compared with NIS 116 million in the previous
year. The increase in expenses is mainly due to the initial application of IFRS 16 and the effect on forward
transactions of the decrease in the exchanges rates of the dollar and euro (compared with an increase in those
exchange rates last year).
Tax expenses amounted to NIS 38 million in 2019, compared with NIS 94 million in the previous year. The
decrease in the tax expenses is mainly due to recording deferred tax income for losses of the Be segment.
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The net profit amounted to NIS 268 million in 2019, compared with NIS 265 million in the previous year, an
increase of NIS 3 million that is mainly due to the aforesaid.
The Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to NIS 1.13 in 2019, compared with NIS 1.12
in the previous year.
1.2.3

Analysis of the results for the three months ended December 31, 2020 compared with the
corresponding period of the previous year
Results of operations
Q4 2020
Q4 2019
Percentage
NIS millions
Percentage
NIS millions

Revenues
Gross profit
Selling, marketing, administrative and
general expenses
Operating profit before other income
(expenses)
Increase in fair value of investment
property, net
Other income (expenses), net
Operating profit after other income
(expenses)
Financing expenses, net
Share in profit of equity-accounted
investee
Profit before taxes on income
Taxes on income
Profit for the period

27.0%

3,871
1,047

26.9%

3,339
898

21.8%

(845)

23.4%

(782)

5.2%

202

3.5%

116

9
5
5.6%

216
(62)
2
156
(36)
120

39
(2)
4.6%

153
(57)
4
100
17
117

Retail segment revenues amounted to NIS 3,653 million in Q4/2020, compared with NIS 3,147 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of about 16.1% that is mainly due to the effect of the
coronavirus. Sales in Shufersal stores in Q4 of the year increased by 16.5% compared with the corresponding
quarter of the previous year. The difference between the increase in the Company's revenues and the increase in
the Company's sales is mainly attributable to the continued increase in the activities of franchisees.
Same store8 sales in Q4/2020 increased by 15.4% over the corresponding quarter of the previous year. The
increase is attributable mainly to an increase in the Company's operations that is mainly due to the effect of the
coronavirus.
The stores’ sales per square meter9 amounted to NIS 7,094 in Q4/2020, compared with NIS 6,154 in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of 15.3% that is due to the aforesaid.
Real estate segment revenues amounted to NIS 47 million in Q4/2020, compared with NIS 45 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year.

Same store sales – gross sales of stores that were active in corresponding periods of the two comparison years.
The areas of the new branches are calculated proportionately from the date the branch was opened. The area of the branch
is the gross area including selling areas and additional operating areas. The sales per square meter include the Marketplace
sales, meaning on the expanded shopping site for online selling of non-food products.
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The revenues of the Be segment amounted to NIS 206 million in Q4/2020, compared with NIS 180 million in
the corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of 14.4% that was due to opening new branches and
an increase in same store sales (including an increase in online activity). Same-store Be sales8 increased by 14.5%
compared with last year pursuant to the aforesaid. The sales per square meter of Be stores10 amounted to NIS 5,983
in Q4/2020, compared with NIS 5,586 in the corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of 7.1%.
The Group’s revenues amounted to NIS 3,871 million in Q4/2020 compared with NIS 3,339 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of 15.9% that is mainly due to the retail segment. Same
store4 sales increased by 15.4% in Q4/2020 compared with the corresponding quarter of the previous year.
The gross profit amounted to NIS 1,047 million in Q4/2020, compared with NIS 898 million in the corresponding
quarter of the previous year, an increase of NIS 149 million. The increase in gross profit is mainly due to an
increase in the Group's revenues. The gross profit rate is 27% of revenues in Q4/2020, compared with 26.9% in
the corresponding quarter of the previous year.
Selling, marketing, administrative and general expenses amounted to NIS 845 million in Q4/2020, compared
with NIS 782 million in the corresponding quarter of the previous year. The ratio of expenses to revenues is 21.8%
compared with 23.4% in the corresponding quarter of the previous year. The increase in expenses is mainly due
to the increase in the Group's activity. The decrease in the ratio of expenses to revenues is due to the ratio of the
increase in expenses to the increase in revenues.
The operating profit before other income (expenses) in the retail segment amounted to NIS 157 million in
Q4/2020 and a rate of 4.3% of retail segment revenues, compared with NIS 99 million and a rate of 3.1% of
revenues in the corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of NIS 58 million that is due to the
aforesaid.
The operating profit before other income(expenses) in the real estate segment amounted to NIS 37 million in
Q4/2020, the same as in the corresponding quarter of the previous year.
The operating profit (loss) before other income (expenses) of the Be segment. The segment reached an
operational break-even in Q4/2020, compared with a loss of NIS 30 million in in the corresponding quarter of the
previous year. The decrease in the loss is due to the increase in revenues and to the decrease in the ratio of selling,
marketing, general and administrative expenses to revenues that is due to, inter alia, improving operating
efficiency and deepening the operating synergy with the Company.
The Group’s operating profit after other income (expenses) amounted to NIS 216 million and a rate of 5.6%
of revenue in Q4/2020, compared with NIS 153 million and a rate of 4.6% of revenue in the corresponding quarter
of the previous year, an increase of NIS 63 million that was due mainly to the aforesaid and on the other hand a
decrease in the effect of an increase in value of investment property in the amount of NIS 30 million compared to
the corresponding quarter of the previous year.
The operating profit before other income (expenses), depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) amounted
to NIS 411 million and a rate of 10.6% of revenue in Q4/2020, compared with NIS 322 million and a rate of 9.6%
of revenue in the corresponding quarter of the previous year. The increase is mainly due to the increase in the
operating profit.
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Financing expenses net, amounted to NIS 62 million in Q4/2020, compared with NIS 57 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of NIS 5 million that is mainly due to expenses in respect
of forward transactions that hedge foreign currency linked transactions compared with the corresponding period
last year.
Tax expenses amounted to NIS 36 million in Q4/2020, compared with tax income of NIS 17 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase that is due to an increase in the profit for the period and
to last year recording deferred tax income for losses of the Be segment.
The profit for the period amounted to NIS 120 million in Q4/2020 compared with NIS 117 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase that is due to the aforesaid.
The Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to NIS 0.5 in Q4/2020, the same as in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year.
1.2.4

Condensed consolidated income statement and consolidated statements of comprehensive income
for 2020 by quarters and for the fourth quarter of 2019 (in NIS millions)
Total for
the year

Fourth
quarter

2020
Third
quarter

Second
quarter

First
quarter

2019
Fourth
quarter

15,233
4,043

3,871
1,047

3,942
1,029

3,689
968

3,731
999

3,339
898

(3,325)

)845(

)849(

)803(

)828(

)782(

718

202

180

165

171

116

13
14

9
5

10

4
-

)1(

39
)2(

745

216

190

169

170

153

Financing expenses, net
Share in profit (loss) of equityaccounted investee
Profit before taxes on income

(232)

)62(

)60(

)60(

)50(

)57(

(4)
509

2
156

130

)4(
105

(2)
118

4
100

Taxes on income

(122)

)36(

)33(

)25(

)28(

17

387

120

97

80

90

117

Revenues
Gross profit
Selling, marketing, administrative
and general expenses
Operating profit before other
income (expenses)
Increase in fair value of
investment property, net
Other income (expenses)
Operating profit after other
income (expenses)

Profit for the period
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Total for
the year

*

Other comprehensive income (loss)
items that were initially recognized
in comprehensive income and were
or will be transferred to profit or loss
The effective portion of the change in
fair value of instruments used for
cash flow hedging
Net change in fair value included in
cost of hedging reserve
Taxes on other comprehensive income
items that were initially recognized in
comprehensive income and will be
transferred to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income
(loss) for the period that after
initial recognition in comprehensive
income was or will be transferred to
profit or loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive income (loss)
items not transferred to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit
plan
Revaluation reserve for items of
property, plant and equipment
classified as investment property
Taxes on items of other
comprehensive income that will not
be transferred to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income
(loss) for the period not transferred
to profit or loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive income (loss)
for the period, net of tax
Total comprehensive income
for the period

Fourth
quarter

2020
Third
quarter

Second
quarter

2019
Fourth
quarter

First
quarter

)10(

4

-

-

)14(

3

*-

*-

*-

-

-

-

2

)1(

-

-

3

)1(

)8(

3

*-

-

)11(

2

)23(

)23(

-

)18(

18

)6(

40

40

-

-

-

-

)4(

)4(

-

4

)4(

2

13

13

-

(14)

14

)4(

5

16

-

)14(

3

)2(

392

136

97

66

93

115

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

392
*-

136
*-

97
*-

66
-

93
-

116
)1(

Total comprehensive income for the
period

392

136

97

66

93

115

Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
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1.3

Financial Position, Liquidity and Sources of Finance

1.3.1

Cash flow – Analysis of the results for 2020 as compared to 2019

Cash flow from operating activities
Net cash from operating activities amounted to NIS 1,765 million in 2020, compared with NIS 1,035 million in
the previous year. The increase in cash flow from operating activities is mainly due to changes in working capital
items and an increase in the profit for the period.
Cash flow used in investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities amounted to NIS 652 million in 2020, compared with NIS 863 million in the
previous year. Cash used in investing activities in 2020 included mainly investments in property, plant and
equipment in the amount of NIS 459 million, an investment in a short-term deposit in the amount of NIS 100
million and investments in intangible assets in the amount of NIS 87 million.
Cash used in investing activities in 2019 included mainly investments in property, plant and equipment in the
amount of NIS 518 million, an investment in a short-term deposit in the amount of NIS 150 million, investments
in intangible assets in the amount of NIS 102 million and an investment in debt instruments at amortized cost in
the amount of NIS 98 million.
Cash flow used in financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to NIS 688 million in 2020, compared with NIS 279 million in the
previous year. The net cash used in financing activities in 2020 included mainly the repayment of bonds and
interest in the amount of NIS 368 million, the repayment of lease liabilities in the amount of NIS 450 million, the
payment of a dividend in the amount of NIS 80 million and the repayment of credit from banks in the amount of
NIS 93 million, offset by net proceeds from the issuance of bonds in the amount of NIS 312 million.
The net cash used in financing activities in 2019 included mainly the repayment of bonds and interest in the
amount of NIS 313 million, the payment of a dividend in the amount of NIS 160 million and the repayment of
principal and interest of a lease liability (IFRS 16) in the amount of NIS 437 million, offset by net proceeds from
the issuance of bonds in the amount of NIS 549 million.
1.3.2

Cash flow – Analysis of the results for 2019 as compared to 2018

Cash flow from operating activities
Net cash from operating activities amounted to NIS 1,035 million in 2019, compared with NIS 548 million in the
previous year. The increase in cash flow from operating activities is mainly due to the initial application of IFRS
16 in January 2019 and changes in working capital items (refer to the consolidated statements of cash flows in the
financial statements for additional information).
Cash flow used in investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities amounted to NIS 863 million in 2019, compared with NIS 702 million in the
previous year. Cash used in investing activities in 2019 included mainly investments in property, plant and
equipment in the amount of NIS 518 million, an investment in a short-term deposit in the amount of NIS 150
million, investments in intangible assets in the amount of NIS 102 million and an investment in debt instruments
at amortized cost in the amount of NIS 98 million.
The cash used in investing activities in 2018 included mainly investments in property, plant and equipment in the
amount of NIS 568 million and investments in intangible assets in the amount of NIS 73 million.
The investments in property, plant and equipment included mainly current investments in Shufersal and Be and
establishment of automated operations for the new automated delivery centers in Modi’in and Kadima, that the
Company is establishing, to be used for online operations.
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Cash flow used in financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to NIS 279 million in 2019, compared with NIS 56 million in the
previous year. The net cash used in financing activities in 2019 included mainly the repayment of bonds and
interest in the amount of NIS 313 million, the payment of a dividend in the amount of NIS 160 million and the
repayment of principal and interest of a lease liability (IFRS 16) in the amount of NIS 437 million, offset by net
proceeds from the issuance of bonds in the amount of NIS 549 million.
Net cash used in financing activities in 2018 included mainly the repayment of bonds and interest in the amount
of NIS 310 million, the payment of a dividend in the amount of NIS 160 million and payments from the exercise
of an option to acquire partnership rights in the amount of NIS 146 million, offset by net proceeds from the
issuance of bonds in the amount of NIS 563 million.
1.3.3

Balances of liquid assets and financial ratios

As at the end of 2020, the net liquid assets (cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and short-term
deposits less credit from banks) amounted to NIS 880 million, compared with NIS 262 at the end of 2019.
As at the end of 2020, the liabilities to the holders of bonds and to banks, including interest payable (hereinafter –
“the financial debt”) amounted to NIS 2,949 million, compared with NIS 2,981 million at the end of 2019 (for
additional information, see Note 17 to the financial statements).
The ratio of the Company’s financial debt to its total assets was approximately 22.6% at the end of 2020, compared
with 24.9% at the end of 2019.
As at the end of 2020 the Company's total assets are NIS 1,075 million higher than at the end of 2019.
As at the end of 2020 the trade payable balances amounted to NIS 2,333 million, compared with NIS 2,055 million
as at the end of 2019 (ranging between NIS 2.1 billion and NIS 2.6 billion in 2020).
As at the end of 2020 the net financial debt (the financial debt net of cash and cash equivalents, marketable
securities and short-term deposits) amounted to NIS 2,069 million, compared with NIS 2,626 million as at the end
of 2019.
As at the end of 2020, the Company’s total equity was NIS 2,235 million, compared with NIS 1,914 million as at
the end of 2019.
The ratio of the Company’s equity to its total assets is 17.2% in 2020, compared with 16% at the end of 2019.
1.3.4

Board of Directors’ discussion of the Company’s liquidity in view of the working capital deficit as
at December 31, 2020

As at December 31, 2020, the Company has a working capital deficit (consolidated) of NIS 646 million, compared
with a working capital deficit of NIS 898 million as at December 31, 2019, and it has a working capital deficit
(on a stand-alone basis) of NIS 612 million as at December 31, 2020, compared with a working capital deficit (on
a stand-alone basis) of NIS 1,068 million as at December 31, 2019. Most of the decrease in the working capital
deficit as at December 31, 2020 (consolidated and stand-alone) compared with December 31, 2019, is mainly due
to the effect of the increase in the Group's activity on the operating working capital.
The Company ended the year with a positive cash flow from operating activities (see Paragraph 1.3.1 above).
As at the date of this report, the Company has agreements with four banking institutions (with each one separately)
to provide to the Company a guaranteed credit facility for periods ending between March and May 2021, of up to
an amount of NIS 200 million from each banking institution (and in total from all the banking institutions –
NIS 800 million), that may be utilized by short-term credit withdrawals. As at December 31, 2020 and the date of
this report these credit facilities are not utilized.
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As at the date of this report, the Company is in the process of negotiating renewal of the credit facilities with the
banking institutions or with part of them for two additional years, with the overall amount of the bank credit (in
aggregate) being up to NIS 400 million. As at the date of this report binding agreements extending the credit
facilities have not yet been signed with the banking institutions. It is further noted that in April 2020 the Company
completed a private placement by way of expansion of the Company's Series G bonds for net proceeds of NIS
312 million.
In view of all the aforesaid, and taking into account the Company’s access to additional sources of credit and
financing, and in view of the Group’s balances of cash and cash equivalents and the Group’s cash flow forecast
for the two year period beginning December 31, 2020, the Board of Directors decided that notwithstanding the
working capital deficit as at December 31, 2020 the Company does not have a liquidity problem.
The assessment of the Company’s access to sources of credit (including issuing additional bonds, insofar as
needed) and the assessment of the Company’s accessibility to possible additional sources of financing, took note
of the yield to maturity at which the Company’s bonds are traded, the Company’s rating, the Company’s past
experience in raising capital, raising debt and refinancing, the Company's aforesaid credit facilities, the
Company’s ability to realize real estate and the fact that the Company and its subsidiaries own significant
unencumbered real estate properties and debt instruments measured at amortized cost. It is noted that as at the
date of this report, there is only a small number of liens of an insignificant amount on the assets of the Company
and its subsidiaries.
It is emphasized that the information on the Company’s accessibility to sources of financing is forwardlooking information, within its meaning in the Securities Law – 1968, which is mainly based on the
Company’s forecasts. This assessment may not be realized or may be realized in a different manner than
was assessed, including materially different, as a result of market behavior and realization of the risk
factors mentioned in Paragraph 18 of Part A to the periodic report.

2.

Market Risk Exposure and Management

2.1

Company officer responsible for market risk management

The Company’s CFO, Ms. Talya Huber, is responsible for the management of market risks in the Company, who
is also assisted by outside consultants. See Regulation 26A of Part D of the periodic report (additional information
on the corporation) for details regarding the education, skills and professional experience of Ms. Talya Huber.

2.2

Supervision over market risk management policy and its implementation

The Company closely follows developments in interest rates, in the Consumer Price Index and in the yield to
maturity of bonds. The Investments Committee of the Board is in charge of dealing with financial exposures;
management of surplus cash; development of hedge strategies, monitoring the performance of and providing
immediate response to exceptional developments in the various markets.
Other relevant Company officials also participate in the meetings of the Committee. The Committee is assisted
by capital market consultants and convenes as necessary. Additionally meetings of the internal investments
committee are convened, with the participation of the CFO, the Finance Director, the Chief Economist, other
relevant persons and consultants, as noted.
For further details, see Note 23 to the financial statements regarding management of financial risks.
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2.3

Description of market risks

Market risks comprise the changes in the value of financial instruments caused by fluctuations in interest rates,
the Consumer Price Index, foreign currency exchange rates and prices of securities.
In 2020 most of the Company’s exposure was due to changes in the CPI. In order to reduce the exposure the
Company entered into interest rate swap transactions, see Section 2.3.1. The Company also has an insignificant
exposure to changes in the exchange rates of the dollar and euro. See Section 2.3.2 hereunder. See Section 2.6
hereunder regarding sensitivity tests for sensitive instruments, according to changes in market factors as at
December 31, 2020.
Bonds
Presented hereunder is a breakdown of repayments of bonds by principal and interest based on repayment years
(in NIS millions):
Year
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
Total
*

Principal*
235
269
269
269
286
337
354
389
287
171
2,866

Interest*
120
110
98
86
74
62
47
32
16
5
650

Total
355
379
367
355
360
399
401
421
303
176
3,516

Repayment of bonds (principal + interest) is not discounted – part is linked to the Consumer Price Index and
part is unlinked.

Investments in securities
As at the date of this report, the securities portfolio of the Company includes held-to-maturity corporate bonds the
majority of which are rated at least -AA.
The Company’s investment policy, as was approved by the Company’s Investments Committee in January 2018,
is as follows: [a] money intended for the repayment of bonds, investments and current payments within a period
of 6 months will be invested in bank deposits according to cash flow needs; [b] money intended for such needs
after more than 6 months will be invested according to a revised investment policy that mainly provides as follows:
up to 15% of the Company’s investment portfolio (but no more than NIS 30 million) may be invested in shares
tracks, such as exchange traded notes/funds that track share indices (the TA 35 index, the TA 90 index and the
TA 125 index) (it is noted that the policy allows an investment of up to 20% of the shares tracks in the investment
portfolio in ETF’s in the US and Europe); at least 55% of the investments portfolio will be invested in government
bonds, bank deposits and short-term bills, with the balance (up to 30% of the portfolio) being invested in corporate
bonds rated at least “A”.
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Investments in investment property
As at December 31, 2020, the Group has investment property in the amount of NIS 792 million. The value of the
investment property is calculated based on a pre-tax discount rate of between 7% and 8.75% (mainly between 7%
and 8%).
This rate takes into account the risk based on the different periods of the lease agreements and the quality of the
tenants. The Group leases out investment property to a large number of lessees, regarding most of which there
were no material changes in the lease agreements.
In the reporting period the change in the fair value of investment property amounted to NIS 71 million, which is
mainly due to classifying assets from property, plant and equipment, the realization of building rights, real estate
improvements, the signing of new agreements, an improvement in revenues and a cutback in the operating costs
of the properties. Of the aforesaid change in the fair value of investment property, an amount of NIS 13 million
was recognized in the statement of income under increase in fair value of investment property, net.
In addition, the Group has freehold or leasehold rights in 65 branches that are attributed to the real estate segment
and leased to the Company for its retail activities. These properties are classified in the consolidated financial
statements as property, plant and equipment and/or as a right-of-use asset (in the total amount of NIS 972 million)
and therefore are not presented at fair value, which as at December 31, 2020 is estimated at NIS 1,779 million11.
The Group will continue to monitor developments on the financial markets and their effects on the Israeli
economy, and it is possible that the developments will lead to a change in the value of the Company’s securities
portfolio and the value of its investment property.
2.3.1

Consumer Price Index risks

The Company is exposed to changes in the Consumer Price Index (“the CPI”) mainly in respect of CPI-linked
bonds issued by the Company that amount to NIS 1.1 billion as at December 31, 2020 (compared with NIS 1.2
billion as at December 31, 2019), and in respect of lease liabilities that amount to NIS 3.9 billion as at December
31, 2020 (compared with NIS 3.6 billion as at December 31, 2019). As a result of the aforesaid, the Company is
exposed to CPI-linked payments in the annual amount of NIS 457 million in respect of lease liabilities and of
NIS 175 million in respect of CPI-linked bonds.
As at December 31, 2020, the Company has swap transactions for exchanging CPI-linked NIS cash flows with
fixed NIS cash flows in respect of the expansion of the Series F bonds of the Company. The hedging transaction
amounts to NIS 533 million. The transactions are accounted for as accounting hedges. In 2020, the Company
incurred financing expenses in relation to those contracts in the amount of NIS 14 million, compared with NIS 8
million in the previous year.
2.3.2

Foreign currency risks

The Company’s policy is to hedge the currency exchange rates in respect of import of assets and goods from
outside of Israel.
As at December 31, 2020, the Company has forward contracts on the rate of the dollar in the amount of US$18
million for settlement until December 2021, forward contracts on the exchange rate of the euro in the amount of
€48 million for settlement until July 2022 and cylinder transactions on the exchange rate of the euro in the amount
of €5 million for settlement until May 2021.

11

The properties of the real estate segment do not include the Company's logistics centers at Shoham and Rishon Le-Zion
(including the adjacent branch).
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In 2020, the Company incurred financing expenses in the amount of NIS 1 million in respect of those contracts,
compared with financing expenses of NIS 18 million in the previous year.
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risks is immaterial.
2.3.3

Interest risks

The Company is exposed to changes in interest rates on its bank deposits.
2.3.4

Israeli capital market risks

The Company is exposed to changes in prices of securities in Israel since part of the Company’s monetary balances
is invested in securities. As at the date of the statement of financial position, the securities portfolio of the
Company includes held-to-maturity corporate bonds, the majority of which are rated at least -AA. In accordance
with the Company's investment strategy, the portfolio's exposure to changes in prices of securities in Israel is
immaterial.

2.4

Company policy regarding market risk management

The Company invests its surplus liquidity with a view of obtaining a fair return while maintaining an appropriate
return/risk balance. See Section 2.3 above regarding the Company’s investment policy. In 2020, the Company
made use of derivative financial instruments with a view of matching, to the extent possible, the linkage bases of
its financial assets and liabilities (hedge transactions). The Company examines on a regular basis the need to
acquire hedges in order to deal with its economic exposures.

2.5

Linkage bases report

See Note 23.B(3) to the financial statements for details on the Company’s linkage bases report as at December
31, 2020.
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2.6

Sensitivity tests

Sensitivity tests for sensitive instruments, according to changes in market factors as at December 31, 2020
in NIS millions:
Interest rate sensitivity
Sensitive instruments

Gain (loss) from changes

Market
interest
rate at
reporting
date

10%
increase
in
interest

Total bonds

5%
increase
in
interest

Fair
value
as at
31.12.20

2%
increase
in
interest

Gain (loss) from changes

2%
decrease
in
interest

5%
decrease
in
interest

10%
decrease
in
interest

12.9

6.4

302.2

3,380

)349.1(

)6.5(

)13.0(

Issuance of Series D

)0.01%(

-

-

26.2

306

)30.2(

-

-

Issuance of Series E

1.06%

5.2

2.6

91.2

1,113

)104.6(

)2.6(

)5.2(

Issuance of Series F

)0.17%(

)0.7(

)0.3(

75.5

980

)85.8(

0.3

0.7

Issuance of Series G

1.43%

8.4

4.2

109

981

)128(

)4.2(

)8.5(

Deposits

0.27%

-

-

)0.7(

400

0.7

-

-

Sensitive instruments

Bonds
Swap – interest rate
exchange
Financial assets
measured at
amortized cost

CPI sensitivity
Fair value as at
31.12.20

Gain (loss) from changes

Gain (loss) from changes

10% increase
in CPI

5% increase
CPI

)128.6(

)64.3(

1,286

64.3

128.6

65

32.5

6

(32.5)

(65)

3.9

1.9

39

)1.9(

)3.9(

21

5% decrease
in CPI

10% decrease
inCPI
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3.

Corporate Governance

3.1

Composition of the Board of Directors, its activities and committees
On July 26, 2020 Discount Investment Corporation Ltd. completed the sale of all its holdings in the
Company (about 26%), and as from that date all the Company's share capital is held by the public and
institutional bodies. Subsequently, on July 30, 2020 the Company's Board of Directors appointed a special
committee comprising the Company's four external directors (Messrs. Eldad Avraham who served as the
committee's chairman, Mickey Bar Haim, Gideon Schurr and Ms. Michal Kamir) for the purpose of
examining the board structure of the Company without a controlling block ("the board composition
committee" or "the committee"). In the framework of its work the committee recommended to the Board
of Directors with respect to the proper size of the board, criteria for assuring the board's independence
(including that a majority of the directors be external/independent, and at least four of them external), as
well as criteria and the proper skills of the candidates to serve on the Company's board and as its
Chairman.
On October 19, 2020 the Company's Board of Directors decided to adopt the committee's
recommendations, and approved the following board appointments effective immediately: (a) Mr. Yaki
Vadmani was appointed as a director in the Company, and began serving also as the Company's Chairman
of the Board on November 25, 2020. At the same time that Mr. Vadmani began serving as the Chairman
of the Board, Mr. Mauricio Wior concluded his service as the Company's Chairman of the Board and
director; and (b) Mr. Yoav chelouche was appointed as a director in the Company.
On January 20, 2021 the general meeting of shareholders approved the reappointments of all the
Company's directors, who are not external directors, for an additional term of service until the end of the
next annual meeting.
As at the date of this report, the Company's Board of Directors comprises eight directors which is the
proper number of directors that was recommended by the committee. A majority (5) of the directors are
external/independent (four external directors - Messrs. Michael Bar Haim, Gideon Schurr, Eldad
Avraham and Ms. Michal Kamir, and one independent director – Ms. Ayelet Ben Ezer).
Enforcement plan and procedures in the area of securities
The Company has an internal enforcement plan in the area of securities laws, the purpose of which is to
verify and enforce compliance by the Company, its officers and employees with the requirements of law
in the area of securities, including on the basis of procedures that were adopted by the Company, and/or
that it will adopt, from time to time, in this area. The plan provides arrangements, among other things,
related to the manner of assimilating procedures in the Company, existence of supervision and reporting
mechanisms, and ways of handling and reaching conclusions in connection with breakdowns (if any are
found). The plan was formulated on the basis of the Company’s unique characteristics and working
environment, based on a compliance survey in the area of securities and criteria for an efficient
enforcement plan that were published by the Securities Authority. The Company’s Board of Directors
appointed Mr. Aran Meiri, the Company’s General Counsel, as the person responsible for enforcement in
the Company. The job of the person responsible for enforcement is to ascertain (by himself or through
other position holders in the Company) that the enforcement plan is efficiently and effectively executed,
including by means of monitoring, and holding training sessions and assimilations, as well as by updating
Company management regarding operation of the plan and special events.
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As part of the enforcement plan, procedures were adopted that among other things relate to the manner
of issuing immediate reports, to the identification, approval and reporting of transactions that raise
concerns regarding a personal interest of officers or controlling shareholders, benchmarks for classifying
transactions and activities as non-extraordinary transactions, and classifying transactions as insignificant
transactions, a competitive process procedure, a procedure regarding prohibition of use and transfer of
inside information, capital market activity and connection with the Securities Authority and others. The
procedures provide rules of action and conduct along with work processes the goal of which is to provide
a response to and controls over central processes with respect to matters arranged in the framework
thereof.
As at the date of this report, the Company is in the process of carrying out a compliance survey in the area
of securities that includes, inter alia, an in-depth reexamination of the all the Company's existing internal
enforcement plan procedures in the area of securities in view of, among other things, new court rulings
and regulation since the last compliance survey in 2017, and in view of the change in the Company's
structure following which the Company became a company without a controlling interest.
For information on the number of meetings that were held by the Board of Directors and its committees,
see the attached corporate governance questionnaire in Part E of the periodic report.

3.2

Directors having accounting and financial expertise and independent directors

After evaluating the education, experience, qualifications and knowledge of the members of the Board of Directors
relating to business/accounting matters and to financial statements, the members of the Board considered by the
Board as having accounting and financial expertise are: Yaki Vadmani , Michael Bar Haim, Gideon Schurr, Eldad
Avraham, Ran Gottfried and Yoav chelouche (for details with respect to the experience and education of the said
directors, see Regulation 26 in Part D (Additional Details on the Corporation) of the Company’s periodic report).
For details regarding the minimum number of directors with accounting and financial expertise that is appropriate
for the Company, see the corporate governance questionnaire that is attached in Part E of the periodic report.

3.3

Process of approval of the financial statements

For details regarding the process of approval of the Company’s financial statements, see the corporate governance
questionnaire that is attached in Part E of the periodic report.
The Company's articles do not provide any instruction regarding the number of independent directors on the
Company's Board of Directors. For details regarding the independent directors serving on the Company's Board
of Directors, see Regulation 26 of Part D of the periodic report and the corporate governance questionnaire that
is attached to Part E of the periodic report.

3.4

Disclosure regarding the internal auditor of the Company

Particulars of the internal auditor
1.
2.
3.
4.

The Company’s internal auditor - Levi Steinbaum.
First date of service: October 1, 1997.
The internal auditor complies with the conditions provided in Section 3(a) of the Internal Audit Law –
1992 (hereinafter – “the Internal Audit Law”).
The internal auditor complies with the provisions of Section 146(b) of the Companies Law and the
provisions of Section 8 of the Internal Audit Law.
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5.

6.

7.

The internal auditor is not an interested party of the Company and is not related to an interested party or
an officer of the Company, and does not serve as the Company’s external auditor or on its behalf. The
internal auditor does not fill any other position in the Company besides internal auditor. In addition the
internal auditor does not hold any securities of the Company.
To the best of the Company’s knowledge, other than the employment of the internal auditor and his staff
as described hereunder, the internal auditor and his staff do not have material business connections or any
other material connections with the Company or a related party of the Company.
The internal auditor is an employee of the Company and serves as a senior officer in accordance with the
law.

Appointment of the internal auditor
The internal auditor was appointed to his position at the Board of Directors’ meeting on August 10, 1997 according
to the provisions of the Internal Audit Law. The internal auditor is a CPA, holds a B.A. in economics, statistics
and accounting and is an International Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) since 1994. It was determined that the
internal auditor would act according to the provisions of the Law to perform an internal audit in Shufersal, taking
note of, inter alia, its size, its volume of activity and the complexity of its activity.
Identity of the organizational function in charge of the internal auditor
The internal auditor reports to the Company’s Chairman of the Board of Directors.
The work plan and the considerations it is based on
The annual work plan is submitted by the Internal Auditor and is approved by the Company’s Audit Committee.
The work plan for 2020 has been derived from the multi-year work plan for 2020-2024 (inclusive). In 2017 a
risks’ survey was presented and the 21 issues in the survey were reflected in the multi-year work plan. Issues that
arose in the risk surveys over the years serve as basis for preparing the multi-year work plan. The annual work
plan for 2020 was updated according to the matters that arose in the risk assessment survey that the Company’s
internal auditor performs every year with senior executives of the Company including the Chairman of the Board,
CEO, VPs and additional managers and with the participation of the Company’s independent auditors. In the
Audit Committee’s meeting on December 23, 2019 the work plan and the necessary audit resources were
presented by the Internal Auditor to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee approved the work plan in
accordance with Section 7 of the Internal Audit Law.
The Internal Auditor has discretion to deviate from the determined work plan subject to approval of the Audit
Committee. Compliance with the work plan is presented once a year to the Audit Committee.
The work plan includes: coverage of all important issues in all units of the Company, putting special emphasis on
subjects that had been examined in the past and found to be highly exposed to risk, providing a response to items
brought up in risks’ surveys that were performed in the Company and performance of an audit in fixed areas at
reasonable intervals (once a year for important and material issues and once every three to four years for other
matters).
During the reporting period, the Internal Auditor examined the manner of approval of certain material transactions
(as defined in Section 5(f) to the fourth addendum to the reporting regulations) and examined non-extraordinary
transactions with interested parties. The Internal Auditor was invited and was present at all the meetings of the
Board of Directors and the Audit Committee, including meetings at which material transactions were discussed.
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Audit of material investee companies of the Company
The internal audit plan includes audits of wholly owned investees of the companies controlled by the Company.
Manner and scope of employment of the Internal Auditor and his staff and their remuneration
In 2020, the Company employed a staff of five full time employees (including the Internal Auditor) engaged in
internal audit (hereinafter – "the internal audit department") and was also assisted by external parties for purposes
of implementation of the work plan. In 2020, the Internal Audit department engaged external consultants. The
external consultants worked in areas of information systems, regulatory matters, human resources, technical
department and top-down perspective.
Number of hours invested in the
internal audit of the Company in
2020
7,350

Number of hours invested in the
internal audit of investee
companies in 2020
1,200

Number of hours invested by
external consultants in 2020
1,100

The work plan derives from a multi-year plan, and in the opinion of the Company’s Board of Directors the number
of hours provides a response to this plan and includes reference to the risks’ surveys performed in the Company.
Professional standards according to which the Internal Auditor performs the audit
According to information provided to management of the Company by the Internal Auditor, the internal audit is
performed according to generally accepted professional internal auditing standards published by the international
Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) and according to the Internal Audit Law. The Board of Directors relied upon
the reports of the Internal Auditor with respect to his compliance with the requirements of the said professional
standards, according to which he performs the audit. In 2019 an internal audit quality assessment was performed
by an external company which concluded that the internal audit in Shufersal generally complies with the
guidelines of the IIA.
Access to information
Documents and information in the possession of the Company have been provided to the Internal Auditor for
performance of his duty, as stated in Section 9 of the Internal Audit Law. Furthermore, free, constant and direct
access to the information systems of the Company and of its principal investees, including the financial data, is
provided to the Internal Auditor for performance of his work. The information systems of Shufersal serve also its
investee companies, and the Internal Auditor is authorized to inspect all data managed by the information systems
including that of the principal investees.
Report of the Internal Auditor
Reports on the findings of the Internal Auditor are submitted regularly in writing to the Chairman of the Board,
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, to the members of the Audit Committee, to the CEO and to the
Company’s independent auditors. In 2020, the Audit Committee met to discuss the internal audit reports submitted
for this year (about 31 reports) on the following dates: February 18, March 11, June 9, July 9, August 31,
September 24, November 5 and December 3 and 30.
Board of Directors' assessment of the Internal Auditor's activities
According to the Board of Director's assessment, the scope, nature and continuity of the Internal Auditor’s
activities and work plan are reasonable in the circumstances and should achieve the Company’s internal audit
goals.
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Remuneration of the Internal Auditor
The remuneration costs of the Internal Auditor for 2020 was NIS 1,710 thousand.
The total remuneration paid in 2020 to the staff of the internal audit department (excluding the Internal Auditor
himself) amounted to NIS 981 thousand.
The remuneration to the Internal Auditor and to the staff of the internal audit department is not dependent on the
results of the audit work. Accordingly, the Board of Directors believes that the aforesaid remuneration has no
effect upon the professional judgment of the Internal Auditor and on the results of the audit.

3.5

Disclosure regarding the fees of the independent auditors

Kesselman & Kesselman CPAs serve as the auditors of the Company and of material entities of the Company and
the subsidiaries.
Presented hereunder is the overall fee of the Company and the subsidiaries’ auditors in 2019 and 2020:
2020
NIS thousands

Auditing and tax services to the Company*
Other services to the Company
Total

2019
Hours

NIS thousands

Hours

1,397

10,262

1,578

11,266

-

-

31

104

1,397

10,262

1,609

11,370

* The tax services received by the Company from the independent auditors are immaterial compared with the
audit services.
In negotiations held between the auditors and the highest ranking financial officer a fixed amount was set for the
fee payable to the auditors for auditing services in 2020 (a fixed amount). The fee was determined with reference
to the number of audit hours expected for the current year, and was approved by the Company’s Board of Directors
after receiving the recommendations of the Audit Committee. Regarding non-audit work, the fee was determined
separately according to the amount of work required.

3.6

Contribution to the community

A.

Donation of funds or products in 2020

Shufersal views itself as committed to active and ongoing involvement in contribution to the community.
Within the framework of contributing to the community, Shufersal gives preference to donations of aid to
underprivileged populations in Israel. Accordingly, at every holiday Shufersal distributes gift cards for purchasing
food to thousands of families and children throughout Israel.
The total amount of monetary contributions and gift cards was NIS 5 million this year.
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B.

Contribution activities in 2020

As part of Shufersal’s contribution to the community, the Company, among other things, conducts fundraising
campaigns involving customers at the checkout counters of stores all over the country. Each fundraising campaign
relates to a specific association and the funds raised are transferred to that association for its current operations in
health, education, welfare and other fields.
As part of the overall contribution activities, cash or cash equivalent (foodstuffs) in the amount of about NIS 5
million was donated to the various societies and organizations.

4.

Directives Regarding Disclosures Pertaining to the Financial Reporting of the
Company

4.1

Disclosure regarding events subsequent to the date of the statement of financial position
•

For details regarding events subsequent to the date of the Company’s statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2020, see Note 34 to the financial statements.
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5.

Specific disclosure for holders of bonds

Data as at December 31, 2020
Series

Date of
issuance

Par value
on date of
issuance
(NIS
millions)

Proceeds on
date of
issuance net
of issuance
expenses
(NIS
millions)

Carrying
amount (NIS
millions)*

Balance of
par value
(NIS
millions)

Balance of
par value,
including
linkage (NIS
millions)

Accumulated
interest
(NIS millions)

Stock
market/fair
value (NIS
millions)

Type of
interest

Effective
interest
rate on
date of
issuance

Stated
interest

Payment date of
principal

First
date

Last
date

Interest
payment dates

Type of
linkage

Series D

Oct. 2013

472

468

266

266

266

2

306

Fixed

3.12%

2.99%

Oct. 8,
2014

Oct. 8,
2029

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2014 and
2029

CPI

Series E

Oct. 2013

448

444

253

252

252

3

302

Fixed

5.23%

5.09%

Oct. 8,
2014

Oct. 8,
2029

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2014 and
2029

Unlinked

Nov.2016

463

**473

332

320

320

4

383

Fixed

4.5%

5.09%

Oct. 8,
2017

Oct. 8,
2029

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2017 and
2029

Unlinked

Jan. 2018

476

563

408

357

357

4

428

Fixed

2.12%

5.09%

Oct. 8,
2018

Oct. 8,
2029

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2018 and
2029

Unlinked
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Series

Series F

Series G

*
**

Date of
issuance

Par value
on date of
issuance
(NIS
millions)

Proceeds on
date of
issuance net
of issuance
expenses
(NIS
millions)

Carrying
amount (NIS
millions)*

Balance of
par value
(NIS
millions)

Balance of
par value,
including
linkage (NIS
millions)

Accumulated
interest
(NIS millions)

Stock
market/fair
value (NIS
millions)

Type of
interest

Effective
interest
rate on
date of
issuance

Stated
interest

Payment date of
principal

First
date

Last
date

Interest
payment dates

Type of
linkage

Sep. 2015

317

313

283

282

282

3

338

Fixed

4.44%

4.3%

Oct. 8,
2020

Oct. 8,
2028

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2016 and
2028

CPI

Jul.2016

601

**643

535

534

534

5

642

Fixed

4.5 %

4.3%

Oct. 8,
2020

Oct. 8,
2028

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2016 and
2028

CPI

Jan. 2019

555

549

558

555

555

7

637

Fixed

3.69%

3.52%

Feb. 20,
2022

Aug.
20,
2030

Semi-annual
interest on
Aug. 20 and
Feb. 20 of
each year
between
2019-2030

Unlinked

Apr. 2020

300

312

314

300

300

4

344

Fixed

2.97%

3.52%

Feb. 20,
2022

Aug.
20,
2030

Semi-annual
interest on
Aug. 20 and
Feb. 20 of
each year
between
2019-2030

Unlinked

3,632

3,765

2,949

2,866

2,866

32

3,380

Carrying amount – The carrying amount of the principal plus interest discounted according to the effective interest rate on the date of issuance and linked to the CPI at the
reporting date (Series E and G bonds are not linked to the CPI).
No cash consideration was received in respect of those issues, which were performed as part of an exchange offer for Series B bonds of the Company as discussed in Notes 17 to
the Company’s consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2017. The considerations above refer to the par value of Series B bonds exchanged in the purchase offer
(including accrued interest).
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Notes:
1.
On February 20 and August 20, 2020 the Company paid interest on the Series G bonds in the total amount
of NIS 10 million and NIS 15 million, respectively.
2.

On April 5, 2020 the Company completed a private placement of Series G bonds by way of expansion of
the series for a gross consideration of NIS 313 million (net proceeds of NIS 312 million).

3.

On October 8, 2020, the Company paid principal and interest on the Series D bonds in the total amount
of NIS 38 million, on the Series E bonds in the total amount of NIS 156 million and on the Series F bonds
in the total amount of NIS 141 million.

4.

Payments on account of bond principal in Series D, E and F are annual payments. The principal payments
n account of the Series G bonds are 18 semi-annual unequal payments to be paid on February 20 and
August 20 of each of the years 2022 through 2030 (inclusive) (six are payments of 2% of the principal,
two payments are 3% of the principal, two payments are 6% of the principal, two payments are 7% of the
principal, four are 9% of the principal and two are 10% of principal).

5.

The trustee of the Series D bonds and Series E bonds is Reznik Paz Nevo Trustees Ltd., from 14 Yad
Haroutzim St., Tel-Aviv (tel. 03-6389200, fax. 03-6389222). The contact person at the trustee for the
Series D bonds and Series E bonds is Mr. Yossi Reznik, CPA, e-mail: Trust@rpn.co.il
The trustee of the Series F bonds is Strauss Lazar Trust Company (1992) Ltd., from 94 Yigal Alon St.,
Alon Tower 2, Tel Aviv (tel. 03-6237777, fax. 03-5613824). The contact person at the trustee for the
Series F bonds is Mr. Ori Lazer, CPA and Adv., e-mail: ori@slcpa.co.il
The trustee of the Series G bonds is Hermetic Trust (1975) Ltd., 30 Sheshet Hayamim Road, Bnei Braq
(tel: 03-5544553, fax. 03-5271736). The contact person at the trustee for the Series G bonds is Ms. Merav
Ofer-Oren and/or Mr. Dan Avnon, e-mail: hermetic@hermetic.co.il.

6.

In 2020 and up to the date of this report, the Company is in compliance with all the conditions and
liabilities under the trust deeds of the outstanding bonds and there is no cause for demanding immediate
repayment of the Company’s outstanding bonds.

7.

The Company’s outstanding Series D, E, F and G bonds are material. All the series of bonds are listed for
trade on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange.

8.

Among the causes for immediate repayment of the Series D, E, F and G bonds is also the event of another
debt of the Company to a bank and/or other financial institution being called for immediate repayment,
providing that the total amount called for immediate repayment is higher than NIS 300 million, or another
outstanding series of the Company’s bonds being called for immediate repayment (not initiated by the
Company) (in Series D and E, the cause of cross-default of other bonds series was conditioned on the
amount of the other series called for immediate repayment being at least NIS 40 million); all according
to the terms provided in the trust deeds under which the relevant bond series were issued.

9.

In accordance with the terms of the trust deeds of the Company’s Series D, E, F and G bonds, the Company
is permitted to early redeem (fully or partially) the Series D, E, F and G bonds. For additional details, see
Paragraph 9.2 of the trust deed of the Series D bonds and Paragraph 9.2 of the trust deed of the Series E
bonds (as detailed in the trust deed’s annex of the Company’s shelf prospectus dated May 30, 2012 and
as amended on September 30, 2013) and Paragraph 9.2 of the trust deed of the Series F bonds as detailed
in the trust deed’s annex of the Company’s shelf registration statement dated September 3, 2015 that was
issued in accordance with the Company’s shelf prospectus dated June 25, 2015, and Paragraph 9.2 of the
trust deed of the Series G bonds, as detailed in the trust deed’s annex of the Company’s shelf registration
statement dated January 16, 2019.

30

Board of Directors' Report on the State of the Company's Affairs for the Year Ended December 31, 2020
Shufersal Ltd.

10.

The Series D, E, F and G bonds include financial covenants. See Note 17 to the financial statements as
at December 31, 2020, which are a part of the periodic report, for further details regarding the terms of
the Company’s Series D, E, F and G bonds, including a commitment to comply with financial covenants,
a commitment to not create a current pledge, and restrictions relating to dividend distribution.
Presented hereunder are the results of calculating the financial covenants committed to by the Company
in accordance with the terms of the Series D, E, F and G bonds (and in accordance with the terms of the
Company’s credit facilities) as at December 31, 2020:

Financial covenant
Ratio of net (financial) debt to total balance sheet shall
not exceed 60%
The Company’s total equity (including noncontrolling interests) shall not fall below NIS 550
million (with respect to Series D, E and F bonds) and
NIS 800 million (with respect to Series G bonds)

Calculation results as at
December 31, 2020
15.9%
NIS 2,235 million

Presented hereunder are the results of calculating the dividend distribution restrictions that apply to the
Company in accordance with the terms of the Series D, E, F and G bonds (and according to the terms of
the Company’s credit facilities) as at December 31, 2020 (and at that date taking into account a dividend
in the amount of NIS 140 million that was declared by the Company along with the approval of the
financial statements):
Restriction

The Company’s total equity (including
non-controlling interests) shall not fall
below NIS 750 million (with respect to
Series D, E and F bonds) and NIS 1,000
million (with respect to Series G bonds)
Ratio of the Company’s net (financial)
debt to EBITDA shall not exceed 7 (with
respect to Series D, E and F bonds) and
5 (with respect to Series G bonds)
11.

Calculation results as
at December 31, 2020

NIS 2,235 million

Calculation results as at
December 31, 2020 taking
into account a dividend that
was declared along with the
approval of the financial
statements (i.e. net of the
amount of the declared but
undistributed dividend)
NIS 2,095 million

1.4

1.5

Details regarding the credit rating of the Company
As at the date of this report the Company's rating is (AA-) Stable and its bonds are rated (AA), in
accordance with the Company's rating affirmation by Ma'alot from April 2020 and September 2020. For
details regarding the rating affirmation of the Company and its bonds, see the Company's immediate
report of April 5, 2020 (reference no. 2020-01-031252) and of September 24, 2020 (reference no. 202001-095815).
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12.

Information on the rating of outstanding bonds

Series

Series D – Bonds listed
for trade

Name of rating
company

Ma’alot

Current rating and
current outlook

ilAA

Rating on
date of
issuance

ilA+
Negative

Additional ratings between the original date of issuance and the date of this report

Date

Rating

October 3, 2013 (initial rating)

ilA+ Negative

April 23, 2014 (affirmation of rating)

ilA+ Stable

May 6, 2015 (lowering of rating and affirmation of rating outlook)

ilA Stable

May 26, 2016 (affirmation of rating and raising of rating outlook)

ilA Positive

September 20, 2016 (raising of rating and raising of rating outlook)

ilA+ Stable

May 28, 2017 (affirmation of rating and raising of rating outlook)

ilA+ Positive

January 15, 2018 (raising of rating and update of rating outlook)

ilAA- Stable

March 19, 2018 (raising of rating)
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October 6, 2019 (affirmation of rating)

ilAA
ilAA

April 5, 2020 (affirmation of rating)

ilAA

September 24, 2020 (affirmation of rating)

ilAA
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Series

Series E – Bonds listed
for trade

Name of rating
company

Ma’alot

Current rating and
current outlook

ilAA

Rating on
date of
issuance

ilA+
Negative

Additional ratings between the original date of issuance and the date of this report

Date

Rating

October 3, 2013 (initial rating)

ilA+ Negative

April 23, 2014 (affirmation of rating)

ilA+ Stable

May 6, 2015 (lowering of rating and affirmation of rating outlook)

ilA Stable

May 26, 2016 (affirmation of rating and raising of rating outlook)
September 20, 2016 (raising of rating and affirmation of rating
outlook)
November 15, 2016 (initial rating for expansion of series)

ilA Positive

May 28, 2017 (affirmation of rating and raising of rating outlook)

ilA+ Positive

January 15, 2018 (raising of rating and update of rating outlook)

ilAA- Stable

January 21, 2018 (expansion of series)

ilAA- Stable

Ma’alot

ilAA

ilA Stable

ilAA

October 6, 2019 (affirmation of rating)
April 5, 2020 (affirmation of rating)

ilAA
ilAA

September 24, 2020 (affirmation of rating)

ilAA
ilA Stable

May 26, 2016 (affirmation of rating and raising of rating outlook)

ilA Positive

July 11, 2016 (initial rating for expansion of the series)
September 20, 2016 (raising of rating and affirmation of rating
outlook)
May 28, 2017 (affirmation of rating and raising of rating outlook)

ilA

January 15, 2018 (raising of rating and update of rating outlook)

ilAA- Stable

March 19, 2018 (raising of rating)
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ilA+ Stable

March 19, 2018 (raising of rating)

September 2, 2015 (initial rating)

Series F – Bonds listed
for trade

ilA+ Stable

ilA+ Stable
ilA+ Positive

October 6, 2019 (affirmation of rating)

ilAA
ilAA

April 5, 2020 (affirmation of rating)

ilAA

September 24, 2020 (affirmation of rating)

ilAA
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Series

Name of rating
company

Current rating and
current outlook

Rating on
date of
issuance

Additional ratings between the original date of issuance and the date of this report

Date
January 16, 2019 (initial rating)

Series G – Bonds listed
for trade

Ma’alot

ilAA

ilA Stable

October 6, 2019 (affirmation of rating)
April 5, 2020 (expansion of series)
September 24, 2020 (affirmation of rating)
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Annual report of outstanding liabilities by maturity dates
For data regarding the outstanding liabilities of the Company, see the immediate report on outstanding liabilities
by maturity dates that was issued by the Company on the date of issuing the financial statements, which the
information included in it is presented in this report by way of reference.

The Company’s Board of Directors and Management wish to express their appreciation and thanks to the
managers and employees of the Company for their professional work and their cooperation and contribution to
the Company throughout the year.

Yaki Vadmani
Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Itzik Abercohen
CEO

March 3, 2021
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Annex A
Information regarding a material valuation in accordance with Regulation 8B(i) of the Reporting Regulations
The recoverable amount of the retail segment.
December 31, 2020.
NIS 2,614 million

Identification of valuation subject:
Date of valuation:
Carrying amount attributable to the activity of the
retail segment at the date of the valuation:
Value of valuation subject according to the
valuation:
Identification and nature of the valuer:
Name and education of the valuer:

An average of NIS 6,362 million (and in the range of
NIS 6,100-6,629 million).
Prof. Hadas Galender, Partner, Head of Valuations
and Business Models Department.

Prof. Galender has a BA in Accounting from the
Academic Faculty of the College of Management, an
MBA from Hebrew University, PhD from Ben Gurion
University. She is a Certified Public Accountant.
Experience in performing valuations for Prof. Hadas Galender heads projects of leading
accounting purposes in reporting entities and at an companies in Israel and the world, in various areas of
extent similar to or higher than that of the reported operations and industries such as: retail, technology,
finance, pharmaceuticals, energy, infrastructures, real
valuation:
estate and industry.
Throughout the years, she has accompanied and
advised companies with respect to valuations for
business purposes (valuations and fairness opinions)
and for accounting purposes (purchase price
allocation, intangible assets, employee options, etc.)
and has provided economic opinions as an expert
witness and as a court appointed expert.
From 1990 until present she serves as a senior lecturer
at the academic faculty of the College of Management.
Between 2010 and 2015 she served as the head of the
accounting department, and until present serves as a
member of the College of Management academic
studies staff council. She lectures in courses for
directors and in classes for senior officers in the
private, public and government sectors.
None.
Dependence on the requester of the valuation:
None.
Indemnification agreements with the valuer:
The fair value less costs to sell of the retail segment
The valuation model that was used by the valuer:
operation was measured according to the market
approach, the EV/EBITDA multiple method
The principal assumptions applied by the valuer in the valuation: The fair value of the retail segment
operation was estimated as the multiple of the representative EBITDA of this segment in the amount of NIS 725
million based on the Company’s assumption, and a representative EV/EBITDA multiple (average) of 9 that is
derived from the market value of similar public companies that operate in the retail industry.
From the fair value of this segment’s operation an amount equaling 2.5% was deducted in respect of costs to
sell that the Company would incur upon the sale of this segment.
It is noted that the carrying amount of the goodwill attributable to the retail segment, compared to total assets of
the entity is higher than 5% but lower than 10%, whereas the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit
compared to total assets of the entity is higher than 10%. Since there are no indications of impairment of the said
unit, only disclosure is provided and the valuation was not attached.
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Annex B
Information regarding a material valuation in accordance with Regulation 8B(i) of the Reporting Regulations
Actuarial valuation to determine the present value of
the Group's liabilities in respect of long-term
employee benefits and determine the fair value of plan
assets (hereinafter together – net liabilities for
employee benefits)
December 31, 2020
Date of valuation:
Value of valuation subject immediately prior to the NIS 248 million
date of the valuation (including depreciation and
amortization) if generally accepted accounting
principles did not require changing the value,
according to the valuation:
Value of valuation subject according to the NIS 271 million
valuation:
Identification and nature of the valuer:
Ogen Actuarial, Financial and Business Consulting
Name and education of the valuer:
Ltd. (hereinafter – "the valuer"). The calculation was
performed by Dr. Boaz Yam, an actuary and other
employees of the valuer's actuary department. Dr.
Boaz Yam has a BA in Economics and Accounting
and an MA in Business Administration – Finance from
the Bar Ilan University. He also has an M.A.S in
Actuarial Science and a Ph.D. in Risk Management
and Insurance from Georgia State University in the
USA. Dr. Boaz Yam is an expert with 12 years of
professional experience, including performance of
actuarial assessments in respect of employee benefits
similar to those of the Group.
None
Dependence on the requester of the valuation:
None
Indemnification agreements with the valuer:
The present value of the liabilities was calculated
The valuation model that was used by the valuer:
using the projected unit credit method and the assets
were calculated according to their fair value as
required in IAS 19.
The principal assumptions applied by the valuer in the valuation:
Identification of valuation subject:

The actuarial assumptions underlying the calculations are the best estimate (and not conservative).
An average real interest rate of 0.5%, forecasted inflation of 1.4%, salary increase rate of up to 3% in accordance
with the forecast of management of the Company, employee turnover rate of 2%-14.3%, mortality and disability
rates according to the mortality tables published by the Capital Market, Insurance and Savings Commissioner
at the Ministry of Finance in pension circular 2017-3-6, including table update P-1b, including improved
mortality rates updates in circular 10-1-2019, retirement age of men and women according to law.
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHUFERSAL LTD
With regard to audit of internal controls over financial reporting
pursuant to section 9B(c) of the Securities Regulations
(Periodic and Immediate Reports), 1970
We have audited internal controls over financial reporting at Shufersal LTD (hereinafter: "the
Company") as of December 31, 2020. These control components have been determined as explained in
the paragraph below. The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls over financial reporting, which is enclosed with the periodic report as of said date.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.
The Components of internal control over financial reporting which we audited were determined in
accordance with Israeli Auditing Standard 911 of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Israel
"Audit of Components of Internal Control over Financial Reporting" (hereafter: "Israel Auditing
Standard 911"). Those Components are: (1) Entity-level control, including controls over the process of
preparation and closing of financial reporting and general controls over information technology; (2)
controls over revenue recognition; (3) controls over purchasing; (4) controls over inventory; (5) controls
over the payroll (all the above together hereinafter - "the audited control components").
We have conducted our audit in accordance with Israel Audit Standard 911. This standard requires us
to plan and perform the audit to identify the audited control elements, and to achieve reasonable
assurance whether these control elements have been effectively maintained in all material aspects. Our
audit consisted of an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, identification of the
audited control elements, assessment of the risk of material weakness in the audited control elements,
as well as review and assessment of the effectiveness of design and operation of said control elements,
based on the assessed risk. Our audit, with regard to the aforementioned control elements, also
consisted of other procedures we deemed necessary under the circumstances. Our audit is only in
reference to the audited control elements, unlike internal control of all material processes related to
financial reporting, and therefore our opinion only refers to the audited control elements. Further, our
audit did not refer to mutual influence among audited control elements and non-audited ones, and
therefore our opinion does not take into account such potential influence. We believe that our audit
provides an appropriate basis for our opinion within the aforementioned context.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting in general and certain
elements thereof in particular, may not prevent or detect misstatement. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of specific controls or internal control over financial reporting overall to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, the Company effectively maintained, in all material aspects, the audited control
elements as of December 31, 2020.
We have also audited, in accordance with generally accepted audit standards in Israel, the Company's
consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and for each of the three years
ended on December 31, 2020, and our report dated March 3, 2021 included our unqualified opinion of
said financial statements.
Haifa, Israel
March 3, 2021

Kesselman & Kesselman
Certified Public Accountants (Isr.)
A member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International
Limited

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHUFERSAL LTD
We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Shufersal ltd ("the Company")
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the consolidated statements of Income, profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2020. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's board of directors and management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We did not audit the financial statements of an investee accounted for using the equity method, the total
investment in which amounted to NIS 60 million and NIS 64 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively, and the Company's share in its net income (loss) amounted to NIS (4) million, NIS 8 million and NIS
6 million for each of the three years ended on December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The financial
statements of that investee were audited by another independent auditor, whose report has been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to amounts included for that investee, is based on the reports of the other
independent auditor.
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Israel, including standards
prescribed by the Auditor's Regulations (Auditor's Mode of Performance), 1973. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by the board of directors and management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.
In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company and its consolidated companies as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of their operations, changes in equity and their cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020 in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and with the provisions of the Securities Regulations (Annual Financial Statements), 2010.
We have also audited, in accordance with Auditing Standard (Israel) 911 of the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in Israel "An Audit of Components of Internal Control over Financial Reporting" the Company's
components of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2020, and our report dated March 3,
2021 included an unqualified opinion on the effective maintenance of those components.

Haifa, Israel
March 3, 2021

Kesselman & Kesselman
Certified Public Accountants (lsr.)
A member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited
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Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Inventory
Other investments

Note

December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

4
6
7
8
9

480
400
1,494
137
939
12

55
300
1,373
160
910
9

3,462

2,807

60
29
89
87
3,186
792
1,335
133
3,852
9,563

64
30
116
96
3,101
721
1,306
113
3,596
9,143

13,025

11,950

Total current assets
Investment in associate
Loan to associate
Other receivables
Other investments
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Intangible assets
Deferred taxes
Right-of-use assets
Total non-current assets

5.A
5.B
7
9
10
11
12
28
29

Total assets

Yaki Vadmani
Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Itzik Abercohen
Chief Executive Officer

Talya Huber
CFO

Date of approval: March 3, 2021
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

Note

Liabilities
Credit from banks
Current maturities of bonds
Current maturities of lease liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables
Liability for acquisition of partnership interests
Provisions
Total current liabilities

December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

267
360
2,333
1,090
58
4,108

93
267
342
2,055
832
73
43
3,705

2,682
271
49
136
3,544
6,682

2,621
248
52
132
3,278
6,331

242
963
40
)85(
1,076
2,236
)1(
2,235

242
963
17
(85)
778
1,915
(1)
1,914

13,025

11,950

17
29
13
14
15
16

Bonds
Employee benefits, net
Other liabilities
Deferred taxes
Lease liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

17
18
19
28
29

Equity
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves
Treasury shares
Retained earnings
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

20

Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Year Ended December 31

Note

Revenues and rental fees
Cost of sales and services
Gross profit
Selling and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total selling, marketing, general and
administrative expenses

2020
NIS millions

2019
NIS millions

2018**
NIS millions

24

15,233
11,190
4,043

13,360
9,751
3,609

12,847
9,406
3,441

25.A
25.B

3,067
258

2,884
204

2,806
182

3,325

3,088

2,988

718

521

453

Operating profit before other income (expenses)
Increase in fair value of investment property, net

11

13

39

43

Other income (expenses), net

26

14

(3)

)27(

27

36

16

745

557

469

27
27

)245(
13
)232(

(279)
20
(259)

)130(
14
)116(

5.A

)4(

8

6

509

306

359

)122(

(38)

)94(

Profit for the year

387

268

265

Profit (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

387
*-

269
(1)

265
-

Profit for the year

387

268

265

1.62

1.13

1.12

Other income, net
Operating profit after other income (expenses)
Financing expenses
Financing income
Financing expenses, net
Share in profits (losses) of
associate company
Profit before taxes on income
Taxes on income

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in NIS)
*
**

28

21

Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
See Note 29 hereunder regarding leases.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended December 31

2020
NIS millions

2019
NIS millions

2018**
NIS millions

387

268

265

(10)

(7)

13

*-

(1)

-

2

2

(3)

)8(

(6)

10

18

(23)

(39)

(19)

10

40

-

6

28

)4(

9

3

13

(30)

(10)

5

(36)

-

Total comprehensive income for the year

392

232

265

Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

392
*-

233
(1)

265
-

Total comprehensive income for the year

392

232

265

Note

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income (loss) that after
initial recognition in comprehensive income
was or will be transferred to profit or loss
Effective portion of the change in fair value of
cash flow hedges
Net change in fair value included
in cost of hedging reserve
Taxes on other comprehensive income items that
were initially recognized in comprehensive
income and will be transferred to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income (loss) for
the year that after initial recognition in
comprehensive income was or
will be transferred to profit or loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive income (loss) items
that will not be transferred to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan
Revaluation reserve for fixed assets classified
as investment property
Taxes on other comprehensive income items that
will not be transferred to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year
that will not be transferred to profit or loss, net
of tax
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year

*
**

Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
See Note 29 hereunder regarding leases.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended December 31

Attributable to owners of the Company
Share
premium
NIS millions

Capital
reserves
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1, 2020
Share based payment
Vesting of restricted shares granted to employees
Dividends to shareholders
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2020

242
*242

963
*963

17
23
40

(85)
)85(

778
9
)80(
387
)18(
1,076

1,915
9
*)80(
387
5
2,236

(1)
*)1(

1,914
9
*)80(
387
5
2,235

Balance as at January 1, 2019
Initial adoption of IFRS 16
Balance as at January 1, 2019 after adoption
of IFRS 16
Share based payment
Dividends to shareholders
Profit (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2019

242
-

963
-

23
-

(85)
-

813
(122)

1,956
(122)

-

1,956
(122)

242
242

963
963

23
(6)
17

(85)
(85)

691
8
(160)
269
(30)
778

1,834
8
(160)
269
(36)
1,915

(1)
(1)

1,834
8
(160)
268
(36)
1,914

*

Treasury
shares
NIS millions

Retained
earnings
NIS millions

Noncontrolling
interests
NIS millions

Share
capital
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended December 31

Attributable to owners of the Company

Balance as at January 1, 2018
Initial adoption of IFRS 9
Balance as at January 1, 2018 after adoption of
IFRS 9
Share based payment
Exercise of employee options
Dividends to shareholders
Expired rights for declared dividends not exercised
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2018**

*
**

Share
capital
NIS millions

Share
premium
NIS millions

Capital
reserves
NIS millions

Treasury
shares
NIS millions

242
-

945
-

8
-

(85)
-

242
*242

945
18
963

8
15
23

)85(
)85(

Total
NIS millions

Noncontrolling
interests
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

698
13

1,808
13

-

1,808
13

711
1
)160(
11
265
)15(
813

1,821
1
18
)160(
11
265
1,956

-

1,821
1
18
)160(
11
265
1,956

Retained
earnings
NIS millions

Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
See Note 29 hereunder regarding leases.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31

2020
NIS millions

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of right-of-use assets
Recovery of value of property,
plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Taxes on income included in income statements
Income taxes paid, net
Financing expenses, net
Share in losses (profits) of equity-accounted
associate company
Change in fair value of investment property, net
Change in employee benefits
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Share-based payment
Change in provision for onerous contracts
Change in trade receivables
Change in other receivables
Change in inventory
Change in trade payables
Change in other payables, provisions and other
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investment in intangible assets
Business combinations, net of cash acquired
Investment in investment property
Other long-term investments
Change in pledged deposit
Change in cash in respect of futures contracts, net
Realization of (investment in) marketable securities, net
Realization of (investment in) debt instruments at
amortized cost, net
Repayment of long-term loans granted
Investment in deposits, net
Interest and dividend received
Net cash used in investing activities
*
**

2019
NIS millions

2018**
NIS millions

387

268

265

370
371

347
359

319
-

55
122
)133(
232

39
38
(82)
259

)4(
32
94
)66(
116

4
)13(
)5(
1
9
(193)
21
)29(
294
272
1,765

(8)
(39)
3
1
8
4
(128)
(20)
(88)
41
33
1,035

)6(
)43(
14
3
1
)19(
(146)
)23(
)101(
83
29
548

)459(
3
)87(
)15(
)4(
)6(
-

(518)
1
(102)
*(18)
(10)
26

)568(
1
)73(
)19(
6
6
)16(

7
2
(100)
7
)652(

(98)
3
(150)
3
(863)

3
(49)
7
)702(

Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million. See Note 5.C. hereunder.
See Note 29 hereunder regarding leases.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31

*

2020
NIS millions

2019
NIS millions

2018*
NIS millions

Cash flows used in financing activities
Short-term credit
Exercise of option to acquire partnership interests
Proceeds from issuance of bonds, net
Repayment of bonds
Interest paid
Repayment of principal and interest of lease liabilities
Dividend paid
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Payments in respect of hedging transactions
Partners’ withdrawals from partnership

)93(
312
)235(
)133(
)450(
)80(
)9(
-

93
549
(192)
(121)
(437)
(160)
(10)
(1)

(146)
563
)191(
)119(
)160(
18
)10(
)11(

Net cash used in financing activities

(688)

(279)

)56(

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

425

(107)

(210)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

55

162

372

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

480

55

162

See Note 29 hereunder regarding leases.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 1 - General
A.

The reporting entity

Shufersal Ltd. (hereinafter – the “Company” and/or “Shufersal”) is an Israeli resident company
incorporated in Israel. The address of the Company’s registered office is 30 Benjamin Shmotkin Street,
Rishon-Le-Zion. The consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2020 comprise the financial
statement data of the Company, its subsidiaries (hereinafter together – “the Group”) and the Company’s
rights in an associate company and in joint arrangements. The Company is a company without a
controlling shareholder, as the term “control” is defined in Section 1 of the Securities Law, 1968. The
Group is involved in three areas of activity: [1] Retail activity – marketing and selling of food and other
products, management of a customer loyalty program (also by means of managing a credit card loyalty
program) and the manufacture of frozen and fresh baked products that are sold mainly in the Company's
branches, [2] Real estate activity (by means of Shufersal Real Estate Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company) – upgrading and leasing out various types of real estate including commercial centers and
other properties. The real estate activity includes also properties leased out to external parties and
properties leased out to the Group and used in its operations; and [3] Be activity – marketing and selling
pharmaceuticals, convenience and toiletry products, natural products and cosmetics by means of the Be
chain which was merged with and into Shufersal on July 1, 2020. The securities of the Company are
registered for trade on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange.
The coronavirus crisis
In the first quarter of 2020 an epidemic began spreading around the world that was caused by an outbreak
of the coronavirus (COVID-19) ("the coronavirus crisis") and was declared by the World Health
Organization as a pandemic. Accordingly, the relevant government authorities in Israel issue, from time
to time, restrictions that throughout the period specified in them, prohibit or restrict the activity of
businesses, restrict or prohibit the presence of employees at work places, impose restrictions on the
education system, restrictions on people being in closed spaces, travel restrictions and so forth, all
according to the morbidity rate in Israel at the relevant times. Proximate to the date of this report, three
lockdowns have already been imposed in Israel for limited periods and the level of morbidity and
mortality from the pandemic has risen considerably, while on the other hand Israel is first in the world in
the rate of vaccinating the population against the virus.
The Company is defined as an essential enterprise in accordance with the Emergency
Employment Service Law – 1967.
Presented hereunder are the main effects of the coronavirus crisis on the Group's operations in the
reporting period up to the date of approval of the financial statements (hereinafter: "the period of the
crisis"):
Retail segment:
The effects of the coronavirus crisis led to an increase in demand for food and toiletries that was
experienced by the food retail industry in Israel including the Company and to an increase in the
recruitment of temporary employees following the absence of employees who were required to be in
quarantine and also following the aforesaid increase in demand. As a result, there was increase in the
revenues of the segment on the one hand while on the other hand there was an increase in payroll expenses.
The net effect on the operating profit of the retail segment in the reporting period was positive.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 1 - General (cont'd)
A.

The reporting entity (cont'd)

The coronavirus crisis (cont'd)
Be segment:
The effects of the coronavirus crisis led, on the one hand, to a decrease in activity at the stores in shopping
centers, in Eilat and in hospitals, and on the other hand to an increase in the activity of stores located on
streets and in the online activity including projects of delivering medicines to homes, which together with
the implementation of operating efficiency measures led to an immaterial positive net effect of the
coronavirus crisis on the operating profit of the Be segment in the reporting period.
Real estate segment:
As a result of the coronavirus crisis, during the reporting period the Group chose to grant tenants
relaxations of immaterial amounts. Furthermore, the Lev Hamifratz mall closed down for limited periods
during the reporting period, in accordance with instructions issued from time to time by government
authorities. As at the reporting date the Company has examined the effects of the crisis on the forecast of
contractual cash flows expected from tenants of the Group's properties and has examined, together with
external appraisers, the effects on the assumptions that were the basis for determining the fair value of the
real estate and has reached the conclusion that as at the reporting date, the coronavirus crisis does not
have a material effect on the fair value of the investment property as presented in the financial statements.
In accordance with the aforesaid and an examination of the effects of several scenarios that were
considered, no signs were found that indicate impairment of the Company's ability to continue paying its
liabilities in the foreseeable future or to meet the financial covenants required from it in connection with
the debt balances that exist at the date of approval of the financial statements, and there are no signs
indicating possible impairment of any asset in the financial statements.
Since this is an event that is not under the control of the Group and matters such as the virus continuing
to spread or stopping may affect the assessments described above, the Group is continuing to regularly
monitor the changes on the markets in Israel and the world and is examining the effects on the business
results of the Group's operating segments for the foreseeable future.
B.

Material events in the reporting period

(1)

On July 1, 2020 the merger of Be Drugstores Ltd. (hereinafter: Be) with and into the Company
was completed and in this framework all the operations, assets and liabilities of Be were
transferred to the Company and Be was dissolved on that date without liquidation.

(2)

On July 26, 2020 Discount Investment Corporation Ltd. (DIC) sold all its holdings in the
Company (about 26% in the Company's equity and voting power). Upon the closing of the sale
DIC ceased being an interested and related party as defined in Paragraph C hereunder.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 1 - General (cont'd)
B.

Material events in the reporting period (cont'd)

(3)

On October 27, 2020 the Company entered into an agreement to acquire control in an operation
for the sale and distribution of food and cleaning products to the institutional market. Completion
of the transaction depended on the fulfillment of several conditions precedent including receiving
the approval of the Competition Commissioner and of a bank to which the operation's assets are
pledged. The approval of the Competition Commissioner was received on December 9, 2020 and
on February 1, 2021, subsequent to the reporting date, the conditions precedent were fulfilled and
the transaction was completed.

(4)

See Note 7.A hereunder for details regarding developments in the Company's objection to a
monetary demand and assessment of the Israel Land Authority.

(5)

See Note 11.E hereunder regarding developments in a building services for land combination
venture agreement and a collaboration and joint venture agreement.

(6)

See Note 15 hereunder for details regarding the Company's commitment to acquire partnership
interests.

(7)

See Note 16(2) hereunder for details regarding developments relating to legal claims.

(8)

See Note 17(3) hereunder for details regarding the issuance of bonds.

(9)

See Note 20.B hereunder regarding the resolution by the Company’s board of directors on a
dividend distribution.

C.

Definitions

In these financial statements –
(1)

The Company – Shufersal Ltd.

(2)

The Group – The Company and its consolidated companies.

(3)

Consolidated companies/Subsidiaries – Companies, including a partnership, the financial
statements of which are fully consolidated, directly or indirectly, with the financial statements of
the Company.

(4)

Investee companies – Consolidated companies, including partnerships or joint ventures, the
Company's investment in which is stated in these financial statements, directly or indirectly, on
the equity basis or on a proportionate consolidation basis.

(5)

Related party – Within its meaning in IAS 24 (2009), “Related Party Disclosures”.

(6)

Interested parties – Within their meaning in Paragraph (1) of the definition of an “interested party”
in Section 1 of the Securities Law - 1968.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 2 - Basis of Preparation
A.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Securities Regulations (Preparation
of Annual Financial Statements) - 2010.
The consolidated statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on March 3,
2021.
B.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in NIS, which is the Group’s functional currency,
and have been rounded to the nearest million, unless stated otherwise.
The NIS is the currency that represents the principal economic environment in which the Group operates.
C.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following assets and
liabilities:
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Financial instruments, derivatives and other assets and liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss.
Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Investment in associate companies and joint ventures.
Investment property measured at fair value.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Assets and liabilities for employee benefits.
Provisions.

For further information regarding the measurement of these assets and liabilities, see Note 3 regarding
significant accounting policies.
D.

Operating cycle

The Group's operating cycle is one year.
E.

Use of significant estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The preparation of accounting estimates used in the preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make assumptions regarding circumstances and events that involve considerable
uncertainty. Management of the Company prepares the estimates on the basis of past experience, various
facts, external circumstances, and reasonable assumptions according to the pertinent circumstances of each
estimate. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 2 - Basis of Preparation (cont’d)
E.

Use of significant estimates and judgments (cont'd)

Information about assumptions made by the Group with respect to the future and other reasons for
uncertainty with respect to estimates that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial year are included in the following notes:


Recoverable amount of cash generating units – see Note 3.G(2) regarding impairment testing
and Note 12 regarding goodwill.



Fair value measurement of investment property – See Note 11 regarding investment property.



Post-employment employee benefits – See Note 3.I regarding measurement of the defined
benefit liability and Note 18.



Assessment of probability of contingent liabilities and measurement of provisions – See Note
3.J(2) regarding provisions and Note 16(2).



Recognition of deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses – See Note 3.N and Note 28.



Determining the lease term – see Note 3.R and Note 29.



Determining the discount rate of lease liabilities – see Note 3.R and Note 29.

F.

Determination of fair value

Preparation of the financial statements requires the Group to determine the fair value of certain assets and
liabilities. Further information about the assumptions that were used to determine fair value is included in
the following notes:
•
Note 11, on investment property;
•
Note 12, on intangible assets; and
•
Note 23, on financial instruments;
When determining the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses observable market data as much as
possible. There are three levels of fair value measurements in the fair value hierarchy that are based on the
data used in the measurement, as follows:
•
•
•

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable, either directly or
indirectly
Level 3: inputs that are not based on observable market data.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 2 - Basis of Preparation (cont’d)
G.

New standards and amendments to standards

1.

Amendment to IFRS 3, Business Combinations

The Amendment clarifies when a transaction to acquire an operation is the acquisition of a business and
when it is the acquisition of a group of assets that according to the standard is not considered the
acquisition of a business. For the purpose of this examination, the Amendment added an optional
concentration test so that if substantially all of the fair value of the acquired assets is attributable to a
group of similar identifiable assets or to a single identifiable asset, this will not be the acquisition of a
business. In addition, the minimum requirements for definition as a business have been clarified, and
examples illustrating the aforesaid examination were added, such as for example the requirement that the
acquired processes be substantive so that in order for it to be a business, the operation shall include at
least one input element and one substantive process, which together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs. Furthermore, the Amendment narrows the reference to the outputs element required in
order to meet the definition of a business and added examples illustrating the aforesaid examination. The
Amendment is applicable on a prospective basis for transactions that their acquisition date is after January
1, 2020.
The initial application of the Amendment did not have a material effect on the financial statements.
Amendment to IFRS 16, Leases
On May 28, 2020 an amendment to IFRS 16, Leases, was issued that includes possible practical relief for
lessees to account for a rent concession attributable to the coronavirus crisis, subject to meeting several
cumulative conditions, as variable lease payments and not as a lease modification.
According to the amendment, as a practical relief, a lessee can elect to not assess whether the rent
concession attributable to the coronavirus crisis is a lease modification. A lessee that elects this relief will
account for any change in the lease payments that is due to the coronavirus crisis in the same manner it
would have applied IFRS 16 if the change was not a lease modification. The Group elected to early apply
IFRS 16 as from the annual period beginning on January 1, 2020 with respect to all the rent concessions
that meets the conditions of the relief. Accordingly, rent concessions the Group received in the twelve
months ended December 31, 2020 were accounted for as negative variable lease payments and were
recognized as revenue in the income statement at the time of receiving the concession. The initial
application of the amendment to IFRS 16 did not have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently for all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities, including an
associate, except as described in Note 2.G above regarding the initial application of new standards and
except as described in Note 3.R hereunder regarding the application of IFRS 16 as from January 2019.
A.

Basis of consolidation

(1)

Business combinations

(a)

General

The acquisition method is applied in business combinations. The acquisition date is the date on which the
Group obtains control over the acquiree. Control exists when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the acquiree and it has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the acquiree. Substantive rights held by the Group and others are taking into account when assessing
control.
The Group recognizes goodwill on acquisition according to the fair value of the consideration transferred
including any amounts recognized in respect of rights that do not confer control in the acquiree as well as
the fair value at the acquisition date of any pre-existing equity right of the Group in the acquiree, less the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
Goodwill is not adjusted in respect of the utilization of carry-forward tax losses that existed on the date
of the business combination.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of the assets transferred to the previous owners of
the acquiree and the liabilities incurred by the Group to the previous owners of the acquiree.
Transaction costs directly related to the business combination, such as advisory fees, broker fees, legal
expenses and expenses for preparing valuations, are expensed in the period the services are received.
(b)

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests comprise the equity of a subsidiary that cannot be attributed, directly or
indirectly, to the Company.
Profit and loss and any part of other comprehensive income are allocated to the owners of the Company
and the non-controlling interests. Total profit or loss and other comprehensive income is allocated to the
owners of the Company and the non-controlling interests even if the result is a negative balance of noncontrolling interests.
Transactions with non-controlling interests while retaining control are accounted for as equity
transactions. Any difference between the consideration paid or received and the change in non-controlling
interests is included in the owners’ share in equity of the Company. The amount of the adjustment to noncontrolling interests is calculated as follows:
For an increase in the holding rate, according to the proportionate share acquired from the balance of noncontrolling interests in the consolidated financial statements prior to the transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
A.

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

(1)

Business combinations (cont'd)

(b)

Non-controlling interests (cont'd)

For a decrease in the holding rate, according to the proportionate share realized in the net assets of the
subsidiary, including goodwill.
Furthermore, when the holding rate of the subsidiary changes, while retaining control, the Company reattributes the accumulated amounts that were recognized in other comprehensive income to the owners
of the Company and the non-controlling interests.
(c)

Issuance of put option to non-controlling interests

A put option issued by the Group to non-controlling interests that is settled in cash is recognized as a
liability at the present value of the exercise price. In subsequent periods, revaluation of the liability in
respect of the time factor is recognized as a financing expense. Changes in the value of the liability in
respect of business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2010 are recognized in goodwill.
Changes in the value of the liability in respect of business combination that occurred after January 1,
2010, are recognized in profit or loss according to the effective interest method. The Group’s share of a
subsidiary’s profits includes the share of the non-controlling interests to which the Group issued a put
option also when the non-controlling interests have access to the returns arising from the interests in the
investee company.
(2)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
is lost.
(3)

Investment in an associate accounted for by the equity method

An associate is any entity in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over the financial and operating policies. There is a rebuttable presumption that significant influence
exists when the Group holds between 20% and 50% of another entity. In assessing significant influence,
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible into shares of the investee are taken
into account.
The investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method and is recognized initially at cost.
The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The consolidated financial statements include the
Group’s share of the income and expenses in profit and loss and of other comprehensive income of an
equity accounted investee, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Group,
from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases.
When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted associate, the carrying
amount of that interest is reduced to zero. The recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has an obligation to support the investee or has made payments on behalf of the
investee.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
A.

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

(3)

Investment in an associate accounted for by the equity method (cont'd)

Long-term interests that in substance form part of the net investment, such as long-term loans that their
repayment is not expected and is unlikely to occur in the foreseeable future, are first accounted for in
accordance with the guidance of IFRS 9 and then the guidance of IAS 28.
(4)

Joint arrangements

When the Group has rights in the assets and obligations to the liabilities attributed to joint arrangements,
it recognizes the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the joint arrangement based on its rights in
these items, including its share of the items held or incurred jointly. Gains or losses from transactions
with joint operations are recognized only at the amount of the share of the other parties in the joint
operation. When these transactions provide evidence of impairment of those assets, such losses are fully
recognized by the Group.
(5)

Transactions eliminated upon consolidation

Intra-group balances and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized gains arising from transactions
with subsidiaries are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
B.

Financial instruments

(1)

Non-derivative financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
The Group initially recognizes trade receivables and issued debt instruments on the date that they
are created. All other financial assets are recognized initially on the clearing date. Financial assets
are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or creation of the financial asset, except for financial assets measured at either fair
value or through profit and loss, which are recognized initially at their fair value, and transaction
expenses thereon are recognized in profit and loss, and except for trade receivables that do not
include a significant financing component, which are initially measured at their transaction price.
Derecognition of financial assets
Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights of the Group to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or the Group transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the
financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset were transferred.
Classification of financial assets into categories and the accounting treatment thereof
On the initial recognition date, financial assets are classified to one of the following measurement
categories: amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income – investment in debt
instruments; fair value through other comprehensive income – investments in equity instruments;
or fair value through profit or loss.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont'd)

(1)

Non-derivative financial assets (cont'd)
Classification of financial assets into categories and the accounting treatment thereof
(cont'd)
Financial assets are not reclassified in subsequent periods unless, and only when, the Group
changes its business model for management of financial debt assets and in the event, as aforesaid,
the affected financial debt assets are reclassified at the beginning of the period subsequent to the
change in the business model.
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated at fair value through profit or loss:
It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets so as to collect
contractual cash flows; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows representing solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates.
A debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it meets both
of the following conditions and is not designated at fair value through profit or loss:
It is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
The contractual terms of the debt instrument give rise to cash flows representing solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates.
All financial assets that are not classified for measurement at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, as aforesaid, and financial assets designated for fair value
through profit or loss, as measured at fair value through profit or loss. On the initial recognition
date, the Group designates the financial assets for fair value through profit or loss, when such
designation cancels or significantly reduces the accounting mismatch.
The Group has other trade receivable, a loan to an associate, deposits and debts instruments held
within a business model with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows. The
contractual cash flows in respect of these financial assets include only payments of principal and
interest that reflect consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. Accordingly, these
financial assets are measured at amortized cost.
Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances available for immediate use and call deposits.
Cash equivalents include short-term highly liquid investments (with original maturities of three
months or less) that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are exposed to
insignificant risks of change in value.
Assessment whether cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purpose of assessing whether the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest,
‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is
defined as consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the
principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks
and costs, as well as a profit margin.

21

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont'd)

(1)

Non-derivative financial assets (cont'd)
Assessment whether cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (cont'd)
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers:
Contingent events that would change the timing or amount of the cash flows;
Terms that may change the stated interest rate, including variable interest;
Extension or prepayment features; and
A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable compensation, received or paid, for
early termination of the contract.
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant premium or discount compared to its
contractual stated value, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that
substantially represents the contractual stated value plus accrued (but unpaid) interest (which may
also include reasonable additional compensation, received or paid, for early termination), is
treated as consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the fair value
of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.
Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest
income or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss (other than certain derivatives
designated as hedging instruments).
Investments in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in
profit and loss, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and are
never reclassified to profit or loss.
Financial assets at amortized cost
These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognized in profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognized in profit or loss.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

(1)

Non-derivative financial assets (cont'd)
Subsequent measurement and gains and losses (cont'd)
Investment in debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

(2)

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities include: bonds issued by the Company, credit from banks,
lease liabilities, trade and other payables.
Initial recognition of financial liabilities
The Group initially recognizes debt instruments on the date that they are created. All other
financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
recognized initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Financial liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Group
manages such liabilities and their performance is assessed based on their fair value in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management strategy, providing that the designation is
intended to prevent an accounting mismatch, or the liability is a combined instrument including
an embedded derivative.
Transaction costs directly attributable to an expected issuance of an instrument that will be
classified as a financial liability are recognized as an asset in the framework of deferred expenses
in the statement of financial position. These transaction costs are deducted from the financial
liability upon its initial recognition, or are amortized as financing expenses in the statement of
income when the issuance is no longer expected to occur.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation of the Group, as specified in the
agreement, expires or when it is discharged or cancelled.
Substantial modification in terms of debt instruments
An exchange of debt instruments having substantially different terms, between an existing
borrower and lender, is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability at fair value.
In such cases the entire difference between the amortized cost of the original financial liability
and the fair value of the new financial liability is recognized in profit or loss as financing income
or expense.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

(2)

Non-derivative financial liabilities (cont'd)
Substantial modification in terms of debt instruments (cont'd)
The terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows according
to the new terms, including any commissions paid, less any commissions received and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is different by at least ten percent from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
In addition to the aforesaid quantitative criterion, the Group examines, inter alia, whether there
have also been changes in various economic parameters inherent in the exchanged debt
instruments, therefore, as a rule, exchanges of CPI-linked debt instruments with unlinked
instruments are considered exchanges with substantially different terms even if they do not meet
the aforementioned quantitative criterion.
Non-substantial modification in terms of debt instruments
In a non-substantial modification in terms (or exchange) of debt instruments, the new cash flows
are discounted using the original effective interest rate, and the difference between the present
value of the new financial liability and the present value of the original financial liability is
recognized in profit and loss.
Offset of financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legal right to offset the amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(3)

Derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting is not applied
The Group holds derivative financial instruments for the purpose of economically hedging its
linkage and foreign currency exposures, and hedge accounting is not applied in their respect.
These derivatives are recognized initially at fair value. Attributable transaction costs are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss as financing income
or financing expenses.

(4)

Accounting hedge
Derivative financial instruments that are designated as hedging items are initially recognized at
fair value on the date of engaging in the derivative contract, and remeasured in subsequent periods
at fair value.
The Group documents at inception of the transaction the relationship between the hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for
undertaking hedging transactions. The Group also documents the economic connection between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the
hedged item and the hedging instrument are expected to offset each other.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

(4)

Accounting hedge (cont'd)
Changes in the fair value of a derivative financial instrument designated as a fair value hedge are
recognized in profit or loss. Furthermore, changes in the fair value of the hedged item, with
respect to the hedged risks, are also recognized in profit and loss with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the hedged item.
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges is recognized in other comprehensive income, directly within a hedging reserve.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the income
statement within "financing expenses (income), net".
The Group designates only the change in fair value of the spot element of forward contracts (‘spot
element’) as the hedging instrument in cash flow hedging relationships. The change in fair value
of the future price element of forward exchange contracts (‘forward element’) is not included as
part of the hedging relationships and is accounted for as a cost of hedging, with the change being
recognized as a cost of hedging reserve.
If the result of a forecasted transaction is recognition of a non-financial asset, the amounts that
were accumulated in the hedging reserve and the cost of hedging reserve are included in the initial
cost of the non-financial item upon its recognition. For all other hedged forecasted transactions,
the amounts accumulated in the hedging reserve and cost of hedging reserve are reclassified to
profit or loss in the same period, or periods, in which the hedged forecasted future cash flows
affect profit or loss.
If the hedge no longer qualifies as an accounting hedge, or the hedging instrument is sold, expires,
is terminated or exercised, hedge accounting is discontinued on a prospective basis. When hedge
accounting is discontinued, the amounts accumulated in the past in the hedging reserve and cost
of hedging reserve remain in the reserve, until such time as they are included in the initial cost of
the non-financial item (for hedged transactions whose result is recognition of a non-financial
item), or until such time as they are reclassified to profit or loss in the period, or periods, in which
the hedged forecasted future cash flows affect profit or loss (for other cash flows hedges).
If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, the amounts accumulated in the
past in the hedging reserve and cost of hedging reserve are immediately reclassified to profit or
loss.

(5)

Economic hedges
Hedge accounting is not applied to derivative instruments that economically hedge financial
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. Changes in the fair value of such
derivatives are recognized in profit or loss under financing income or expenses.

(6)

CPI-linked assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value
The value of CPI-linked financial assets and liabilities, which are not measured at fair value, is
remeasured every period in accordance with the actual change in the CPI.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

(7)

Share capital
Ordinary shares – Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Treasury shares - When share capital recognized as equity is repurchased by the Group, the
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects,
is recognized as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and
deducted from equity.

C.

Property, plant and equipment

(1)

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment items are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, as well as any
other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended
use, an estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located (when the Group has an obligation to dismantle and remove the asset or to restore
the site), and capitalized borrowing costs. Spare parts, servicing equipment and stand-by
equipment are to be classified as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment in IAS 16, and are otherwise to be classified as inventory.
Gains and losses on disposal of a fixed asset item are determined by comparing the net proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized within “other income” or
“other expenses”, as relevant, in profit or loss.

(2)

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of a fixed asset item and other subsequent expenses are capitalized if
it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with them will flow to the Group and
their cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part of a fixed asset item
is derecognized. The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

(3)

Reclassification to investment property
See Section E hereunder.

(4)

Determination of fair value of property, plant and equipment recognized in business
combinations
The fair value of property, plant and equipment recognized as a result of a business combination
is based on market values. The market value of property, plant and equipment is the estimated
amount for which a fixed asset could be sold on the date of valuation in an ordinary transaction
between market participants on the date of the measurement.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
C.

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

(5)

Depreciation
Depreciation is a systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
The depreciable amount is the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
residual value.
An asset is depreciated from the date it is ready for use, meaning the date it reaches the location
and condition required for it to operate in the manner intended by management. Depreciation is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of
the fixed asset item, since this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Freehold land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Buildings
50 years
Leasehold improvements
Mainly 10 years
Equipment and installations
Mainly 10 to 14 years
Motor vehicles
Up to 7 years
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting year and adjusted if appropriate.

D.

Intangible assets

(1)

Goodwill
Goodwill that arises from business combinations is included in intangible assets. For information
on measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, see Paragraph A (1) of this note. In subsequent
periods goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not
amortized systematically but at least once a year is tested for possible impairment.

(2)

Fair value of intangible assets created in business combinations
The fair value of intangible assets created in business combinations (including customer relations
and non-competition agreements) is based on the discounted value of cash flows expected to be
derived from the use of these assets and their sale. This method required determination of an
appropriate discount rate for the type of asset and its risk level.

(3)

Customer acquisition
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are capitalized when the Group is likely to recover these
costs, instead of the recognition of an expense as incurred. Accordingly, fees to agents for
obtaining transactions with customers will be recognized as an intangible asset and amortized in
the income statements over the expected economic life of the customer.

(4)

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are
measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
D.

Intangible assets (cont'd)

(5)

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates and subject to the conditions set forth in IAS 38
for recognizing intangible assets. All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

(6)

Amortization
Amortization is a systematic allocation of the amortizable amount of an intangible asset over its
useful life. The amortizable amount is the cost of the asset less its residual value. Amortization is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis, over the estimated useful lives of the intangible
assets from the date they are available for use, since this method most closely reflects the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in each asset. Internally
generated intangible assets (such as cost of software) are not systematically amortized so long as
they are not available for use, namely, so long as they are not in the working condition for their
intended use. Accordingly, these intangible assets are tested for impairment at least once a year,
until such date as they are available for use.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Software
Concession arrangement, non-competition agreements
and customer relationships
Customer acquisition costs

3-7 years
2-10 years
4 years

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year and
adjusted if appropriate.
E.

Investment property

Investment property is property (land or building – or part of a building – or both) held by the Group as
owner, or under a finance lease (until December 31, 2018) or as a right-of-use asset (as from January 1,
2019), either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for:
1.
Use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
2.
Sale in the ordinary course of business.
Investment property is initially measured at cost including costs directly attributable to its acquisition. In
subsequent periods the investment property is measured at fair value with any changes therein recognized
in profit or loss. The cost of self-constructed investment property includes the cost of materials and direct
labor, and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the investment property to a working condition
for their intended use (hereinafter: the fair value model). The Group applies the fair value model also to
right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property.
Investment property under construction is measured at fair value when its value can be reliably determined.
When the fair value cannot be reliably determined, investment property under construction is measured at
cost during the construction period until either construction is completed or its fair value becomes reliably
determinable, whichever occurs earlier. Borrowing costs are not capitalized to investment property
measured at fair value.

28

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
E.

Investment property (cont'd)

A liability for the payment of a betterment levy on investment property is recognized when the rights are
exercised, as defined in the provisions of the Law. Accordingly, the negative cash flows in respect of the
levy are included in the fair value measurement of investment property before recognition of the liability
for payment of a betterment levy.
Any gain or loss on sale of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from the sale and the carrying amount of the item at the last financial reporting date) is recognized in profit
or loss under increase in fair value of investment property, net.
Reclassification to investment property
When there is evidence that the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property,
which is measured at fair value, the property is remeasured to fair value and reclassified as investment
property. Any gain arising on remeasurement is recognized in other comprehensive income and presented
within equity in a revaluation reserve, unless the gain reverses a previous impairment loss on the specific
property, in which case the gain is first recognized in profit or loss. Any loss is recognized directly in
profit or loss. When an investment property that was previously classified as a fixed asset is sold, any related
amount included in the revaluation reserve, net of tax, is transferred directly to retained earnings.
F.

Inventories

Inventories constitute mainly goods at the Company's stores and warehouses. The cost of inventories is
based on the “moving average” method. Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and
the costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of work in progress
and manufactured inventories, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operating capacity. The value of inventories is measured as the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.
The net realizable value as above is tested on an ongoing basis taking into consideration the type of product
and its age, in accordance with past experience of the Company regarding the life of the product.
G.

Impairment

(1)

Non-derivative financial assets
The Group recognizes an impairment provision for expected credit losses on financial assets that
are debt instruments measured at amortized cost. On every statement of financial position date, the
Group examines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk of the financial asset
since the initial recognition date, on an individual or group basis. To this end, the Group compares
the risk for occurrence of a default in the financial instrument on the reporting date with the risk for
occurrence of default in the financial instrument on the initial recognition date, taking into account
all reasonable, verifiable information, including forward-looking information.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
G.

Impairment (cont’d)

(1)

Non-derivative financial assets (cont'd)
For financial assets in which a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since the initial
recognition date, the Group measures the provision for impairment loss at the amount equal to the
expected credit losses over the entire life of the instrument. Otherwise, the provision for impairment
loss will be measured at an amount equal to the expected credit losses in a 12-month period. The
losses are recognized in profit or loss and are presented as a provision for impairment loss against
the financial asset measured at amortized cost.
For financial instruments with low credit risk, the Group assumes that the credit risk has not
increased significantly since the date of initial recognition.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.
For significant financial assets measured at amortized cost, the need for an impairment provision is
examined separately for each asset. For the remaining financial assets measured at amortized cost,
the need for an impairment provision is examined collectively, according to groups having the same
credit risk characteristics.
An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be attributed objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

(2)

Non-financial assets
Timing of impairment testing
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets (other than investment property,
inventories and deferred tax assets) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If there are indications of impairment, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. Once a year and on the same date, or more frequently if there are indications
of impairment, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of each cash generating unit that
contains goodwill.
Measurement of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the cash generating unit, for which the estimated future
cash flows from the cash generating unit were not adjusted.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
G.

Impairment (cont’d)

(2)

Non-financial assets (cont'd)
Determining cash-generating units
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. For the purpose of impairment
testing of goodwill acquired in a business combination, cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing is performed reflects the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes, and which is not greater
than the segment of operation prior to aggregation.
The Company’s corporate assets
The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilized by more
than one cash-generating unit. Certain corporate assets are allocated to cash-generating units on a
reasonable and consistent basis and tested for impairment as part of testing of the cash-generating
units to which the corporate assets are allocated. Other corporate assets that cannot be allocated
reasonably and consistently to cash-generating units are tested for impairment as part of the retail
segment as a whole.
The impairment testing process in the Group with respect to "cash generating units" is conducted
as follows:
At the end of each reporting period, the Group examines each of its stores for signs indicating
impairment of the store. If there are any such signs the Company acts as follows:
Stores for which signs of impairment were identified are tested as part of the cash generating unit
they belong to, which constitutes a geographical unit, when the cash flows of one store depend on
the cash flows of the other stores located in the same geographic area. A cash generating unit is a
group of stores operating in the same geographic area, this in view of the Group’s strategy,
according to which closing a losing store in an area where other branches are located might reduce
the profitability of other stores located in that same geographic area.
For cash generating units in respect of which signs of impairment were identified, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the "cash generating unit". If this amount is lower than the
carrying amortized cost, an impairment of the cash generating unit is recognized.
In determining the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit, the Group uses forecasts of cash
inflows that reflect the present condition of the asset and represent the best estimate of the economic
conditions that will prevail during the remaining useful life of the asset.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. The
Company tests impairment of branches it decided to close separately from their respective cash
generating units and calculates recoverable amounts for each branch individually.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
G.

Impairment (cont’d)

(2)

Non-financial assets (cont'd)
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount, after reversal of the impairment loss, does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

(3)

Investments in an associate accounted for by the equity method
An investment in an associate is tested for impairment when objective evidence indicates there has
been impairment
If objective evidence indicates that the value of the investment may have been impaired, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the investment, which is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal.
An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of the investment, after applying the
equity method, exceeds its recoverable amount. Such a loss is recognized in profit or loss.
An impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of the investment after the impairment loss was recognized, and only to the
extent that the investment’s carrying amount, after the reversal of the impairment loss, does not
exceed the carrying amount of the investment that would have been determined by the equity
method if no impairment loss had been recognized.

H.

Capitalization of borrowing costs

Qualifying assets are assets in respect of which a significant period of time is required to make them ready
for their intended use or sale. Non-specific credit costs are capitalized to qualifying assets throughout the
period required for completion and construction until they are ready for their intended use. In this respect, a
period of one year or over is recognized by the Group as a significant period of time.
I.

Employee benefits

(1)

Post-employment benefits
The Group has a number of post-employment benefit plans. The plans are usually financed by
deposits with insurance companies and they are classified as defined contribution plans and as
defined benefit plans.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
I.

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(1)

Post-employment benefits (cont’d)
(a)

Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans
are recognized as an expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related services
are rendered by employees.

(b)

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets
is deducted. The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined
benefit liability (asset). The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on NISdenominated high-quality corporate bonds that have a maturity date approximating the
terms of the Group’s obligations at that date. The calculation is performed ever year by
a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to
past service by employees is recognized in profit or loss upon amendment of the plan.
Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) comprise actuarial gains and
losses and the return on plan assets (excluding interest). Re-measurements are recognized
immediately directly in retained earnings through other comprehensive income. Interest
costs on a defined benefit obligation and interest income on plan assets are presented
under financing expenses and financing income, respectively.
The Group has a small and immaterial number of executive insurance policies that were
issued before 2004, according to which the profit in real terms accumulated on the
severance pay component will be paid to the employees upon their retirement. In respect
of such policies, plan assets include both the balance of the severance pay component
and the balance of the profit in real terms (if any) on the severance pay deposits that
accumulated until the reporting date, and are presented at fair value. These plan assets
are for a defined benefit plan that includes two liability components: a defined benefit
plan component for severance pay, which is calculated on an actuarial basis as
aforementioned, and another component that is the obligation to pay the accumulated
profit in real terms (if any) upon the retirement of the employee. This component is
measured at the balance of the actual profit in real terms that accumulated at the reporting
date.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
I.

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(2)

Other long-term employee benefits
The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than postemployment benefit plans is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on NIS-denominated high-quality
corporate bonds that have a maturity date approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations at
that date. The calculation is performed using the projected unit credit method.

(3)

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Group is committed demonstrably,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment
before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are
recognized as an expense if the Group has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable
that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.

(4)

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided or upon the actual absence of the employee when the benefit is
not accumulated (such as maternity leave). A liability is recognized for the amount expected to
be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(5)

Share-based payment transactions
The grant date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognized as a
salary expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount recognized as an expense in respect
of share-based payment awards that are conditional upon meeting service and non-market
performance conditions, is adjusted to reflect the number of awards that are expected to vest. For
share-based payment awards with market performance vesting conditions, the grant date fair
value of the share-based payment awards is measured to reflect such conditions, and therefore the
Company recognizes an expense in respect of the awards whether or not the conditions have been
met.

J.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability without adjustment for the Company’s credit risk. The carrying amount of the provision is
adjusted each period to reflect the time that has passed and the amount of the adjustment is recognized as
a financing expense.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
J.

Provisions (cont'd)

(1)

Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is
established, the Group recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

(2)

Legal claims
A provision for claims is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation and it is more likely than not that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.
When the value of time is material, the provision is measured at its present value.

K.

Revenue

The Group recognizes revenues from its various operations as described hereunder:
(1)

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods in the ordinary course of business is measured at amounts that
reflect the consideration the Group is entitled to receive, net of estimated returns and trade
discounts granted to the customer at date of the transaction. When the difference between the date
of receiving the payment and the date of delivering the goods to the customer is more than one
year, the Group recognizes the future consideration discounted to its present value using a
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer on the date of entering into the contract. The difference between the discounted
consideration as aforesaid and the consideration the Group is entitled to receive is recognized as
interest revenue over the excess credit period. In cases where the difference in time is one year or
less, the Group separates a significant financing component. Revenue is recognized upon the
transfer of control over the goods to the customer.

(2)

Commissions and membership fees
Revenues received from commissions are recognized according to the transactions that used
Shufersal credit cards, in accordance with the rates and dates on which the businesses are credited.
Revenues from commissions in respect of credit spreads are recognized on the date of entitlement
to interest, and revenues from membership fees are recognized on a monthly basis. The Group
acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the primary supplier in a transaction, and accordingly
the revenue recognized is the net amount of commission made by the Group.

(3)

Customer loyalty program
As part of product sale transactions, the Group grants its customers a loyalty award by way of
points which may be redeemed by future purchases of goods in its stores. A part of the proceeds
from the sale of products entitling the customer to an award is allocated between the award credits
and the other components of the sale, on the basis of the relative standalone selling prices.
Revenue in respect of the award credits is recognized by the Group based on the anticipated future
use of the points at its stores.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
K.

Revenue (cont’d)

(4)

Rental income and management fees
Rental income from investment property is recognized in profit or loss in accordance with IFRS
16 (until December 31, 2018 in accordance with IAS 17, Leases) on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Revenue from management fees used for the current operation of the property
is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(5)

Recognition of revenue on a gross basis or net basis
In transactions in which the Group controls the goods promised in the contract before their
transfer to the customer (and therefore the Group is a principal), the revenues are presented on a
gross basis. In transactions in which the Group does not control the goods promised in the contract
before their transfer to the customer (and therefore the Group is an agent), the revenues are
presented on a net basis.

L.

Cost of sales

(1)

With respect to the retail activity, cost of sales includes the cost of purchase of retail inventories,
net of supplier rebates, as stated below, and expenses with respect to the loss and amortization of
goods, shelf stocking, storage costs and transportation to the final point of sale, as well as
additional expenses related to the online operations.

(2)

Supplier rebates are recorded as a deduction from the cost of purchases. Accordingly the part of
rebates in respect of goods remaining in the closing inventory is attributed to the inventory and
only the other part of rebates reduces the cost of sales. Some of the said rebates comprise fixed
rate rebates that are not dependent on the volume of purchases (the rebate is computed as a fixed
percentage of turnover of purchases from the supplier, or as a fixed annual amount regardless of
the volume of purchases) and some are variable rate rebates, which are recognized in the financial
statements relatively to the purchases entitling the Company to the rebate. Further to the Food
Law coming into effect, as from 2015, with respect to products the Food Law applies to, supplier
rebates are given as part of the purchase price per unit of the product, other than rebates given
according to the Sales Law.

(3)

Cost of services and management: Costs applying to the operation and management of
commercial centers held by the Group as part of investment property, are recognized in profit or
loss as part of cost of sales and services.

M.

Financing income and expenses

Financing expenses comprise interest expense on bonds issued by the Company, interest expense on
borrowings, change in the time value of lease liabilities, changes in the time value of provisions and a
liability in respect of a put option granted to non-controlling interests, changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, impairment losses recognized on financial assets (other than
losses on trade receivables that are presented under general and administrative expenses), and losses on
derivatives.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
M.

Financing income and expenses (cont’d)

Financing income comprises interest income and linkage differences on financial assets, change in the
time value of lease receivables, income from dividends, marketable securities, changes in the fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and gains from derivatives. Interest income is
recognized as it accrues. Dividend income is recognized on the date that the Group’s right to receive
payment is established, which, in the case of quoted securities, is the ex-dividend date. Foreign currency
gains and losses are reported on a net basis. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss also include income from dividends and interest.
In the statements of cash flows, interest received and dividends received are presented as part of cash
flows from investing activities. Interest paid and dividends paid are presented as part of cash flows from
financing activities. Accordingly, financing costs that were capitalized to qualifying assets are presented
together with interest paid as part of cash flows from financing activities.
N.

Income tax expense

Taxes on income are comprised of current and deferred tax. Current taxes and deferred taxes are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or to a transaction
or event that are recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. In such cases, the income
tax expense is recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable (or receivable) on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current taxes also include taxes in respect of prior
years.
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associates, to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future, either
by way of selling the investment or by way of distributing dividends in respect of the investment.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax benefits and deductible temporary differences,
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
Deferred tax assets that were not recognized are reevaluated at each reporting date and recognized if it
has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
N.

Income tax expense (cont'd)

A provision for uncertain tax positions, including additional tax and interest expenses, is recognized when
it is more likely than not that the Group will have to use its economic resources to pay the obligation.
O.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for treasury shares. Diluted EPS
is determined by adjusting the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding, after adjustment for treasury shares, for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, which comprise share options.
P.

Transactions with controlling shareholder

Assets and liabilities included in a transaction with a controlling shareholder are measured at fair value
on the date of the transaction. As the transaction is on the equity level, the Company includes the
difference between the fair value and the consideration from the transaction in its equity.
Q.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the Group’s functional currency according to the
exchange rate in effect on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency on the reporting date are translated to the functional currency according to the exchange rate in
effect on such date. Exchange rate differentials resulting from translation to the functional currency of
monetary items are recognized in profit or loss.
R.

Leases

Policy applicable as from January 1, 2019
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
On the inception date of the lease, the Group determines whether the arrangement is a lease or contains a
lease, while examining if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. In its assessment of whether an arrangement conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether it has the following two rights throughout the
lease term:
(a)
The right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset; and
(b)
The right to direct the identified asset’s use.
For contracts that are a lease or that contain a lease, the Group elected to account for all the lease
components separately from the non-lease components.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
R.

Leases (cont'd)

Leased assets and lease liabilities
Contracts that award the Group control over the use of a leased asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration, are accounted for as leases. Upon initial recognition, the Group recognizes a liability at the
present value of the balance of future lease payments and concurrently recognizes a right-of-use asset at
the same amount of the lease liability, adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments, plus initial
direct costs incurred in respect of the lease.
The Group has elected to apply the practical expedient by which short-term leases of up to one year and/or
leases in which the underlying asset has a low value, are accounted for such that lease payments are
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis, over the lease term, without recognizing an asset
and/or liability in the statement of financial position.
Discount rate
Since the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the incremental borrowing rate of
the Group is used. This interest rate is the rate that the Group would have had to pay on amounts borrowed
for a similar period and similar security in order to obtain an asset whose value is similar to the right-ofuse asset in a similar economic environment.
The lease term
The lease term is the non-cancellable period of the lease plus periods covered by an extension or
termination option if it is reasonably certain that the lessee will or will not exercise the option,
respectively.
Variable lease payments
Variable lease payments that depend on an index that is supposed to reflect changes in market lease rates,
are initially measured using the index existing at the commencement of the lease and are included in the
measurement of the lease liability. When the cash flows of future lease payments change as the result of
a change in an index, the balance of the liability is adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
Other variable lease payments that are not included in the measurement of the lease liability are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the conditions that trigger these payments occur.
Depreciation of right-of-use asset
After lease commencement, a right-of-use asset is measured on a cost basis less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses and is adjusted for re-measurements of the lease liability.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful life or contractual lease period,
whichever earlier.
Reassessment of lease liability
Upon the occurrence of a significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is under the
control of the Group and had an effect on the decision whether it is reasonably certain that the Group will
exercise an option, which was not included before in the lease term, or will not exercise an option, which
was previously included in the lease term, the Group re-measures the lease liability according to the
revised leased payments using a new discount rate. The change in the carrying amount of the liability is
recognized against the right-of-use asset, or recognized in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the rightof-use asset was reduced to zero.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
R.

Leases (cont'd)

Lease modifications
When a lease modification increases the scope of the lease by adding a right to use one or more underlying
assets, and the consideration for the lease increased by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone
price for the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
contract’s circumstances, the Group accounts for the modification as a separate lease.
In all other cases, on the initial date of the lease modification, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to the contract components, determines the revised lease term and measures the lease
liability by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.
For lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Group recognizes a decrease in the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset in order to reflect the partial or full cancellation of the lease, and
recognizes in profit or loss a profit (or loss) that equals the difference between the decrease in the rightof-use asset and re-measurement of the lease liability.
For other lease modifications, the Group re-measures the lease liability against the right-of-use asset.
Subleases
In leases where the Group subleases the underlying asset, the Group examines whether the sublease is a
finance lease or operating lease with respect to the right-of-use received from the head lease. The Group
examined the subleases existing on the date of initial application based on the remaining contractual terms
at that date.
Policy applicable before January 1, 2019
Leased assets and lease liabilities
Leases, including leases of lands from the Israel Lands Administration or from other third parties, where
the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Upon initial recognition the leased assets are measured and a liability is recognized at an amount equal to
the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.
When a lease includes both a land component and a buildings component, each component is considered
separately for the purpose of classifying the lease, with the principal consideration regarding the
classification of land being the fact that land normally has an indefinite useful life.
The Group leases lands from the Israel Lands Administration (hereinafter – "the Administration") in
capitalized and non-capitalized leases for a period of 49 years with an option for additional 49 years.
Within the framework of non-capitalized leases, the Group recognized a liability in respect of minimum
future lease payments, discounted at a real interest rate of 5% as of date of engagement with the
Administration, based on an interest rate used by the Administration at that date. The minimum lease
payments paid under a finance lease are divided between financing expenses and the amortization of the
balance of liability.
The Group did not recognize an asset and liability in respect of future payments for exercising an option
to extend the lease period since these payments constitute contingent lease payments that are derived from
the fair value of the land on the future date of exercising the option.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
R.

Leases (cont'd)

Policy applicable before January 1, 2019 (cont'd)
Leased assets and lease liabilities (cont'd)
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under an operating lease (less any incentives received from the lessor)
are recognized in profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Note 4 - Short-Term Deposits
Interest rate at
December 31
2020
%

Unlinked deposits

0.23-0.37

December 31
2020
NIS millions

400

December 31
2019
NIS millions

300

Note 5 - Investment in investees
A.

Investment in an associate:
December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

Original cost
Capital notes (B.1)
Benefit component in loan (B.2)
Share in accrued profits

8
37
8
7

8
37
8
11

Investment in associate, net

60

64

The Group holds 37% of the share capital of the company Lev Hamifratz (hereinafter - “the associate”).
During the period, the Group recognized its share in the losses of the associate of NIS 4 million (compared
with a profit of NIS 8 million in 2019 and a profit of NIS 6 million in 2018).
B.

Loan to an associate

1.

On September 30, 2017, a shareholders’ loan in the amount of NIS 100 million (Group’s share –
NIS 37 million) was converted to a non-interest-bearing unlinked capital note, to be repaid subject
exclusively to a decision of the associate’s board of directors, after at least five years have elapsed
since its date of issuance. Accordingly, this balance is presented as part of the investment.
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Note 5 - Investment in investees (cont’d)
B.

Loan to an associate (cont'd)

2.

In 2017 a loan agreement was signed between the associate’s shareholders and the associate,
which arranges the terms of the balance of loans that had granted in prior years by the
shareholders (which does not include the maturity date) in the total amount of NIS 119 million
(the Group’s share – NIS 44 million).
Pursuant to the agreement, the loan will be paid in 68 equal quarterly payments, commencing
January 1, 2018 until October 1, 2034, and bear annual interest at the minimum rate required in
the Income Tax Ordinance (New Version) and the regulations issued under it (Section 3(j) of the
Ordinance) to be paid quarterly. The fair value of the loan at the date of signing the agreement is
NIS 36 million, which was determined on the basis of the customary interest rate for loans having
similar characteristics (December 31, 2017 – 5%). The difference between the loan value and its
stated value, NIS 8 million, was recognized in the balance of the investment in the associate as a
shareholders’ benefit. In the statement of financial position, the loan balance is presented
separately from the investment in associate, as a loan to an associate. Current maturities in the
amount of NIS 3 million are included in the item of other receivables and debit balances.

C.

Other investments

On November 26, 2019 Be Drugstores Ltd. (which, as aforesaid, was merged with and into the Company
on July 1, 2020) completed a transaction for the acquisition of 51% of the share capital of Bela Online
Ltd. (hereinafter – "Bela"). The agreement also included arrangements regarding a put option and call
option on the holdings of the existing shareholders, which will be exercisable for the first time on April
1, 2022 and every six months thereafter. Bela engages in the online sale of pharma products and operates
a pharmacy. The acquisition of Bela did not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated
financial statements.
Presented hereunder are the main details of the transaction:
NIS millions

Consideration transferred
Liability in respect of option to acquire non-controlling
interests in subsidiary
Plus acquired deficiency in equity
Excess cost*
*

1
2
5
8

Allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
was completed in 2020. According to the assessment, excess cost of NIS 4 million was allocated
to concession fees and brand and the balance of NIS 4 million was allocated to goodwill.
Comparative information was updated accordingly.
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Note 6 - Trade Receivables

Open debts
Checks and notes receivable
Less – provision for expected credit losses
Credit card companies

December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

184
42
226
)39(
187
1,307

231
38
269
(23)
246
1,127

1,494

1,373

See Note 33 on interested and related parties for information on trade receivables due from related and
interested parties.

Note 7 - Other Receivables
A.

Other current receivables
December 31
2020
NIS millions

Advances to suppliers
Prepaid expenses
Receivables from leases (1)
Insurance assets
Trust deposits (2)
Accrued income
Advance payment to institutions (3)
Other receivables

B.

December 31
2019
NIS millions

25
32
13
11
1
17
24
14

40
26
17
11
6
23
14
23

137

160

December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

Other non-current receivables

Receivables from leases (1)
Derivative financial instruments
Accrued income
Prepaid expenses

63
2
24
-

75
15
18
8

89

116

43

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 7 - Other Receivables (cont'd)
(1)
(2)
(3)

See Note 29 regarding leases.
The balance in trust deposits is in respect of real estate sales of the Group.
On June 26, 2017, the Company received a monetary demand and assessment from the Israel
Land Authority in respect of property it leases in Netanya, by which the Authority is supposedly
entitled to payments as a result of the property being used for commerce and hi-tech instead of
for industry. According to the demand letter, an amount of NIS 42 million (before VAT) is
requested for the nonconforming use in prior periods. On November 23, 2017, the Company
received from the local committee approval to nonconforming use. On August 16, 2017 the
Company submitted an appeal on the amounts in the demand letter and on its underlying
assumptions. Therefore, the Company has paid, under protest, the amount of NIS 31 million and
has also furnished the Israel Lands Authority a bank guarantee of NIS 11 million. On August 26,
2020 the objections committee made a decision with respect to the monetary demand from
January 1, 2019, which at that date reflected a liability in the amount of NIS 17 million. According
to the Company's evaluation, the decisions of the Government Appraiser create a user fee of NIS
7 million in respect of the aforesaid demand. Accordingly, the Company included other income
in the amount of NIS 10 million from reversal of a provision.

See Note 33 on interested and related parties for information on other receivables due from related and
interested parties.

Note 8 - Inventory

Inventory of finished products
Less provision for impairment of inventory
Total inventory of finished products
Raw materials and work in progress and packaging

December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

967
)32(
935
4

930
(23)
907
3

939

910
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Note 9 - Other Investments
December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

Current investments
Debt instruments at amortized cost (1)

12

9

Non-current investments
Investment in shares (2)
Debt instruments at amortized cost (1)

12
75

8
88

87

96

(1)

An investment debt instruments held for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows. For
additional information, see Note 23.A.2.

(2)

Investments in non-marketable shares of Wholesale Market for Agricultural Produce in Tel Aviv
Ltd. and Shopic Technologies Ltd. in the amount of NIS 8 million and NIS 4 million, respectively.
The investments are accounted for as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.
For additional information, see Note 23.B.5.
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Note 10 - Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost
Balance as at January 1, 2019
Classification to right-of-use
assets
Balance as at January 1, 2019
after initial application of
IFRS 16
Business combinations
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at December 31, 2019
Additions
Revaluation of assets
transferred to investment
property
Classification from property,
plant and equipment to
investment property
Classification from investment
property to property, plant
and equipment
Disposals
Balance as at December 31, 2020
Depreciation and
impairment losses
Balance as at January 1, 2019
Classification to right-of-use
assets
Balance as at January 1, 2019
after initial application of
IFRS 16
Depreciation and impairment
losses
Disposals
Balance as at December 31, 2019
Depreciation and impairment
losses
Disposals
Balance as at December 31, 2020
Carrying amount
As at December 31, 2020
As at December 31, 2019
As at January 1, 2019

*

Buildings
and land
NIS millions

Leasehold
improvements
NIS millions

Equipment and
installations
NIS millions

Motor
vehicles
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

1,984

2,102

3,379

95

7,560

)317(

-

-

-

)317(

1,667
*27
1,694
38

2,102
196
)43(
2,255
159

3,379
278
)60(
3,597
251

95
11
)11(
95
11

7,243
*512
)114(
7,641
459

40

-

-

-

40

)56(

-

-

-

)56(

16
1,732

)47(
2,367

)74(
3,774

)10(
96

16
)131(
7,969

562

1,234

2,485

65

4,346

)43(

-

-

-

)43(

519

1,234

2,485

65

4,303

32
551

125
(41)
1,318

178
(60)
2,603

12
(9)
68

347
(110)
4,540

34
585

140
)47(
1,411

184
)71(
2,716

12
)9(
71

370
)127(
4,783

1,147
1,143
1,422

956
937
868

1,058
994
894

25
27
30

3,186
3,101
3,214

Indicates an amount less than NIS 1 million.
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Note 10 - Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d)
A.

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment on credit

The balance of liabilities payable in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment, which
comprise leasehold improvements and equipment, is approx. NIS 38 million and approx. NIS 50 million
as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively.
B.

Agreements to set up automated delivery centers

In 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary entered into an agreement with Amot Investments Ltd. ("Amot"), by
which the subsidiary will acquire 25% of Amot's lease rights in available land in the industrial zone of
Modi’in, on which the parties will construct (as a joint venture accounted for on a proportionate
consolidation basis) an automated delivery center (building envelope and without the automation systems)
of 40,000 square meters and an office building of 6,000 square meters (together in this item – “the
project”) in which the parties will have undivided co-ownership at the rate of 25% for the subsidiary and
75% for Amot. The Company will lease the delivery center from the joint venture under a long-term lease,
and it will be used in the Company’s online operation. Further to the aforesaid, in 2018 the Company
entered into an agreement for the supply and set up of the automation equipment for the new automated
delivery center in Modi'in and for an additional warehouse in Kadima (on a built area of 8,000 square
meters) that will also serve as an automated delivery center.
The total investments in setting up the automated centers in Modi’in and Kadima are estimated as of the
date of approval of the financial statements at NIS 650 million, with most of the amount being in respect
of acquiring and setting up the automated equipment.
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Note 11 - Investment Property
Presented hereunder is the movement in investment property (measured at level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy):
Land and buildings
2020
2019

Balance as at January 1

Investment property
under construction*
2020
2019
NIS millions

Total
2020

2019

587

546

134

118

721

664

7

12

8

6

15

18

9

29

4

10

13

39

44

-

)44(

-

-

-

)16(

-

-

-

)16(

-

Additions and changes in
fair value during the year:
Acquisitions and investments in
investment property and under
construction
Change in fair value
of investment property, net
Investment property that its
construction has been completed
investment property
Classification from investment
property to property, plant
and equipment
Classification from right-of-use
assets to investment property
Classification from property, plant
and equipment to investment
property
Total

3

-

-

-

3

-

56
103

41

(32)

16

56
71

57

Balance as at December 31

690

587

102

134

792

721

*

Including a construction services receivable asset, see paragraph E hereunder.
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Note 11 - Investment Property (cont’d)
A.

Change in fair value of investment property, net

Measurement of fair value –
The Group’s investment property is measured at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The significant inputs
that were used to measure fair value are not observable in the market.
Rental properties for commercial and office uses –
1.
Discounted income technique - The fair value is estimated using a discounted income technique:
the valuation model is based on net annual cash flows, on the basis of the existing and forecasted
income from the property, discounted at a rate reflecting the specific risks inherent in them and
as customary in comparable properties. When actual rent agreements include rent payments that
are different from market rent, adjustments are made to reflect the actual rent payments in the
period of the contract. The valuations take into account the type of tenants and the financial
strength of the tenants that actually occupy the leasehold or are responsible for fulfilling the rental
obligations or may occupy the leasehold when available property is rented out; distribution of the
responsibility for the property’s maintenance and insurance between the Group and the tenant;
the physical condition and remaining economic life of the property, in those locations that these
parameters are relevant.
2.
Significant unobservable inputs –
Market rentals per meter of between NIS 16 and NIS 147 (mainly between NIS 50 and NIS 90
per meter).
Cash flow discount rate of between 7% and 8.75% (mainly between 7% and 8%) (2019: 7%-8%).
Investment property under construction –
1.
“Extraction method” – The valuation is based on extracting the estimated fair value of the
investment property after completion of its construction, based on net cash flows expected to be
received from the property discounted at an appropriate discount rate, less the present value of
the estimated construction costs expected for its completion and less a reasonable entrepreneurial
profit when relevant, taking into account a discount rate adjusted for the property’s relevant risks
and characteristics.
2.
Significant unobservable inputs –
Construction costs per square meter of between NIS 5 thousand and NIS 6 thousand per meter.
Entrepreneurial profit margin of about 15%-25%.
Cash flow discount rate of 7.5% (2019: 7%-8.75%).
Valuation processes used by the Group –
The fair value of the investment property is determined regularly by external, independent valuers having
appropriate recognized professional qualifications and experience in the location and category of the
property being valued. External valuations are performed regularly at the end of each year and are
reviewed by the Company’s property department. In the rest of the reporting periods the Group performs
internal valuations using a similar methodology, in order to confirm that there was no material change in
the value of the property. An external valuer will perform the valuation also in the case of changes
occurring in parameters that affect the value of the property.
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Note 11 - Investment Property (cont’d)
A.

Change in fair value of investment property, net (cont’d)

Valuation processes used by the Group – (cont’d)
The principal unobservable inputs are as follows:
a.
Entrepreneurial profit margin – The accepted margin for commerce and offices in new or longstanding properties. Guidelines for entrepreneurial profit margins based on guidelines of the
Government Appraiser.
b.
The rate of return on investment property – based on data of the Government Appraiser and the
rates of return of rental properties and a comparison to the rates of return obtained in similar
transactions, while adjusting for the elements of uncertainty risk and quality of the tenants, such as
the anchors, national chains, etc.
c.
Market rent – based on the rent actually paid for commercial and office rental properties and on
information regarding rentals in the same area.
d.
Costs of construction per square meter are based on the accepted costs in the industry for similar
buildings taking into account budgets determined by the Company’s engineer in each project.
B.

Amounts that were recognized in the statement of income
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions

Rental income from investment property
Direct expenses arising from
investment property that generated rental
income during the year
Increase in fair value of investment property, net

2018

51

51

49

)20(
13

(22)
39

)20(
43

44

68

72

50

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 11 - Investment Property (cont’d)
C.

Details on land rights considered investment property by the Group*
End of
lease period**
Years

Freehold rights
Leasehold

*
**

2021-2060

December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

321
471

269
452

792

721

Including construction services receivable, see paragraph E hereunder.
Including the option period.

Some of the freehold and leasehold properties in Israel have not yet been registered under the name of the
Group companies at the Land Registry Office mainly due to registration procedures or technical problems.
D.

Details on lease agreements

The future minimum lease payments receivable under lease agreements over the period of the agreement,
without an option to extend the lease, are as follows:
Leasehold
assets
NIS millions

Less than one year
Between one and four years
Five years and more

E.

December 31, 2020
Freehold
Assets
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

31
62
21

17
32
23

48
94
44

114

72

186

Details on agreements

On April 26, 2018 a subsidiary entered into a building services land combination venture and a
collaboration and joint venture agreement with Gav-Yam Bayside Land Corp. Ltd. ("Gav-Yam").
According to the agreement, the subsidiary shall sell to Gav-Yam 69.5% of the ownership over 8,800
square meters of land in Ra’anana, in exchange for receiving the building services of Gav-Yam. When
the project is completed, the subsidiary and Gav-Yam will have undivided co-ownership over the project
at the rate of 30.5% for the subsidiary and 69.5% for Gav-Yam. On June 25, 2020 a detailed urban
building plan for the project described in the aforesaid periodic report was awarded legal effect, and
accordingly all the preconditions of the agreement have been fulfilled and it came into effect. The project's
excavation and plating work was completed in the fourth quarter of 2020.
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Note 12 - Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Cost
Balance as at January 1, 2019
Change in commitment to acquire
share in a partnership (**)
Withdrawal of profits by
partners in a partnership
Business combinations (*)
Additions (***)
Balance as at December 31, 2019

Customer
Computer
acquisition
programs
and other
NIS millions

Total

1,057

439

136

1,632

62

-

-

62

1
4
19
1,143

64
503

4
23
163

1
8
106
1,809

Additions (***)
Balance as at December 31, 2020

1,143

63
566

21
184

84
1,893

Depreciation and amortization
Balance as at January 1, 2019
Depreciation and amortization
Balance as at December 31, 2019
Depreciation and amortization
Balance as at December 31, 2020

3
3
3

355
30
385
44
429

106
9
115
11
126

464
39
503
55
558

1,140
1,140
1,054

137
118
84

58
48
30

1,335
1,306
1,168

Carrying amount
As at December 31, 2020
As at December 31, 2019
As at January 1, 2019
(*)
(**)
(***)

See Note 5.C
See Note 15.
The balance of the accrued liability in respect of purchases of other assets is NIS 5 million and NIS 9
million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Note 12 - Intangible Assets (cont’d)
Goodwill
Goodwill is tested by management at the reporting business segment level, which reflects the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes (see Note 32 for information regarding
the Group's operating segments).
The following is summary of goodwill information of business segments:

Retail segment
Be segment

December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

1,028
112

1,028
112

1,140

1,140

As at December 31, 2020, the Company, with the assistance of an external, independent valuer, examined
the recoverable amount of the retail segment and Be segment which constitute the lowest level of the
Group at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes.
The recoverable amount of the retail segment was measured at the fair value of the operation less costs to
sell on the basis of the comparison method. The principal parameters that were used in the valuation are
as follows:
•
The comparison method was applied using the multiple method.
•
The fair value of the retail segment was estimated as the multiple of the representative EBITDA
of the retail segment and a representative EV/EBITDA 9 multiple (in 2019: 8) that is derived
from the market value of similar public companies that operate in the retail industry.
•
From the fair value of this segment’s operation an amount equaling 2.5% was deducted in respect
of costs to sell that the Company would incur upon the sale of the operation of this segment.
The result of the aforesaid examination is that the recoverable amount is considerably higher than the
carrying amount of the aforesaid unit (even in the lower range of the valuation, the estimated value is
higher than twice the carrying amount of the unit) and therefore there is no need to record impairment of
the aforesaid goodwill.
As an indication of the recoverable amount as aforesaid, the Group examined the value of the retail
segment on the basis of an amount that represents the value of the Group on the stock exchange as at
December 31, 2020, after adjusting the Group’s marketable financial liabilities, less the fair value of the
investment property bases on external appraisals, and the working capital of Shufersal Real Estate, and
after deducting the fair value of the financing activity and the activities of the Be segment, which was
estimated according to an external valuation.
The recoverable amount of the Be segment was based on the value in use of the segment's activity
according to the revenues approach, using the discounted cash flow method. The principal parameters
that were used in the valuation are a nominal discount rate of 10% and a growth rate for the representative
year of 3%. According to the results of examination the value in use of the Be segment is higher than its
value in the Group's financial statements.
The value measurements described above were included within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Note 13 - Trade Payables
The Company’s purchases from a major supplier amounted to approx. NIS 903 million in 2020, approx.
NIS 816 million in 2019 and approx. NIS 801 million in 2018.

Note 14 - Other Payables
December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Advances from customers
Employees and other salary related liabilities
Institutions
Accrued expenses
Customer loyalty plan (club points)
Derivative financial instruments
Current taxes
Payables from vouchers
Other

461
380
48
84
26
9
19
45
18

377
295
16
72
22
10
12
18
10

1,090

832

See Note 33 on interested and related parties for information on other payables due to related and
interested parties.
The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to other payables, and information on linkage
are disclosed in Note 23.B on financial instruments.
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Note 15 - Commitment to Acquire Partnership Interests
On July 19, 2006 an operating agreement was signed between the Company and Leumi Card Ltd. (currently called Max IT Finance Ltd.) (“Leumi Card”) pursuant to which Leumi Card operated Shufersal credit cards that were
issued by Leumi Card (“Leumi Card agreement”). As a part of the Leumi Card agreement and the collaboration
with it, Shufersal Finance, Limited Partnership (“the partnership”) was incorporated pursuant to a partnership
agreement from August 31, 2006 (“partnership agreement”) between the Company, Leumi Card and Paz Oil
Company Ltd. (“Paz”).
According to the partnership agreement, the Company has a call option to acquire the holdings of Paz in the
partnership beginning from one year after the date of signing the partnership agreement and for an unlimited period
of time based on a valuation performed by an agreed valuer. Exercising the options to acquire the holdings of Paz
will award also to Leumi Card, subject to regulatory restrictions, a right to notify whether it wants to participate in
the acquisition of Paz’s holdings at the same terms, such that the holdings will be split between the Company and
Leumi Card on a pro rata basis according to their relative share of the partnership. The partnership agreement also
provides that in the event of termination of the Leumi Card agreement, the Company will have a call option to
acquire the holding of Leumi Card in the partnership and Leumi Card will have a put option to sell its holdings in
the partnership to the Company. The value of Leumi Card’s holdings in the partnership will be determined by means
of a valuation that will be performed in respect of the partnership by an agreed valuer with the valuation deduced
from the value of Leumi Card’s partnership holdings.
On July 11, 2017 the Company notified Paz that it is exercising the call option it has to acquire the holdings
of Paz in the partnership (20%). During March 2018, the Company paid NIS 117 million to Paz for 16% of the
partnership interests. During October 2018, the Company paid an additional NIS 29 million to Paz, for the balance
of Paz’ interests (4%) in the partnership, since they were not acquired by Leumi Card.
On August 28, 2017 the Company notified Leumi Card that it was not renewing the Leumi Card agreement, and
accordingly the agreement ended on January 18, 2018. It is noted that as regards the existing credit cards that were
issued by Leumi Card, the cards will continue to be operated by Leumi Card and their holders will be permitted to
use them until the expiry date indicated on them.
On April 24, 2018 Leumi Card filed a claim against Shufersal, the partnership and the general partner as formal
defendants and against the partnership’s auditors (Kesselman & Kesselman, CPAs), and on May 28, 2018 the
parties agreed to transfer the disputes between them to mediation.
On December 31, 2019 a mediation agreement was signed between the parties that was approved by the parties'
bodies on January 15, 2020, and received judicial force on January 16, 2020 (hereinafter – "the mediation
agreement"), by which the partnership relationship between Shufersal and Leumi Card will be terminated such
that all the holdings of Leumi Card in the partnership and in the general partner will be transferred to Shufersal,
and Shufersal will hold 100% of the partnership and general partner. Furthermore, the claims that were filed
by Leumi Card will be dismissed, and each party will relinquish its allegations against the other parties (except
for certain exceptions specified in the agreement). In consideration for all the parties' commitments in the
agreement and solely for compromise purposes, it was agreed that Leumi Card would be entitled to an amount
of NIS 73 million (which includes its accumulated share of the partnership's profits as known on the date of
signing), which will be offset from the debit balance of Leumi Card at that time on the Company's books. The
aforesaid has no effect on the results of the Group. All the rights have been transferred to the Company in the
reporting period.
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Note 16 - Provisions
December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Onerous contracts (1)
Customer claims (2)
Provisions for claims and legal proceedings (2)

(1)

21
37

4
21
18

58

43

Onerous contracts
Presented hereunder is the movement in onerous contracts:
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

4
)4(
-

6
(6)
4

Balance as at December 31

-

4

Presented in current liabilities
Presented in non-current liabilities

-

4
4

Balance as at January 1
Initial adoption of IFRS 16
Provisions used during the year
Provisions made during the year

(2)

Provisions for customer claims, claims and legal proceedings
In the ordinary course of business, various legal claims have been filed or are pending against the
Group companies (hereinafter in this section: “legal claims”).
In the opinion of the managements of Group companies, which is based on, inter alia, legal
opinions regarding the chances of the legal claims, adequate provisions have been included in the
financial statements, where such provisions are required, for covering the exposure from such
legal claims.
Motions to certify claims as class actions that do not indicate the precise amount of the claim are
pending against the Company and in their respect the Company has an additional exposure.
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Note 16 - Provisions (cont’d)
(2)

Provisions for customer claims, claims and legal proceedings (cont’d)

a.

Description of Group’s contingent liabilities in effect as at December 31, 2020
1.

Description of liabilities classified into groups having similar characteristics:

Claim group

Class actions

Claims of
employees

Suppliercustomer,
authorities and
general

Customer claims
for damages
Total

*
**
***
****

Nature of claims

Mainly motions to certify class actions
that allege illegal collection of funds
and damages from services or products
provided by Group companies
Mainly legal claims of present and
former employees of the Company
involving labor laws including
demands to include various salary
components in the calculation of
various payments to the Company’s
employees
Legal claims involving commercial
disputes with suppliers of services
and/or products and legal proceedings
on the part of the State, government
bodies and State authorities including
in respect of proceedings concerning
regulation applicable to the Company
and various monetary disputes
concerning the Company’s payments
to authorities.
Claims for damages that are handled
by the insurance company

Exposure
in respect
of claims
whose
chances
cannot be
assessed
as yet
NIS millions

Balance
of
provision

Amount of
additional
exposure

Total

19

**393

***485

897

1

4

4

9

17

229

-

246

21

7

*-

28

58

633

489

****1,180

Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
Including claims against the Company and other defendants in the amount of NIS 237 million in
which the amount claimed from the Company is not specified.
Including claims against the Company and other defendants in the amount of NIS 84 million in
which the amount claimed from the Company is not specified.
There are additional claims against the Company in which the amount of the claim is not specified,
in respect of which the Company has additional exposure.
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Note 16 - Provisions (cont’d)
(2)

Provisions for customer claims, claims and legal proceedings (cont’d)

a.

Description of Group’s contingent liabilities in effect as at December 31, 2020 (cont’d)
2.

Presented hereunder is a breakdown of the number and amounts of the claims
according to the amount of the claim:

Amount of claim
Up to NIS 100 million (including claims against the
Company and others that specify the amount
claimed from the Company)*
From NIS 100 million to NIS 500 million
Claims that do not specify an amount claimed
Claims that do not specify the amount claimed from
the Company and others
Claims against the Company and other defendants
together in which the amount claimed from the
Company is not specified
Total

Number of claims

Total amount claimed
(NIS millions)

707
2
4

515
344
-

2

-

15
730

321
1,180

*

As at December 31, 2020 there are 582 customer claims for damages totaling NIS 28 million.

b.

Information on class actions

During the period, motions to certify class actions were filed against Group companies in the total amount
of NIS 341 million. On the other hand, motions to certify class actions against Group companies in the
amount of NIS 491 million were rejected and dismissed with the approval of the court.
c.

Claims of employees, subcontractors, suppliers, authorities and other general claims

In the ordinary course of business, various claims have been filed against the Company by employees,
subcontractors, suppliers, authorities and others which deal mostly in claims for breach of provisions of
the law governing termination of employment and obligatory payments to employees, claims for breach
of agreements and compulsory payments to authorities. As at December 31, 2020, the amounts that are
claimed from the Company under the said claims total NIS 255 million.
In 2014, a claim was filed against the Company, the former Executive Vice President of Operations and
Supply Chain and four other managers of the Company (who are not officers) (hereinafter: "the
managers"). The claim alleges violations of the Hours of Work and Rest Law – 1951 (“the law”), with
respect to employees working more overtime hours than that permitted by the law. On August 1, 2019 a
ruling was handed down by the court that acquitted the managers of the violations attributed to them
whereas the Company was convicted of the violations attributed to it. On September 29, 2019 the court
ruled on the Company's punishment, by which an immaterial fine was imposed on the Company.
Furthermore, the Company undertook to not perform the violations indicated in the claim for a period of
3 years, or else it will be required to pay the maximum fine stipulated in the law.
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Note 16 - Provisions (cont’d)
(2)
c.

Provisions for customer claims, claims and legal proceedings (cont’d)
Claims of employees, subcontractors, suppliers, authorities and other general claims (cont’d)

On September 15, 2019 the State of Israel, which is the claimant, filed an appeal with the national labor
court in which it requested to annul the ruling and convict the Company's managers of the violations
attributed to them in the claim. On November 12, 2019 the claimant filed another appeal with the national
labor court on "leniency of the punishment" that was imposed on the Company. In the hearing on the
appeals the State withdrew the appeal against the four managers that are not officers. On March 3, 2020
the court denied the appeals the State had filed on the acquittal of the managers and on the imposing of
an immaterial fine on the Company as punishment.
On May 12, 2020 a claim in the amount of NIS 165 million was filed against the Company. The claim
brief alleges that the plaintiff and the Company had an agreement for many years by which the plaintiff
developed and operated a delivery system that served the Company. The plaintiff alleges that the
Company had unilaterally decided to terminate the agreement between them, without providing an
advance notice, while breaching the agreement and its commitments towards the plaintiff, thus causing it
damages in the amount being claimed. The Company included in its financial statements, based on the
opinion of its legal counsel, a provision that sufficiently covers the exposure.
d.

Information on claims subsequent to the reporting date

Five motions to certify consumer claims as class actions in the total amount of NIS 162 million were filed
against the Company. The chances of the claims cannot be assessed at this early stage.
Two motions to certify consumer claims as class actions in the total amount of NIS 1,050 million were
filed against the Company and other defendants, of which one claim in the amount of NIS 1,048 million
is for selling alcohol and for not preventing the sale of alcohol to underage persons by means of the
defendants' websites. The chances of the claims cannot be assessed at this early stage.
In addition, a motion to certify a consumer claim as a class action was filed against the Company and
other defendants, of which an amount of NIS 32 million is attributed to the Company. The chances of the
claim cannot be assessed at this early stage.
Furthermore, four motions to certify consumer claims as class actions in the total amount of NIS 94
million were concluded in settlement agreements, by which the Company is required to pay a total amount
of NIS 3 million.
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Note 17 - Bonds and Credit
This note provides information regarding the contractual terms of the Group’s bonds. Further information
on the Group’s exposure to interest and liquidity risks is included in Note 23.B on financial instruments.
December 31, 2020
Stated
interest rate
on date
of issue
NIS millions

(1) Terms and composition
of the bonds
CPI-linked bonds
listed for trade on
the stock exchange:
Bonds (Series D)
October 2013
Bonds (Series F)
September 2015
Bonds (Series F)
July 2016

Effective
interest rate
on date
of issue
NIS millions

December 31, 2019

Par value (*)
NIS millions

Carrying
amount (**)
NIS millions

Par value (*)
NIS millions

Carrying
amount (**)
NIS millions

2.99%

3.12%

266

266

295

297

4.30%

4.44%

282

283

317

320

4.30%

4.50%

534

535

601

605

5.09%

5.23%

252

253

280

281

5.09%

4.50%

320

332

356

369

5.09%

2.12%

357

408

396

459

3.52%

3.69%

555

558

555

557

3.52%

2.97%

300

314

-

-

Less current maturities

2,866
235

2,949
)***(267

2,800
235

2,888
(***)267

Long-term bonds

2,631

2,682

2,565

2,621

Unlinked bonds
listed for trade on
the stock exchange:
Bonds (Series E)
October 2013
Bonds (Series E)
November 2016
Bonds (Series E)
January 2018
Bonds (Series G)
January 2019
Bonds (Series G)
April 2020

60

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 17 - Bonds and Credit (cont’d)
(1)

Terms and composition of the bonds (cont’d)

(*)
(**)

The par value balance of bonds is in nominal values, unlinked..
The carrying amount of linked bonds
The carrying amount of the principal plus interest discounted according to the effective interest
rate on the date of issue, and linked to the Consumer Price Index, as at the reporting date.
The carrying amount of unlinked bonds
The carrying amount of the principal plus interest discounted according to the effective interest
rate on the date of issue, as at the reporting date.
Includes accrued interest payable in the amount of NIS 32 million (2019: NIS 30 million).

(***)
(2)

On January 17, 2019, according to a shelf offering issued by the Company on January 16, 2019,
the Company issued bonds, by way of a new series (Series G), at a total par value of NIS 555
million. The bond principal will be repaid in eighteen (18) unequal semi-annual payments (with
the principal repaid as follows: six are payments of 2% of the principal, two payments are 3% of
the principal, two payments are 6% of the principal, two payments are 7% of the principal, four
are 9% of the principal and two are 10% of principal), commencing on February 20, 2022 through
August 20, 2030 (inclusive). The bonds bear annual interest of 3.52%, to be paid on the unpaid
principal balance in semi-annual payments commencing on August 20, 2019 (for the entire period
from the issue date) until August 20, 2030 (inclusive). The bond principal and interest thereon
are unlinked. The net issue proceeds (after deducting issue costs of NIS 6 million) amounted to
NIS 549 million. The issue was executed at an effective annual interest rate of 3.69%.

(3)

On April 5, 2020, the Company issued, by way of an expansion (private placement) NIS 300
million par value of Series G bonds. The net issue proceeds (after deducting issue costs of NIS 1
million) amounted to NIS 312 million. The issue was executed at an effective annual interest rate
of 2.97%.

(4)

The Company’s Series D, E, F and G bonds (hereinafter together – “the Bonds”) include a
mechanism adjusting the interest rate to changes in rating, as well as various financial covenants
as described hereunder:
Interest rate adjustment mechanism from change in the rating of Series D, E and F bonds
According to the terms of the Bonds, Series D, E and F, in the event of a change in these Bonds’
rating to one notch lower than ilA (or a comparable rating), the annual interest rate (“the base
interest”) shall increase by 0.25%. In any event of an additional lowering of the rating the annual
interest rate will increase by an additional 0.25% in respect of each notch. In any event, the
addition to the interest rate that is due to the lowering of the rating shall not be more than 1%
above the base interest; all subject to and as detailed in the terms provided in the trust deeds of
the Series D, E and F Bonds.
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Note 17 - Bonds and Credit (cont’d)
(4)

(cont’d)
Interest rate adjustment mechanism from change in the rating of Series G bonds
According to the terms of the Series G bonds, in the event of a change in these Bonds’ rating to
two notches lower than ilAA (or a comparable rating), the annual interest rate (“the base interest”)
shall increase by 0.5%; if the rating will be three notches lower than ilAA, the annual interest rate
shall increase by an additional 0.25%, so it will be equal to the base interest rate plus 0.75%; if
the rating given to the Bonds will be four or more notches lower than ilAA, the annual interest
rate shall increase by an additional 0.25%, so it will be equal to the base interest plus 1%. In any
event the incremental interest rate due to all the lowering of the rating shall not be more than 1%
above the base interest; all subject to and as detailed in the terms provided in the trust deed of the
Series G Bonds.
Cause for immediate repayment in the event of a lowering of the rating; right to early redemption
at the Company’s initiative
According to the terms of the Series D, E and F bonds, if Bond rating is less than “BBB-” (or a
comparable rating) and the rating is not raised within 60 days, this will constitute cause for
immediate repayment. According to the terms of the Series G bonds, if the rating for the Bonds
is lower than “BBB-” (or a comparable rating), this will be cause for immediate repayment.
The terms of the Series D, E F and G bonds also grant the Company the right to initiate early
redemption all or part of the Bonds at its own initiative, all according to the terms provided in the
trust deeds under the terms of which those series of bonds were issued.
Commitment to comply with financial covenants, commitment to not create a current pledge;
cross default
In the framework of the Series D, E, F and G bonds, the Company undertook to comply with
financial covenants as follows (it is noted that the definitions of the terms "net debt" and "annual
EBITDA" that are quoted hereunder in this note are as they appear in the Series G bonds. The
Series D, E and F bonds include definitions with the same meaning but with slightly different
words):
1.

The ratio between the Company’s net (financial) debt (as defined in this context as the
balance of the loans (long-term liabilities and current maturities) to banks, other financial
institutions and bondholders, after deducting cash and cash equivalents, short-term
deposit and marketable securities) and the Company’s total balance sheet, based on the
reviewed or audited consolidated financial statements, as applicable, as at that report date,
shall not exceed 60%.

2.

The Company’s total equity (including non-controlling interests), based on the reviewed
or audited consolidated financial statements, as applicable, as at that report date, shall not
fall below NIS 550 million with respect to Series D, E and F, whereas the limit for Series
G is NIS 800 million.

The Company shall be considered to be in breach of the aforesaid commitments only if it does
not comply with the relevant financial covenants for two consecutive calendar quarters.
As at December 31, 2020, the Company is in compliance with all the aforesaid financial
covenants.
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Note 17 - Bonds and Credit (cont’d)
(4)

(cont’d)
According to the terms of Series G bonds, commencing from the Company’s financial statements
for the second quarter of 2019, in the event of a change in the accounting standards applicable to
the Company in comparison with the accounting standards by which the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the first quarter of 2019 will be prepared (“standards as at the first
quarter of 2019”), and this change has a material effect on the result of the calculation of any of
the financial covenants or the dividend distribution limitation (as aforesaid), the Company will
examine that covenant according to a pro forma statement of financial position and statement of
income, in a summarized format that includes only significant and relevant footnotes, reviewed
(but not audited) based on the standards as at the first quarter of 2019, and will publish them
together, or as part of, the Company’s financial statements. In this context, “material effect”
means a change of at least 7.5% between the real result of the relevant criterion according to the
updated accounting standard imposed on the Company and the result for the criterion according
to the standard as at the first quarter of 2019.
The examination of the effect of the change in the accounting standards applicable to the
Company, compared with the standards as at the first quarter of 2019 will be performed by the
Company on the date the Company publishes its financial statements, and disclosure will be
provided in the Company’s directors’ report, quarterly or annual (as applicable), in any event of
material effect, as noted;
It is noted that the Series D, E and F bonds provide different guidance in this matter, according
to which insofar as the Company does not comply with any of the said financial covenants or
distribution limitations (as aforesaid), and this non-compliance is a result of material changes in
accounting principles applicable to the Company and/or a result of new accounting policies or
new accounting standards that will be adopted by the Company and/or material regulatory
changes related to the format of financial statement presentation, all in comparison with the
situation on the signing date of the trust deeds of the bonds, i.e., were it not for those changes, the
Company would be in compliance with those terms and limitations, then the said changes will
not be taken into account for the purpose of examining the Company’s compliance with the
financial covenants and limitations on making distributions.
Within the framework of the trust deeds, the Company committed not to create a floating lien on
all of its assets in favor of any third party, except under the terms provided in the bonds.
It is also noted that among the causes for immediate repayment that are included in the Bonds is
also the event of another debt of the Company (that is not a debt to holders of any of the
Company’s series of Bonds) to a bank or any financial institution (including an institutional body)
being called for immediate repayment, providing that the total amount called for immediate
repayment as aforesaid is higher than NIS 300 million; an additional cause is another outstanding
series of Bonds issued by the Company being called for immediate repayment (not by the
Company). The trust deeds of the Series D and E Bonds only limit the last cause and state that
the amount of the other outstanding series called for immediate repayment must be at least NIS
40 million, all subject to and as detailed in the trust deeds of the Bonds.
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Note 17 - Bonds and Credit (cont’d)
(4)

(cont’d)
Restrictions on dividend distribution
In the Bonds, the Company undertook to not distribute a dividend to its shareholders and/or to
purchase its own shares and/or to make any other distribution per its definition in the Companies
Law:
1.

Insofar as the result of such a distribution is that the Company’s total equity (including
non-controlling interests) according to the Company’s most recent consolidated financial
statements, reviewed or audited, as applicable, as at the distribution date is less than NIS
750 million with respect to Series D, E and F, while for Series G the limit is NIS 1,000
million.

2.

Insofar as following such a distribution the ratio between the Company’s net (financial)
debt (per its definition above), according to the most recent audited or reviewed (as
relevant) consolidated financial statements of the Company issued before the date of the
distribution, and the Company’s annual EBITDA (per its definition hereunder), taking
into consideration such a distribution, is higher than 7 with respect to Series D, E and F,
while for Series G the limit is 5.
In this context, “annual EBITDA” is defined as the cumulative amount over a period of
the last four (4) calendar quarters preceding the distribution date of the Company’s
operating profit (before other expenses and income), plus depreciation and amortization,
calculated according to the data included in the Company’s reviewed or audited (as
relevant) consolidated financial statements for the last four (4) quarters preceding the
date of the distribution.

3.

Insofar as on the date the Company’s Board of Directors decided on the aforesaid
distribution according to the provisions of the law, the Company is in breach of any of
its commitments to comply with the financial covenants required from it in the trust deed
or any of the causes provided in the trust deed for calling for immediate repayment has
occurred (while for Series G it was provided that the period of negotiations toward
resolution in the trust deed will not be taken into account). For Series G additional
distribution limitations were provided, including that no distribution will be made if on
the date of the Company’s board of directors’ resolution on the distribution, the Company
does not comply with any of the material obligations with respect to the Series G bonds.
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Note 17 - Bonds and Credit (cont’d)
(5)

As at the date of issuing the financial statements, the Company has agreements with four banking
institutions (with each one separately) to provide to the Company a guaranteed credit facility for
periods ending between March and May 2021, of up to an amount of NIS 200 million from each
banking institution (and in total from all the banking institutions – NIS 800 million), that may be
utilized by short-term credit withdrawals. As at December 31, 2020 and the date of issuing the
financial statements these credit facilities are not utilized.
Furthermore, the Company is in the process of negotiating renewal of the credit facilities with the
banking institutions or with part of them for two additional years, with the overall amount of the
bank credit (in aggregate) being up to NIS 400 million. As at the date of issuing the financial
statements binding agreements extending the credit facilities have not yet been signed with the
banking institutions. These facility agreements include financial covenants and restrictions on
dividend distributions similar to the covenants and limitations in the Company’s Series G Bonds
discussed above. Likewise, the facility agreements include a commitment to not create a current
pledge. It is noted that the causes for immediate repayment that are included in those framework
agreements also include that of a change/creation of control in the Company. This cause is not
found in the Company’s bonds.

Note 18 - Employee Benefits
Post-employment benefits include benefits for retirement bonuses, gifts for retirees and future retiring
employees (for the years after their future retirement) and sick leave.
As regards post-employment employee benefits, the Group has defined benefit plans for which it deposits
amounts in individual severance pay funds and appropriate insurance policies.
Furthermore the Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of part of its employees who are
subject to Section 14 of the Severance Pay Law – 1963.
As regards share-based payments see Note 22 and as regards benefits to key management employees see
Note 33.D.
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Note 18 - Employee Benefits (cont’d)
Composition of employee benefits:
December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

58
29

41
28

20
273

226

380

295

162
34
54
21

145
32
51
20

271

248

6

6

December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

535
(264)

510
(262)

271

248

133
68
25
38

124
70
30
38

264

262

Presented under current liabilities – other payables:
Liability to employees for paid vacation
Liability to employees for recreation allowance
Liability to employees from managers
retention program
Liability to employees for salary

Presented under non-current liabilities – employee benefits:
Severance pay
Retirement bonus
Gifts to retirees and employees after retirement
Bonus for non-utilized sick leave

Presented under non-current liabilities – other liabilities:
Retention program
A.

Post-employment benefit plans – defined benefit plans

Composition
Total present value of obligations (1)
Less fair value of plan assets (1)
Total net liability recognized in respect of
defined benefit plan
Plan assets (insurance policies and central funds)
comprise as follows:
Government bonds
Corporate bonds
Equity instruments
Cash
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Note 18 - Employee Benefits (cont’d)
A.

Post-employment benefit plans – defined benefit plans (cont’d)

(1)

Movement in defined benefit liabilities (assets) and in their components
Defined benefit
obligation
2020
2019

Balance as at January 1
Expense (income) recognized
in profit or loss:
Current service cost
Interest costs
Other
Recognized in other
comprehensive income:
Actuarial losses from
changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial gains from
changes in demographic
assumptions
Other actuarial losses
Actual return less interest
income

Fair value of
plans assets
2020
NIS millions

2019

Total net liability recognized
in respect of defined
benefit plan
2020
2019

510

443

(262)

(244)

248

199

31
10
(8)

28
15
-

(5)
7

(8)
-

31
5
)1(

28
7
-

15

41

-

-

15

41

)2(
13

10

-

-

)2(
13

10

-

-

(3)

(12)

(3)

(12)

Other movements:
Benefits paid
Contributions, net

(34)
-

(27)
-

13
(14)

13
(11)

(21)
(14)

(14)
(11)

Balance as at December 31

535

510

(264)

(262)

271

248

(2)

Actual return
Actual return on plans assets was 3% in 2020 (2019 - 9%, 2018 - 1%).
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Note 18 - Employee Benefits (cont’d)
A.

Post-employment benefit plans – defined benefit plans (cont’d)

(3)

Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis
Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages):

Real discount rate as at December 31
Nominal discount rate as at December 31
Real future salary growth rate

2020
%

2019
%

2018
%

0.2-1.3
1.5-2.9
0-3.0

0-1.6
1.4-2.9
0-3.0

1.4-2.2
2.8-4.6
0-3.0

The calculations are based on demographic assumptions as follows:
1)
2)

The assumptions regarding future mortality rates are based on published statistics and
mortality tables.
Employee turnover rates are based on an analysis of historical data.

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions, holding
other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts
shown below:
December 31
One percentage point increase
One percentage point decrease
2020
2019
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Future salary growth rate
Discount rate

41
(48)

39
(46)

(38)
54

(37)
51

A change in 10% in the turnover rate would not have a material effect on the defined benefit
obligation.
(4)

Effect of the plan on the Group’s future cash flows
The Group expects NIS 16.5 million in contributions to be paid to the funded defined benefit plan
in 2021.
The Group estimates the plan’s duration (based on weighted average) to be 10.58 years at the end
of the reporting period (2019: 10.64 years).
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Note 18 - Employee Benefits (cont’d)
B.

Post-employment benefit plans – defined contribution plan
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Amount recognized as expense in
respect of defined contribution plans (*)
(*)

50

44

2018
NIS millions

44

The Group has defined contribution plans in respect of part of its employees who are
subject to Section 14 of the Severance Pay Law – 1963 with respect to a certain part of
the obligation. The Group’s contributions in respect of defined contribution plans that are
deposits in respect of employees who are subject to Section 14 are recognized as expenses
in the statement of income.

Note 19 - Other Liabilities

Liability for betterment fee to the Israel Lands
Authority in respect of investment property
Long-term deferred income
Liability in respect of put option to purchase
non-controlling interests in subsidiary (see Note 5.C)
Derivative financial instruments
Liability to employees in respect of managers
retention program
Other

December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

28
5

34
6

2
2

2
2

6
6

6
2

49

52
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Note 20 - Equity
A.

Share capital
Composition of the share capital: ordinary shares of NIS 0.1 par value
2020

2019

2018

Authorized
Issued and paid-in
Balance as of January 1
Issuance of shares to employees in
respect of vesting of restricted shares
during the period (1)
Exercise of option warrants (see Note 22.C)

400,000,000

400,000,000

400,000,000

247,021,217

247,021,217

245,071,215

77,560
-

-

1,950,002

Balance as at December 31

247,098,777

247,021,217

247,021,217

8,864,801

8,864,801

8,864,801

Treasury shares
(1)

The first portion of the restricted share units that had been granted in the framework of the 2019
equity compensation plan vested on May 28, 2020. As a result, the Company issued to the then
Company's Chairman of the Board, CEO and seven other officers 77,560 ordinary shares of
NIS 0.1 par value.

B.

Dividends
The following dividends were declared and paid by the Company:
Date of the
Board of
Directors’
decision to pay
the dividend

The amount of
the dividend
(NIS millions)

NIS per share

Mar. 19, 2020

80
80

0.34
0.34

April 27, 2020

Mar. 17, 2019

160
160

0.67
0.67

April 8, 2019

Payment date
of the dividend

In 2020:

In 2019:

All the aforesaid distributions were made in cash and did not require court approval.
See Note 34.C hereunder for details regarding the announcement of a dividend distribution by
the Company’s Board of Directors subsequent to the reporting date.
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Note 21 - Earnings Per Share
The par value of shares and the profit that were used to calculate the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share are as follows:
Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share was based on the profit attributable to the Company’s ordinary
shareholders divided by a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, calculated as follows:
Year ended December 31
2020
2019

Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders (in NIS thousands)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(in thousands of shares)
Balance as at January 1
Less treasury shares (see Note 20.A)
Add shares issued during the period (see Note 20.A)
Add options exercised into shares weighted
to the period
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (in NIS)

2018

387,000

269,000

265,000

247,021
)8,865(
46

247,021
(8,865)
-

245,071
)8,865(
-

-

-

182

238,202

238,156

236,388

1.62

1.13

1.12

Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share was based on profit attributable to the Company’s ordinary
shareholders divided by a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated as follows:
Year ended December 31
2020
2019

Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders (in NIS thousands)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(in thousands of shares)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate basic earnings per share
Add effect of restricted share units not yet issued
(see Note 22)
Add effect of share options not yet exercised
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share (in NIS)

2018

387,000

269,000

265,000

238,202

238,156

236,388

82
-

35
-

1,036

238,284

238,191

237,424

1.62

1.13

1.12
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Note 21 - Earnings Per Share (cont’d)
The average market value of the Company’s shares for purposes of calculating the dilutive effect of share
options and restricted share units was based on quoted market prices for the period that the options and
restricted share units were outstanding.

Note 22 - Share-Based Payments
A.

General

On May 28, 2019 the Company's board of directors resolved to approve the “Shufersal Ltd – Equity
Compensation Plan 2019” (hereinafter – “the Plan") and to submit it to the Tax Authority, as well as to
approve the allotment of 5,075 thousand stock options (hereinafter – “the options”) and 310 thousand
restricted performance share units (hereinafter – “restricted share units"), non-marketable, to the
Chairman (former) and CEO of the Company, subject to approval by the general meeting of shareholders,
and to seven other officers of the Company (hereinafter – “the offerees”). Out of the said amount, 554
thousand options and 34 thousand restricted share units were allotted to the Company’s Chairman
(former) and 1,661 thousand options and 102 thousand restricted share units were allotted to the
Company’s CEO. The options and restricted share units for the offerees are offered under the terms of
the Plan and in accordance with the provisions of the capital gains track prescribed in Section 102(B)(2)
(“capital gains track”) of the Income Tax Ordinance, and will be deposited with a trustee for the periods
prescribed in Section 102(B)(2) of the Ordinance. The options and restricted share units were granted for
no consideration. The grant date value of the options and restricted share units was estimated at NIS 27.8
million. On July 16, 2019 the Company's general meeting of shareholders approved the allotment to the
Company's Chairman (former) and CEO. See Note 34.B hereunder for details regarding an equity
compensation plan for new officers subsequent to the reporting date.
Type of
f instrument

Terms of the instrument

Number of
instruments (in
thousands)

Each option may be exercised for one 5,075
ordinary share, NIS 0.1 par value, at an
exercise price of NIS 25.97 (exercise price
will be dividend-adjusted). Exercise of the
option will be executed in shares in the “net
exercise” format.
Restricted
Each restricted share unit will be 310
share units automatically realized for one ordinary share,
NIS 0.1 par value, with no exercise fee,
provided that the following two performance
conditions are met: [a] Company’s total
revenues (from all activities) in the last
calendar year ending before the relevant
vesting date (hereinafter – “measurement
year”) are at least 90% of the Company’s
revenues in the calendar year preceding the
measurement year; and [b] the profit (after
tax) attributed to the Company’s shareholders
in the measurement year is at least NIS 230
million for the year 2019 and NIS 240 million
for the other years.
*Commencing from date of board of directors’ approval, May 28, 2019.
Option
warrants

Vesting terms*

Will vest in 4
equal annual
installments

Will vest in 4
equal annual
tranches

Contractual
duration
of the instrument*

4 years – first and
second tranches
5 years – third
tranche
6 years – fourth
tranche
Restricted share
units will be
realized
automatically on
the relevant
vesting date
(provided that the
performance
conditions are met)
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Note 22 - Share-Based Payments (cont'd)
A.

General (cont'd)

Presented hereunder are the parameters that were used to measure the grant date fair value in 2019
of equity-settled share-based payment plans:
Options to
officers other
than the CEO
and Chairman
of the Board

Grant date fair value (in NIS)
Grant date share price (in NIS)
Exercise price (in NIS)
Expected volatility (%)
Average expected life (in years)
Risk-free interest rate (%)
Dividend yield of restricted
share units (%)
B.

Options to the
CEO and
Chairman of
the Board

Restricted share
units to officers
other than the
CEO and
Chairman of
the Board

Restricted share
units to the CEO
and Chairman
of the Board

4.02
23.75
25.97
21.60
4.75
0.84-1.21

4.24
24.44
25.97
21.20
4.75
0.66-1

22.16
23.75
2.5
-

22.85
24.44
2.5
-

-

-

2.83

2.75

Information on fair value measurement of share-based payment plans

The fair value of the options and restricted share units, for the purposes of the Company’s accounting
recognition, was determined on the grant date, in accordance with the following:
The fair value of the options is measured using the Black & Scholes method. The model’s assumptions
include the share price on the measurement date, the instrument’s exercise price, expected volatility
(based on the weighted average of the historical volatility in the Company’s share price over the expected
option term), the expected life of the instruments (life of the option for all the offerees will be based on
the assumption that all the options will be exercised on the last day of the exercise period) and the riskfree interest rate (based on shekel-denominated Government bonds, with a remaining life equal to the
expected life of the options). Service conditions are not taken into account when determining fair value.
The fair value of the restricted share units is measured in accordance with the share’s value on the
revaluation date, after deducting the dividend expectations until the vesting date of each tranche. Service
conditions and performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the fair value of
restricted share units.
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Note 22 - Share-Based Payments (cont'd)
C.

Composition and additional information

1.

Share options
Weighted
average
exercise
price
2020

January 1
Exercised during
the year (1)
Expired during the
year (2)
Granted during the year
December 31

2.

Number of
options
2020

Weighted
average
exercise
price
2019

Number of
options
2019

Weighted
average
exercise
price
2018

Number of
options
2018

25.97

5,074,628

-

-

10.23

1,950,002

-

-

-

-

9.55

)1,950,002(

25.63

)415,197(
4,659,431

25.97
25.97

5,074,628
5,074,628

-

-

Restricted share units
Number of restricted share units
2020
2019

Outstanding as at January 1
Exercised during the year
Expired during the year (2)
Granted during the year

310,240
)77,560(
)25,383(
-

310,240

Outstanding as at December 31

207,297

310,240

(1)

The weighted average share price in 2018 for share options exercised in that year was NIS 23.16.

(2)

On November 25 Mr. Mauricio Wior concluded his term as the Company's chairman of the board
and director. As a result 415,197 option warrants and 25,383 restricted share units have expired.

D.

Salary expenses in respect of share-based payment arrangements
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Total expense recognized as salary
expense for share-based payments

9

8

2018
NIS millions

1
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments
A.
1.

Management of financial risks
Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:




Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk (including currency risk, interest risk, linkage risk and other price risk)

This note presents qualitative information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, and the
Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. Additional quantitative
disclosure is included in these consolidated financial statements, see Note 23.B.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework. The Company has an Investment Committee, which is responsible for
establishing the Group’s financial risk management policies and for supervising and monitoring the
application of these policies by management.
The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group
and to monitor these risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its
training and procedures, aims to develop an efficient control environment in which all relevant employees
understand their roles and obligations.
The Investment Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes
both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the Audit Committee.
2.

Credit risk

Trade and other receivables
The Group does not have significant concentrations of credit risk as a result of the Group’s policy that
ensures that retail sales are usually made in cash or in credit cards, as well as the wide spread of the
Group’s customers that materially reduces the credit risk.
The Group has a procedure for providing customer credit. According to the procedure the customer
provides documents that identify the customer, details of authorized buyers and receipt of personal
collateral such as security checks, a bank guarantee, personal guarantees or debt note or third party
security, if necessary. Obligo approval authorities are granted according to credit amounts from the credit
risk and collection manager up to the CFO, and credit customer aging is monitored monthly.
The Group establishes a provision for expected credit losses that represents its expected credit losses in
respect of trade and other receivables.
The main components of this provision are specific loss components that relate to individually significant
exposures.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
A.

Management of financial risks (cont’d)

2.

Credit risk (cont’d)

Investments
As at the reporting date, the Company’s securities portfolio is comprised of corporate bonds held for the
purpose of collecting contractual cash flows which for the better part are rated at least -AA.
The Company’s investment policy, as was approved by the Company’s Investment Committee in January
2018 is as follows: [a] money intended for the repayment of bonds, investments and current payments
within a period of 6 months will be invested in bank deposits according to cash flow needs; [b] money
intended for such needs after more than 6 months will be invested according to a revised investment
policy that mainly provides as follows: up to 15% of the Company’s investment portfolio (and not more
than NIS 30 million) may be invested in shares tracks as follows: ETF’s/funds that track share indices
(mainly the TA 35 Index, TA 90 Index and TA 125 index) (it is noted that the policies enable investment
of up to 20% of the shares track in the investment portfolio in ETF’s in the US and Europe); at least 55%
of the investment portfolio will be invested in government bonds, bank deposits and short-term bills with
the balance (up to 30% of the portfolio) being invested mainly in corporate bonds rated A and higher.
Derivatives
The counterparties of the derivatives held by the Company are banks rated ilAA/Stable to ilAAA/Stable
based on the rating of S&P Maalot.
3.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity risks is to ensure, to the extent possible, that it has sufficient
liquidity to meet it liabilities when due. The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet
expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial obligations. This excludes the
potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted
4.

Market risks

The objective of managing market risks is to manage and supervise the exposure to market risks within
acceptable parameters.
In the ordinary course of business the Company enters into hedging transaction in order to manage market
risks. All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the Investment Committee.
Currency risk
The Group primarily operates in NIS. It manages its currency exposure that derives from fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates in respect of liabilities and cash flows denominated in a foreign currency
mainly with respect to imported goods denominated in dollar and euro. The Group took actions to reduce
the currency exposure by executing hedging transactions. See also Note 23.B(3) regarding balances of
hedging transactions.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
A.

Management of financial risks (cont’d)

4.

Market risks (cont’d)

Linkage risk
The Group is exposed to linkage risk mainly in respect of CPI-linked bonds that were issued by the Group
and CPI-linked lease liabilities. In order to reduce this exposure the Company entered into swap
transactions that swap CPI-linked NIS cash flows with fixed NIS cash flows in respect of the Company's
Series F bonds.
Forward contracts:
The Group sometimes hedges the risk inherent in CPI-linked bonds and lease liabilities by executing
hedging transactions as decided by the Investment Committee. As at the reporting date, the Company
does not have any balances of futures contracts that are CPI-linked forward contracts.
B.

Financial instruments

1.

Credit risk

(a)

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:
December 31
2020
2019
Carrying amount in NIS millions

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Investment in debt instruments
Trade receivables
Capital note to associate
Loan to associate
Other receivables (*)

(*)

480
400
87
1,494
37
29
134

55
300
97
1,373
37
30
174

2,661

2,066

The balance of short-term and long-term other receivables does not include prepaid
expenses, advances to suppliers, advance payment to institutions on account of claim and
insurance assets in the amount of NIS 92 million and NIS 102 million as at December
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

1.

Credit risk (cont’d)

(a)

Exposure to credit risk (cont’d)
Composition of the Group’s trade receivables:
December 31
2020
2019
Carrying amount in NIS millions

Credit card companies
Checks and notes receivable
Open credit and other, net

(b)

1,307
42
145

1,127
38
208

1,494

1,373

Aging of debts and impairment losses
The aging of debts of trade receivables is as follows:
December 31
2020

Not past due
Past due 0-30 days
Past due 31 days to one year
Past due more than one year

2019

Gross
NIS millions

Provision for
impairment
NIS millions

Gross
NIS millions

Provision for
impairment
NIS millions

1,488
4
19
22

)14(
)1(
)13(
)11(

1,256
32
39
69

(2)
(2)
(19)

1,533

)39(

1,396

(23)

The movement in the provision for impairment in respect of trade receivables was as follows:
December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Impairment loss recognized
Bad debt recognized

)23(
)16(
*-

(21)
(2)
-

Balance as at December 31

)39(

(23)

*

Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

1.

Credit risk (cont’d)

(b)

Aging of debts and impairment losses (cont’d)
Doubtful debts and impairment losses
Expected credit losses are recorded against a provision for impairment. If the Group is satisfied
that there is no possibility of collecting the debt, the amount that cannot be collected is deducted
from the total amount of the impairment provision against the financial asset. Management of the
Group regularly monitors the customer debts, and the financial statements include provisions for
impairment that appropriately reflect, in the assessment of management, the expected credit
losses.

2.

Liquidity risk

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities and financial instruments at
undiscounted amounts, including principal payments and estimated future interest payments (*).
December 31, 2020

4-5 years
NIS millions

More than
5 years
NIS millions

Total
contractual
cash flow
NIS millions

)746(
)12(

)715(
)3(

)1,701(
11

)3,517(
)4(
)12(

)758(

)718(

)1,690(

)3,533(

Total
contractual
cash flow
NIS millions

Carrying
amount
NIS millions

Up to
one year
NIS millions

2-3 years
NIS millions

Bonds (**)
Forward contracts
Interest rate swap

)2,949(
)4(
)12(

)355(
)4(
)8(

Total

)2,965(

)367(

December 31, 2019
Carrying
amount
NIS millions

Up to
one year
NIS millions

2-3 years
NIS millions

4-5 years
NIS millions

More than
5 years
NIS millions

Bonds (**)
Forward contracts
Interest rate swap

(2,888)
(12)
9

(356)
(10)
(8)

(702)
(2)
(9)

(681)
-

(1,764)
26

(3,503)
(12)
9

Total

(2,891)

(374)

(713)

(681)

(1,738)

(3,506)

(*)

1. Contractual cash flow includes the effect of the CPI at the reporting date.
2. Liabilities in respect of trade payables and other payables were not reflected in this table since
these credit balances are paid by the Company up to six months from the reporting date.
3. A liability in respect of the acquisition of partnership interests, as mentioned in Note 15, in the
overall amount of NIS 73 million as at December 31, 2019 and which was paid in the reporting
period, is not reflected in the aforesaid table.
4. See Note 29 for information on the contractual payment dates of lease liabilities.

(**)

Carrying amount includes accrued interest.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

3.

Linkage and foreign currency risks

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments, as recorded on the books
The Group’s exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk is as follows:
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Other investments
Inventory
Non-current assets:
Other receivables
Investment in associate
Loan to associate
Other investments
Investment property
Property, plant and
equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Deferred taxes

December 31, 2020
Foreign currency
Mainly dollar
NIS millions

Non-monetary
item
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

477
400
1,494
24
7
-

21
5
-

3
-

92
939

480
400
1,494
137
12
939

26
37
29
54
-

63
33
-

-

23
792

89
60
29
87
792

-

-

-

3,186
3,852
1,335
133

3,186
3,852
1,335
133

2,548

122

3

10,352

13,025
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

3.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont’d)

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments, as recorded on the books (cont’d)
The Group’s exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk is as follows: (cont’d)
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

December 31, 2020
Foreign currency
Mainly dollar
NIS millions

Non-monetary
item
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

Current liabilities:
Current maturities in
respect of bonds
Current maturities of
lease liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables
Provisions

126

141

-

-

267

2,267
512
58

359
6
-

1
66
4
-

568
-

360
2,333
1,090
58

Non-current liabilities:
Bonds
Lease liabilities
Employee benefits, net
Other liabilities
Deferred taxes

1,739
4
271
13
-

943
3,535
2
-

5
-

34
136

2,682
3,544
271
49
136

-

-

-

2,235

2,235

4,990

4,986

76

2,973

13,025

)2,442(

)4,864(

)73(

7,339

-

Equity

Net exposure (*)
(*)

The net exposure does not include off-balance sheet liabilities.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

3.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont'd)

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments, as recorded on the books (cont'd)
The Group’s exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk is as follows: (cont’d)
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Other investments
Inventory
Non-current assets:
Other receivables
Investment in associate
Loan to associate
Other investments
Investment property
Property, plant and
equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Deferred taxes

December 31, 2019
Foreign currency
Mainly dollar
NIS millions

Non-monetary
item
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

51
300
1,373
44
4
-

24
5
-

4
-

92
910

55
300
1,373
160
9
910

24
55
30
57
-

84
39
-

-

8
9
721

116
64
30
96
721

-

-

-

3,101
3,596
1,306
113

3,101
3,596
1,306
113

1,938

152

4

9,856

11,950

82

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

3.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont’d)

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments, as recorded on the books (cont’d)
The Group’s exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk is as follows: (cont’d)
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current liabilities:
Credit from banks
Current maturities in
respect of bonds
Current maturities of
lease liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables
Liability for acquisition
of partnership interests
Provisions
Non-current liabilities:
Bonds
Lease liabilities
Employee benefits, net
Other liabilities
Deferred taxes
Equity

Net exposure (*)
(*)

December 31, 2019
Foreign currency
Mainly dollar
NIS millions

Non-monetary
item
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

93

-

-

-

93

124

143

-

-

267

1,974
383

341
-

1
81
10

439

342
2,055
832

73
43

-

-

-

73
43

1,543
4
248
9
-

1,078
3,268
-

6
2
-

41
132

2,621
3,278
248
52
132

-

-

-

1,914

1,914

4,494

4,830

100

2,526

11,950

(2,556)

(4,678)

(96)

7,330

-

The net exposure does not include off-balance sheet liabilities.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

3.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis
A change in the CPI would have affected the equity and the profit or loss at the amounts presented below.
This analysis assumes that other variables remain constant. This analysis does not include off-balance
sheet liabilities with regard to the Group’s commitments.
December 31, 2020
Change in
equity
Pre-tax loss
NIS millions
NIS millions

)37(
37

Increase of 1% in CPI
Decrease of 1% in CPI

December 31, 2019
Change in
equity
Pre-tax loss
NIS millions
NIS millions

)49(
49

(36)
36

(47)
47

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is immaterial.
Presented hereunder are the Group’s derivative financial instruments as at December 31, 2020:

Hedge description
Hedges of foreign currency
linked transactions:
Forward – hedge of imported
goods
Forward – hedge of imported
goods and property under
construction
Instrument serving as
accounting hedge:
Interest rate swap

Currency
receivable

Currency
payable

Par value
NIS millions

Dollar

NIS

60

Euro

NIS

209

-

-

533
802

Beginning of
transaction

Date of
expiration/
exercise

Fair value
NIS millions

June- Dec.
2020
March
2019Dec. 2020

Jan.-Dec.
2021

)3(

Jan. 2021July 2022

)1(

Aug.-Nov.
2016

Oct. 2028

(12)
)16(
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

3.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont’d)

Presented hereunder are the Group’s derivative financial instruments as at December 31, 2019:

Hedge description

Currency
receivable

Hedges of foreign currency
linked transactions:
Forward – hedge of imported
goods
Forward – hedge of imported
goods and property under
construction
Instrument serving as
accounting hedge:
Interest rate swap

4.

Currency
payable

Par value
NIS millions

Beginning of
transaction

Date of
expiration/
exercise

Fair value
NIS millions

Jan.-Nov.
2020

(1)

(11)

Dollar

NIS

104

Feb.- Dec.
2019

Euro

NIS

301

June 2018Dec. 2019

Jan. 2020July 2022

-

-

Aug.-Nov.
2016

Oct. 2028

600
1,005

9
(3)

Interest rate risk

Interest profile
As at December 31, 2020 and 2019 the Group’s interest-bearing financial liabilities are fixed-rate
financial liabilities.
5.

Fair value

Financial instruments measured at fair value for disclosure purposes only
The carrying amounts of certain financial assets and liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, other receivables, other short-term investments, derivatives, trade payables, other payables
and short-term loans and borrowing are the same or proximate to their fair value. The fair values of the
bonds, the value of the investment in debt instruments and the carrying amounts shown in the statement
of financial position, are as follows:
December 31, 2020
Carrying
amount
Fair value*
NIS millions
NIS millions

Bonds (including accrued
interest)
Debt instruments at
amortized cost
*

December 31, 2019
Carrying
amount
Fair value*
NIS millions
NIS millions

)2,949(

)3,380(

(2,888)

(3,326)

87

90

97

99

The fair value of the bonds and debt instruments at amortized cost is their value on the stock
exchange (level 1).
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

5.

Fair value (cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value
The table hereunder presents the financial assets that are measured at fair value, using a valuation method.
The various levels are defined as follows:
Level 1: fair value measured by quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
Level 2: fair value measured by inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: fair value measured by inputs that are not based on observable market data.
Level 1

Financial assets
Interest rate swap
Investment*
Financial liabilities
Interest rate swap
Forward

*

December 31, 2020
Level 2
Level 3
NIS millions

Total

Level 1

December 31, 2019
Level 2
Level 3
NIS millions

Total

-

-

12
12

12
12

-

9
9

8
8

9
8
17

-

)12(
)4(
)16(

-

)12(
)4(
(16(

-

)12(
)12(

-

)12(
)12(

-

)16(

12

)4(

-

)3(

8

5

Investments in non-marketable shares of Wholesale Market for Agricultural Produce in Tel Aviv
Ltd. and Shopic Technologies Ltd. in the amount of NIS 8 million and NIS 4 million, respectively.
The investments are accounted for as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
Presented hereunder is the development in the balance of the investment with respect to a financial
instrument measured at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Acquisitions
Losses recognized in profit and loss
Balance as at December 31

8
4

9
-

12

(1)
8

Fair value sensitivity analysis of level 3 financial instruments carried at fair value
In the opinion of management, a reasonably possible change in one or more unobservable inputs would
not have caused a material change in the fair value.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

6.

Changes in financial liabilities whose cash flows are classified as cash flows from financing
activities:
Bonds
including
current
maturity and
accrued
interest
NIS millions

Credit from
banks
NIS millions

Swap
transactions
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1, 2019

-

6

)2,534(

(2,528)

Cash flows paid (received), net
Amounts recognized in equity
Amounts recognized in profit
and loss

(93)
-

10
1

(236)
-

(319)
1

-

(8)

)118(

(126)

Balance as at January 1, 2020

(93)

9

)2,888(

(2,972)

Cash flows paid (received), net
Amounts recognized in equity
Amounts recognized in profit
and loss

93
-

9
)16(

48
-

150
)16(

-

)14(

)109(

)123(

-

)12(

)2,949(

)2,961(

Balance as at December 31, 2020

Total
NIS millions
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Note 24 - Revenues and Rental Fees
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Revenue from retail segment (*)
Rental revenue from investment property
Revenue from Be operations

(*)

14,371
51
811

12,603
51
706

12,246
49
552

15,233

13,360

12,847

Of the total sales at the Company's stores in 2020, 19.9% is from online sales (compared with
15% in 2019) and 25.8% is from private label sales (compared with 25.2% in 2019).

Note 25 - Selling, Marketing, General and Administrative Expenses
A.

Selling and marketing expenses
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Salaries and related expenses
Rent, management fees and municipal taxes
Depreciation and amortization
Advertising expenses and sales promotion
Cleaning, maintenance and electricity
Credit fees
Transportation and motor vehicles
Security expenses and computers
Other expenses

1,284
244
685
148
347
111
61
57
130

1,176
234
653
164
345
89
58
55
110

1,086
586
278
201
335
88
55
54
123

3,067

2,884

2,806
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Note 25 - Selling, Marketing, General and Administrative Expenses (cont’d)
B.

General and administrative expenses
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Salaries and related expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Maintenance and computers
Consultancy services
Provision for expected credit losses
Other expenses

97
29
28
30
16
58

82
19
24
26
4
49

67
15
26
28
1
45

258

204

182

Note 26 - Other Income (Expenses), Net
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Income (expenses) allocated to liability
to institutions (1)
Recovery of value of
property, plant and equipment
Capital loss
Rebranding expenses of the Be chain (2)
Other income (expenses), net

(1)
(2)

16

(1)

)6(

)1(
)1(

(1)
(1)

4
)3(
)23(
1

14

(3)

)27(

See Note 7.B(3)
Mainly advertising, branding and design of the stores for the new brand and launching of
renovated branches.
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Note 27 - Financing Expenses, Net
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Interest expenses on lease liabilities
Interest and CPI-linkage expenses on bonds
Interest expenses on post-employment
benefits plan
Expenses on hedging transactions
Bank expenses and management fees
Other expenses
Total financing expenses before deduction of
capitalized borrowing costs
Borrowing costs capitalized to qualifying assets
Financing expenses recognized in profit or loss
Income from foreign exchange differences
and other investments
Financing income from installment sale
transactions
Interest income from employee benefits plan assets
Interest income on leases
Interest income and other
Financing income recognized in profit or loss
Financing expenses, net

)106(
)109(

(112)
(118)

)106(

)10(
)15(
)7(
)7(

(15)
(26)
(5)
(9)

)14(
)7(
)5(

)254(
9
)245(

(285)
6
(279)

)132(
2
)130(

-

2

-

1
5
1
6
13

8
6
4
20

1
8
5
14

)232(

(259)

)116(

90

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 28 - Income Tax
A.

Details regarding the tax environment of the Group

(1)

Corporate tax rate
The tax rate relevant to the Company in the years 2018-2020 is 23%.
On January 4, 2016 the Knesset (the Israeli parliament) plenum passed the Law for the
Amendment of the Income Tax Ordinance (Amendment 216) - 2016, by which, inter alia, the
corporate tax rate would be reduced by 1.5% to a rate of 25% as from January 1, 2016.
Furthermore, on December 22, 2016 the Knesset plenum passed the Economic Efficiency Law
(Legislative Amendments for Achieving Budget Objectives in the Years 2017 and 2018) – 2016,
by which, inter alia, the corporate tax rate would be reduced from 25% to 23% in two steps. The
first step will be to a rate of 24% as from January 2017 and the second step will be to a rate of
23% as from January 2018.
As a result of the reduction in the tax rate to 23% in two steps, the deferred tax balances as at
December 31, 2019 and 2020 were calculated according to the new tax rate specified in the
Economic Efficiency Law (Legislative Amendments for Achieving Budget Objectives in the
Years 2017 and 2018), at the tax rate expected to apply on the date of reversal.
Current taxes for the reported periods are calculated according to the tax rates presented above.

(2)

Non-application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for tax purposes
The Company prepares its financial statements beginning on January 1, 2008 in accordance with
IFRS.
IFRS differ from accounting principles generally accepted in Israel and accordingly, the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS may reflect a financial position,
results of operations and cash flows that are materially different from those presented in financial
statements presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Israel.
According to temporary provisions that were issued in 2010, 2012 and 2014 (hereinafter - the
temporary provisions), Accounting Standard No. 29 of the Israel Accounting Standards Board
regarding adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) does not apply to the
determination of taxable income in 2007-2013, even if IFRS was adopted in the relevant tax years.
The meaning of the temporary provisions is that IFRSs do not apply in practice when calculating
the income reported for tax purposes for the relevant tax years.
In 2014, an updated law memorandum was published in connection with the amendment to the
Income Tax Ordinance (hereinafter - the law memorandum) resulting from application of IFRS
in financial statements. Generally, the law memorandum adopts IFRS. However, it suggests
several amendments to the Income Tax Ordinance that will serve to clarify and determine the
manner of computing taxable income for tax purposes in cases where the manner of computation
is unclear and IFRS is incompatible with the principles of the tax method applied in Israel. The
legislation process involving the law memorandum has not been completed, and is unlikely to be
completed in the near future.
Taking into consideration the temporary provisions that apply to the 2007-2013 tax years and the
Company's assessment of the probability that they will be extended also to the 2014-2020 tax
years, as aforesaid, the Company calculated its taxable income for 2008-2020 on the basis of the
Israeli accounting standards that existed prior to the adoption of IFRS in Israel, subject to certain
adjustments.
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Note 28 - Income Tax (cont’d)
A.

Details regarding the tax environment of the Group (cont’d)

(3)

Benefits under the Law for the Encouragement of Industry
Gidron Industries Ltd., a subsidiary, qualifies as an “Industrial Company” as defined in the Law
for the Encouragement of Industry (Taxes) – 1969 and accordingly it is entitled to, inter alia,
higher rates of depreciation.

B.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The movement in deferred tax assets (liabilities) is attributable to the following items:

Vacation
and
recreation

Balance as at January 1, 2019
Changes in 2019
Recognized in profit or loss
Recognized directly in retained
earnings
Recognized in other
comprehensive income
Balance as at December 31, 2019

Employee
benefits

Fixed and
other
assets and
investment
property

Tax
losses
NIS millions

Leases

Other
items

Total

16

48

)163(

10

-

)23(

)112(

2

-

)18(

47

10

4

45

-

-

-

-

37

-

37

-

9

-

-

-

2

11

18

57

)181(

57

47

)17(

)19(
113

Presented within assets
Presented within liabilities
Total
Balance as at January 1, 2020
Changes in 2020
Recognized in profit or loss
Recognized in other
comprehensive income
Balance as at December 31, 2020
Presented within assets
Presented within liabilities
Total

)132(
)19(
18

57

)181(

57

47

)17(

)19(

2

-

9

)5(

9

4

19

-

5

)9(

-

-

1

)3(

20

62

)181(

52

56

)12(

)3(
133

)136(
)3(
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Note 28 - Income Tax (cont’d)
C.

Composition of income tax expense
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current tax expense (income)
Current year
Adjustments for prior years, net
Deferred tax expense (income)
Deferred taxes for prior years
Deferred taxes, net
Total income tax expense
D.

141
)1(
140

86
(3)
83

81
1
82

)18(
)18(
122

(31)
(14)
(45)
38

12
12
94

Deferred taxes in respect of other comprehensive income
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Components of deferred taxes in other
comprehensive income
Effective portion of change in fair value of
cash flow hedges
Revaluation reserve for property, plant and
equipment classified as investment property
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan
Total

)2(

(2)

3

9
)5(

(9)

1
)4(

2

(11)

-
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Note 28 - Income Tax (cont’d)
E.

Reconciliation between the theoretical tax on the pre-tax profit and the tax expense included
in the statement of income:
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

2018
NIS millions

Profit before taxes on income, as
reported in the statements of income

509

306

359

Tax rate

23%

23%

23%

Tax calculated according to the tax rate

117

70

83

-

(31)

)4(

1

(2)

)1(

)1(

2
(3)

1
1

5

2

13
1

122

38

94

Additional tax (tax saving) in respect of:
Utilization and creation of tax losses and benefits
from prior years for which deferred taxes were not
created
Neutralization of tax calculated in respect of the
Company’s share in profits of equity accounted
investees
Change in temporary differences for which
deferred taxes were not recognized
Taxes in respect of previous years, net
Tax benefits for which
deferred taxes were not created
Other
Income tax expense in the statement of income
F.

Tax assessments

(1)

The Company has final tax assessments up to and including the 2016 tax year, and all the amounts
the Company is required to pay according to these assessments have been paid in full until the
date of signing the financial statements.

(2)

The Company has final deductions assessments up to and including 2014.

(3)

Subsidiaries have final tax assessments up to and including the 2015 tax year, aside from Gidron
Industries Ltd. (up to and including the 2016 tax year). All the payments owed by the companies
according to these assessments have been paid in full.
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Note 28 - Income Tax (cont’d)
G.

Carry-forward tax losses

The Group has a cumulative business loss for income tax purposes in the amount of NIS 180 million
(2019: NIS 210 million) for which the Group has deferred tax assets in the amount of NIS 42 million.
Likewise, the Group has a cumulative capital loss of NIS 42 million, for which a deferred tax asset of
NIS 10 million was recognized (as at December 31, 2019, the Group had a cumulative capital loss of
NIS 45 million, for which a deferred tax asset of NIS 10 million was recognized).
In accordance with current tax laws, there is no time limitation for utilizing tax losses.

Note 29 - Leases
As from January 1, 2019 the Group applies IFRS 16, Leases. The Group's lease agreements mainly relate
to land and buildings it uses in its business operations. In addition, the Group subleases some of the land
and buildings that do not serve its business operations, usually at the same terms as the original lease.
The effect of the application of IFRS 16 on the financial statements includes the recognition of assets and
liabilities that reflect the expected rights to use the assets and the rights to consideration from subleases
and on the other hand the value of the expected payments in respect of lease contracts that award the
Group control over the use of the assets, and includes the recognition of depreciation expenses, financing
income and financing expenses in respect of such assets and liabilities, instead of recording rental
expenses pursuant to the accounting policy that was applied until the date of applying IFRS 16.

95

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 29 - Leases (cont'd)
A.

The effects of the application of IFRS 16 on the financial statements

1.

The effects of the application of IFRS 16 on the Group's profit and loss data

For the year ended December 31, 2020:
According to the
previous policy

According to
the present
policy

)11,196(

6

)11,190(

4,037

6

4,043

Selling and marketing expenses

)3,126(

59

)3,067(

Operating profit before other
income (expenses)*

653

65

718

)127(

)105(

)232(

549

)40(

509

)131(

9

)122(

418

)31(

387

Cost of sales and services
Gross profit

Financing expenses, net
Profit before taxes on income
Taxes on income
Profit for the year
*

Effect of
application of
IFRS 16
NIS millions

An increase of NIS 368 million in depreciation expenses against a decrease of NIS 433 million
in rental expenses.
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Note 29 - Leases (cont'd)
A.

The effects of the application of IFRS 16 on the financial statements (cont'd)

1.

The effects of the application of IFRS 16 on the Group's profit and loss data (cont'd)

For the year ended December 31, 2019:
According to the
previous policy

Cost of sales and services

Effect of
application of
IFRS 16
NIS millions

According to
the present
policy

(9,755)

4

(9,751)

3,605

4

3,609

Selling and marketing expenses

(2,947)

63

(2,884)

Operating profit before other
income (expenses)*

454

67

521

(153)

(106)

(259)

Profit before taxes on income

345

(39)

306

Taxes on income

(48)

10

(38)

Profit for the year

297

(29)

268

Gross profit

Financing expenses, net

*

An increase of NIS 355 million in depreciation expenses against a decrease of NIS 422 million
in rental expenses.

2.

The effects of the application of IFRS 16 on the Group's cash flows

For the year ended December 31, 2020:
According to the
previous policy

Effect of
application of
IFRS 16
NIS millions

According to
the present
policy

Cash flows from operating activities

1,315

450

1,765

Cash flows from financing activities

)238(

)450(

)688(
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Note 29 - Leases (cont'd)
A.

The effects of the application of IFRS 16 on the financial statements (cont'd)

2.

The effects of the application of IFRS 16 on the Group's cash flows (cont'd)

For the year ended December 31, 2019:
According to the
previous policy

Effect of
application of
IFRS 16
NIS millions

According to
the present
policy

Cash flows from operating activities

598

437

1,035

Cash flows from financing activities

158

(437)

(279)

B.

Receivables from leases
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Receipts of principal and interest
Interest income
Additions**
Other***
Balance as at December 31
*
**
***

92
)17(
1
*-

85
)15(
6
15
1

76

92

Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
Due mainly to new agreements and modifications that were made in lease agreements, such as
extension of the lease term.
Due mainly to adjustments to the Consumer Price Index.

Forecasted cash flows expected to derive from receivables from leases
December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Up to one year
One to five years
More than five years

14
44
27

17
50
35

Total contractual cash flow

85

102
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Note 29 - Leases (cont'd)
C.

Right-of-use assets
December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Depreciation
Additions*
Classification to investment property
Other**

3,596
)371(
609
)3(
21

3,578
)359(
367
10

Balance as at December 31

3,852

3,596

*
**

Due mainly to new agreements and modifications that were made in lease agreements, such as
extension of the lease term.
Due mainly to adjustments to the Consumer Price Index.

The Group leases from the Israel Lands Administration several lots of land that it uses as branches of the
chain for a period of 49 years. The Group has options to extend the period by an additional 49 years.
Some of the lands leased in Israel have not yet been registered under the name of the Group companies
at the Land Registry Office mainly due to registration procedures or technical problems.
D.

Lease liabilities
December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Repayment of principal and interest
Financing expenses
Classification to provisions for onerous contracts
Additions*
Other**

3,620
)450(
106
607
21

3,554
)437(
112
)4(
384
11

Balance as at December 31

3,904

3,620

Current maturities of lease liabilities
Long-term lease liabilities

360
3,544

342
3,278

Total lease liabilities

3,904

3,620

*
**

Due mainly to new agreements and modifications that were made in lease agreements, such as
extension of the lease term.
Due mainly to adjustments to the Consumer Price Index.
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Note 29 - Leases (cont'd)
D.

Lease liabilities (cont'd)

Forecasted cash flows expected to derive from lease liabilities
December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Up to one year
One to five years
More than five years

459
1,681
2,458

448
1,645
2,245

Total contractual cash flow

4,598

4,338

E.

Additional information on leases

1.

Amounts recognized in profit or loss
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities*
Interest expenses on leases, net

)371(

)359(

(62)
)105(

)66(
)106(

Total expenses

(538)

)531(

*

Mainly expenses based on turnover and management fees that are recognized in the framework
of selling and marketing expenses.

2.

Amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows
December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Cash inflow from leases

17

15

Cash outflow from leases

450

503
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Note 30 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
A.

Agreement with Israel Credit Cards

On November 2, 2017 the Company and Israel Credit Cards Ltd. and Diners Club Israel Ltd. (together –
“ICC”) signed a term sheet that was updated from time to time (“the term sheet”) for the issuance and
operation of non-bank credit cards that will be issued by ICC to the Company’s customers (the operation).
The operation was launched on January 18, 2018 (the last date of the Leumi Card agreement). It was also
provided that the parties would act to sign within 6 months a detailed agreement that arranges all the
matters between the parties with respect to the aforesaid operation, while up to the date of signing the
detailed agreement the term sheet will bind the parties. As at the date of issuing the financial statements,
the detailed agreement has not been signed and the parties continue to operate according to the term sheet.
The agreement will be in effect from the date of its signing until December 31, 2027, this period being
extended each time for periods of two years each, unless one of the parties notifies of its wish to not
extend the agreement for an additional period by providing notice at least 12 months before the end of
each period. All the obligations that apply by law to an issuer shall apply to ICC. ICC shall be the only
issuer allowed to offer debit cards and loans to the Company's customers. According to the term sheet,
the Company is the owner of the data base of card holders, and it will have all the proprietary rights in
the data base, with ICC being only the holder of the data base. In the term sheet ICC undertook with
respect to each of the years 2018, 2019 and 2020 that if the Company’s revenues from the operation, as
defined in the term sheet, in each one of the years, is lower than the amount set forth in the term sheet
(about NIS 67 million), ICC will pay the Company the difference until the end of the first quarter of each
year compared to the previous year, all subject to the conditions provided on this matter in the term sheet.
In 2018, 2019 and 2020 the Company's revenues from this operation were higher than the amount set
forth in the term sheet. The term sheet further provided that subject to achieving the operational targets,
as prescribed in the term sheet, ICC will pay two bonuses to the Company, of NIS 35 million each at the
end of the fourth and eighth year of the agreement (until the date of this report the Company has
recognized NIS 24 million as accrued income, in respect of the contingent payments). Additionally, in
2018 and 2019 ICC paid the Company an amount of NIS 30 million in respect of the benefits the Company
gave the holders of its customer club’s credit cards.
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Note 30 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (cont’d)
B.

Provisions of the Food Law and provisions of the Economic Competition (Restrictive Trade
Practices) Law

In March 2014, the Law for the Promotion of Competition in the Food Industry – 2014 (“the Food Law”)
was published on the Official Gazette. The Food Law includes three sets of provisions: (a) provisions
regulating the activity of suppliers and retailers, including the activity of a large retailer, (b) provisions
regarding geographical competition of retailers, and (c) provisions regulating price transparency. The law
also includes a chapter on enforcement, punishment and monetary sanctions.
The provisions of the Economic Competition Law – 1988 (“the Competition Law”) and the Food Law
may have an effect on the activity of the Shufersal Group mainly as to the possibilities of acquiring retail
food and consumer goods operations in the future and regarding the trade arrangements between Shufersal
and its suppliers. Upon the Food Law coming into effect, the trade arrangements between Shufersal and
its suppliers were adjusted in the manner detailed in the Food Law, which constitutes a special law on the
promotion of competition in the food industry and in the consumer goods market, and in the rules
published by the Commissioner pursuant to the Food Law. In December 2015 the Commissioner issued
an opinion regarding the parallel scope of the Restrictive Trade Practices Law (as it was called at the
time) and the Food Law. The opinion provides cases to which only the provisions of the Food Law shall
apply and no additional regulation shall be required in accordance with the Competition Law:
arrangements or actions that are exempt in accordance with Section 7(B) of the Food Law or in accordance
with rules that were established in accordance with Section 7(C) of the Food Law (Shelf Stocking), are
not restrictive arrangements according to the Competition Law and the regulatory framework in the Food
Law as regards shelf stocking is a comprehensive regulatory framework; so that arrangements and actions
relating to shelf stocking that are not prohibited in accordance with Section 7(A)(1) or Section 7(A)(2) of
the Food Law are not restrictive arrangements; in the case of opening a new store or acquiring an existing
store, for which an application to open a store is submitted according to Food Law or the conditions
provided in the opinion are met, the authority shall not insist on the duty to submit a merger notice. As at
the date of issuing the financial statements, taking into consideration the structure of the food and
consumer goods retail market and the legal restrictions that apply to Shufersal, and in view of the
provisions of the Food Law, Shufersal is of the opinion that there is a low probability that the Company
will grow by means of acquiring a significant body in the food and consumer goods retail market.
Furthermore, the provisions of the Food Law regarding geographical competition of retailers may affect
the ability of the Company to expand by opening new large branches in certain areas. It is noted that under
certain circumstances the Company could have been required to close active branches in accordance with
a temporary order ("the temporary order"). As at the date of issuing the financial statements, the temporary
order has expired and the Company was not required to close any of its branches in accordance with the
temporary order.
In September 2020, the Company received a notice from the Competition Authority about catchment
areas of the large stores of the Company ("the catchment area notice"). The catchment area notice referred
to 105 large stores, with calculated rate of more than 30% but less than 50%, and 34 large stores with
calculated rate of over 50%. The notice was accompanied by maps of catchment areas of those stores.
As at December 31, 2020, implementation of the Food Law did not have any material impact on the
business of the Company.
On August 31, 2005 the Commissioner published approval to the Shufersal-Clubmarket merger with
conditions. That decision imposed a number of restrictions on the Company including: it was forbidden
to adopt price lists creating a clear loss for the chain, that are not proportional and are aimed at taking
competitors off the market; it was forbidden to enter into agreements with its suppliers that limit the ability
of those suppliers to engage with competitors of Shufersal; the Company was also forbidden to interfere
with the trade terms established between suppliers and competitors of Shufersal.
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Note 30 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (cont’d)
B.

Provisions of the Food Law and provisions of the Restrictive Trade Practices Law (cont'd)

On September 6, 2017 the Commissioner published approval to the Shufersal-New Pharm merger with
conditions. In accordance with this decision, 9 branches of New Pharm and a branch of Shufersal at the
Haifa mall were sold. Furthermore, Shufersal is prohibited to acquire control in the branches that were
sold for a period of 5 years from the date of their sale, without approval of the Commissioner.
In the framework of the Shufersal B2B operation, in cash & carry stores, Shufersal sells, inter alia, food
products and consumer goods (including Shufersal private label products) to retailers and in this capacity
is acting as a "supplier" per its definition in the Food Law.
C.

Indemnification and insurance of officers

According to the Company’s articles, the Company insures and indemnifies officers in respect of their
liability subject to the provisions of the law and other restrictions.
D.

Guarantees

As security for the liabilities of the Company and subsidiaries to various parties, the Company provided
bank guarantees totaling NIS 70 million.

Note 31 - Liens
The Company has a bank deposit of NIS 6 million that is pledged against a swap transaction.

Note 32 - Segment Reporting
The Group implements the instructions of IFRS 8, Operating Segments, in accordance with the accounting
policies presented.
The Group has three reportable segments that are strategic business units. The strategic business units
offer different services and products and the allocation of resources and evaluation of performance are
managed separately.
The reported segments are:
•
The retail segment
•
The real estate segment
•
The Be segment
It is noted that the results of the aforesaid segments do not include the effects of IFRS 16, Leases
(hereinafter – the standard). The effects of the standard are not reviewed regularly by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker for measurement of segment results, since management is of the opinion that the
operating results excluding the standard’s effects, is the most relevant measurement for assessing the
segment’s results. In accordance with the aforesaid the segment results below reflect rental expenses
according to the standard that was in effect prior to the adoption of IFRS 16.
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
The retail segment
This segment includes the marketing and selling of food and other products (hereinafter – the retail
activity).
As at December 31, 2020, the Company’s retail segment activity is carried out in 301 stores having a
wide geographical spread.
During the period the Company operated four principal formats in the retail segment, including an on-line
format “Shufersal Online” and organic food stores, throughout the country, with the aim of satisfying its
customers and providing them a buying experience that differs and varies in each of the formats operated
by the Company.
The Company has a mix of varied products organized in a number of sales departments and subdepartments in each store, including, in the health areas that were placed in part of the Company’s
branches, and it includes, among other things, products sold under the private label of the Company, with
the view of offering the consumer a quality product, strengthening price perception (a quality product for
cheaper prices than similar products in the same category), developing consumer loyalty and improving
profitability of the categories in which the private label is sold.
The area of manufacturing frozen and fresh baked products is operated by a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. This activity is integrated into the retail marketing and its sales are mainly to the Company's
stores.
In order to obtain a broad perspective of the system, the review of the segment’s performance includes
the exclusive discounts and campaigns granted to credit card holders as part of management of the
customer club and also the revenues arising from such activity.
The real estate segment
This segment includes various types of freehold and leasehold properties including commercial centers
and other properties. The real estate activity includes also properties leased out to external parties and
properties leased out to the branches and used in their operations (it is noted that these branches are
classified in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as “property, plant and equipment” or rightof-used assets and not as investment property).
The segment’s revenues include rental revenues based on actual amounts that the real estate segment
charged the retail segment, and the operating results of the segment include also management fees that
were charged to the real estate segment by the Company.
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
Be segment
After completion of the transaction to acquire Be Drugstores Ltd. (hereinafter: Be) on December 20, 2017,
the activity of the Be segment constitutes a reportable segment. On July 1, 2020 the merger of Be with
and into the Company was completed and in this framework all the operations, assets and liabilities of Be
were transferred to the Company and Be was dissolved on that date without liquidation.
As at December 31, 2020, Be operates in the drugstore sector through 86 branches that sell mainly
cosmetics, convenience and toiletry products, medicine and food supplements.
Reconciliation to consolidated statements
The reconciliation to consolidated financial statements mainly involve neutralizing rental revenues and
expenses of the branches leased by the real estate segment to the retail segment and also adding the
depreciation expenses and reversing changes in the fair value of these branches which altogether amount
to NIS 81 million. In addition, the reconciliation to consolidated comprises the effects of IFRS 16, Leases,
which as aforesaid are not are not reviewed regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker for
measurement of segment results.
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
Information regarding the results of the reportable segments is included below:
For the year ended December 31, 2020:
Retail
segment
NIS millions

Real estate
segment
NIS millions

Be segment
NIS millions

Reconciliation
to consolidated
NIS millions

Consolidated
NIS millions

External revenues
Inter-segment revenues

14,371
-

51
131

811
4

)135(

15,233
-

Total segment revenues

14,371

182

815

)135(

15,233

544
15

151
13

)19(
)1(

42
-

718
27

559

164

)20(

42

745

Operating profit (loss) before other
income (expenses)
Other income (expenses), net
Operating profit (loss) after other
income (expenses)
Financing expenses
Financing income
Share in loss of equity accounted investee
Taxes on income
Profit for the year

)254(
22
)4(
)122(
387
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2019:
Retail
segment
NIS millions

Real estate
segment
NIS millions

Be segment
NIS millions

Reconciliation
to consolidated
NIS millions

Consolidated
NIS millions

External revenues
Inter-segment revenues

12,603
-

51
131

706
2

(133)

13,360
-

Total segment revenues

12,603

182

708

(133)

13,360

397
(3)
394

150
97
247

(70)
(70)

44
(58)
(14)

521
36
557
(279)
20
8
(38)

Operating profit (loss) before other
income (expenses)
Other income (expenses), net
Operating profit (loss) after other income (expenses)
Financing expenses
Financing income
Share in profit of equity accounted investee
Taxes on income
Profit for the year

268
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2018:
Retail
segment
NIS millions

Real estate
segment
NIS millions

Be segment
NIS millions

Reconciliation
to consolidated
NIS millions

Consolidated
NIS millions

External revenues
Inter-segment revenues

12,246
-

49
128

552
-

(128)

12,847
-

Total segment revenues

12,246

177

552

(128)

12,847

360
(4)
356

144
58
202

(29)
(26)
(55)

(22)
(12)
(34)

453
16
469
(130)
14
6
(94)

Operating profit (loss) before other
income (expenses)
Other income (expenses), net
Operating profit (loss) after other income (expenses)
Financing expenses
Financing income
Share in profit of equity accounted investee
Taxes on income
Profit for the year

265
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
Information regarding products
Presented hereunder are the principal sales revenues from each group of similar products in the retail
segment in NIS millions, before discounts and without VAT.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

“Grocery” products which include various food products but not milk and dairy products and
beverages.
“Beverages”.
“Dairy” products which include milk and dairy products.
“Meat and frozen” products which include fresh and frozen meat and fish products and products
sold at meat counters.
“Vegetable and fruit” products which include various fruits and vegetables and dried fruits.
“Pharmacy” products which include, inter alia, cleaning and paper products, medicine, cosmetics
and baby products.
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Grocery
Beverages
Dairy
Meat and frozen
Vegetables and fruit
Pharmacy

3,221
808
1,732
1,851
1,955
1,488

3,636
914
1,971
2,124
2,211
1,695

2018
NIS millions

3,108
773
1,661
1,787
1,918
1,440

Note 33 - Interested and Related Parties
A.

Balances with interested and related parties
December 31, 2020
NIS millions

December 31, 2019
NIS millions

Current assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables – customer vouchers
Other receivables – prepaid expenses (*)
Other receivables – insurance assets
Other receivables – advances to suppliers
Trade payables
Other payables – accrued expenses

1
3
11
)9(
)6(

12
11
1
(21)
(6)

Non-current assets and liabilities:
Right to reimbursement in respect of employee benefits
Defined benefit plan assets

45
1

43
1

(*)

The highest balance during the reporting period (on the basis of monthly closing balances) was
NIS 15 million.
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Note 33 - Interested and Related Parties (cont’d)
B.

Loan granted to associate company

As at December 31, 2020, the balance of a loan to an associate company amounts to NIS 32 million (NIS 3
million of the loan’s balance is included in the receivables balance). The loan will be paid in 68 equal
quarterly payments as from January 1, 2018 until October 1, 2034, and bear interest at the minimum rate
required in the Income Tax Ordinance (New Version) and the regulations issued under it (Section 3(j) of
the Ordinance) that will be paid quarterly. Financing income in the amount of NIS 2 million was
recognized in respect of the loan in 2020 (like in 2019 and 2018).
C.

Transactions with interested and related parties

In the ordinary course of business the Company and its subsidiaries execute transactions at market terms
with interested parties, including transactions of the types and characteristics indicated hereunder:
Until July 26 the Company’s principal interested party group was the IDB Group including the companies
held by it and by DIC.
1. Presented hereunder is a general description of the transactions executed with interested parties of the
Company:
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Revenues (1)
Expenses (2)
Financing income from loan granted to associate

3
)130(
2

11
(279)
2

2018
NIS millions

13
)204(
2
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Note 33 - Interested and Related Parties (cont’d)
C.

Transactions with interested and related parties (cont’d)

(1)

Composition of revenues:
IDB Group
NIS millions

Other
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

For the year ended
December 31, 2020:
Revenues from vouchers’ activity

3

*-

3

For the year ended
December 31, 2019:
Revenues from vouchers’ activity

11

*-

11

For the year ended
December 31, 2018:
Revenues from vouchers’ activity

13

*-

13

IDB Group
NIS millions

Other
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

For the year ended
December 31, 2020:
Cost of sales
Selling, marketing, general
and administrative expenses

27

59

86

34
61

10
69

44
130

For the year ended
December 31, 2019:
Cost of sales
Selling, marketing, general
and administrative expenses

129

84

213

66
195

84

66
279

For the year ended
December 31, 2018:
Cost of sales
Selling, marketing, general
and administrative expenses

86

46

132

72
158

46

72
204

*

Represents an amount lower than NIS 1 million.

(1)

Composition of expenses:

Throughout the year and until July 26, 2020 the Company executed a large number of transactions with
interested and related party suppliers and service providers from the IDB group. The transactions included
purchasing food and other products at market terms. The prices and credits terms are determined with all
the suppliers and service providers in negotiations and in the ordinary course of business and according
to the Company’s procedures.
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Note 33 - Interested and Related Parties (cont’d)
C.

Transactions with interested and related parties (cont’d)

2.

For information on the Company’s guarantees to related and interested parties, see Note 30
regarding contingent liabilities and commitments.

3.

See Note 11.E for information on the collaboration and joint venture agreement.

D.

Salary, management fees and benefits to key management personnel (including directors)

In addition to their salaries, the Group’s to key managerial personnel (including directors) and executive
officers that are employed by the Group are entitled to non-cash benefits (such as a car, etc.), and
contributes to a post-employment defined benefit plan on their behalf. Certain executive officers have
been allotted restricted share units and options to shares of the Company (see Note 22 regarding sharebased payments).
Salary, management fees and benefits to key management personnel include as follows:
2020

Short-term salary, management
fees and benefits to key
management personnel
Share-based payments

Number
of people

NIS millions

3
2

6
3

Year ended December 31
2019
Number
of people
NIS millions

2
2

9

6
4

2018
Number
of people

NIS millions

3
1

5
1
6

10

Directors’ fees – without the present chairman of the board:
2020
Number
of people

NIS millions

10

3

Year ended December 31
2019
Number
of people
NIS millions

9

2

2018
Number
of people

NIS millions

7

2
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Note 34 - Material Subsequent Events
A.

On January 19, 2021, the Company signed an agreement with Israel Discount Bank Ltd. to
collaborate in the creation of a digital wallet for customers of all banks that is based on the PayBox
payment platform owned by Israel Discount Bank. The agreement is contingent upon, inter alia,
receiving approvals of third parties including from Bank of Israel and the Competition Authority,
and upon reaching understandings and updating the issuance and operation agreement between
the Company and Israel Credit Cards Ltd. The approval of the Competition Authority was
received on March 1, 2021. As at the date of issuing the financial statements, the other approvals
have not yet been received and there is no certainty that the transaction will be completed.

B.

On February 4, 2021, after receiving the approval of the compensation committee, the Company's
board of directors approved the allotment of 413,753 stock options and 28,279 restricted
performance share units to the Company's Chairman of the Board who began his term on
November 25, 2020, and the allotment of 250,000 stock options and 22,454 restricted share units
to the new Deputy CEO and Director of Commerce and Marketing who will begin his term in
April 2021. The allotment to the Chairman of the Board is subject to the approval pf the general
meeting of shareholders, which as at the date of issuing the financial statements has not yet been
received, and to the new Deputy CEO and Director of Commerce and Marketing actually
beginning to work.

C.

On March 3, 2021, subsequent to the reporting date, the Company's board of directors decided to
distribute a dividend in the amount of NIS 140 million. The dividend will be paid on May 3, 2021
to shareholders of record on April 18, 2021. The financial statements do not include a liability in
respect of the aforesaid dividend.

D.

For developments related to legal claims subsequent to the reporting period, see Note 16(2)d
above.

113

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2020

Note 35 - Group Entities
December 31, 2020
Rate of
ownership
Voting rate
%
%

December 31, 2019
Rate of
ownership
Voting rate
%
%

Active subsidiaries
Be Drugstores Ltd.*
Katif Ltd.
Gidron Industries Ltd.
Shufersal Real-Estate Ltd.
Orvani Investment Co. Ltd.**
Shufersal Properties Ltd.**
Hanetz Exporters and Importers Ltd.**
Hyper-Kol Ltd.**
Four Species Ltd.
Shufersal Bailsol Investments Ltd.**
Shufersal Travel Ltd.
Bela Online Ltd.

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
53
51

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
53
51

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
53
51

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
53
51

Consolidated partnerships
Shufersal Finance, Limited Partnership***

100

100

84

84

37

37

37

37

Associate
Lev Hamifratz Ltd.
*
**
***

The company was dissolved on July 1 without liquidation and its operation was merged with and
into the Company.
Held by Shufersal Real-Estate Ltd.
See Note 15 above.

All the companies were incorporated in Israel.
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To
The Shareholders of
SHUFERSAL LTD
Rishon LeZion, Israel
Dear shareholders,
Re: Auditors' special report on separate financial information in accordance with
Regulation 9C to the Israeli Securities Regulations (Periodic and Immediate
Reports) – 1970
We have audited the separate financial information disclosed in accordance with Regulation 9C to
the Israeli Securities Regulations (Periodic and Immediate Reports) - 1970 of Shufersal Ltd
(hereafter – "the Company") as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and for each of the three years in
the period ended on December 31, 2020, which is included in the periodic report of the Company.
This separate financial information is the responsibility of the Company's Board of Directors and
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this separate financial information
based on our audits.
We did not audit the financial information included in the financial statements of an investee, the
total net assets less total liabilities of which amounted to NIS 60 million and NIS 64 million as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and the Company's share in its net income (loss)
amounted to NIS (4) million, NIS 8 million and NIS 6 million for each of the three years ended
December 31, 2020, respectively. The financial statements of that investee were audited by
another independent auditor, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as
it relates to amounts included for that investee, is based on the reports of the other independent
auditor.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Israel. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the separate financial information is free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the separate
financial information. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used in preparing
the separate financial information and significant estimates made by the Company's Board of
Directors and management, as well as evaluating the overall separate financial information
presentation. We believe that our audits and the reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the separate financial information is prepared, in all material respects, in
conformity with Regulation 9C to the Israeli Securities Regulations (Periodic and Immediate
Reports), 1970.
Haifa, Israel
March 3, 2021

Kesselman & Kesselman
Certified Public Accountants (Isr.)
A member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited
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2020
NIS millions

2019
NIS millions

469
400
1,470
97
126
12
926

39
300
1,194
132
132
9
743

Total current assets

3,500

2,549

Other investments
Other receivables
Investments in investee companies
Bonds from consolidated company
Capital notes from investee companies
Investee companies
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Deferred taxes

87
89
1,455
290
88
187
2,141
3,561
1,325
133

96
97
1,323
329
315
597
1,903
2,820
1,075
112

9,356

8,667

12,856

11,216

Note

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Trade receivables
Investee companies
Other receivables
Other investments
Inventory

6

6
6
5
4

Total non-current assets
Total assets

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors:

Yaki Vadmani
Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Itzik Abercohen
Chief Executive Officer

Talya Huber
CFO

Date of approval of the separate financial information: March 3, 2021
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2020
NIS millions

2019
NIS millions

65
267
358
2,159
161
1,050
52
4,112

93
65
267
298
1,910
117
762
73
32
3,617

2,682
3,519
265
42
6,508

2,621
2,782
233
48
45,680

Equity
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves
Treasury shares
Retained earnings

242
963
40
)85(
1,076

242
963
17
)85(
778

Total equity

2,236

1,915

12,856

11,216

Note

Liabilities
Credit from banks
Capital notes to investee companies
Current maturities in respect of bonds
Current maturities of lease liabilities
Trade payables
Investee companies
Other payables
Liability for acquisition of partnership interests
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Bonds
Lease liabilities
Employee benefits, net
Other liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities and equity

5

5

The accompanying additional information is an integral part of the separate financial information.
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Note

2019
NIS millions

2018*
NIS millions

14,678
10,887
3,791

12,472
9,212
3,260

12,086
8,980
3,106

2,873
233

2,566
164

2,682
155

3,106

2,730

2,837

685

530

269

15

)2(

)5(

700

528

264

)244(
48
)196(

)259(
53
)206(

)131(
47
)84(

Profit (loss) from investee companies

)30(

)60(

138

Profit before taxes on income

474

262

318

)87(

7

)53(

387

269

265

Revenues and rental fees
Cost of sales and services
Gross profit
Selling and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total selling, marketing, general and
administrative expenses
Operating profit before other income (expenses)
Other income (expenses), net
Operating profit after other income (expenses)
Financing expenses
Financing income
Financing expenses, net

Taxes on income
Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company
*

2020
NIS millions

4

See Note 5 hereunder regarding leases.

The accompanying additional information is an integral part of the separate financial information.
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Note

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income (loss) that after
initial recognition in comprehensive income
was or will be transferred to profit or loss
Effective portion of the change in fair value of
cash flow hedges
Net change in fair value included
in cost of hedging reserve
Taxes on other comprehensive income items that
were initially recognized in comprehensive
income and will be transferred to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income (loss) for
the year that after initial recognition in
comprehensive income was or
will be transferred to profit or loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive income (loss) items
that will not be transferred to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan
Revaluation reserve for fixed assets classified
as investment property
Other comprehensive loss in respect of
investee companies
Taxes on other comprehensive income items that
will not be transferred to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income (loss) for the
year that will not be transferred to profit or
loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
*
*

4

2020
NIS millions

2019
NIS millions

2018**
NIS millions

387

269

265

)10(

)7(

13

*-

)1(

-

2

2

)3(

)8(

)6(

10

)22(

)38(

)17(

40

-

6

)1(

)1(

)2(

)4(

9

3

13

)30(

)10(

5

)36(

-

392

233

265

Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
See Note 5 hereunder regarding leases.

The accompanying additional information is an integral part of the separate financial information.
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2020
NIS millions

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of right-of-use assets
Taxes on income included in income statements
Income taxes paid, net
Change in employee benefits
Change in provision for onerous contracts
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Financing expenses, net
Share-based payment
Investee companies
Profit from investee companies
Change in trade receivables
Change in other receivables
Change in inventory
Change in trade payables
Change in other payables, provisions and other
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investment in intangible assets
Realization of (investment in) marketable securities, net
Realization of (investment in) debt instruments at
amortized cost, net
Cash from wholly owned company that was merged
Loan to subsidiary
Interest received
Repayment of long-term loans granted
Investment in deposits
Other long-term investment
Change in cash in respect of futures contracts, net
Net cash from investing activities in respect of transactions
with investee companies
Net cash used in investing activities
*

2019
NIS millions

2018*
NIS millions

387

269

265

322
54
339
85
(94)
)6(
1
196
9
144
)113(
)199(
23
)21(
257
252
1,636

275
37
298
)7(
(52)
)2(
1
206
8
99
)82(
)84(
)24(
)46(
78
33
1,007

267
32
53
(51)
18
)19(
84
1
24
)138(
(104)
)10(
)71(
208
19
578

)386(
3
)82(
-

)368(
1
)82(
26

(447)
1
)66(
)16(

7
5
)10(
6
)100(
)4(
)6(
)567(

)98(
)234(
2
2
)150(
)10(
)911(

)198(
2
)49(
6
)767(

15

10

39

)552(

)901(

)728(

See Note 5 hereunder regarding leases.

The accompanying additional information is an integral part of the separate financial information.
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2020
NIS millions

2019
NIS millions

2018*
NIS millions

Cash flows used in financing activities
Short-term credit
Proceeds from issuance of bonds, net
Repayment of bonds
Repayment of principal and interest of lease liabilities
Dividend paid
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Acquisition of partnership interests
Payments in respect of hedging transactions
Interest paid

)93(
312
)235(
)416(
)80(
)9(
)133(

93
549
)192(
)379(
)160(
)10(
)121(

563
)191(
)160(
18
)146(
)10(
)119(

Net cash used in financing activities

)654(

)220(

)45(

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

430

)114(

)195(

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

39

153

348

469

39

153

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
*

See Note 5 hereunder regarding leases.

The accompanying additional information is an integral part of the separate financial information.
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Note 1 - General
Presented hereunder is financial information from the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at December
31, 2020 (hereinafter – "the consolidated financial statements"), which are issued as part of the periodic reports,
and which are attributed to the Company itself (hereinafter – "separate financial information"), and are presented
in accordance with Regulation 9C (hereinafter – the Regulation) and the tenth addendum to the Securities
Regulations (Periodic and Immediate Reports) – 1970 (hereinafter – "the tenth addendum") regarding separate
financial information of an entity.
The separate interim financial information should be read together with the consolidated financial statements.
In this separate financial information –
(1)

The Company – Shufersal Ltd.

(2)

Consolidated companies/subsidiaries – Companies, including a partnership, the financial statements of
which are fully consolidated, directly or indirectly, with the financial statements of the Company.

(3)

Investee companies – Consolidated companies and companies, including a partnership or joint venture, the
Company's investment in which is stated, directly or indirectly, on the equity basis.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies Applied in the Separate Financial Information
Except for that described in Paragraph C hereunder, the accounting policies described in the consolidated financial
statements have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the Company’s separate financial
information, including the manner by which the financial information was classified in the consolidated financial
statements, with any necessary changes deriving from that mentioned hereunder:
A.

Presentation of the financial information

(1)

Information on the financial position
Information on amounts of assets and liabilities included in the consolidated financial statements that are
attributable to the Company itself (other than in respect of investee companies), according to categories of
assets and liabilities, as well as information regarding the net amount, on the basis of the consolidated
financial statements, that is attributable to the Company’s owners, of total assets less total liabilities, in
respect of investee companies, including goodwill.

(2)

Information on profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Information on amounts of revenues and expenses included in the consolidated financial statements,
allocated between profit and loss and other comprehensive income, attributable to the Company itself (other
than in respect of investee companies), while specifying the categories of revenues and expenses, as well
as information regarding the net amount, on the basis of the consolidated financial statements, that is
attributable to the Company’s owners, of total revenues less total expenses in respect of the operating results
of investee companies, including reversal of a provision for impairment in respect of loans granted to an
associate.

(3)

Information on cash flows
Information on cash flows included in the consolidated financial statements that are attributable to the
Company itself (other than in respect of investee companies), based on the consolidated statement of cash
flows, classified according to flows from operating activities, investing activities and financing activities
with details of their composition.
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies Applied in the Separate Financial Information
(cont'd)
A.

Presentation of the financial information (cont’d)

(3)

Information on cash flows (cont’d)
The cash flows from operating activities, investing activities and financing activities in respect of
transactions with investee companies are presented separately on a net basis, under the relevant type of
activity, in accordance with the nature of the transaction.

B.

Transactions between the Company and investee companies

(1)

Presentation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
which were eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements, are presented separately from the
balance in respect of investee companies and the profit in respect of investee companies, together with
similar balances with third parties. A liability towards partners in a consolidated partnership (noncontrolling interests) is presented in the same manner it is presented in the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized profits and losses arising from transactions between the Company and its investee companies,
are presented as part of the balance in respect of investee companies and as part of the profit in respect of
investee companies.
Income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions that are in the scope of IFRS 16, which was
applied for the first time in January 2019, and were eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements are not reflected in this condensed separate financial information.

(2)

Measurement
Transactions between the Company and its consolidated companies were measured according to the
recognition and measurement principles provided in International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
with respect to the accounting treatment of transactions of this kind that are executed with third parties.

C.

New standards and amendments to standards

As from January 1, 2019 the Company applies IFRS 16. For more information see Note 3.R to the consolidated
financial statements.
Furthermore, during the period the Company applied the amendments to IFRS 3 and IFRS 16. The initial
application of the amendments to the said standards did not have a material effect on the financial statements, For
more information see Note 2.G to the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 3 - Financial Instruments
A.
Liquidity risk
The following are the contractual maturities of the main financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments
at undiscounted amounts, including principal payments and estimated future interest payments (*):
December 31, 2020
Contractual cash flow

4-5 years
NIS millions

More than
5 years
NIS millions

Total
contractual
cash flow
NIS millions

)746(
)12(

)715(
)3(

)1,701(
11

)3,517(
)65(
)4(
)12(

)758(

)718(

)1,690(

)3,598(

Total
contractual
cash flow
NIS millions

Carrying
amount
NIS millions

Up to
one year
NIS millions

2-3 years
NIS millions

Bonds (**)
Capital notes
Forward contracts
Interest rate swap

)2,949(
)65(
)4(
)12(

)355(
)65(
)4(
)8(

Total

)3,030(

)432(

December 31, 2019
Contractual cash flow
Carrying
amount
NIS millions

Up to
one year
NIS millions

2-3 years
NIS millions

4-5 years
NIS millions

More than
5 years
NIS millions

Bonds (**)
Capital notes
Forward contracts
Interest rate swap

)2,888(
)65(
)12(
9

)356(
)65(
)10(
)8(

)702(
)2(
)9(

)681(
-

)1,764(
26

)3,503(
)65(
)12(
9

Total

)2,956(

)439(

)713(

)681(

)1,738(

)3,571(

(*)

1. Contractual cash flow includes the effect of the CPI at the reporting date.
2. Liabilities in respect of trade payables and other payables were not reflected in this table since
these credit balances are paid by the Company up to six months from the reporting date.
3. A liability in respect of the acquisition of partnership interests, as mentioned in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements, in the overall amount of NIS 73 million as at December 31,
2019, was not reflected in the aforesaid table.
4. See Note 5 hereunder for information on the contractual payment dates of lease liabilities.

(**)

Carrying amount includes accrued interest.
See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for information on the interest rates and
additional details in respect of bonds and credit.
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Note 3 - Financial Instruments (cont'd)
B.

Linkage and foreign currency risks
(1)

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments
The Company’s exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk is as follows:
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Trade receivables
Investee companies
Other receivables
Other investments
Inventory
Non-current assets:
Other investments
Other receivables
Investments in investee
companies
Bonds from consolidated
company
Capital notes from
investee companies
Investee companies
Property, plant and
equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Deferred taxes

December 31, 2020
Foreign currency
Mainly dollar
NIS millions

Non-monetary
item
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

466
400
1,470
97
17
7
-

21
5
-

3
-

88
926

469
400
1,470
97
126
12
926

54
24

33
65

-

-

87
89

-

-

-

1,455

1,455

112

178

-

-

290

88
187

-

-

-

88
187

-

-

-

2,141
1,325
3,561
133

2,141
1,325
3,561
133

2,922

302

3

9,629

12,856
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Note 3 - Financial Instruments (cont'd)
B.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont'd)
(1)

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments (cont'd)
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current liabilities:
Capital notes to
investee companies
Current maturities in
respect of bonds
Current maturities of
lease liabilities
Trade payables
Investee companies
Other payables
Liability for acquisition
of partnership interests
Current taxes
Provisions
Non-current liabilities:
Bonds
Employee benefits, net
Lease liabilities
Other liabilities

Equity

Net exposure (*)
(*)

December 31, 2020
Foreign currency
Mainly dollar
NIS millions

Non-monetary
item
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

65

-

-

-

65

126

141

-

-

267

2,093
161
468

357
6

1
66
4

559

358
2,159
161
1,037

52

-

-

13
-

13
52

1,739
265
8

943
3,514
2

5
-

32

2,682
265
3,519
42

-

-

-

2,236

2,236

4,977

4,963

76

2,840

12,856

)2,055(

)4,661(

)73(

6,789

-

The net exposure does not include off-balance sheet liabilities.
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Note 3 - Financial Instruments (cont'd)
B.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont'd)
(1)

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments (cont'd)
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Trade receivables
Investee companies
Other receivables
Other investments
Inventory
Non-current assets:
Other investments
Other receivables
Investments in investee
companies
Bonds from consolidated
company
Capital notes from
investee companies
Investee companies
Property, plant and
equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use assets
Deferred taxes

December 31, 2019
Foreign currency
Mainly dollar
NIS millions

Non-monetary
item
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

36
300
1,194
132
19
4
-

23
5
-

3
-

90
743

39
300
1,194
132
132
9
743

57
25

39
64

-

8

96
97

-

-

-

1,323

1,323

125

204

-

-

329

315
597

-

-

-

315
597

-

-

-

1,903
1,075
2,820
112

1,903
1,075
2,820
112

2,804

335

3

8,074

11,216
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Note 3 - Financial Instruments (cont'd)
B.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont'd)
(1)

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments (cont'd)
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current liabilities:
Credit from banks
Capital notes from
investee companies
Current maturities in
respect of bonds
Current maturities of
lease liabilities
Trade payables
Investee companies
Other payables
Liability for acquisition
of partnership interests
Current taxes
Provisions

Non-monetary
item
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

93

-

-

-

93

65

-

-

-

65

124

143

-

-

267

1,849
117
313

297
-

1
61
10

431

298
1,910
117
754

73
32

-

-

8
-

73
8
32

1,543
233
6

1,078
2,776
-

6
2

40

2,621
233
2,782
48

-

-

-

1,915

1,915

4,448

4,294

80

2,394

11,216

)1,644(

)3,959(

)77(

5,680

-

Non-current liabilities:
Bonds
Employee benefits, net
Lease liabilities
Other liabilities

Equity

Net exposure (*)

December 31, 2019
Foreign currency
Mainly dollar
NIS millions

(*)

The net exposure does not include off-balance sheet liabilities.

(2)

Sensitivity analysis
An increase in the CPI would have affected the equity and the profit or loss at the amounts presented
below. This analysis assumes that other variables remain constant. This analysis does not include
off-balance sheet liabilities with regard to the Company's commitments in respect of lease
agreements.
December 31, 2020
Change in
equity
Pre-tax loss
NIS millions
NIS millions

Increase of 1% in CPI

(36)

(47)

December 31, 2019
Change in
equity
Pre-tax loss
NIS millions
NIS millions

(31)

(40)
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Note 3 - Financial Instruments (cont'd)
B.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont'd)
(2)

Sensitivity analysis (cont'd)
A decrease in the CPI at the same rate as at December 31 would have the same effect, although in
the opposite direction, assuming that all other variables remain constant.
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk in respect of the US dollar is immaterial.

(3)

Presented hereunder are the Company’s derivative financial instruments as at December 31,
2020:

Derivative description
Hedges of foreign currency
linked transactions:
Forward – hedge of imported
goods
Forward – hedge of imported
goods and property under
construction
Instrument serving as
accounting hedge:
Interest rate swap

Currency
receivable

Currency
payable

Par value
NIS millions

Dollar

NIS

60

Euro

NIS

209

-

-

533
802

Beginning of
transaction

Date of
expiration/
exercise

Fair value
NIS millions

June- Dec.
2020
March
2019Dec. 2020

Jan.-Dec.
2021

(3)

Jan. 2021July 2022

(1)

Aug.-Nov.
2016

Oct. 2028

(12)
(16)

Presented hereunder are the Company's derivative financial instruments as at December 31, 2019:

Derivative description
Hedges of foreign currency
linked transactions:
Forward – hedge of imported
goods
Forward – hedge of imported
goods and property under
construction
Instrument serving as
accounting hedge:
Interest rate swap

Currency
receivable

Currency
payable

Par value
NIS millions

Beginning of
transaction

Date of
expiration/
exercise

Fair value
NIS millions

Dollar

NIS

104

Feb.- Dec.
2019

Jan.-Nov.
2020

(1)

Euro

NIS

301

June 2018Dec. 2019

Jan. 2020July 2022

(11)

-

-

600
1,005

Aug.-Nov.
2016

Oct. 2028

9
(3)
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Note 3 - Financial Instruments (cont'd)
B.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont'd)
(4)

Changes in financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments whose cash flows are
classified as cash flows from financing activities:
Bonds
including
current
maturity and
accrued
interest
NIS millions

Credit from
banks
NIS millions

Swap
transactions
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1, 2019

-

6

)2,534(

(2,528)

Cash flows paid (received), net
Amounts recognized in equity
Amounts recognized in profit
and loss

(93)
-

10
1

(236)
-

(319)
1

-

(8)

)118(

(126)

Balance as at January 1, 2020

(93)

9

)2,888(

(2,972)

Cash flows paid (received), net
Amounts recognized in equity
Amounts recognized in profit
and loss

93
-

9
)16(

48
-

150
)16(

-

)14(

)109(

)123(

-

)12(

)2,949(

)2,961(

Balance as at December 31, 2020

Total
NIS millions

Note 4 - Income Tax
A.

Details regarding the tax environment of the Company
The tax rate relevant to the Company in the years 2018-2020 is 23%.
Current taxes for the reported periods are calculated according to the tax rates presented above.
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Note 4 - Income Tax (cont'd)
B.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
The movement in deferred tax assets (liabilities) is attributable to the following items:

Vacation
and
recreation

Balance as at January 1, 2019

C.

Leases
NIS millions

Bonds
from
subsidiary

Other
items

Total

47

)38(

9

-

)1(

)27(

5

2
-

-

)1(
-

47
-

10
37

-

1
-

59
37

-

9

-

-

-

-

2

11

17

56

)39(

56

47

)1(

)24(

112

3

-

1

)5(

9

-

6

14

-

5

-

-

-

-

2

7

20

61

)38(

51

56

)1(

)16(

133

Changes in 2020
Recognized in profit or loss
Recognized in other
comprehensive income
Balance as at December 31, 2020

Tax
losses

15

Changes in 2019
Recognized in profit or loss
Recognized directly in equity
Recognized in other
comprehensive income
Balance as at December 31, 2019

Employee
benefits

Property,
plant and
equipment
and other
assets

Composition of income tax expense
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current tax expense (income)
Current year
Adjustments for prior years, net
Deferred tax expense (income)
Deferred taxes for prior years
Deferred taxes, net
Total income tax expense

102
)1(
101

55
)3(
52

54
1
55

)14(
)14(
87

)31(
)28(
)59(
)7(

)2(
) 2(
53
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Note 4 - Income Tax (cont'd)
D.

Deferred taxes in respect of other comprehensive income
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

E.

Components of deferred taxes in other
comprehensive income
Change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments
Revaluation reserve for property, plant and
equipment
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

)2(

(2)

3

)5(

(9)

1
)4(

Total

)7(

(11)

-

Tax assessments
The Company has final tax assessments up to and including the 2016 tax year, and all the amounts the
Company is required to pay according to these assessments have been paid in full until the date of signing
the financial statements.

F.

Carry-forward tax losses
The Company has a capital loss of NIS 42 million, for which a deferred tax asset of NIS 10 million was
recognized. In accordance with current tax laws, there is no time limitation for utilizing tax losses.
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Note 5 - Leases
As from January 1, 2019 the Company applies IFRS 16, Leases. The Group's lease agreements mainly relate to
land and buildings it uses in its business operations. In addition, the Group subleases some of the land and
buildings that do not serve its business operations, usually at the same terms as the original lease.
A.

The effects of the application of IFRS 16 on the financial statements

1.

The effects of the application of IFRS 16 on the Company's profit and loss data

For the year ended December 31, 2020:
According to
the previous
policy

Effect of
application of
IFRS 16
NIS millions

According to
the present
policy

)10,893(

6

)10,887(

3,785

6

3,791

Selling and marketing expenses

)2,932(

59

)2,873(

Operating profit before other
income (expenses)*

620

65

685

Financing expenses, net

)92(

)104(

)196(

Loss from investee companies

)29(

)1(

)30(

Profit before taxes on income

514

)40(

474

Taxes on income

)96(

9

)87(

Profit for the year

418

)31(

387

Cost of sales and services
Gross profit

*

An increase of NIS 334 million in depreciation expenses against a decrease of NIS 399 million in rental
expenses.
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Note 5 - Leases (cont’d)
A.

The effects of the application of IFRS 16 on the financial statements (cont'd)

1.

The effects of the application of IFRS 16 on the Company's profit and loss data (cont'd)

For the year ended December 31, 2019:
According to
the previous
policy

Effect of
application of
IFRS 16
NIS millions

According to
the present
policy

)9,216(

4

)9,212(

3,256

4

3,260

)2,626(

60

)2,566(

466

64

530

)115(

)91(

)206(

Loss from investee companies

)48(

)12(

)60(

Profit before taxes on income

301

)39(

262

)3(

10

7

298

)29(

269

Cost of sales and services
Gross profit
Selling and marketing expenses
Operating profit before other expenses*
Financing expenses, net

Taxes on income
Profit for the year
*

An increase of NIS 298 million in depreciation expenses against a decrease of NIS 362 million in rental
expenses.

2.

The effects of the application of IFRS 16 on the Company's cash flows

For the year ended December 31, 2020:
According to
the previous
policy

Effect of
application of
IFRS 16
NIS millions

According to
the present
policy

Cash flows from operating activities

1,220

416

1,636

Cash flows from financing activities

)237(

)416(

)653(
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Note 5 - Leases (cont’d)
2.

The effects of the application of IFRS 16 on the Company's cash flows (cont'd)

For the year ended December 31, 2019:
According to
the previous
policy

Effect of
application of
IFRS 16
NIS millions

According to
the present
policy

Cash flows from operating activities

628

379

1,007

Cash flows from financing activities

159

)379(

)220(

Year ended
December 31
2020
NIS millions

Year ended
December 31
2019
NIS millions

70
)17(
1
22
**-

62
)14(
4
18
*-

76

70

B.

Receivables from leases

Balance as at January 1
Receipts of principal and interest
Interest income
Effect of Be merger
Additions**
Other***
Balance as at December 31
*
**
***

Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
Due mainly to new agreements and modifications that were made in lease agreements, such as
extension of the lease term.
Due mainly to adjustments to the Consumer Price Index.

Maturity analysis of receivables from leases
December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

Up to one year
One to five years
More than five years

14
44
27

15
41
19

Total contractual cash flow

85

75
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Note 5 - Leases (cont'd)
C.

Right-of-use assets
Year ended
December 31
2020
NIS millions

Year ended
December 31
2019
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Depreciation
Effect of Be merger
Additions*
Other**

2,820
)339(
519
543
18

2,865
)298(
245
8

Balance as at December 31

3,561

2,820

*
**
D.

Due mainly to new agreements and modifications that were made in lease agreements, such as
extension of the lease term.
Due mainly to adjustments to the Consumer Price Index.

Lease liabilities
Year ended
December 31
2020
NIS millions

Year ended
December 31
2019
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Repayment of principal and interest
Financing expenses
Effect of Be merger
Additions*
Other**

3,080
)416(
97
558
540
18

3,092
)376(
95
261
8

Balance as at December 31

3,877

3,080

Current maturities of lease liabilities
Long-term lease liabilities

358
3,519

298
2,782

Total lease liabilities

3,877

3,080

*
**

Due mainly to new agreements and modifications that were made in lease agreements, such as
extension of the lease term.
Due mainly to adjustments to the Consumer Price Index.
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Note 5 - Leases (cont'd)
D.

Lease liabilities (cont'd)
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

E.

December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

Up to one year
One to five years
More than five years

455
1,666
2,446

387
1,411
1,880

Total contractual cash flow

4,567

3,678

Additional information on leases
1.

Amounts recognized in profit or loss
December 31
2020
NIS millions

December 31
2019
NIS millions

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities*
Interest expenses on lease liabilities, net

)339(

)298(

)63(
)96(

)52(
)91(

Total expenses

)498(

)441(

*

2.

Mainly expenses based on turnover and management fees that are recognized in the framework
of selling and marketing expenses.
Amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows
Year ended
December 31
2020
NIS millions

Year ended
December 31
2019
NIS millions

Cash inflow from leases

17

14

Cash outflow from leases

416

431
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Note 6 - Material Commitments and Transactions with Investee Companies
A.

B.

Loans and capital notes granted to investee companies
(1)

A sub-subsidiary issued the Company a capital note in the amount of NIS 8 million, which is
unlinked, does not bear interest and as yet has no repayment date but may not be paid before the
elapsing of five years from December 19, 2012.

(2)

In 2016 an agreement was signed between the Company and its subsidiary, by which the balance
of the subsidiary's debt would bear interest at a nominal rate of 5.73%.

(3)

On January 1, 2017, a subsidiary issued the Company a capital note in the amount of NIS 80
million, which is unlinked, does not bear interest and is payable on January 1, 2022.

Agreements to provide services and for lease of assets
The Company has a service agreement with several investee companies by which it provides these
companies management services, office services and bookkeeping services. Total income from
management fees amounted to NIS 4 million per year in 2018, 2019 and 2020. In addition, the Company
has an agreement with a wholly owned subsidiary, Shufersal Real Estate, regarding the lease of properties
used by the Company.

C.

Transactions with investee companies
Presented hereunder is information regarding transactions with investee companies:
Year ended December 31
2020
2019
NIS millions
NIS millions

Purchases
Rent expenses and management fees
Financing income

1,182
149
29

1,052
129
37

2018
NIS millions

1,096
126
39

For additional information regarding investee companies, see Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Note 7 - Material Events in the Reporting Period
A.

Merger of wholly owned subsidiary:
On July 1, 2020 the merger of Be Drugstores Ltd. (hereinafter: "Be"), a wholly owned subsidiary, with and
into the Company was completed. Until the date of the merger, Be was presented as an investee company
in the framework of this condensed separate information and its results were presented in the framework of
losses from investee companies. Upon completion of the merger all the assets and liabilities of Be were
transferred to the Company and Be was dissolved on that date without liquidation. In addition, statement
of income data, comprehensive income data and cash flows data of the Be operation for the period from the
date of completing the merger are included in the data of the Company.
Presented hereunder is the effect of the Be merger on the Company's assets and liabilities as at July 1, 2020:

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Equity
*

Before the
merger

Effect of
the merger
NIS millions

After the
merger

3,169
8,618
)3,818(
)5,969(
)2,000(

*236
386
)99(
)523(
-

3,405
9,004
)3,917(
)6,492(
)2,000(

Including a cash balance of NIS 5 million.

B.

See Note 1.B(3) to the consolidated financial statements for details regarding acquisition of control in an
operation for the sale and distribution of food and cleaning products to the institutional market.

C.

See Note 7.A to the consolidated financial statements for details regarding developments in the
Company's objection to a monetary demand and assessment of the Israel Land Authority.

D.

See Note 17(3) to the consolidated financial statements for details regarding the issuance of bonds.

E.

See Note 20.B to the consolidated financial statements regarding the resolution by the Company’s board
of directors on a dividend distribution.

F.

See Note 16(2) to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding developments relating
to legal claims.

G.

During the period a wholly owned subsidiary distributed a dividend in the amount of NIS 15 million.
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Note 8 - Material Events Subsequent to the Reporting Date
A.

On March 1, 2021, the board of directors of a wholly owned subsidiary decided to distribute a dividend in
the amount of NIS 20 million.

B.

See Note 34.A to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding a collaboration agreement
between the Company and Bank Discount.

C.

See Note 34.B to the consolidated financial statements for information on an equity compensation plan that
was approved by the compensation committee.

D.

See Note 34.C to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding approval of a dividend
distribution subsequent to the reporting date.

E.

See Note 16(2)d to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding developments relating
to legal claims subsequent to the reporting date.
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Regulation 10A: A summary of the consolidated statements of profit or loss including quarters for 2020
(in ILS millions)
2020
Year
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
total
4
3
2
1
Revenues

15,233

Gross profit

4,043

3,942

3,689

3,731

1,047

1,029

968

999

(3,325)

(845)

(849)

(803)

(828)

Operating profit before other revenues
(costs)

718

202

180

165

171

Increase in fair value and profit from
exercising investment property

13

9

-

4

-

Other costs, net

14

5

10

-

(1)

Operating profit after other revenues
(costs)

745

216

190

169

170

(232)

(62)

(60)

(60)

(50)

Share in investee company profits
treated under the equity method

(4)

2

-

(4)

(2)

Income before taxes on income

509

156

130

105

118

(122)

(36)

(33)

(25)

(28)

387

120

97

80

90

Total sale, marketing, administrative
and general costs

Financing expenses, net

Taxes on income
Profit for the period

3,871
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Regulation 10A (continued): A summary of the statements of the consolidated total profit, including
quarters for 2020 (in ILS millions)
2020
Year
total

Quarter
4

Quarter
3

Quarter
2

Quarter
1

387

120

97

80

90

(10)

4

-

-

(14)

-

-

*-

-

-

2

(1)

-

-

3

(8)

3

-*

-

(11)

(23)

(23)

-

(18)

18

Revaluation fund regarding details of fixed
property classified as property investment

40

40

-

-

-

Taxes for details of other total profit not to be
transferred to profit and loss

(4)

(4)

-

4

(4)

Total other total profit for the period not to be
transferred to profit and loss, net of tax

13

13

-

(14)

14

Other total profit (loss) for the period, net of
tax

5

16

-

(14)

3

392

136

97

66

93

Holders of the Company

392

136

97

66

93

Non-controlling interests

-*

-*

-*

-

-

392

136

97

66

93

Profit for the period
Details of total other profit (loss) after first
recognizing the total profit transferred or to be
transferred to profit and loss
The effective part of the change to fair value
of instruments used to hedge cash flows
Net change in fair value credited to the
principal of the hedging cost
Taxes for details of other total profit that were
first recognized in the total profit and to be
transferred to profit and loss
Total other profit (loss) for the period after
first recognizing the total profit and
transferred or to be transferred to profit and
loss, net of tax
Details of total other profit (loss) not to be
transferred to profit and loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

Total comprehensive profit for the period
Total comprehensive profit attributable to:

Total comprehensive profit for the period

* Note amounts lower than ILS 1 million
4
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Regulation 10C: Use of securities proceeds
On April 5, 2020, the Company (in a private placement) by way of a series expansion issued ILS 300 million par
value of its current debentures Series G. The net issue proceeds (less issue costs of approximately ILS 1 million)
amounted to approximately ILS 312 million. The proceeds were used for current uses of the Company.

5

Additional Details on the Corporation as of December 31, 2020

Regulation 11: List of investments in subsidiaries and material affiliated companies as of the Report Date, on the financial situation Company name

Type of share
and par value
in ILS *

Number of
issued
shares

Total par
value
issued (in
ILS)

Cost
in reported
amounts
(ILS
million)

Value in the
separate financial
statements under
its meaning in
Regulation 9C
(ILS million)

Holding rate in percentages

Number of
shares
1,000,100

1,000,100

388

1,188

1,000,100

100

100

Authority
to appoint
directors
100

900,002,000

900,002

4

86

900,002,000

100

100

100

-

-

-

-

7

-

100

_-

-

1.00 ordinary
shares

10,000

10,000

208

-

8,400

100

100

100

1. Shufersal Real-estate 1.00 ordinary
Ltd.
shares
2. Gidron
0.001 ordinary
Industries Ltd.
shares

3. Shufersal Finance,
Limited Partnership
4. Shufersal Finance
Management Ltd.
(general partner in
Shufersal Finance,
Limited Partnership)

*

Equity

Voting

Ordinary shares

Shufersal’s subsidiaries and affiliated companies are not listed on the stock exchange and their shares are not traded on the stock exchange.
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Loans and capital notes that the Company granted to its subsidiaries and material affiliated
companies as of the date of the report on the financial situation:

Loan/capital note receiver

Shufersal Real-estate Ltd.

Shufersal Real-estate Ltd.

Loan and capital note
balance, including
accrued interest (ILS
millions)
112

178

Loan/capit
al note
details

Interest

Linkage
type

Loan

5.09%

-

Loan

4.3%

Linked to
the
Consumer
Price Index

Repayment years

The principal shall
be repaid in 13
equal annual
payments starting
October 8, 2017
The annual interest
starting October 8,
2017
The principal shall
be repaid in 9 equal
annual payments
starting October 8,
2020. The annual
interest starting
October 8, 2016

Regulation 12: Changes to investments in the subsidiary and material affiliated company during the
Report Period -

In 2020 a fully owned subsidiary distributed dividends of ILS 15 million.
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Regulation 13: Revenue of material subsidiaries and affiliated companies and revenue thereof for the
report period (in ILS millions)

Company name (*)

Profit (loss)
per annum
attributable
to the
owners of
the
Company
115

Profit (loss)
before tax
attributable
to the
owners of
the
Company
151

Dividends
and
distribution
of profits

Revenue
Management
fees

-

4

10

Shufersal Finance, Limited
Partnership

22

22

15

-

-

Gidron Industries Ltd.

17

22

15

-

-

Be Drugstores Ltd. (**)

(25)

(25)

-

2

6

Shufersal Real-estate Ltd.

Revenue on
interest

Interest dividends and management fees that the Company received or that it is entitled to receive from any
of its subsidiaries or related companies.
(*) The companies’ country of incorporation is Israel.
(**) Until July 1, 2020 (the liquidation date of the above company as a result of merging into the Company)

.
Regulation 20: Stock exchange trading - securities listed for trade
1. On March 19, 2020, a scheduled suspension of trading began following the publication of the financial
statements for 2019.
2. On April 5, 2020, 300,000 bonds (Series G) that the Company issued (private placement) were listed for trade
by way of expanding the series.
3. On May 31, 2020, 77,560 ordinary shares par value ILS 0.1 each were listed for trade, which the Company
issued as a result of the vesting of restricted share units (RSU) for officers.
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Regulation 21: Remuneration for interested parties and senior officers 1. Below are the details of the remuneration granted in the reporting year, as recognized in the financial statements as of December 31, 2020, to each of the five
biggest remuneration holders among the senior officers in the Company or in a corporation under its control, and which were granted to it in connection with
its tenure at the Company or corporation under its control:
Remuneration for services
(In ILS thousand)

Details of the remuneration recipients
Name

Role

Itzik
Abercohen
David
Laron

CEO of the Company

Aran Meiri

Deputy CEO and
Director of Operations
and Supply Chain
Deputy CEO and Chief
Marketing &
Merchandising Officer
VP, General Counsel

Tali Huber

CFO

Uri
Kilstein*

*
**
***
****
9

Scope
of
Positio
n

Rate
Holding
Equity
of the
Company
on the
report
date (in
%)*

Salary
and
related

100%

0.01%

100%

****

100%

****

100%

****

100%

****

Manage
ment
fees

Consulti
ng fees

Other remuneration
(In ILS thousand)
Com
missio
n

Other

Interest

Rent

Total
(In ILS
thousand)

Bonu
s

Payment
based
shares

Other

2,716

2,438

3,552

8,706

1,469

736

902

3,107

744

370**

699

752

2,965

616

790

2,756

1,511

1,514
1,350

Ceased serving as an officer on January 31, 2021
Including a change in estimate regarding the expected expiration of options and RSUs
Payment for an adjustment period of 4 months
Each person holds less than three thousandths of a percent

400***

3,025
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Regulation 21 (continued): Remuneration for interested parties and senior officers
2. Below are the details of the remuneration granted in the reporting year, as recognized in the financial statements as of December 31, 2020, to each of the
interested parties of the Company, who is not set forth in Section 1 above, in connection with services provided as functionary of the Company or company
under its control:
Remuneration for services
(In ILS thousand)

Details of the remuneration recipients
Name

Mauricio
Wior

Role

Former Chairman
of the Board in the
Company

Scope
of
Positi
on

Rate
Holding
Equity
of the
Company on
the report date
(in %)

Salary
and
related

Manag
ement
fees

40%

**

-

1044

Bonus

Payment
based
shares

(162)***

Cons
ultin
g
fees

Other remuneration
(In ILS thousand)
Com
missio
n

Other

Interest

123

Rent

Total*
(In ILS
thousand)

Other

1,005

* Reimbursement of costs (see below in the description of the terms of employment).
** Holds less than three thousandths of a percent.
*** Revenue registration, by way of terminating salary costs that accumulated for the options and RSUs, which were included in this section.
Mr. Mauricio Wior stopped serving as chairman of the Company’s board of directors and as Company directors on November 25, 2020. For his tenure Mr. Wior was
entitled to a total monthly consideration of ILS 87,000 plus VAT. The consideration is index-linked. Mr. Wior is not entitled to receive directors’ remuneration from the
Company (annual remuneration and remuneration for participation). Mr. Wior was also entitled to reimbursement of costs involved with his coming to Israel for purpose
of participating in the board of directors’ meetings and/or its committees, or work meetings, including costs for flights, accommodation and travel, according to the
mechanism approved by the general meetings in this context. For additional details, see amended report for convening a general meeting, dated July 8, 2019 (reference
2019-01-058869) (“2019 Remuneration Report”).
On February 4, 2021, the Company’s board of directors, after obtaining the approval of the Company’s remuneration committee, approved an adjustment bonus for Mr.
Wior of 4 months (meaning, ILS 348,000). The bonus is subject to the approval of the general meeting, which as of the report date has yet to be obtained. For additional
details, see the 2021 Remuneration Report (as defined below).
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As of the report date, Mr. Yaki Vadmani, chairman of the Company’s board of directors, only receives directors’ remuneration. On February 4, 2021, the Company’s
board of directors, after obtaining the remuneration committee’s approval, approved Mr. Vadmani’s terms of office effective from the beginning of his tenure as chairman
of the board of directors on November 25, 2020. The terms of office are subject to the approval of the general meeting that has yet to be obtained as of the report date,
and they include monthly consideration of ILS 87,000 + VAT, index-linked, and provision of a vehicle and vehicle costs (including grossing up), as well as reimbursement
of costs in the framework of his role as customary in the Company. For additional details, see the immediate report published by the Company on February 4, 2021
(reference: 2021-01-014970) (“2021 Remuneration Report”).
Remuneration of directors and related costs that do not deviate from what is acceptable, that the Company recognized as costs in the financial statements as of the reporting
period, to those who during that period served as directors of the Company (not including Mr. Mauricio Wior, the former chairman), amounted to approximately ILS 3
million. The directors of the Company (except for the former chairman of the board of directors, Mr. Mauricio Wior), receive directors remuneration (annual remuneration
and remuneration for participation) in the maximum allowed amounts under the Companies Rules Regarding Remuneration and Costs for External Directors) Regulations,
5760-2000, as they shall be from time to time, and according to the director’s classification (expert/non-expert), and according to the level the Company is classified in,
in accordance with its equity in the year preceding the year for which the remuneration is paid.
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Regulation 21 (continued): Remuneration for interested parties and senior officers
Comments and additional details
A. The data in the table in Section 1 express employer’s cost.
B. The employment agreements of the officers in the table in Section 1 are not for a fixed period, and they
determined that each party may terminate the engagement with three months prior notice (and with respect
to Mr. Abercohen - 4 months).
C. The terms of employment of Messrs. Abercohen, Kilstein, Laron, Meiri, and Huber include the following
components: Monthly salary, social contribution fees including advanced study fund and work incapacity
insurance, 14 recuperation days per annum, a vehicle including grossing up, while in this respect all the above
officers are entitled to a level 6 vehicle, except for Mr. Abercohen who is entitled to a level 7 vehicle, 21-23
vacation days per annum, and related terms (mobile phone, home phone line, newspapers, and screening).
They are also entitled to a clothing allowance and holiday gifts according to what is customary in the
Company for all employees. The above officers are entitled to an annual bonus according to the Company’s
remuneration policy. For the Company’s updated remuneration policy (the “Remuneration Policy”) see the
2019 Remuneration Report.
D. Mr. Abercohen’s employment agreement also includes an adjustment period of 4 months starting from the
end of the prior notice period.
E. In the reporting year the salary of Ms. Huber, the Company’s CFO, was raised by an immaterial amount.
F. Mr. Itzik Abercohen has been employed by the Company since August 2000. Mr. Abercohen has been serving
as the Company’s CEO since January 1, 2012. Mr. Laron has been employed by the Company since February
2015, and serves as Deputy CEO and Director of Operations and Supply Chain. Mr. Kilstein has been
employed by the Company since January 2010 (in his latest role Mr. Kilstein served as Deputy CEO and
Chief Marketing & Merchandising Officer) and he ended his tenure as officer of the Company on January
31, 2021. Mr. Meiri has been employed with the Company since June 2007 and serves as VP and General
Counsel. Ms. Huber has been employed with the Company since October 2015 in the role of CFO.
G. Annual bonuses for 2020
According to the remuneration policy and annual bonus plan for 2020 (the “2019 Plan”), the total annual
budget for bonuses to the Company’s officers shall not in any case exceed 2% of the operating profit (before
bonuses and neutralizing costs recorded by the Company for capital remuneration), according to the
consolidated annual financial statements for the year for which the bonus is paid. Thus, a threshold condition
for the payment of bonuses was determined, whereby in a year when the operating profit as appearing in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements (neutralizing the bonuses to the officers and neutralizing costs
that the Company recorded for capital remuneration) shall be lower than ILS 350 million, no annual bonuses
shall be distributed. In 2020 the Company is in compliance with such threshold conditions, and it is not
deviating from the bonuses budget that was determined.
In 2020, the target bonus for the CEO was set at 12 salaries, and for the other officers between 6-8 salaries.
The target bonus is the bonus that is paid for exact fulfillment of 100% of the targets to be defined for the
officer. In 2020 the weight of the Company indicators, as set forth below, from the target bonus, was 80%
with respect to the CEO, and 70% with respect to the CFO and general counsel (while the remaining target
bonus is for the “manager evaluation” component that is not quantitative but rather qualitative). For the other
officer the weight of the Company indicators from the target bonus was 40%, the weight of the personal
indicators was 30%, and the “manager evaluation component” - 30%. In addition, according to the officers
remuneration policy, they may be entitled to a special (qualitative) bonus in accordance with the restrictions
and provisions of Section 5.2.3 of the remuneration policy in this context.
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The Company indicators set forth in the 2020 plan, and in accordance with the remuneration policy, are: [a]
Total revenue (30% of the Company indicators’ weight); [b] percentage of operating profit (50% of the
Company indicators’ weight), and [c] net profit (20% of the Company indicators’ weight). As stated in the
remuneration policy, the targets for each such indicator are the target for that indicator in the Company’s
budget of that year. With respect to the following Company indicators, bonuses were paid for that indicator
at a rate exceeding 3 salaries: The percentage of operating profit (according to the Company’s performance,
the target-fulfillment percentage was 112%) and revenue (according to the Company’s performance, the
target-fulfillment percentage was 110%). The officers who were paid a bonus exceeding 3 salaries for the
same components are as follows: Itzik Abercohen (6.6 salaries for the operating profit percentage component
and 4 salaries for the revenue component) and Messrs. Aran Meiri and Tali Huber (3.15 salaries for the
operating profit percentage component).
With respect to the CEO it is noted that according to the results of meeting the targets under the 2020
remuneration policy, the CEO should have received a higher bonus, however in accordance with the
provisions of the remuneration policy, the bonus was truncated to ILS 2,438, which reflects 16 salaries.
For VPs (except the CFO and general counsel) different personal indicators were also determined, which are
key performance indicators (KPI) according to their role and the Company’s work plan. No specific
measurable (quantitative) personal indicator was determined for the VP on the basis of which that VP was
paid an amount exceeding 3 salaries. In addition to the Company indicators (and the personal indicators, if
relevant), a manager evaluation was also conducted. As stated in the remuneration policy, in the framework
of the manager evaluation component, an evaluation was conducted of indicators that may be measurable,
but which are “qualitative” indicators. The manager evaluation mark for VPs was determined by the board
of directors and approved by the remuneration committee and board of directors on February 21, 2021, and
March 3, 2021, respectively. While with respect to the other officers the evaluation mark was determined by
the CEO and approved by the remuneration committee and board of directors on February 21, 2021, and
March 3, 2021, respectively.
As stated in the remuneration policy, in case of overperformance, more than the target bonus that is attributed
to the relevant indicator can be achieved for every bonus component, but in any event no more than 150%
from the target bonus (according to the remuneration policy the maximum bonus for the CEO shall be in any
case truncated to 16 salaries). The calculation of meeting the targets is conducted with respect to each target
separately. For additional details on the manner of determining the targets and calculating the meeting of
targets, see the remuneration policy.
The officers undertook in writing, according to the remuneration policy, that they shall return to the Company
the bonus amount or part thereof should it in the future transpire that the calculation of the bonus was
conducted based on data that turned out to be wrong and that were restated in the Company’s financial
statements in a period of four consecutive financial statements, and that the reimbursement amount shall be
part of the bonus to be paid due to the mistake.
H. Options and restricted share units
On May 28, 2019, the Company’s board of directors, after obtaining the approval of the Company’s
remuneration committee, approved the allocation for no consideration of 5,074,628 non-marketable warrants,
which are exercisable into up to 5,074,628 ordinary shares of the Company par value ILS 0.1 each, and of
310,240 unlisted time and performance based restricted share units (RSU) that are exercisable into up to
310,240 ordinary shares, for nine officers of the Company, including for the five officers set forth in the table
in Section 1 above, as well as the Company’s former chairman of the board. The options and the RSU that
were allocated to the chairman in the framework of the second portion up to the fourth portion (including)
expired upon the termination of his tenure as the Company’s chairman of the board.
For details in connection with the options, the RSU and their terms, and the correct fair value as of the board
of directors’ resolution day on their allocation and the assumptions at the basis of the calculation, see the
amended private placement report published by the Company on July 1, 2019 (reference number 2019-01056400). It is noted that the vesting of the restricted share units (RSU) that were allocated in 4 portions are
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subject to certain financial terms as set forth in the above private placement report. The foregoing financial
terms were also fulfilled with respect to the second portion that vested (subject to the relevant officers being
employed on that date) on May 29, 2021.
The amount set forth in the column “share-based payment” in the table in Section 1 above represents the
accounting cost recognized by the Company according to the provisions of International Financial Reporting
Standard 2 in the reporting year.
On February 4, 2021, the Company’s board of directors, after obtaining the approval of the Company’s
remuneration committee, approved an allocation for no consideration of 663,753 non-marketable warrants,
28,279 unlisted time and performance based restricted share units (RSU), and 22,454 unlisted time based
restricted share units (RSU), to Mr. Yaki Vadmani, chairman of the Company’s board, and to Mr. Nir
Metosevich who shall begin serving as deputy CEO and Director of the Company’s Trade and Marketing
Division in April 2021. For additional details see the private placement report dated February 4, 2021 (reference
number 2021-01-014979). The allocation to Mr. Vadmani is subject to the approval of the general meeting that
has yet to be obtained as of the report date, and the allocation to Mr. Metosevich is subject to this actual
commencement of work.

Regulation 21A: Control of the corporation
As of December 31, 2020, and as of the publication date of this periodic report, the Company does not have
a controlling shareholder, under the meaning of this term in Section 1 of the Securities Law.
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Regulation 22: Transactions with a controlling shareholder, or in which the controlling shareholder
has a personal interest
Below are details, to the Company’s best knowledge, regarding any transaction with the (former) controlling
shareholder of the Company or in which the (former) controlling shareholder of the Company had a personal
interest in being approved (“Transaction with the Controlling Shareholder”), which the Company, companies
under its control and its related companies (the “Group”) engaged with during the report year or that is still
valid on the report date:
As stated in Regulation 21A of Chapter D to this periodic report, as of the report date the Company does not
have a controlling shareholder, under the meaning of this term in Section 1 of the Securities Law. Nevertheless,
Discount Investment Corporation Ltd. (“DIC”) is still deemed in some of the report period to be a “controlling
shareholder” of the Company with respect to Section 268 of the Companies Law and with respect to this
Regulation 22, due to its holding of more than 25% of the Company’s issued share capital and its voting rights
(after deducting dormant shares in the hands of the Company itself). On July 26, 2020, DIC sold all of its
holdings in the Company and starting on that same date it is no longer deemed a controlling shareholder with
respect to Section 268 of the Companies Law and this regulation. Reference in this regulation to “controlling
shareholder” is thus to the former controlling shareholder of the Company, DIC.
1.

General
Criteria for classifying transactions as non-extraordinary transactions, and classifying non-extraordinary
transactions as negligible transactions
The Company has a procedure that is updated/approved from time to time at the audit committee (the last
approval was on December 23, 2019, and as of the report date the Company is examining changes to the
procedure, and thereafter it shall be brought to the audit committee’s approval), which according to the
provisions of Sections 117(A1) and 117(A2) determines criteria and guidelines for classifying transactions
of the Company as stated in Sections 270(1), (4) and (4A) of the Companies Law, 5759-1999 (the
“Companies Law”) as an extraordinary or non-extraordinary transaction, as well as to classify a transaction
as stated in the beginning of Sections 270(4) and 270(4A) that was classified as a non-extraordinary
transaction, negligible or non-negligible transaction. Such criteria and guidelines are also used for
classifying a transaction of the Company with an interested party therein as a negligible transaction as set
forth in Regulation 41(A3) of the Securities (Annual Financial Statements) Regulations, 5770-2010
(“Financial Statements Regulations”). Such procedure is used both for examining the scope of disclosure
in the periodic report and Prospectus (including in the shelf offering report) regarding a transaction of the
Company with a controlling shareholder or in which the controlling shareholder as a personal interest in its
approval, as set forth in Regulation 22 of the Securities (Periodic and Immediate Reports) Regulations, 57301970 (“Periodic Reports Regulations”) and in Regulation 54 of the Securities (Prospectus Details and
Draft - Structure and Form) Regulations, 5729-1969 (“Prospectus Details Regulations”) as well as with
respect to the required disclosure in transactions with interested parties under the Financial Statements
Regulations, and for purpose of approving interested party transaction under Chapter Five of Part Six to the
Companies Law, as well as for purpose of approving actions under Section 255 of the Companies Law (the
transaction types set forth in the Financial Statements Regulations, Periodic Reports Regulations, and in the
Prospectus Details Regulations mentioned above, shall be hereinafter referred to as - “Interested Party
Transactions”).
The Company and its subsidiaries and related companies, conduct or may conduct Interested Party
Transactions in their ordinary course of business, and they have or may have obligations to conduct such
transactions, including transaction of the types and nature as set forth below: Service purchase transaction
from interested parties (such as tourism services, Company portfolio management services, investment
consulting services and other financial services); purchase and/or lease and/or sale transaction of chattel and
goods of interested parties, including purchasing various insurance policies, and including goods that the
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Company is purchasing in order to sell them in retail; transactions for purchase, sale, rent and lease of real
estate assets; transactions in connection with marketing campaigns, publication and discounts together with
interested parties or that are related to products of interested parties; Interested Party Transactions in
connection with Company gifts and the provision of discounts to interested parties for purchasing products
in the Company’s branches; sale of foods or other products in the Company’s branches or through Shufersal
Online.

Extraordinary/non-extraordinary transaction:
A transaction shall be classified as a non-extraordinary transaction if it meets three cumulative criteria: The
transaction is conducted during the Company’s ordinary course of business, under market conditions, and it
is not material to the Company. In this regard the procedure sets forth the following key provisions:
 Ordinary course of business: A transaction shall be deemed as being conducted during the Company’s
ordinary course of business if the engagement therein is made in the framework of the Company’s actual
routine transactions, and it is not non-recurring or exceptional to the Company’s activity. In the absence
of special considerations, the is a presumption that transactions of the types set forth below are
transactions conducted during the Company’s ordinary course of business (the list does not constitute a
closed list, but rather examples only): A transaction that is of the type of transactions in which the
Company engaged in the past during its business, or that is similar in nature to transactions that the
Company engaged in int the past during its business, if the transaction is part of the Company’s core
business, or if it is related to the Company’s business activity or serves it, even if not at the core of its
business; transactions for purchasing products or services, transactions for purchasing an asset that
serves the Company as a branch or warehouse or yielding asset, and as other fixed property (that serves
the Company in its branches, warehouses, or offices), or other investment transactions, financing and
loan transactions, management agreements, as well as transactions for exercising investments or assets
that are of the type of transactions that the Company customarily engages in, or that it in the past
conducted in the framework of its areas of activity or in areas that touch upon its areas of activity;
engagements pertaining to the tenure and/or employment of officers and employees of the Company
that are of the type of engagements customary and accepted in the Company, or that are similar in nature
to previous engagements of the Company; and transactions set forth with types of frequent Interested
Party Transactions that the Company may conduct and which it needs for the ongoing management of
its activity (as set forth in the procedure and as set forth in this Section 1.1 above).
 Market conditions - An Interested Party Transaction shall be deemed as being conducted under market
conditions if the key terms of employment reflect the main terms of a similar transaction, had such been
conducted between the Company and an unrelated third party or other unrelated parties (“Similar
Transactions”). The fulfillment of market conditions can be established if there is a market for
transactions of the type of the transaction being examined, or if there is evidence that is external to the
transaction, from which the price and other accepted key conditions of a transaction of this type can be
learned.



Without derogating from the generality of the foregoing, the fulfillment of market conditions can inter
alia be established in one or more of the following ways: Based on the terms of transactions materially
similar to the examined transaction, in which the Company engaged with unrelated parties; based on
price offers from unrelated parties that the Company was prepared to engage under, even if no actual
engagement occurred; based on the terms of transactions materially similar to the examined transaction,
in which the other party to the transaction engaged or received an offer to engage with unrelated parties
provided the other party provided written approval to the Company of the foregoing; based on the terms
of transactions materially similar to the examined transaction, in which two unrelated parties engaged;
if the terms of employment between the Company and interested party was determined already before
it was an interested party.
Materiality - In general, a transaction shall be classified as an immaterial transaction if it does not exceed
5% of the criteria relevant to the transaction as set forth below:
Every Interested Party Transaction which examines the classification as a material transaction, one or
more of the criteria relevant to the specific transaction shall be calculated based on the Company’s latest
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consolidated annual financial statements: (a) Sales ratio - total sales subject of the Interested Party
Transaction divided by total annual sales; (b) sales cost ratio - the cost of the Interested Party Transaction
divided by the total annual sales cost; (c) profit ratio - the actual or predicted profit or loss attributed to
the Interested Party Transaction divided by the average annual profit or loss of the last three years,
calculated on the basis of the 12 latest quarters for which reviewed or audited financial statements were
published; (d) asset ratio - scope of assets subject of the Interested Party Transaction divided by total
assets; (e) obligations ratio - the obligation subject of the Interested Party Transaction divided by total
obligations; (f) operating cost ratio - scope of cost subject of the Interested Party Transaction divided by
total annual operating costs.
Thus for example, a transaction for purchasing products or services the relevant criteria is generally the
sales cost ratio. For a transaction for purchasing a fixed asset the relevant criteria is generally the assets
ratio. In a transaction for leasing an asset, the relevant criteria is usually the operating costs ratio.
Separate Interested Party Transactions that are dependent upon each other, so that they are actually part
of the same engagement (for example conducting concentrated negotiations regarding a range of
transactions), shall be examined as one transaction. In addition, the materiality of transactions that are
frequently conducted, fixed, and recurring over time (such as frequent and recurring orders, even if they
are not dependent on each other) shall be examined according to the scope of annual transactions.
With respect to multi-year Interested Party Transactions, the scope of the transaction shall be calculated
for purposes of examining the materiality on an annual basis. For example, in an insurance transaction
over a few years, the annual paid insurance fee shall be deemed the scope of the transaction.
In cases when, according to the Company’s discretion, all of the quantitative criteria mentioned above
are irrelevant for examining the materiality of the Interested Party Transaction, the transaction shall be
deemed material, according to different relevant criteria to be determined by the Company, provided the
transaction exceeds 5% of the chosen relevant criteria.
The examination of qualitative considerations may lead to a contradiction of the materiality presumption
regarding the transaction’s materiality or immateriality. For example, a transaction where all the relevant
criteria calculated for it are lower than 5% may be deemed material if it may affect the Company’s
compliance with material regulatory requirements, significant financial criteria, or other significant
contractual requirements, while non-compliance therewith may affect the Company’s profitability,
property or obligations. On the other hand, a transaction for which the relevant criteria calculated
therefor slightly exceeds 5%, may be deemed immaterial, if qualitatively and under all the circumstances
it is reasonable to determine that it may not materially affect the Company’s profitability, its property,
or its obligations.
Negligible transaction:
A transaction of the type of Interested Party Transactions as set forth in the procedure and in this
Regulation 22 above shall be in the framework of a negligible transaction if the following two
cumulative conditions are fulfilled: [a] The transaction is not “extraordinary”; and [b] in the absence of
special qualitative considerations arising from all the circumstances, the quantitative calculated
examination for the transaction (as stated under the “materiality” section above) is at a rate of less than
0.5% of the relevant criteria (instead of 5%), and the scope of the transaction (calculated according to
the provisions and principles under the “materiality” section above) does not exceed ILS 8 million, while
this amount is index adjusted starting in 2010 (as of December 31, 2020, the amount is approximately
ILS 8.6 million).
According to the determination of the audit committee and the procedure, subject to the provisions of
applicable law, a transaction that requires approvals and that was classified as a non-extraordinary but
non-negligible transaction shall be approved by the audit committee.
The procedure also sets forth that Interested Party Transactions that do not meet the quantitative
threshold to be classified as a negligible transaction, as foregoing, their classification as an extraordinary
or non-extraordinary transaction shall be exclusively made at the audit committee itself. Interested Party
Transactions that meet the quantitative threshold to be classified as a negligible transaction, as an
extraordinary or non-extraordinary transaction, shall be made as follows: [a] The audit committee itself;
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or [b] in the Company’s interested parties committee, while in this respect the interested parties
committee shall be made up of two VPs of the Company that have no personal interest in the transaction
presented for approval, provided that transaction is set forth in an annex to the procedure, while that
annex inter alia sets forth both the relevant quantitative criteria whereby the materiality/negligibility of
the transaction would be examined, and the examinations that must be conducted in order to ensure that
the transaction is made under market conditions.
The procedure further sets forth that every year the audit committee shall review the Company’s method
of implementing the procedure’s provisions, and a sample review shall be conducted of Interested Party
Transactions that were classified according to the procedure, not by the audit committee itself, as nonextraordinary but negligible transactions, for purpose of examining the appropriateness of the
transactions’ classification that was actually made in the past year.
According to the foregoing, the audit committee on December 3, 2020, conducted an examination of
Interested Party Transactions in the Company for 2020, which were not classified as non-extraordinary
and negligible transactions by the audit committee itself. Prior to the examination the audit committee
received a list of those transaction, which detailed the essence of the transaction, the identity of the
relevant interested party, the approving entity, hearing date, and the examinations conducted in order to
ensure that the transaction is under market conditions and that it is immaterial to the Company (it is
noted that all the transactions are during the Company’s ordinary course of business). The audit
committee also received a sample of the minutes prepared by the entity that approved the transactions
and the related material which that approving entity received for purpose of the approval. The audit
committee examined the examinations that were made in order to ensure that those transactions are
under market conditions and that they are negligible, and it examined the appropriateness of the approval
process itself. The audit committee in addition received a report from the Company’s internal auditor
on the examinations that it conducted in connection with those transactions. After all the foregoing, the
audit committee in its conclusions noted that from its examinations and from the review that it
conducted, it emerges that the reviewed transactions are indeed under market conditions and negligible,
and that the approval process that was carried out for them was sound and appropriate.
The need to update the procedure shall be examined by the audit committee from time to time,
considering the Interested Party Transactions in which the Company engages and the changes to the
relevant provisions of law, and it shall at least once a year require the audit committee’s approval. The
procedure provisions do not derogate from the power of the audit committee to hold discussions and
make resolutions regarding the classification of a certain transaction or action.
2.

Negligible transactions
During the report period, the Group conducted negligible, non-extraordinary transactions with (former)
controlling shareholders thereof or which the (former) controlling shareholders had a personal interested in
their approval, of the types and nature as set forth in Section 1.1 above. For additional details see also Note
33 to the financial statements. Group transactions with a controlling shareholder, or in which a controlling
shareholder has a personal interest in approving and which are not extraordinary were classified by the
Company as negligible or as non-negligible according to the procedure’s guidelines set forth in Section 1.1
above.

3.

Transactions set forth in Section 270(4) of the Companies Law
3.1

Updating the salary of Company directors, including controlling shareholder directors
The directors of the Company, including the Company’s directors among the (former) controlling
shareholders or their relatives who served in the Company during the report period, were entitled to
remuneration payment for serving as a director of the Company and for participating in the Company’s
board and committee meetings, in the maximum amounts permitted under the Companies (Rules
Regarding Remuneration and Costs for External Directors) Regulations, 5760-2000 (the
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“Remuneration Regulations”), as they shall be from time to time, and according to the director’s
classification (expert/non-expert) and according to the level in which the Company shall be classified
according to its equity in the year preceding the year for which the remuneration is paid; all except for
directors who shall be employed with a salary or who shall be entitled to separate remuneration from
the Company or a company under its control, as long as they shall be employed for a salary or they shall
be entitled to such separate remuneration.
The Company’s latest resolution approving such remuneration also for controlling shareholder directors,
was made on February 21, 2018 by the Company’s board of directors, after obtaining the approval of
the Company’s remuneration committee, and it was in effect until November 23, 2020. See the
immediate report published by the Company on February 21, 2018 (reference: 2018-01-014448). On
November 23, 2020, the Company’s board of directors, after obtaining the remuneration committee’s
approval, approved the foregoing remuneration for all of the Company’s directors, as they shall be from
time to time (this resolution no longer refers to controlling shareholder directors).
For details about directors’ remuneration that was paid in the reporting year, see Regulation 21 below.
3.2

Directors and officers liability insurance
Until July 31, 2020, the Company was insured with a basic and group officers liability insurance together
with other companies from the (former) controlling shareholder Group of the Company and companies
under their control. The insurer’s limit of liability in the framework of the basic policy was USD 50
million, per claim and cumulatively for the insurance period. The insurer’s limit of liability in the
framework of the Group policy was USD 90 million, per claim and cumulatively for the insurance period
(together - the “Joint Policy”). Such engagement was approved by the general meeting on May 15,
2017, after obtaining the approval from the remuneration policy and board of directors. For additional
details see the immediate report dated April 6, 2017 (reference number 2017-01-031753). Starting from
August 1, 2020, the Company has been holding a directors and officers liability insurance that is not in
cooperation with its (former) controlling shareholder companies.
The total cost recorded by the Company in 2020 for the Joint Policy is approximately USD 61,426.

3.3

Indemnification and exemption
On December 26, 2016, the general meeting of the Company’s shareholders, after obtaining the approval
of the remuneration committee and of the Company’s board of directors on November 7 and 14, 2016,
respectively, the provision of updated letters of indemnity for Company officers, as they shall be from
time to time, including officers among the Company’s controlling shareholders and/or their relatives, as
they shall be from time to time, as well as Company officers where the Company’s controlling
shareholders might be deemed interested parties in grating them letters of indemnity, as they shall be
and serve in the Company from time to time and to whoever serves or shall serve upon the Company’s
request as an officer of any other company in which the Company directly or indirectly holds shares, or
in which the Company has any interest, including such officers among the Company’s controlling
shareholders and/or their relatives, or when the Company’s controlling shareholders have a personal
interest in granting indemnity to such person, and as they shall be and serve from time to time. On
November 7, 2016, the Company’s audit committee decided, according to the provisions of Section
275(A1)(2) of the Companies Law, to set until December 31, 2024, the period during which the letters
of indemnity are to be granted, from time to time, to officers where the Company’s controlling
shareholders may be deemed interested parties in granting them a letter of indemnity (unlike controlling
shareholder officers themselves and their relatives), as they shall serve at the Company from time to
time. For additional details, including regarding the controlling shareholders who have a personal
interest, and the essence of the personal interest, the validity of the letters of indemnity and previous
letters of indemnity, see the complementary immediate report dated December 15, 2016 (reference
number: 2016-01-088602) and the form of the letter of indemnity attached thereto.
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On November 5, 2001, the general meeting of the Company’s shareholders, after obtaining the approval
for such from the audit committee and from the Company’s board of directors, approved the grant to
directors and other officers of the Company, who from time to time shall be entitled to such, of an
advance exemption from liability towards the Company for any damage it shall sustain due to a violation
of the officers’ duty of care towards it in their good-faith action, by virtue of it being an officer in the
Company. On November 27, 2011, the Company’s audit committee, according to the provisions of
Section 275(A1)(2) of the Companies Law, resolved to until November 30, 2020, allot the period during
which the events occurring therein shall be subject to the liability exemption granted and to be granted
from time to time according to a resolution of the general meeting of the Company’s shareholders from
November 2011 as foregoing, with respect to the Company’s officers for whom the Company’s
controlling shareholders may be deemed interested parties in granting the liability exemption to them,
who serve and or shall serve from time to time. See immediate report published by the Company
November 27, 2011 (reference number: 2011-01-341097). The above resolution does not refer to an
exemption to the controlling shareholders themselves or their relatives, and in this context it is noted
that the Company’s general meeting of November 24, 2011, resolved not to reaffirm the prior liability
exemption for officers of the Company who and/or whose relatives are controlling shareholders of the
Company.
3.4

Zarhin transaction
On June 5, 2018, the Company’s general meeting, after obtaining approval therefore from the audit
committee and the Company’s board of directors on April 23 and 26, 2018, respectively, approved the
engagement of Shufersal Real-estate Ltd., a subsidiary fully owned by the Company (“Shufersal Realestate”) in a combination agreement and cooperation and joint transaction agreement with Gav-Yam
Bayside Land Corporation Ltd. (the “Developer”), a company that was indirectly controlled by DIC
(formerly the Company’s controlling shareholder) until September 2, 2019, and as of the report date,
and based on Gav-Yam’s reports, DIC is an interested party therein, according to which Shufersal Realestate that is the owner of land on Zarhin street in Raanana with an area of approximately 8,813 sqm
(the “Land”) shall sell to the Developer 69.5% of the Land’s ownership rights, in consideration for
construction on the Land of a project to be established by the Developer in two stages (the “Project”)
(the “Transaction” or “Combination Transaction”). Upon the Project’s completion, Shufersal Realestate and the Developer shall be the joint owners of the rights to the Project, according to the
combination ratio - 30.5% to Shufersal Real-estate (“Owner’s Share”), and 69.5% to the Developer
(“Developer’s Share”). In this framework the parties inter alia engaged in a combination agreement
and in a cooperation and joint transaction agreement the key points of which are set forth in the
complementary immediate report for convening a general meeting that the Company published on May
27, 2018 (reference number: 2018-01-051457) (the “Convening Report”). For additional details, see
the Convening Report (it is noted that on June 25, 2020, the second condition was fulfilled, which is set
forth in the conditions precedent for the transaction and set forth in Section 3.1.1 of the Convening
Report, and the transaction went into effect).

4.

Transactions not Set Forth in Section 270(4) of the Companies Law that are not negligible1
4.1 In the entire report year, the Company was engaged with Clal Insurance (a company that to the best of
the Company’s knowledge, IDB Development Corporation Ltd. was an interested party in until
September 7, 2020, and the controlling shareholders of IDB Development Corporation Ltd. are also the
former controlling shareholders of DIC) in a policy to insure the property insurance system and liability
of the Company. On June 18, 2019, the Company’s audit committee approved a property and liability
insurance policy with Clal Insurance for a period of 12 months, starting from July 1, 2019, and insofar
as possible, to extend the insurance period to up to 18 months. The new policy is for a 15 month period,
meaning until September 30, 2020. The total cost recorded by the Company until September 30, 2020,
for a premium for the above policy, is approximately ILS 17 million.
1 These

transactions are not negligible but not extraordinary. For the Company’s extraordinary transaction procedure, see Section 1.1
above.

20

Additional Details on the Corporation as of December 31, 2020

Shufersal Ltd.
4.2 In September 2019, the Company’s audit committee approved an engagement for the sale of “Shufersal”
and “Yesh” gift vouchers of the Group leading up to the Passover Holiday 5780, (“Gift Vouchers”) with
companies from the IDB Development and DIC group (all those companies have a personal interest
since they are a party to the engagement with the Company, and accordingly the controlling shareholders
therein have a personal interest in the engagements). The Gift Vouchers were sold to the above
companies against their face value and less a discount under market conditions. The total of such
engagements in 2020 was approximately ILS 3 million.
4.3 In 2020 the Company was engaged in 12 lease agreements under which the Company leases areas, in
total scope of approximately 45,000 sqm, from companies controlled by DIC, formerly the controlling
shareholder of the Company and/or from companies where DIC is an interested party. For all such leases
the Company recognized the costs in the 2020 financial statements in total amount of approximately
ILS 29 million. The current lease periods of such assets (before exercising options insofar as such exist
in agreements between the parties) end between 2022 and 2027. It is noted that such lease agreements
in itself is “negligible”, however the combination of all the transactions is not negligible.
The engagement in such lease agreements (or exercising the option to extend the lease, as applicable)
was approved by the board of directors and/or by the Company’s audit committee on August 14, 2005,
December 29, 2008, February 5, 2009, June 28, 2012, November 26, 2021, October 24, 2013, July 20,
2015, February 13, 2017, April 25, 2017, November 7, 2017, August 12, 2018, December 16, 2018, July
15, 2019, and November 19, 2019. DIC may be deemed to have a personal interest in such transactions
due to the fact that companies under its control or that it is an interested party in are party to the lease
agreements.
4.4 In 2020 the Company, during its ordinary course of business, from time to time according to its needs,
purchased various fruits for purpose of selling them in its branches from Mehadrin Ltd., a company that
DIC, the former controlling shareholder in the Company, is an interested party in, and Miriam Shoham
Ltd., a company under the joint control of Mehadrin Ltd. For such transactions, the Company recognized
the costs in the 2020 financial statements in total amount of approximately ILS 29 million. The above
engagements were approved on February 4, 2020, by the Company audit committee.
4.5 On December 23, 2019, the Company’s audit committee approved the extension of the Company’s
engagement with a foreign company controlled by Mr. Eduardo Elsztain (the former controlling
shareholder of DIC), for the import of fresh beef from that company for purpose of selling it in the
Company’s branches. The total purchases from that company in 2020 were ILS 13 million.
For additional details see Note 33 to the financial statements.
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Regulation 24: Holdings of interested parties and senior officers of the Company in shares and other
securities of the Company immediately before the report date
For details about the holding status of interested parties and senior officers in the corporation’s securities,
immediately prior to the report date, see the Company’s immediate report dated January 7, 2021 (reference
number: 2021-01-003256).
For details about options and RSUs allocated by the board of directors to the chairman of the Company’s board,
see the private placement report dated February 4, 2021, reference 2021-01-014979, and the report on convening
a general meeting dated February 4, 2021, reference 2021-01-014970. The allocation is subject to the approval
of the general meeting that has yet to be obtained as of the report date.

Regulation 24A: Registered share capital, issued share capital, and convertible securities, as of the report
date
1.

The corporation registered share capital - 400,000,000 ordinary shares of ILS 0.1 par value each

2.

The corporation’s total issued share capital as of the report date is 247,098,777 ordinary shares par
value ILS 0.1 each (out of which 8,864,801 are dormant shares under Section 308 of the Companies
Law without right to the share capital and without voting rights, which are held by the Company).

Regulation 24B: Shareholders registry, as of the report date
For details about the Company’s shareholders registry, see the immediate report dated March 2, 2021
(reference number: 2021-01-025155).
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Regulation 26: The directors of the corporation
Below are details about the directors of the corporation as of the report date:
Yaki Vadmani

Michael Bar Haim

Gideon Schurr
051251288

Ayelet Ben Ezer
058129842

051171858

052638616

Date of birth

January 28, 1952

September 28, 1954

September 8, 1952

June 8, 1963

Address for service of judicial
documents

30 Binyamin Shmotkin, Rishon
Lezion

5 Abba Kovner, Tel Aviv

6 Ha-Snunit St., Mevaseret Zion

29 Yokheved Bat Miryam, Tel
Aviv 69411

Citizenship

Israel

Israel

Israel

Israel

Role with the Company

Chairman of the board

External director

External director

Independent director

Companies in the board of
directors’ committees

Chairman of the real estate
transactions committee, risk
management committee, board
composition committee (an ad-hoc
committee for appropriate cases).

Chairman of the remuneration
committee, chairman of the audit
committee, chairman of the
balance committee, real estate
transactions committee, board
composition committee (an ad-hoc
committee for appropriate cases).

Audit committee, remuneration
committee, balance committee,
real estate transactions committee,
board composition committee (an
ad-hoc committee for appropriate
cases).

Audit committee, investments
committee, innovation and
technology committee

External director

No

Yes

Yes

No

Independent director

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Accounting and financial
expertise or professional
qualifications?

Accounting and financial expertise
and professional qualifications

Accounting and financial expertise
and professional qualifications

Accounting and financial
expertise and professional
qualifications

Professional qualifications

No

No

No

No

ID number

Employee of the corporation,
subsidiary, affiliated company
or of an interested party
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Yaki Vadmani

Michael Bar Haim

Gideon Schurr

Ayelet Ben Ezer

The day of which he/she
began serving as a director of
the Company

October 19, 2020

July 21, 2012

September 11, 2014

April 13, 2016

Education

BA in Political Science and Labor
Studies (Expanded Division), Tel
Aviv University

LLB in Law, Tel Aviv University;
Masters in Law, Tel Aviv
University; Doctorate in Law, Tel
Aviv University

Employment in the last five
years

CEO of Africa Israel Industries Ltd.
(from March 2016 until May 2017)
CEO of Cofix Group Ltd. (from
August 2017 until April 2018)
CEO and owner of Suffix Ltd. (from
April 2018 until today).

BA in Economics and Statistics,
The Hebrew University of
Jerusalem; Masters in Economics,
The Hebrew University of
Jerusalem
Licensed dealer - economic
adviser and international relations
consultant; owner and director of
Gideon Shore Ltd.

Shufersal Real-estate Ltd.,
Shemen Oil and Gas Resources
Ltd., YH Demri Construction and
Development Ltd.

Shufersal Real-estate Ltd.,
Director of Junior Achievement
Israel - non-profit organization

-

No

No

No

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Additional corporations
where he/she serves as
director
Family member of an
interested party
A director that the Company
considers an expert in
accounting and finance for
purpose of meeting the
minimum number determined
by the board of directors
under Section 92(a)(12) of the
Companies Law, 5759-1999
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Shufersal Real-estate Ltd., Israel
Electric Corporation Ltd.

BA in Economics, The Hebrew
University of Jerusalem
External director at YH Demri
Construction and Development
Ltd. (since August 18, 2019)
Independent director of Hachshara
Insurance Company Ltd. (until
March 1, 2019)

CEO and Vice President, the
Interdisciplinary Center Herzliya
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Ran Gottfried
006357206
August 21, 1944

Michal Kamir
022802110

Date of birth

Avraham Eldad
033670498
December 27, 1976

Address for service of judicial
documents

2 HaGalil, Apartment 12, Ramat
HaSharon

5 Nissim Aloni, Tel Aviv

440 Yas’ur, Savyon

53A Lamerhav, Ramat HaSharon

Citizenship

Israel

Israel

Israel

Israel

Role with the Company

External director

Director

External director

Director

Audit committee, remuneration
committee, chairman of the
investments committee, risk
management committee, board
composition committee (an ad-hoc
committee for appropriate cases).

Balance sheet committee,
investments committee, risk
management committee, innovation
and technology committee

Innovation and technology
committee, risk management
committee

Yes

No

Audit committee, remuneration
committee, innovation and
technology committee, risk
management committee, board
composition committee (an adhoc committee for appropriate
cases).
Yes

Independent director

Yes

No

Yes

No

Accounting and financial
expertise or professional
qualifications?
Employee of the corporation,
subsidiary, affiliated company
or of an interested party

Accounting and financial expertise and
professional qualifications

Accounting and financial expertise
and professional qualifications

Professional qualifications

Accounting and financial expertise
and professional qualifications

No

No

No

No

May 24, 2016

November 29, 2018

BA in Economics and Logistics, Bar
Ilan University

Economics and Social Sciences
Studies (two years without
completing), continued studies in
management boards at Harvard,
Stanford, Warton and NACD

ID number

Companies in the board of
directors’ committees

External director

The day of which he/she began
serving as a director of the
Company

Education
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June 29, 1967

March 14, 2019
LLB in Law, Tel Aviv
University;
Master’s Degree in Business
Law, Management and
Marketing, Middlesex University
London

Yoav Chelouche
031157746
July 18, 1953

No

October 19, 2020

BA in Economics and Statistics, Tel
Aviv University;
Master’s in Business Administration,
INSEAD
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Employment in the last five
years

Additional corporations where
he/she serves as director

Family member of an
interested party
A director that the Company
considers an expert in
accounting and finance for
purpose of meeting the
minimum number determined
by the board of directors
under Section 92(a)(12) of the
Companies Law, 5759-1999

Avraham Eldad
Business and economic consultant in
the area of mergers and acquisitions of
Israeli companies in industrial areas

Ran Gottfried
Consultant - owner of office since
2000,
Consultant at Perrigo - from 2016 to
2017
Independent director at Perrigo until 2015

Michal Kamir
Management board member and
general counsel, Azrieli Group
(until 2016)

Yoav Chelouche
Managing partner at Aviv Venture
Capital

Shufersal Real-estate Ltd., External
director at Suny Cellular
Communication Ltd.,
External director at Israel-Canada
(T.R) Ltd.,
External director at Leader Holdings &
Investments Ltd.,
Director at Mishkei Gaza District Ltd.
(including affiliated companies).

External directors at Sol-Gel
Technologies Ltd.
SLGL Nasdaq

Independent director at Afi
Properties Ltd.
External director at Isramco Negev 2, Limited Partnership

Checkpoint Software Technologies
Ltd, Tower Semiconductor Ltd.,
Yunsen Ltd., Shildox Security Ltd.,
Scalemp Ltd., Oz Vision Holdings
Ltd., Twine Solutions Ltd., Vessl
Therapeutics Ltd., Xtend Reality
Expansion Ltd.
External director at The Tel Aviv
Stock Exchange Ltd.
Independent director at Malam Team
Ltd.

No

Yes

No
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Eran Saar
029660693
September 26, 2019
April 12, 2020

No

Yes

Directors whose period of service ended during the report period and in the period thereafter until the report date:
Name:
I.D.
Commencement of service
Termination of service

No

Yes
No
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Name:
I.D.
Commencement of service
Termination of service

Gerardo Ariel
Tyszberowicz
345812077
August 8, 2016
August 4, 2020

Name:
I.D.
Commencement of service
Termination of service

Diana Dan-Elsztain
309907772
April 13, 2016
August 19, 2020

Name:
I.D.
Commencement of service
Termination of service

Doron Chaim Cohen
056681562
April 16, 2020
August 19, 2020

Name:
I.D.
Commencement of service
Termination of service

Mauricio Wior
017211517
April 13, 2016
November 25, 2020
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Regulation 26A: The Corporation’s senior officers as of the reporting date

Name

Itzik Abercohen

David Laron

Talia Huber

Zvi Fishhemer
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Identification
number

053272944

057801425

057966517

057203408

Date of birth

06-Feb-1955

20-Dec-1962

11-Nov-1962

26-Nov-1961

Date of
commencement of
service

Position in the Company, a subsidiary of
the Company or an interested party
therein

Is he a family
member of
another senior
officer or an
interested
party in the
Company

01-Jan-2012

CEO of the Corporation; Chairman of the
Board of Shufersal Finance Management
Ltd., Gidron Industries Ltd. and Shufersal
- Amiga Ltd., director in Shufersal Real
Estate Ltd., in Shufersal Travel Ltd. and in
additional private companies of the
Corporation

No

M.A. in Political Science, Haifa
University

No

B.A. in Economy and Business
Administration, Haifa University;
graduate of a special training
program for senior executives of
T.I.M institute (founded by the
Technion and M.I.T) and graduate
of the directors course of the
Kibbutz Movement

VP Operations and Supply
Chain of the Company

B.A. in Economics and Business
Administration from Bar Ilan
University, M.B.A. in Business
Administration - Finance, from Bar
Ilan University

CFO of the Company

B.B.A. and M.A. in IT System
Management, Israel Academic
College

VP Human Resources,
Administration and IT
Systems of the Company

10-Feb-2015

Deputy CEO and Head of the Operations
and Supply Chain Division, director in
Gidron Industries Ltd.;

11-Oct-2015

CFO, in charge of market risk
management, director in Shufersal Finance
Management Ltd., in Gidron Industries
Ltd., in Lev Hamifratz Ltd., in Shufersal Amiga Ltd., in additional private
companies of the Corporation

10-Feb-2015

VP Human Resources, Administration and
IT Systems of the Company, director in
Bela Online Ltd.

No

No

Education

Employment in the last 5
years

Company CEO
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Name

Aran Meiri

Identification
number

054484282

Date of birth

29-Aug-1956

Date of
commencement of
service

17-Jun-2007

Position in the Company, a subsidiary of
the Company or an interested party
therein

VP, General Counsel of the Corporation

Is he a family
member of
another senior
officer or an
interested
party in the
Company

No

Education

LL.B. from Tel Aviv University;
M.A. in Political Science - Military
and Security Studies, Bar Ilan
University

No

Zvi Baida

021397740

11-May-1980

14-Nov-2016

LL.B., Interdisciplinary Center
Herzliya; B.B.A., Interdisciplinary
Center Herzliya.
LL.M., Berkley University

VP Customers and Service, director in
Gidron Industries Ltd.;

Sharon
Gambasho

032143752

08-May-1975

01-Jul-2018

VP R&D and Assets in the Company;
CEO of Shufersal Real Estate Ltd.;
director in Lev Hamifratz Ltd. and in
additional private companies of the
Corporation

Levi Steinbaum

005418315

07-Mar-1958

01-Oct-1997

Internal auditor of the Corporation;
internal auditor of subsidiaries

No

No

No
Oren Artzi
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024286775

07-Jul-1969

01-Sep-2016

Accountant of the Company

M.A. in Law (for non-jurists), Bar
Ilan University; Senior Directors
Course, LHV - School of Business
Administration, Tel Aviv
University; M.B.A., Ben-Gurion
University; B.A. in Economy and
Business Administration, BenGurion University
CIA (Certified Internal Auditor
certificate from the US Institute of
Internal Auditors), B.A. in
Economy, Statistics and
Accounting from Tel Aviv
University, certificate studies in
internal audits in the Technion
Haifa’s branch in Tel Aviv.
CPA,
B.A. in Business Administration
and Accounting, College of
Management

Employment in the last 5
years

Legal Advisor of the
Company
Head of Customers
Relations and Outside
Relations of the
Company, Assistant CEO
of the Company, VP
Customers and Service of
the Company.
CEO of Real Estate
Participations in Israel
Ltd.;

Internal Auditor of the
Company

Head of Finance Division
Hot Mobile Ltd. until
August 2016;
Accountant of the
Company
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Is he a family
member of
another senior
officer or an
interested
party in the
Company
No

Name

Identification
number

Date of birth

Date of
commencement of
service

Position in the Company, a subsidiary of
the Company or an interested party
therein

Uri Waterman

027438316

06-Aug-1974

01-Jul-2020

CEO of the BE Chain
and chairman of the board in Bela Online
Ltd.

Avi Zimmerman

057398968

09-Jan-1962

01-Jan-2021*

CEO of Shufersal Finance and director in
Shufersal Travel Ltd.

Daniel Vardiger

061503769

02-Sep-1982

01-Jan-2021*

CEO of Yesh Chain

No

Roee Freibach

024062036

05-Nov-1968

01-Jan-2021*

CEO of Shufersal Business and director in
Shufersal-Amiga Ltd.

No

No

Education

B.B.A, Rupin College
M.B.A (Executive Program),
Hebrew University
B.A. in Political Science, Bar Ilan
University.
Religious
B.B.A (specializing in finance),
College of Management;
M.B.A. (IT system course), Tel
Aviv University

Employment in the last 5
years

CEO of Be Drugstores
Ltd.;
CEO of Sky Vision Ltd.
Head of Services and
Financial Products in the
Corporation;
CEO of Shufersal Finance
Ltd.
Head of Yesh Chain
CEO of Shufersal
Business

No
Shauli Amir

055990725

17-Jun-1959

01-Jan-2021*

CEO of Gidron Industries Ltd.

B.A. in Political Science, Tel Aviv
University

Head of the Fresh Field in
the Company’s
Commerce Division

* The date stated as the date of the commencement of service is the date on which the officer was deemed a senior officer (it should be noted that the foregoing officers worked in the Company also before that
date)
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Regulation 26B: Independent authorized signatories
None.
Regulation 27: The Corporation’s auditor
The Company’s auditors are PwC Israel, address: 25 Hamered St., Tel Aviv.

Regulation 28: Changes in the memorandum or regulations
None.

Regulation 29: Recommendations and resolutions of the directors and resolutions of the general meeting

(a) Regulation 29(a) –
The board’s recommendations to the general meeting and resolutions of the board that do not require the
general meeting’s approval:
1. On March 19, 2020, the Company’s board of directors resolved to distribute dividends in a total
amount of ILS 80 million (a total of approximately ILS 0.34 per ordinary share) to all of the
Company’s shareholders as of April 19, 2020, with the payment date being April 27, 2020.
2. On August 11, 2020, the Company’s board of directors resolved, following the approval of the
Remuneration Committee dated August 11, 2020, to approve directors and officers liability
insurance by July 31, 2021, as detailed in the immediate report dated August 12, 2020 (reference
no. 2020-01-087516).
3. On March 3, 2021, the Company’s board of directors resolved to distribute dividends in a total
amount of ILS 140 to all of the Company’s shareholders as of April 19, 2021, with the payment
date being May 3, 2021.

(b) Regulation 29(b) - None

(c) Regulation 29(c) - Resolutions of a special general meeting:
1. On September 3, 2020, the Company’s special general meeting resolved to appoint Gideon Schurr
as an outside director in the Company for a third term of 3 years, stating September 11, 2020.

31

Additional Details on the Corporation as of December 31, 2020

Shufersal Ltd.
Regulation 29A: The Company’s resolutions
1. Regulation 29A(1) - None.
2. Regulation 29A(2) - None.
3. Regulation 29A(3) - None.
4. Regulation 29A(4) a. Indemnity and exemption undertaking: For details on indemnity and exemption to directors and
officers, see Section 3.3 of Regulation 22 above.
b. Insurance: For details on directors’ and officers’ insurance, see Section 3.2 of Regulation 22 above.

Date: March 3, 2021

Shufersal Ltd.

Signed by:

Position:

1. Yaki Vadmani

Chairman of the Board of Directors

___________

2. Itzik Abercohen,

CEO

___________

3. Talia Huber

CFO

___________
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Annex A to Part D of the Periodic Report

Letter of Consent from the Auditor

33

March 3, 2021
To
The Board of Directors
Shufersal Ltd.
30 Benyamin Shmotkin St.
Rishon Le-Zion, Israel
Dear Sir/Madame,
Re:

Consent Letter with respect to the Shelf Prospectus of Shufesral Ltd. (the “Company”)
Dated December 2018

We hereby inform you that we consent to the
inclusion of our
reports
as indicated hereunder (
including by way of reference) in
a
shelf
offering
report
as may be published by the
Company, if
published, by virtue of the Company’s
prospectus dated December 2018:
1.
The auditor’s report dated March 3, 2021, on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and for each of the three years in the period ended on December 31,
2020.
2.
The auditor’s report dated March 3, 2021, on the audit of components of internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2020.
3.
The auditor’s special report dated March 3, 2021, on the Company’s separate financial
information as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and for each of the three
years in the period ended
on December
31, 2020, under Regulation 9C of the Securities Regulations (Periodic and Immediate
Reports) , 5730-1970.
Respectfully,
Kesselman & Kesselman
Certified Public Accountants
Member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited

Kesselman & Kesselman, Matam Haifa Building 25, P.O.B 15084, Haifa 3190500, Israel
Telephone: +972-4--8605000, Fax: +972-4--8605001, www.pwc.com/il
Kesselman Kesselman is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each member firm of which is a separate legal ent ity

Part E

Corporate
Governance
Questionnaire

2020

Corporate Governance Questionnaire 1 - Shufersal Ltd.

Independence of the Board of Directors

True
1.

During the entire reporting year, two or more external directors served in the corporation.
This question may be answered "true" if the period in which two outside directors did not serve in the
Corporation did not exceed 90 days, as provided in Section 363A.(b)(10) of the Companies Law, however,
regardless of the answer (true/false), state the period of time (in days) in which two or more outside directors did
not serve in the Corporation in the reporting year (also including a term of office that has been approved
retroactively, while distinguishing between the different outside directors):
Director A: Michael Bar Haim
Director B: Gideon Schurr
Director C: Eldad Avraham
Director D: Michal Kamir
The number of outside directors serving in the Corporation as of the publication date of this questionnaire: 4.

1

Published in the framework of proposed legislation for the improvement of reports, dated March 16, 2014.

1

√

False

2.

The ratio2 of independent directors3 serving in the Corporation as of the date of the publication of this
questionnaire: 5/8.
_____
4

_____

5

Ratio of independent directors determined in the articles of association of the Corporation :

 Not applicable (no provision has been set in the articles of association).
3.

4.

An inspection has been conducted in the reporting year with the outside directors (and the independent directors)
and it has been found that in the reporting year they were in compliance with the provisions of Section 240(b)
and (f) of the Companies Law on the matter of there being no interest on the part of the outside directors (and the
independent directors) serving in the Corporation, and also that they meet the conditions required for the purpose
of serving as an outside (or independent) director.
All of the directors who served in the Corporation in the reporting year are not subordinated6 to the Chief
Executive Officer, whether directly or indirectly (except for a director who is a representative of the employees,
if there is representation of the employees in the Corporation).

√

√

If you answer “false" (in other words, the director is subordinated to the Chief Executive Officer, as foregoing) –
indicate the number of the directors who did not meet the said restriction: ______.

2

In this questionnaire, “ratio” – a certain number out of the total; thus, for example: 3/8.
Including "outside directors" as defined in the Companies Law.
4
For the purposes of this question – "articles of association," including pursuant to a specific provision of law applicable to the Corporation (for example, in a banking corporation - the directives of the Commissioner
of Banks).
5
A debentures company is not required to answer this section.
6
For the purpose of this question – The very service as a director in an investee company controlled by the Corporation, will not be deemed "subordination", while on the other hand, a director in the Corporation
serving as an officer (other than a director) and/or employee in an investee company controlled by the Corporation, will be deemed “subordinated" for the purposes of this question.
3

2

5.

All of the directors who disclosed having a personal interest in the approval of a transaction that was on the
agenda of a meeting, did not attend such discussion and did not participate in such vote (except for a discussion
and/or vote under circumstances that comply with Section 278(b) of the Companies Law):
If you answer “false" Was this in order for the director to present a particular matter pursuant to the provisions at the end of Section
278(b) of the Companies Law:
 Yes  No (mark X in the appropriate box).
State the ratio of the meetings in which such directors were present in the discussion and/or participated in
the vote, except under the circumstances stated in sub-section A: _________.

6.

The controlling shareholder (including his relative and/or any person on his behalf), who is not a director or other
senior officer in the Corporation, was not present at board of directors’ meetings held in the reporting year.
If you answer “false" (in other words, the controlling shareholder and/or his relative and/or any person on his
behalf, who is not a director and/or a senior officer in the Corporation, was present at board of directors’
meetings as aforesaid) – provide the following details with respect to any additional person at board of directors’
meetings, as aforesaid:

 Not applicable (the Corporation has no controlling shareholder).

3

√

Competence and Qualifications of the Directors

True
7.

The Corporation's articles of association include no provision restricting the possibility of immediately
terminating the service of all of the Corporation's directors, who are not outside directors (on this matter –
a resolution by ordinary majority is not considered a restriction)7.
If you answer “false" (in other words. there is such a restriction), state -

a.

The period of time prescribed in the articles of association for the period of service of a director:
Until the end of the next annual meeting after the annual meeting in which they were elected.

b.

The required majority prescribed in the articles of association for terminating the service of
directors:
Two-thirds of all votes of the shareholders present in the general meeting who are allowed to
vote and that voted in it, not taking into account abstaining votes.
It is stated, to complete the picture, that the Company’s articles of association also allow twothirds of the directors serving in the Company to terminate the service of a director (who is not an

7

A debentures company is not required to answer this section.

4

False
X

outside director).

c.

The quorum prescribed in the articles of association at the general meeting for the purpose of
terminating the service of directors:
Two shareholders holding at least thirty-three percent (33%) of voting rights in the
Company.

d.

8.

The majority required to change these provisions of the articles: Two-thirds of all votes of the
shareholders present in the general meeting who are allowed to vote and that voted in it, not
taking into account abstaining votes.

The Corporation ensured the preparation of a training program for new directors, in the Corporation's
field of business and in the field of law applicable to the Corporation and to the directors, and also
ensured the preparation of a program of further training for serving directors, which is adapted, inter alia,
to the functions that the director performs in the Corporation.

√

If you answer “true" – indicate whether the program has been operated in the reporting year Yes* No
(Mark x in the appropriate box.)
* It is noted that due to the effects of COVID-19 (quarantine), the implementation of the program, set for
the end of December 2020, was postponed to the beginning of January 2021.

9.

a.

The corporation has set the minimum number of directors on the board of directors required to
possess accounting and financial expertise.
If you answer “true" – indicate the minimum number that was set: 2.

5

√

b.

The number of directors who served in the Corporation in the course of the reporting year –
Possessing accounting and financial expertise8: 6.
Possessing professional qualifications9: 2.
In the event of any change in the number of such directors in the reporting year, provide the figure
for the lowest number (except in the 60-day period from the occurrence of the change) of directors
of each type who served in the reporting year.

10.

a.

Throughout the reporting year, the composition of the board of directors included members of both
sexes.
If you answer “false" – indicate the period of time (in days) during which the foregoing did not
apply:

√

This question may be answered “true" if the period of time during which directors of both sexes did
not serve did not exceed 60 days, however, regardless of the answer (true/false), state the period of
time (in days) during which directors of both sexes did not serve in the Corporation:
.

b.

Number of directors of each sex serving in the Corporation's board of directors as of the date of the
publication of this questionnaire:

_____

_____

Men: 6, Women 2.

8

Following the assessment of the board of directors, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies (Conditions and Tests for a Director Possessing Accounting and Financial Expertise and for a Director
Possessing Professional Qualifications) Regulations, 5766 – 2005.
9
See Footnote 11.

6

Board of Directors Meetings (and Convening a General Meeting)

True
11.

a.

Number of board of directors’ meetings held in each quarter in the reporting year:
Q1 (2020):

5 meetings.

Q2:

5 meetings.

Q3:

6 meetings.

Q4:

8 meetings.

7

False

b.

Beside each of the names of the directors who held office in the Corporation in the course of the
reporting year, state the attendance rate10 in board of directors’ meetings (in this sub-section – including
meetings of board committees of which the director is a member, and as stated below) which were held in
the course of the reporting year (in relation to the director's period of service):
(Add additional rows in accordance with the number of directors).
Name of director

Participation
rate in board
of directors’
meetings

Participation
rate in
meetings of
the Audit
Committee
11

Participation
rate in
meetings of
the
Financial
Statements
Review
Committee
12

10

See Footnote 2.
For a director who is a member of this committee.
For a director who is a member of this committee.
13
For a director who is a member of this committee.
11
12

8

Participation
rate in
meetings of
the
Remunerati
on
Committee

13

Participation rate in
meetings of additional
board committees in
which he is a member
(mentioning the name of
the committee)

Mauricio Wior

17/17

Real Estate
Transactions
Approval
Committee

Tenure ended on 25Nov-2020.

7/7

Michael Bar Haim

24/24

12/12

4/4

3/3

Real Estate
Transactions
Approval
Committee
8/8
Board of Directors
Composition
Committee
32/32

Gideon Schurr

24/24

12/12

4/4

3/3

Real Estate
Transactions
Approval
Committee
3/3
Board of Directors
Composition
Committee
32/32

9

Eldad Avraham

24/24

12/12

3/3

Real Estate
Transactions
Approval
Committee
3/3
Investment
Committee
4/4
Board of Directors
Composition
Committee
41/42*
* Including
meetings of the
Coordination
Composition
Subcommittee

Ayelet Ben Ezer

24/24

12/12

Investment
Committee
3/4

Ran Gottfried

22/24*
* Absent
from 2
meetings
due to a
shiva.

4/4

Investment
Committee
4/4

10

Michal Kamir

24/24

12/12

3/3

Board of Directors
Composition
Committee
32/32

Yaki Vadmani

5/5

Real Estate
Transactions
Approval
Committee

Appointed director on
19-Oct-2020.

1/1

Yoav Chelouche

5/5

Appointed director on
19-Oct-2020.
Eran Saar

6/6

Tenure ended on 12Apr-2020.

Doron Cohen

6/6

Appointed director on
16-Apr-2020
and
tenure ended 19-Aug2020.
Diana Elsztain

13/13

Real Estate
Transactions
Approval

Tenure ended on 19-

11

Aug-2020.

Committee
4/5

12.

In the reporting year, the board of directors held at least one discussion on the subject on the management of the
Corporation's business by the Chief Executive Officer and the officers who are subordinated to him, without
their presence, and they were given an opportunity to present their position.

12

√

Separation Between the Functions of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman of the Board

True
13.

A chairman of the board of directors served in the Corporation throughout the reporting year.
In this question, it is possible to answer “true" if the period in time in which a chairman of the
board did not serve in the Corporation did not exceed 60 days as stated in Section 363A(2) of the
Companies Law, however regardless of the answer (true/false), state the period of time (in days)
in which a Chairman of the Board of Directors did not serve in the Corporation, as
aforesaid:
.

14.

A Chief Executive Officer served in the Corporation throughout the reporting year.
In this question, it is possible to answer “true" if the period in time in which a Chief Executive
Officer did not serve in the Corporation did not exceed 90 days as stated in Section 363A(6) of the
Companies Law, however regardless of the answer (true/false), state the period of time (in days)
in which a Chief Executive Officer did not serve in the Corporation, as
aforesaid:
.

15.

14

√

In a Corporation in which the Chairman of the Board of Directors also serves as the CEO of the
Corporation and/or exercises his powers, the dual service has been approved pursuant to the
provisions of Section 121(C) of the Companies Law14.

In a debentures company – approval pursuant to Section 121(d) of the Companies Law.

13

√

False

 Not applicable (insofar as such dual service office does not exist in the Corporation).
16.

The CEO is not a relative of the Chairman of the Board of Directors.
If you answer “false" (in other words. the CEO is a relative of the Chairman of the Board) a.
b.

State the family relations between the parties: ________.
The appointment was approved pursuant to Section 121(c) of the Companies Law15:
 Yes
 No
(Mark X in the appropriate box.)

17.

A controlling shareholder or his relative does not serve as CEO or senior officer in the
Corporation, except as a director.
 Not applicable (the Corporation has no controlling shareholder).

15

In a debenture company – approval pursuant to Section 121(d) of the Companies Law.

14

√
_____

_____

_____

_____

Audit Committee

18.

The following did not serve on the Audit Committee in the reporting year:
a.

The controlling shareholder or his relative.

True

False

_____

_____

√

 Not applicable (the Corporation has no controlling shareholder).
b.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors.

√

c.

A director who is employed by the Corporation or by the controlling shareholder in

√

the Corporation or by a Corporation under its control.
d.

A director who provides services on a fixed basis to the Corporation or to the

√

controlling shareholder in the Corporation or to a Corporation under its control.
e.

A director whose main source of income derives from the controlling shareholder.
 Not applicable (the Corporation has no controlling shareholder).

15

√

19.

No person who is not permitted to serve as a member of the Audit Committee, including a
controlling shareholder or his relative, attended in the reporting year the meetings of the

√

Audit Committee, except in accordance with the provisions of Section 115(e) of the
Companies Law.
20.

A quorum for a holding a discussion and for adopting resolutions in all Audit Committee
meetings held in the reporting year was a majority of the members of the Audit Committee,

√

with the majority of those present being independent directors and at least one of them an
outside director
If you answer “false" - indicate the number of meetings in which this requirement was not
met: ____.
21.

The Audit Committee held at least one meeting in the reporting year in the presence of the internal
auditor and the external auditor and without the presence of officers of the Corporation who are not

√

Committee members, on the matter of failures in the management of the Corporation's business.
22.

In all meetings of the Audit Committee in which a person who is not permitted to be a member of the
Committee was present, this was with the approval of the chairman of the committee and/or at the
request of the Committee (with regard to the legal adviser and the company secretary, who is not a
controlling shareholder or his relative).

16

√

23.

In the reporting year, there were arrangements in effect that were set by the Audit Committee with
respect to the manner of processing complaints by employees of the Corporation, in connection with

√

failures in the management of its business and with respect to the protection afforded to employees
who have complained, as aforesaid.
24.

The Audit Committee (and/or the Financial Statements Review Committee) has satisfied itself that
the scope of the external auditor's work and his fees with respect to the financial statements in the
reporting year were adequate for the purpose of performing adequate audit and review work.

17

√

The Financial Statements Review Committee (hereinafter – the Committee) in its Work Prior to the Approval of the
Financial Statements

25.

a.

State the period of time (in days) that the board of directors has determined as reasonable for

True

False

_____

_____

_____

_____

the presentation of the Committee's recommendations in advance of the board of directors’
discussion on the approval of the financial statements: 2 business days.

b.

Number of days that elapsed in practice from the date of the presentation of the
recommendations to the board of directors to the date of the board of directors’ discussion on
the approval of the financial statements:

c.

Q1 report (2020):

5 days.

Q2 report:

5 days.

Q3 report:

5 days.

Annual report:

4 days.

Number of days that elapsed from the date of the transfer of the financial statements draft to the
directors to the date of the board of directors’ discussion on the approval of the financial
statements:
Q1 report (2020):

5 days.

18

26.

Q2 report:

5 days.

Q3 report:

5 days.

Annual report:

7 days.

The Corporation's external auditor participated in all committee and board of directors’ meetings in
which the Corporation's financial statements were discussed with respect to the periods included in the

√

reporting year.
If you answer “false”, state the rate of his participation: ______
27.

Through the reporting year and until the publication of the annual report, the Committee met all of the
conditions detailed below:
a.

Its members numbered at least three (at the time of the discussion in the Committee and the

_____

√

approval of the statements, as aforesaid).
b.

√
It met all of the conditions set forth in Section 115(b) and (c) of the Companies Law
(regarding the service of Audit Committee members).

√

c.

The chairman of the committee is an outside director.

d.

All of its members are directors and most of its members are independent directors.

e.

All of its members are capable of reading and understanding financial statements and at least
one of the independent directors possesses accounting and financial expertise.

19

√
√

_____

f.

The members of the Committee provided a declaration prior to their appointment.

g.

The quorum for discussing and adopting resolutions in the Committee was a majority of its
members, as long as most of those attending are independent directors including at least one
outside director.

√
√

If you answer “false" with regard to one or more of the subsections under this question, state the report
(periodic/quarterly) with regard to which the aforesaid condition was not met and also state the condition
that was not met:

.

20

_____

_____

Remuneration Committee

True
28.

False

In the reporting year, the committee numbered at least three members and the outside directors
constituted a majority in it (on the date of the discussion in the committee).

√

 Not applicable (no discussion was held).
29.

The terms of service and employment of all members of the Remuneration Committee are in
accordance with the Companies (Rules Regarding Remuneration and Expenses for an Outside
Director) Regulations, 5760 – 2000.

30.

During the reporting year, the following did not serve on the Remuneration Committee:
a.

The controlling shareholder or his relative.

√

_____

√

 Not applicable (the Corporation has no controlling shareholder).

b.

The chairman of the board.

√

21

_____

c.

A director who is employed by the Corporation or by the controlling shareholder in the

√

Corporation or by a corporation under its control.
d.

A director who provides services on a fixed basis to the Corporation or to the controlling

√

shareholder in the Corporation or to a corporation under its control.
e.

A director whose main source of income derives from the controlling shareholder.

√

 Not applicable (the Corporation has no controlling shareholder).
31.

32.

A controlling shareholder or his relative were not present in the reporting year in the meetings of
the Remuneration Committee, unless the chairman of the committee determined that any of
them is required in order to present a particular issue.

The Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors did not exercise their powers under Sections
267A(c), 272(c)(3) and 272A(c)(1)(1)(c) to approve a transaction or the remuneration policy, despite the
objection of the general meeting.
If you answer “false," please state The type of transaction that was approved as foregoing:
The number of occasions their power was exercised in the reporting year:

22

√

√

Internal Auditor

True
33.

The Corporation’s chairman of the board or its CEO is organizationally in charge of the internal auditor
in the Corporation.

34.

False

√

The chairman of the board or the Audit Committee have approved the work plan in the reporting year.
In addition, detail the audit topics that the Internal Auditor has dealt with in the reporting year: In the

√

reporting year, audits were conducted in all of the Company’s fields of activity: finance,
operations and supply chain, trade and marketing, IT systems and human resources. Among
these issues, the following audits may be stated: consumer laws and labor laws, business licensing,
marketing and advertising, technical department, real estate activity, procurement, human
resources, COVID-19 consultation and more.
35.

The scope of employment of the internal auditor in the Corporation in the reporting year (in hours16):
Company employee - full-time position

16

Including hours of work invested in investee companies and in audits conducted outside of Israel, as the case may be.

23

_____

_____

In the reporting year, a discussion was held (in the Audit Committee or in the board of directors) on the

√

internal auditor's findings.

36.

The internal auditor is not an interested party in the Corporation, a relative thereof, external auditor or
anyone acting on his behalf nor does he have any material business contacts with the Corporation, the
controlling shareholder therein, its relative or corporations under their control.
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√

Transactions with Interested Parties

True
37.

The controlling shareholder or its relative (including a company under his control) is not employed
by the Corporation nor provides it with management services.
If you answer “false" (in other words. the controlling shareholder or its relative is employed by the
Corporation or provides it with management services), state -

√

- The number of relatives (including the controlling shareholder) who are employed by the
Corporation (including companies under their control and/or by means of management companies):
Have such employment and/or management services agreements been approved by the organs
prescribed by law:
 Yes
 No
(Mark X in the appropriate box.)
 Not applicable (the Corporation does not have a controlling shareholder). ____.
38.

To the best of the Corporation's knowledge, the controlling shareholder has no additional businesses
in the Corporation's field of activity (in one or more fields).
If you answer “false" – indicate whether an arrangement has been made to separate activities between
the Corporation and the controlling shareholder therein.
 Yes
 No
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√

False

(Mark X in the appropriate box.)
 Not applicable (the Corporation has no controlling shareholder).

_______________________________

________________________________

Yaki Vadmani, Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Michael Bar Haim, Chairman of the Audit Committee
And Chairman of the Financial Statement Review Committee

Date of signing: March 3, 2021
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Annual Report on Effectiveness of Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Disclosure for 2020
Annual Report on Effectiveness of Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Disclosure Pursuant to
Regulation 9b(a) of Securities Regulations (Periodic and Immediate Reports) – 1970:
Management, under the supervision of the Board of Directors of Shufersal Ltd. (hereinafter – the Company), is
responsible for planning and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting and disclosure in the
Company.
In this respect, the members of management are:
1.
Itzik Abercohen, CEO;
2.
Uri Kilstein1, Deputy CEO and Director of Commerce and Marketing;
3.
Talya Huber, CFO and person in charge of management of market risks;
4.
David Laron, Executive VP and Head of Operations and Supply Chain;
5.
Zvika Fishheimer, Executive VP, Human Resources, Administration and Information Technology;
6.
Sharon Gambasho, Executive VP R&D and Real Estate;
7.
Aran Meiri, VP, General Counsel;
8.
Zvi Baida, VP Customers and Service;
Internal control over financial reporting and disclosure consists of the Company's existing controls and procedures
that have been planned by the CEO and the most senior financial officer or under their supervision, or by the
equivalent acting officers, under the supervision of the Company's Board of Directors, designed to provide
reasonable assurance about the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the financial statements in
compliance with applicable laws, and guarantee that all information that the Company is required to disclose in
the financial statements issued by law is collected, processed, summarized and reported in a timely manner and
according to the format prescribed by law.
Among other things, internal control includes controls and procedures planned to guarantee that all information
that the Company is required to disclose as above is gathered and transferred to the Company's Management,
including the CEO and the most senior financial officer, or the equivalent acting officers, in order to allow decision
making on a timely basis with respect to the disclosure requirements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting and disclosure is not designed to
provide absolute assurance that misstatements or omissions of information in the financial statements will be
prevented or detected.
Management, under the supervision of the Company's Board of Directors, performed an examination and
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting and disclosure and its effectiveness in the Company.
The evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and disclosure as performed by
Management under the governance of the Company's Board of Directors included:
Mapping and identifying the accounts and business processes that have been determined as very material to
financial reporting and disclosure; and testing key controls and examining effectiveness of the controls. The
internal control components included controls on processes for closing the accounting period, compiling and
preparing the financial statements and disclosures, entity level controls, general information technology controls,
including the IT environment, and controls in business processes: revenues, purchases, inventory and payroll.
Based on the evaluation of effectiveness that was performed by Management under the supervision of the Board
of Directors as described above, the Board of Directors and Management of the Company have concluded that
the Company's internal control over financial reporting and disclosure as of December 31, 2020 is effective.

1

Uri Kilstein completed his term as an officer in the company on January 31, 2021.

Annual Report on Effectiveness of Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Disclosure for 2020
Officers’ Certification
Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Regulation 9b(d)(1) of Securities Regulations (Periodic and Immediate Reports) – 1970:
I, Itzik Abercohen, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed the periodic report of Shufersal Ltd. (hereinafter – "the Company") for 2020
(hereinafter – “the reports");

2.

Based on my knowledge, the reports do not contain any misrepresentation of any material fact and do not
omit any representation of any material fact that is needed in order for the representations included therein,
in view of the circumstances under which such representations were included, not to be misleading with
reference to the period of the reports;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in the reports
fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position, operating results and cash flows of the
Company for the dates and periods addressed in the reports;

4.

I have disclosed to the Company's auditor, to the Company's Board of Directors, Audit Committee and
Financial Statement Committee, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting and disclosure:

5.

A.

All the significant deficiencies and the material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting and disclosure that could reasonably adversely affect the
Company's ability to collect, process, summarize or report financial information so as to cast
doubt on the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with law; and –

B.

Any fraud, whether material or not, that involves the CEO or direct subordinates thereto or that
involves other employees with a significant role in internal control over financial reporting and
disclosure;

I, alone or together with others in the Company, state that:
A.

I have designed such controls and procedures, or caused such controls and procedures to be
designed under my supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company,
including its consolidated companies within their meaning in the Securities Regulations (Annual
Financial Statements) – 2010, is made known to me by others in the Company and within those
companies, particularly during the period in which the reports are being prepared; and –

B.

I have designed such controls and procedures, or caused such controls and procedures to be
designed under my supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with law, including
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

C.

I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and disclosure, and
have presented in this report the conclusions of the Board of Directors and of Management about
the effectiveness of internal control as at the date of the financial statements.

Nothing in the aforesaid derogates from my responsibility or from the responsibility of any other person under
any law.
March 3, 2021
Itzik Abercohen
CEO

Annual Report on Effectiveness of Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Disclosure for 2020
Officers’ Certification
Certification of Most Senior Financial Officer
Pursuant to Regulation 9b(d)(2) of Securities Regulations (Periodic and Immediate Reports) – 1970:
I, Talya Huber, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed the financial statements and other financial information included in the reports of
Shufersal Ltd. (hereinafter – the Company) for 2020 (hereinafter – the reports);

2.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in the reports
do not contain any misrepresentation of any material fact and do not omit any representation of any
material fact that is needed in order for the representations included therein, in view of the circumstances
under which such representations were included, not to be misleading with reference to the period of the
reports;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in the reports
fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position, operating results and cash flows of the
Company for the dates and periods addressed in the reports;

4.

I have disclosed to the Company's auditor, to the Company's Board of Directors, Audit Committee and
Financial Statement Committee, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting and disclosure:

5.

A.

All the significant deficiencies and the material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting and disclosure that could reasonably adversely affect the
Company's ability to collect, process, summarize or report financial information so as to cast
doubt on the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with law; and –

B.

Any fraud, whether material or not, that involves the CEO or direct subordinates thereto or that
involves other employees with a significant role in internal control over financial reporting and
disclosure;

I, alone or together with others in the Company, state that:
A.

I have designed such controls and procedures, or caused such controls and procedures to be
designed under my supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company,
including its consolidated companies within their meaning in the Securities Regulations (Annual
Financial Statements) – 2010, is made known to me by others in the Company and within those
companies, particularly during the period in which the reports are being prepared; and –

B.

I have designed such controls and procedures, or caused such controls and procedures to be
designed under my supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with law, including
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

C.

I have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and disclosure, to
the extent it relates to the financial statements and other financial information included in the
reports; My conclusions regarding my aforesaid evaluation have been presented to the Board of
Directors and Management and are combined in this report.

Nothing in the aforesaid derogates from my responsibility or from the responsibility of any other person under
any law.
March 3, 2021
Talya Huber
CFO

